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December 31, 1997

To the Citizens of Illinois, Governor Edgar
and Members of the Illinois General Assembly:

oday I am releasing the State of lllinois Comprehensive

Annual Financial Report (“CAFR”) for the fiscal year

ended June 30, 1997. This year’s CAFR presents the

State of Illinois’ financial position and results of opera-
tions in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”) as prescribed in pronouncements of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB™). This audited report enables you to assess the steward-
ship entrusted to the State in a manner that is consistent with other governments and consistent
from year to year.

This year’s CAFR reveals a $500 million or 53% improvement in the State’s General Fund.

The fund deficit in the General Fund decreased from $951 million at June 30, 1996 to $451 mil-
lion at June 30, 1997. With the healthy economy. the State benefits in the short term from high-
er tax revenues and interest earnings. However, we must be prepared for the long term and a
potential downturn of the economy. For example. under the new GASB pension standard the
State’s retirement systems were underfunded by $1.4 billion during the current fiscal year. I will
continue to monitor and report on both the short and long term condition of the State.

This report contains three sections: the introductory, the financial, and the statistical and eco-
nomic sections. Responsibility for the accuracy of the data as well as the completeness and fair-
ness of presentation of this report rests with my Office and other State agency management.
This report necessarily includes certain amounts which are based on management’s best esti-
mates and judgments.

This CAFR includes a copy of the 13th Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting awarded to the State of Illinois by the Government Finance Officers Association for
the State’s previous CAFR, published in 1996. This certificate is a prestigious national award
recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local govern-
mental financial reports.

This CAFR differs from the thirteen that have preceded it in an important respect. For the first
time in Illinois, and for the first time by any state or local government issuer of a CAFR, ir
includes measurement information, on an experimental basis about the results, accomplish-
ments, and performance of Illinois state government beyond just disclosures of financial condi-
tion and operations.



[ have consistently expressed my belief that accountability that only reports how much govern-
ment spent, and what that spending bought, is insufficient. Citizens are also entitled to know what
are the results of the expenditure of our tax dollars? The missing piece of accountability has been
what services have been provided. in quantity and quality. and what public purposes served. how
well, at what cost?

The history of efforts to measure and use government performance or results information is a long
one, and is summarized as background in a following section. But the most recent development
has come from the GASB, the authoritative body that promulgates the GAAP that all state and
local CAFRs must follow. GASB has said that one of the subobjectives of CAFR reporting is “to
provide information to assist users in assessing the service efforts. costs. and accomplishments of
the governmental entity.” Consistent with that conclusion regarding objectives, GASB has
encouraged state and local CAFR issuers to experiment with the inclusion of government service
efforts, and accomplishments information (“SEA™). Such experimentation is expected to be a nec-
essary precondition to GASB adoption of authoritative guidance for the inclusion of SEA informa-
tion in all state and local government CAFRs.

As reflected by the following correspondence, this Ilinois CAFR has been designated as a
GASB SEA experimentation effort for the purpose of the national discussion regarding govern-
ment performance accountability. Throughout the report you will find examples of different
kinds of performance and service measures. For this first experimental effort we worked with the
various agencies in an ad hoc process to capture illustrative examples. At the same time we are
also working to create processes that will provide SEA measures on a systematic and comprehen-
sive basis in the future.

I wish to extend my appreciation to the various Illinois agencies. offices. and boards who assisted
us in this pilot effort in government accountability. We all hope this effort in Illinois will con-
tribute to the national dialogue on government SEA-Performance accountability, and more
parochially also begin to tell [llinoisians something about the results of the expenditure of their tax
dollars.

Sincerely,
LOLETA DIDRICKSON
Comptroller

vi



GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD rw
401 Merritt 7, P.O. Box 5116, Norwalk, Connecticut 06856-5116 / 203-847-0700 st

Fax: 203-849-9714

April 2, 1997

The Honorable Loleta A. Didrickson
Comptroller

State of Illinois

State House

Springfield, IL 62706

Dear Comptroller Didrickson:

We arg pleased to formally announce the designation of the State of Illinois as a GASB
service efforts and accomplishments (SEA) experimentation site.

As you are aware, the Board is leading and sponsoring research into how governmental
financial reports can be strengthened by including measures on SEA, in addition to
traditional financial data and information. Measuring and reporting program performance,
as part of overall financial reporting, remains one of the GASB’s three major objectives
for governmental financial reporting.

As a basis for establishing standards for SEA reporting, we have been strongly
encouraging state and local governments to undertake experiments in developing and
selecting SEA indicators, gathering data for these indicators, and devising methods for
presenting and explaining the information.

Over the past year we have become aware of your desire and commitment to strengthen
accountability not only for how funds were spent, but also for what the spending
accomplished. We are especially interested in Illinois’ efforts because of your plan to
incorporate various SEA measures into the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR). The annual financial report is the primary vehicle for accountability by
governments, and we believe it remains a viable place for reporting SEA information.

Your initiative not only offers Illinois a timely opportunity for leadership on this important
and evolving issue, but also advances the Board’s view that SEA reporting is fundamental
both to governmental decision making and public accountability. We heartily applaud
your leadership, wish you the best in your efforts, and assure you that we are here to
support and assist in any way we can. Please feel free to call on us.

Smcmlym CJ AR Qe

Tom L. Allen David R. Bean
Chairman Director of Research
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COMPTROLLER
Loleta A. Didricksen

December 31, 1998

The Honorable Jim Edgar
Governor

State of [llinois

207 State House
Springfield, Illinois 62706

Dear Governor Edgar:

It 1s my pleasure to present to you the State of
Hlinois Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (“CAFR”) for the year ended June 30,
1998. The CAFR is the State’s official annual
report and provides the readers with the financial
position of the State at June 30. 1998, and results
of operations during the fiscal year. The report is
intended to provide the State’s managers,
investors and creditors, taxpayers, the legislature,
and other users with information in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles
("GAAP"). The statements are presented using
the “pyramid”™ approach to governmental financial
reporting as prescribed in pronouncements of the
Governmental  Accounting  Standards  Board
(“GASB™). Responsibility for the accuracy of the
data as well as the completeness and fairness of
presentation of this report rests with my Office
and other State agency management. This report
necessarily includes certain amounts which are
based on management’s best estimates and
judgments.

The CAFR is composed of the following sections:
introductory:  financial: and  statistical and
economic. The introductory section includes the
table of contents. the Comptroller’s letter of
transmittal and SEA Performance Measurement
Initiative, and the State’s organization chart. The
financial section includes the Auditor General's
report on the financial statements, the general

purpose financial statements, required
supplementary information and the combining and
individual  fund financial statements and
schedules. The statistical and economic section
includes selected demographic and business data,
generally on a multi-year basis, and SEA
Performance Measurement Initiative/Illustrations
consistent with our GASB experimentation
designation.

The accompanying financial statements are
prepared in conformity with GAAP applicable to
state governments as prescribed by the GASB.
This office strongly supports the GASB.
contributed to its formation and participates in the
development of pronouncements, providing
testimony at public hearings and submitting
comments and recommendations as proposed
standards are distributed for exposure.

The CAFR includes all funds. account groups.
elected offices, departments and agencies of the
State, as well as all boards, commissions,
authorities, universities and colleges for which the
State’s executive or legislative branches are
financially accountable. The financial statements
distinguish ~ between  primary  government
organizations and component units. The primary
government is the nucleus of the financial
reporting entity and is the focal point for the users
of the financial statements. The primary



government of the State consists of all the
organizations that make up its legal entity. All
funds. departments, agencies. offices and other
organizations that are not legally separate are. for
financial reporting purposes. part of the State or
another entity’s primary government. Component
units are legally separate organizations for which
the State is financially accountable.

The financial activities of the State are organized
on the basis of individual funds and account
groups. each of which is a separate accounting
entity segregated for the purpose of carrying out
specific activities or attaining certain objectives in
accordance with specific regulations, restrictions
and limitations. The reporting entity. fund types
and account groups are described in detail in Note
I to the financial statements.

To ensure readability of the financial statements.
generally only funds with total assets. liabilities,
fund equity, revenues or expenditures greater than
2% of the total for that fund type (except special
revenue funds where .5% is used) are presented
separately in  the combining statements.

Combination of funds is necessary due to the
existence of more than 700 funds in the State’s
reporting entity. Funds used by more than one
agency are classified with what is determined to
be the primary administering agency.

Universities. colleges and their related foundations
and alumni associations are reported as “discretely
presented component units.”  The Combined
Statements of Changes in Fund Balances and
Current Funds Revenues. Expenditures and Other
Changes for university and college funds are
presented separately within the general purpose
financial statements in conformity with GAAP.

An organizational chart. showing the relationships
of the three branches of Illinois State government
and those of the various agencies. boards.
commissions and colleges and universities which
provide a full range of State government services,
1s presented on pages xxxviil and xxxix.



FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following balance sheet and operating Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
statements have been condensed from the utilizing the *memorandum only™ column of the
statements included in the State of [llinois primary government.
State of Illinois State of Illinois
Balance Sheet - Primary Government Operating Statement - Primary Government
! s (in millions ! in millions
Y1998 FY1997%) FY1998 _FY1997*
Assets (and other debits) Revenues
Cash $ 8225 § 8792 ||Taxes-
Investments 46,052 36.948 || Income $ &8Il $§ 7932
Receivables, net 6.563 6,466 [| Sales 7.168 6,823
Fixed assets 5,126 4,900 || Other taxes 5.270 5.179
Other assets 1.375 1.522 | |Federal government 8.950 8,910
Other debits 20.608 9.718 | |Charges for sales and services 2,767 2,628
Total assets and other debits $_87.049 $__ 78355 ||Interest income 6.332 5,591
Contributions 2,349 1,593
Liabilities Licenses and fees 1,093 1,078
Payables $§ 7063 %5 8602 ||Other 1.583 1412
Pension liability 11,305 10,557 323 41,146
Bonds outstanding 8.875 8,507
Depository and other 5.679 6.018 | | Expenditures/Expenses
Other 2.210 2.332 | |Health and social services 9,963 9,290
Total liabilities 35,132 36.016 | |Education 6.786 6,132
General government/administrative 5.768 5.149
Fund Balances/Retained Earnings Social assistance 3.540 3,873
Investment in fixed assets 5,061 4,834 | | Transportation 2,649 2,698
General 213 (443) |Public protection and justice 1.678 1,613
Special revenue 2,943 2,683 || Debt service 966 044
Debt service 745 639 | | Benefit payments and refunds 2,907 2,614
Capital projects 357 135 | |Prizes and claims 842 827
Proprietary 288 281 | [Other 1426 1.222
Trust 43636 34.210 36,525 34.362
Total fund equity 52,817 42.339 | |Net other sources (uses) and
Total liabilities and fund balances/ nonoperating revenues (expenses) (1.073) (1.169)
retained earnings $_87.940 $__78.355 | [Excess of revenues over expendi-

* As restated

tures/expenses and net other uses

$__ 6735 §__ S.615

Xi



Assets (and “other debits™)

Total assets (and other debits) of the State of
llinois at June 30. 1998 were almost $88 billion.
This was an increase of $9.6 billion (12%) over
fiscal year 1997. The largest increase was in the
State’s investments ($9.1 billion). The Pension

investment increase. The remaining increase in
the State’s investments was caused by the non-
pension funds implementing Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
31, which requires investments to be accounted

Funds accounted for $6.4 billion of the for at fair value rather than cost.
Comparison of Total Assets (in millions) *
% change

Account FY 1998 FY98 % From 1997 FY |997*#
Investments S 46.052 52.3% 24.6% $ 36.948
Cash & cash equivalents 8,225 9.4% ( 6.4%) 8,792
Receivables 6.563 7.5% 1.5% 6.466
Fixed assets 5.126 5.8% 4 4% 4.909
Other assets 1.375 1.6% ( 9.7%) [.522
Other debits 20.608 23.4% 4.5% 19.718
Total Assets 5 87.949 100.0% 122% $ 78.355
“The above numbers include primary sovernment funds only.  ** As restated.

Total Asseis-Primary Government
June 30, 1998 (in millions)
Other debits
$20,608
23%
Other Assets :
$1,375 by
2% A
Fixaed Assets Investmeants
$5,126 $46,052
6% 53%
Receivables
56,563 Cash/equivalents
7% $8,225
9%

xii



Liabilities

Total liabilities decreased to $35.1 billion at June
30, 1998, $884 million (2.5%) less than [iscal year
1997. The State’s payables decreased $1.5 billion
which is a reflection of the improved financial
condition of the State. The decrease in payables
was partially offset by an increase ($748 million)
in the pension liability (mostly because of a $706

million increase in the net pension obligation at
Teachers” Retirement System). Depository and
other liabilities decreased $339 million which is
attributable to the reclassification of the Public
Treasurers’ Investment Pool Fund and the
Deferred Lottery Prize Winners” Fund where
liabilities were reclassified to fund balance.

Comparison of Total Liabilities (in millions) *
% change

Account FY1998 FY98 % From 1997 FY1997
Payables $ 7.063 20.1% ( 17.9%) $ 8.602
Pension liability** 11,305 32.2% 7.1% 10,557
General obligation bonds 5.886 16.8% 4.1% 5.655
Special obligation bonds 1.832 5.2% ( 2.8%) 1.885
Revenue bonds 1.157 3.3% 19.6% 967
Depository & other 5,679 16.1% ( 5.6%) 6.018
Other 2210 6.3% ( 5.2%) 2.332
Total Liabilities b 35.132 100.0% (2.5%) 3 36.016 |
#The above numbers include primary government funds only.
#+See page xxiv for further information.

Revenue b
51,157
3%

51.832

5%

Other
I}clwmi;t._n'y_’:‘f other £2.210 Payables
33,0 L Bl -
u 0% 57.063
16% 204

Special obligation bonds

Total Liabilities-Primary Government
June 30, 1998 (in millions)

nds

Pension lability **

; 511,303
General obligation
313G
honids
55,886
1 7%

xiii



Fund Balances and Retained Earnings

The fund balances for all primary government the Pension Fund balances increased $5 billion
funds combined was $52.8 billion at June 30. and the Public Treasurers’ Investment Pool Fund
1998 representing a 25% increase from fiscal year ($2.4 billion) along with the Deferred Lottery
1997, By far, the majority of the increases were in Prize Winners Fund ($1.7 billion) were reclass-
the trust funds ($9.4 billion). Within those funds, ified from agency funds to investment trust funds.
Comparison of Total Fund Balances (Deficits)
and Retained Earnings (in millions) *

Fund Types/ % change

Account Group FY 1998 FY98 % From 1997 FY 1997**

General $(213) (0.4%) 52.9% 3443

Special Revenue 2,043 5.6% 9.7% 2.683

Debt Service 745 1. 4% 16.6% 639

Capital Projects 357 0.7% 164.4% 135

Proprietary 288 0.5% 2.5% 28]

Trusl 43,636 82.6% 27.6% 34210

General fixed assets 5.061 9.6% 4.7% 4.834

Total Fund Balances $52817 100.0% 24.7% $42.339

*The above numbers include primary covernment funds only. ** As restated.

85,061  Fund Balances and Equity

Gianaral:fied. asests June 30, 1998 (in millions)

543,636

S RO SO SR TR S|

Propriatary I 5288
Capital Projects l 8357
Debt Service l §745
Special Revenue - $2.943
General I
B

$ (5,000) $ 5,000 $ 15,000 § 25,000 $ 35,000 5 45,000 $ 55,000

Xiv



General Governmental Functions

The governmental fund types are those through programs and activities,  These reports are
which most State functions are financed. These available on request.

|L1ml.l types _(tl_u: gcnc_r;_ll. H!.JCCIi-l] ICVC”AU?' capital Revenues

projects, and debt service funds) are presented on
the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Throughout the year, the Comptroller’s Office
publishes a monthly Fiscal Focus which
summarizes the status of governmental fund
revenues and expenditures and analyzes various

Revenues on the modified accrual basis are
recognized when they are both measurable and
available to finance current operations. Revenues
(amounts expressed in millions) from various
sources for fiscal years 1998 and 1997 are as

tollows:
Increase Percentage
Amount Percentage of Total (Decrease)  Incr (Decr)

| Revenue Source 1998 1997 1998 1997 trom 1997 _ from 1997
Taxes:

Income $ 8811 % 7.932 28% 26% $ 879 1 1%

Sales 7.168 6,823 229% 22% 345 5%

Motor fuel 1,287 1,232 4% 4% 55 4%

Public utility 1.208 1,093 4% 4% 115 1%

Other 1.604 1.664 5% 5% (60) -4%
Federal zovernment 8.929 8.887 28% 29% 42 1%
Licenses & fees 1,093 1,078 3% 4% 15 1%
Interest/investment 302 248 1% 1% 54 22%
Other 1.549 1.371 5% 5% 178 13%
Total $ 31951 % 30,328 100% 100% $ 1,623 5%

FY98 Governmental Fund Revenues
Int/invast  Othar
Licensas/feas 5302 $1,549 Income taxes
$1.003 1% 5% $8,811
3% 28%

Fadaral
$8,929
28%

Other taxas Public utilty  Motor fuel Sales taxes
$1,604 $7.168
5% $1,208 $1,287 000,
4% 4% )
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Fiscal year 1998 governmental funds revenues
increased by $1.623 million (5%) over 1997
revenues. State-imposed taxes including income.
sales, motor fuel, public utility, and miscellaneous
other taxes remained the largest overall revenue
source for fiscal year 1998 and comprised nearly
63% of total State revenues.

Income Tax

Income tax revenues. the State’s largest tax
revenue source, increased $879 million (11%)
from fiscal year 1997. The increase is generally
the result of a robust economy and resulting
growth in personal and corporate income taxes.

Sales Taxes

Sales taxes remained the second largest tax
revenue source for fiscal year 1998, increasing
$345 million (5%) from fiscal year 1997. The
increase is due to general growth in retail sales in
an improved economy.

Public Utility Taxes

Public urility taxes showed an increase of $115
million (11%) mainly because of a 2% rate
increase in the telecommunications tax deposited
into the Common School Fund and the School
Infrastructure Fund.  Also. the Department of
Revenue began collecting a new Energy
Assistance  Charge for deposit into  the
Supplemental Low Income Energy Assistance
Fund.

Federal Government Revenues

Federal government revenues for fiscal year 1998
remained virtually unchanged when compared to
fiscal year 1997, but continue as the second
largest revenue source on a GAAP basis for 1998
(second only to the State-imposed taxes discussed
above). A closer analysis of individual agencies’
activities reveals off-setting increases and
decreases. Federal revenues at the Department of
Public Aid in the General Fund decreased $602
million reflecting the transfer of many programs to
the newly formed Department of Human Services.
Correspondingly, the Department of Human
Services. which consolidated all or parts of six
different agencies. reflected increased federal

government revenues in the General Fund of $767
million. Federal government reimbursement
revenues of the Medicaid assessment program
accounts within the General Fund decreased $89
million.  The accounts and their increases
(decreases) were:  County Hospital Services
Provider Fund $117 million; University Hospital
Services Provider Fund ($28 million); Long-term
Care Provider Fund ($26 million) and the Hospital
Provider Fund ($152 million).

A significant decrease occurred in the Road Fund
($187 million) administered by the Department of
Transportation (IDOT). The decrease happened
because the Congress did not pass a new federal
highway bill until May 1. 1998. Until the passage
of the bill. IDOT received minimal interim
funding on its federally financed programs.

Federal government revenues at the State Board
Education (Federal Department of Education
Fund. Federal Department of Agriculture Fund
and the Special Education Medicaid Maiching
Fund) increased $188 million due to additional
programs and more eligible recipients.

There was one other noteworthy change in federal
government revenues. The Food Stamp and
Commodity Trust Fund of the Department of
Human Services decreased $81 million because
refunds of food stamp coupons were recorded as
off-sets to federal government revenue for the first
time. In prior years, these refunds were shown as
social assistance expenditures.

Other Revenues

Other revenues increased $178 million (13%)
from fiscal year 1997. One major component of
the increase occurred in the County Hospital
Services Fund where the other revenues were
$113 million larger than the previous year because
there were more Medicaid eligible patients.
Another component was an increase of $84
million in the Department of Public Aid’s Child
Support Enforcement Trust Fund where record
collections were recorded this year.



Expenditures

Expenditures for governmental fund types are
presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting and are generally recognized when the
liability is incurred regardless of when payment

is made. Expenditures (amounts expressed in
millions) for major governmental fund functions

in fiscal year 1998 and 1997 were as follows:

Percentage Increase Percentage

Amount of Total (Decrease) Incr (Decr)

| Expenditure Function 1998 1997 1998 1997 from 1997 from 1997
Health and social services % 9063 §  9.289 33% 2% % 674 7%
Education 6.786 6,132 22% 21% 654 | 1%
General government 5.561 4.964 18% 1 7% 597 2%
Social assistance 2401 2.631 B 9% (230) (9% )
Transportation 2,649 2,698 9% 10% (49 (2%)
Public protection & justice 1.678 1.613 5% 6% 65 4%
Natural resources/recreation 414 418 1 % 1 % () (1%)
Debi service 967 944 3% 3% 23 2%
Capital outlays 342 375 | % | % (33) (V%)
Total b 30,761 % _29.064 | D047 100% $ 1.697 O

Public protection & diell ;
il resources/racreation
justice
$1.678 5414 Debt service
5% 1% $967
3%
Transportation
$2,649

9%

Social assistance
$2,401
8%

General governmeant
$5,561
18%

FY98 Governmental Fund Expenditures

Capital outlays

$342
1 D/O
Health and social
sarvices
$9,963

33%

Education
$6,786
22%

Governmental funds expenditures of $30,761
million in fiscal year 1998 increased $1.697
million (6%) over 1997 and were $1.190 million
less than revenues on a GAAP basis.

Health and Social Services Expenditures

Health and social services expenditures of $10
billion were the largest expenditure function for

fiscal year 1998, increasing by $674 million (7%)



over fiscal year 1997. This expenditure function is
33% of total spending on a GAAP basis.
increasing slightly from 32% in fiscal year 1997.
Significant fluctuations occurred at several
agencies. A $43] million increase in General
Fund expenditures at the Department of Human
Services (DHS) represents the first full year of the
agency's operations. In addition, the Fiscal Year
1998 appropriations allocated increased funding
to the Department for its social service programs.
The Department of Public Aid showed a $365
million increase in General Fund spending in spite
of the fact that many of its programs were
transferred to DHS. The increase is attributable to
larger Medicaid expenditures. Expenditure
decreases occurred at the Department of Public
Health ($53 million) and the Department of
Children and Family Services ($41 million). The
decreases at both agencies can  be partially
explained by programs that were transferred to
DHS. The Medicaid assessment funds’
expenditures decreased by $145 million.

Education Expenditures

Education expenditures were once again the
second largest expenditure function in the
governmental funds for fiscal year [998.
Education expenditures increased $654 million
(11%) from fiscal year 1997 on a GAAP basis.

Significant education expenditure increases that
reflect the continuing budgetary emphasis on
education in fiscal year 1998 were at the State
Board of Education where General Fund
expenditures increased 5134 million in the
General Revenue Account and $206 million in the
Common School Account.,

Other education expenditure increases were in the
State Board of Education Federal Department of
Education Fund ($89 million) for increased
eligible reimbursements and in the Special
Education Medicaid Matching Fund ($67 million)
where more children received Medicaid services
provided by local school districts. The Teachers’
Retirement System received $76 million more in
fiscal year 1998 from the State’s Common School
account within the General Fund to pay the
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employer contribution of local school district
teachers as required by law.

Social Assistance Expenditures

Social assistance expenditures decreased $230
million (9%) from the last fiscal year. The largest
decreases occurred at the Department of Human
Services and the Department of Public Aid in the
General Fund ($217 million) because of the
change tfrom the Aid To Families With Dependent
Children (AFDC) Program to the Temporary
Assistance For Needy Families (TANF) Program.
The TANF Program imposes a time limit on
assistance that has reduced expenditures. Another
significant decrease was in the food stamp
program administered by the Department of
Human Services where expenditures decreased
$81 million because of a change in the method of
accounting for the refund of food stamp coupons
to the federal government.

General Government

General government expenditures increased $597
million (12%) from fiscal year 1997 1o 1998, A
significant expenditure increase occurred at the
Department of Central Management Services
($152 million) in conjunction with increased
funding for group insurance expenditures and
changes in calculating health insurance claims
incurred but not reported. In addition. the
Department of Revenue’s expenditures increased
$124 million in the Personal Property Tax
Replacement Fund and $80 million in the Local
Government Distributive Fund. This growth was
mainly attributable to larger payments to units of
local government because of income tax growth.

Internal Control

Each State agency's management is responsible
for establishing and maintaining internal control
designed to ensure that the assets of the State are
protected from loss. theft or misuse. and to ensure
that adequate accounting data are compiled to
allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. The State’s internal control is designed
to provide reasonable. but not absolute. assurance
that these objectives are met. The concept of



reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost
of a control should not exceed the benefits likely
to be derived: and (2) the valuation of costs and
benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

On October 31. 1989 the Fiscal Control and
Internal Auditing Act (“FCIAA™) became law,
requiring all State agency chief executive officers
to annually certify the adequacy of internal control
in place within their agencies. The first annual
certifications by State agency CEOs were due
November 15, 1990. Subsequent certifications are
due May 1" each year. The FCIAA also requires
that certain agencies have a chief internal auditor
with a specified minimum level of professional
competency.

Budgetary Controls

The  Comptroller's  Statewide  Accounting
Management System (*“SAMS™) provides the
basis for receipt. expenditure and encumbrance
reporting of all State treasury held funds with
specific budgetary controls maintained on line-
item expenditures for all appropriated funds.
Appropriations (budget) and actual expenditure
analysis for significant individual funds is
provided in the Budgetary Schedules section of
this report. A reconciliation between the GAAP
and budgetary basis of accounting is presented in
Note 2 of the financial statements. The budgetary
system (i.e.. SAMS) classifies funds into
traditional groupings which do not conform with
the fund type classifications set forth by the
GASB: therefore. a reclassification of budget
categories to GAAP financial statement fund types
also is presented in Note 2.

The State of Illinois has a two-month “lapse
period.” During this time, July 1 to August 31,
State agencies can expend funds appropriated in
the prior fiscal year if encumbered by June 30. For
all fund types. goods or services received prior to
June 30 are recorded as liabilities and
expenditures or expenses. whichever s
appropriate. For governmental fund types. lapse
period expenditures for goods or services
encumbered as of June 30 and received prior to
August 31 are reported with other encumbrances
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as reservations of June 30 fund balances and not
as liabilities or expenditures.

Investment Management

The Ilinois State Treasurer is responsible for
investing all cash resources of the State. with the
exception of those held by the retirement systems
and certain debt service. enterprise. agency.
universities’ and colleges” endowments and other
locally-held funds. Of the five retirement systems,
three pool their resources for investment and two
invest their resources under investment master
trustee arrangements with individual investment
managers. The universities and colleges are
granted independent powers to invest their funds
which are held outside the State Treasury. Interest
income earned on the cash resources received and
invested by the State Treasurer is allocated to the
various funds (where specified by law) based on
the average daily cash balances invested. A
comparison with prior years of the State's
investments (including component units) at June
30 is presented on page xx.

State agencies had $8.9 billion more invested at
June 30, 1998 than at June 30, 1997, A portion of
this increase is attributable to the State’s new
accounting treatment for investments (GASB
Statement 31) that requires investments to be
presented at fair value.  Also. interest and
investment income increased $812 million. This
increase can be attributed mainly to larger
balances available for investment purposes.

Agreements signed between the State of Illinois
and the Financial Management Service of the U.S.
Treasury (“FMS™) since July 1993, set oul
procedures for drawing federal funds and methods
for computing interest liabilities for programs
subject to the federal Cash Management
Improvement Act (“CMIA”). Illinois submitted
the fiscal year 1997 CMIA Annual Report in
December 1997, and after review by FMS paid the
federal government $2.9 million in State interest
liabilities by the March 1998, due date.



Comparison of Investment Portfolios at June 30,
(In millions)
1998 1997 1996 1995

Investment Type Amount % _Amount _ %  Amount _ % _Amount _ % |
Corporate Equity Securities $ 13550 24% $ 13513 29% $ 8747 U% § 7439  214%
Mutual Funds 15962 29% 11963  25% 8458  23% 7200 23%
LS. Treasury & Agency Obligations 10.164  18% 8151 17% 6849  18% 5823 18%
Corporate Debt Securities 5.981 11% 4538  10% 4741 13% 4.191 13%
Tangible Property 2,687 5% 2,631 6% 2,767 T% 2,690 9%
Repurchase Agreements 4.025 7% 3.197 7% 3164 9% 2.374 7%
Commercial Paper 2,252 4% 1.833 4% 1.291 3% 958 3%
Investment Contracts 982 2% 844 _ 2% 956 3% 903 3%
Totals $ 55603 100% _$ 46670 100% _$ 36973 _100% _$ 31628 _100%

Cash Management

The State of Illinois™ daily activities are operated
on a “cash basis.” where bills are paid with the
available balances of cash on hand.  The
Comptroller. chief fiscal officer of the State of
llinois, maintains the State’s central fiscal
accounts and is responsible for ordering all
payments into and out of the funds held by the
State Treasurer. The State’s cash tlow situation
improved again during fiscal year 1998. The
General Fund’s available balance at June 30, 1998
was $1.2 billion. This was $395 million greater
than the balance at June 30. 1997. The cash
balance generally is affected by the same events
previously  discussed in the General
Governmental Functions Section.

The General Fund includes the three school and
General Revenue Fund accounts which administer
nearly 42% of the State’s annual expenditures.
The General Revenue Account is also the State’s
basic operating fund, funding at least a portion of
the operating budget of every major agency.
Nearly all of the 5395 million improvement
occurred in the General Revenue Fund account,

General Fund

Many State programs are accounted for in the
General Fund. As demonstrated by the tables on
page xxi (in millions), the State’s GAAP basis
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financial position at June 30, 1998 improved from
fiscal year 1997. The fund deficit in the State’s
General Fund decreased by $230 million on a
GAAP basis (from a deficit $443 million to a
deficit $213 million). On the budgerary basis.,
there was a $356 million fund balance at June 30,
1998 compared to a $45 million balance at June
30, 1997, a $31 1 million improvement.

The undesignated fund deficit on a GAAP basis
also decreased by $229 million from a deficit of
$596 million to a deficit of $367 million.
Revenues and transfers-in exceeded expenditures
and transfers-out in the General Fund by $230
million in fiscal year 1998,

The General Fund’s continued improvement is
reflected by the assets increasing by 22% from
fiscal year 1997 to 1998, including higher cash.
taxes receivable, intercovernmental receivable and
other receivable balances. The State’s payables
and other liabilities increased by 12% for the same
period. Also, General Fund revenues increased by
$1.1 billion (6%) while expenditures increased
$1.2 billion (7%). Increased income,. sales. and
other taxes in a healthy economy kept pace with
expenditures during fiscal year 1998,



Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
Fund Balance **Undesignated (under) expenditures and net other
(deficit) Fund (deficit) at  financing sources (uses) for the year
at June 30 June 30 ended June 30
1989 (74) (256) 281
1990* (557) (745) (482)
1991 (1.368) (1.537) (806)
1992 (1,656) (1.825) (306)
1993 (1.916) (2,060) (260)
1994 (1.595) (1:731) 321
1995 (1.204) (1,404) 388
1996 951) (1,130 252
1997* (443) (596) 508
1998 (213) (367) 230
* As restated
** The amount in the fund balance available (unavailable) for appropriation.

General Fund Deficits
FY 1989-98 (in millions)
$2,000 . =
$1,800
$1,600
$1,400
$1,200
$1,000 i
' 501,65
L [so0s1)
' o 5951
$400 574 ‘
$200
$- = — &=l L] =t Iy [f=] = [-a]
o0 =z] (=] o oy L= i) o (=] o pi]
= = &= & = = & =] & -
designed to provide cash assistance fto
Exl’e“dable Trust Funds involuntarily unemployed workers regardless of

Total revenues for the State’s expendable trust
funds decreased %33 million (2%) from $1.348
billion in fiscal year 1997 to $1.315 billion in
fiscal year 1998, Total expenditures decreased
$122 million (10%) from $1.266 billion in 1997 to
$1.144 billion in 1998,

By far the largest expendable trust fund is the
State Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund
(“Trust Fund™). The unemployment insurance
(“UT") system is a joint state-federal program
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need. During fiscal year 1998, the Ul system
provided 5.1 million weeks of benefits to laid off
workers at an average weekly stipend for
recipients of regular benefits of $222. The State is
responsible for determining benefit levels and
eligibility criteria, and for setting State Ul tax
levels sufficient to pay the benefits. The federal
government provides all administrative funding
and mandates minimal coverage requirements. A
separate federal unemployment tax is assessed by
the federal government to finance these



administrative costs, provide a source of funds for
states to borrow against during periods of high
unemployment, and to pay the federal share of
extended and emergency unemployment benefits.

Because of the solvency problems experienced
with the Trust Fund in the late 1970's and early
1980’s, the members of the General Assembly
have worked closely with leaders of Illinois™ labor
and business communities to ensure the solvency
of the fund for its workers while guarding against
rapid growth of taxes on the employer community.
In 1987 and again in 1992, business, government,
and labor set out to revisit the issues surrounding
the administration of the Ul system. In 1992, most
of the language from the landmark 1987
legislation was carried forward. [llinois employers
will have realized tax savings of nearly $343
million over the life of the new agreement. while
benefits to unemployed workers will steadily
increase.

Current year revenues exceeded expenditures by
$172 million and the fund continues to be in a
fiscally sound position, as demonstrated by its
$2.2 billion fund balance at June 30, 1998. The
fiscal health of the fund has been so good that
legislation was signed into law in February 1996
that reduced the minimum tax rate to .5% from
.6% and the maximum rate to 6.8% from 8.2%.

Investment Trust Funds

As part of the implementation of GASB Statement
31 two funds were reclassified to Investment Trust
funds (see Note 3). This new fund type accounts
for transactions., assets. liabilities and fund
balances reserved for pool participants for
depositors that are not part of the State's financial
reporting entity. The State has two Investment
Trust Funds:  the lllinois Public Treasurers’
Investment Pool and the Deferred Lottery Prize
Winners Trust Fund. During fiscal year 1998, the
Illinois  Public  Treasurers” Investment Pool
recorded $568.3 million of participants’ deposits,
$121.7 million of net investment income and
distributions to pool investors of $121.7 million.
The Deferred Lottery Prize Winners Trust Fund
recorded investment income of $207.9 million and
participants’ withdrawals of $101.8 million.
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Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are the State’s “business-type”
activities and include enterprise and internal
service funds. Combined operating revenues for
the State’s enterprise funds were $1.880 billion in
fiscal year 1998 decreasing $10 million (less than
1%) trom fiscal year 1997. Combined operating
expenses were $1.365 billion, up $78 million
(6%) trom fiscal year 1997. Noteworthy expense
increases occurred at the Department of Insurance.
Special  Deputy  Receiver  (General and
Administrative expenses increased $36 million).
State Lottery (Prizes and claims increased $15
million), Department of Central Management
Services (Local Government Health Insurance
Reserve Fund and Teachers Health Insurance
Security Fund benefit payments increased $25
million).

The State’s internal service funds, which provide
data processing. motor pool vehicles. telephone
communications. printing services, self insurance
and other services to State agencies, operated on a
profitable basis for fiscal year 1998, Combined
internal service funds revenues and expenses for
fiscal year 1998 were $1.005 million and $813
million, respectively. This represents an increase
of $134 million (15%) in revenues and an increase
of $151 million (23%) in expenses from fiscal
year 1997 to 1998, The increases in both revenues
and expenses are primarily attributable to the
Health Insurance Reserve Fund which experienced
larger revenues (charges for sales and services
increased $150 million) and larger claims (benefit
payments were up $134 million).

Component Units

Universities and Colleges. 1llinois operates a
comprehensive program of higher education,
including nine State universities and support for a
statewide network of 49 community colleges, 103
private, not-for-profit institutions, 20 proprietary
institutions, and a student financial assistance
program. During fiscal year 1998, university and
college expenditures increased $205 million (5%)
over 1997. General Fund financial support to the
State's universities increased by 5.7%. to $1.303
billion, from fiscal year 1997 to fiscal year 1998,
The support includes education and general



support from the general revenue and education
assistance accounts of the general fund as well as
general revenue account payments made to the
Universities Retirement System for payments on
behalf of the nine State public universities.

Proprietary. Certain business-type activities that
are not a part of the primary government are
included as component units.  The largest
proprietary component units in terms of assets are
the Ilinois Toll Highway Authority and the
lllinois  Housing  Development  Authority.
Combined proprietary fund component unit
operating revenues and expenses for the current
fiscal year were $657 million and $538 million,
respectively. This compares to revenues of $631
million and expenses of $530 million for fiscal
year 1997.

Debt Administration

During June 1998, the Illinois general obligation
bond rating was increased from “Aa3” to “Aa2”
by Moody's Investors Service. Also, during June
1998. Standard & Poor's Corporation (S & P”)
rating was increased to "AA" from “AA-". The
higher bond ratings can be attributed to the State’s
improved financial condition. Special obligation
bond ratings remained the same, ranging from
“AAA” by S & P for Build lllinois bonds to “Al”

by Moody's for Civic Center bonds. Among the
states. Illinois is a moderate debt state with
outstanding general and special obligation bonds
at June 30, 1998 totaling $7.718 billion. Bonds
have been issued primarily to provide funds for
acquisition and construction of capital facilities
for higher education. public and mental health,
correction and conservation purposes, and for
maintenance and construction of highway and
waterway facilities. Bonds also have been issued
to provide assistance to municipalities for
construction of sewage treatment facilities. port
districts. aquarium facilities. local schools. mass
transportation and aviation purposes, and to fund
research and development of coal and alternative
energy sources,

General and special obligation bonds aggregating
$718.3 million and $183.1 million. respectively.
were issued during fiscal year 1998 at average
interest rates ranging from 4.8% to 5.1%. During
fiscal year 1997, general and special obligation
bonds totaling $435 million and $60 million.
respectively, were issued at average rates ranging
from 5.1% to 5.7%. Debt service principal and
interest costs of $496.9 million and $357.4
million, respectively were paid in fiscal year 1998,
The dramatic increase since fiscal year 1980 is
displayed in the following chart.
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In addition to general and special obligation

$1.586 billion of other long-term obligations

bonds. Illinois has $4.923 billion of revenue outstanding as of June 30, 1998,
bonds, $102.1 million of notes payable and
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Retirement Systems

Total net assets of the State’s five pension trust
funds. on a “fair value™ basis. aggregated $37.2
billion at June 30, 1998, an increase of $5 billion
(16%) from the previous vear. During fiscal year
1997, the State adopted GASB Statement 27.
Accounting for Pensions by State and Local
Governmental — Emplovers. The statement
requires, among other things. that assets be valued
at fair value.
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explained by three accounts. Investments (at fair
value) grew by 6.4 billion. $4.3 billion of the
growth represented net appreciation in fair value
and %2 billion represented new purchases of
investments. The large investment increase was
offset by $208 million more accounts payable with
most of the growth at Teachers” Retirement
System (TRS). In addition. other labilities
increased by $1.2 billion, which was attributable



to growth at TRS and Universities Retirement
System.  Other liabilities generally relate to
securities lending transactions.

Statement 27 focuses the reader of the State's
CAFR on annual pension cost ("APC”) in
accordance with certain accounting parameters as
compared to the amount contributed. The State
retirement systems were underfunded by $955.3
million during fiscal year 1998 and this amount
has been added to the NPO in the General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group (See preceding
chart), Of the 955.3 million, $706.6 million
occurred at TRS where the APC was calculated to
be $1.2 billion and employer contributions were
477.7 million.

During fiscal year 1998, all of the State systems
were funded in accordance with the statutory
funding requirement. The new law enacted in
fiscal year 1996 provides for a 50-year funding
plan with a 15 year phase-in and a “continuing
appropriation,”  The continuing appropriation
provides the Comptroller’s Office with the
authority to automatically provide funding to the
pension systems based on actuarial cost
requirements and amortization of the unfunded
liability without being subject to the General
Assembly’s appropriation process. However, the
State’s 50-year funding plan does not meet the
more stringent 40-year minimum amortization
“parameters” required to be reported in the State’s
financial statements in accordance with GASB
Statement 27.

Risk Management

The  State’s risk  management  program
encompasses a wide range of State government
activities. Generally. the State has elected to
retain most exposures to risk. with only limited
purchase of commercial insurance. Among the
exceptions are coverage for real property at the
James R. Thompson Center in Chicago, the State
Retirement Systems building, and the Regional
State Office complex in Collinsville. Limited
commercial coverage for personal property
includes a small portion of the State's fleet of
motor  vehicles, certain  telecommunications
equipment, the fixed and rotary wing aircraft fleet.
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some State watercraft. selected items of electronic
data processing equipment, a portion of the State's
collection of fine art, as well as a small number of
other property and liability exposures.

The State retains workers’ compensation and auto
liability exposures, including claims management.
Other major retained risks include employee
fidelity and surety, as well as general liability. The
State’s risk management program also includes
legal representation and indemnification of
employees sued for violation of civil and
constitutional rights and other tort liabilities while
acting in an official capacity.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

For the Year. Major initiatives for the year
generally reflect the priorities set in the budgetary
process. Education reform. truth in budgeting.
and electricity deregulation were some of the
“initiatives” mandated by the General Assembly
for fiscal year 1998. Other initiatives are less
visible but are nonetheless important to state
government. Some initiatives undertaken by the
State are discussed below.

Service Efforts and Accomplishments
(“SEA"]

As mentioned in my introductory letter to the
people of the State of Illinois, one of the financial
reporting areas in need of improvement is
measuring the performance by the government.
One of my continuing initiatives is to explore the
value of SEA in financial reporting and set the
stage for the future of SEA. The final section of
this transmittal letter provides a description of the
near-term goals, the Fiscal Year 1998 SEA Report
and an agenda for the future regarding SEA, A
section in the statistical and economic section also
presents individual agency illustrations of FY
1998 SEA performance data.

Statewide Accounting Management System
(“S AMS"_)

SAMS replaced the Comptroller’s Uniform
Statewide Accounting System (“CUSAS") on July
1, 1997. During the initial year, agencies began to
see additional changes as the Comptroller’s Office



took full advantage of the capabilities of the new
system. Some of these capabilities have included
direct external agency links to the Information
Warehouse. on-line entry of obligations by
external agencies, collection of information for
CAFR preparation through the internet and
expansion of EFT payments.

Truth in Budgeting

Public Act 90-479. effective August 17. 1997,
requires budgets to be presented in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP™) for governments for the General
Revenue, Common School, Education Assistance,
Road. Motor Fuel Tax and Agriculture Premium
Funds. The act requires that for the above funds.
the  General Assembly shall not enact
appropriations that exceed the resources estimated
to be available on a “"GAAP basis.”

The fiscal year 1999 budget proposal succeeded in
outlining a plan that meets the letter of the Truth
in  Budgeting Act. However. the budget
presentation continued the past practice of
combining the General Revenue, Common School
and Education Assistance Funds into the General
Funds Group which concealed a budgetary deficit
in both the Common School Fund and Education
Assistance Fund. The presentation also goes
through the formality of reconciling revenues
collected after the end of the fiscal year with
certain obligations. but indicates that absolutely
nothing will change in any of those calculations.

Receivables Reporting

The Comptroller’s Office has reported gross
receivables of $7.6 billion at June 30. 1998, for
statutory compliance reporting. Of that amount,
nearly $2.6 billion (34%) was estimated as
uncollectible. Of the net receivable ($5.0 billion).
$2.9 billion is over 180 days past due. Net
receivables for the total reporting entity for GAAP
reporting totaled $8.8 billion. The difference is
because the measurement focus and basis of
accounting differ for statutory and GAAP
receivables reporting.

The Comptroller's Office continues to put in place

measures to help reduce the financing of
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“deadbeats™ who are indebted to the State. One of
those measures took effect on January 1, 1998, All
debts that exceed $1.000 and are more than 90
days past due are required to be placed in the
Comptroller's  Offset  System. The old
requirement was only for debts that exceeded
$1.000 and were more than | year past due. The
new legislation will enable the Comptroller’s
Office to intercept tax refunds and other payments
that may otherwise be paid to deadbeats. Having
the debtors in the Offset system on a more timely
basis means more revenue to finance worthwhile
State projects.

Deregulation of Electricity

On December 16. 1997 the Governor signed the
Electric Service Customer Choice and Rate Relief
Law of 1997.  This legislation will bring
competition to the electric industry and have a
major, long-term impact on residents and
businesses. While there are safeguards in place to
ensure that consumers continue to receive safe.
reliable and affordable electric  service. the
dramatic changes ahead will forever alter the
landscape of the electric services market.

Education Reform

On December 4, 1997 a special session of the
General Assembly passed extensive education
reform measures. Public Act 90-548 contained
substantive reforms on school funding measures.

including the establishment of per pupil
foundation levels and a new infrastructure
program.

Foundation levels of spending per student are
considered to be the necessary amount of financial
support for a student to receive an adequate
elementary and secondary education. For fiscal
year 1998, supplemental appropriations brought
districts up to a foundation level of $4.100 per
student. The level will increase to $4,325 in fiscal
year 2000 and $4.425 for fiscal year 2001. In
subsequent years. the General Assembly will
determine the appropriate foundation level with
advice from a newly created Funding Advisory
Board.



The important elements of the infrastructure
program include a technology loan program, a
bonding program for school construction, and debt
service grants. Revenue for these programs will
come from two sources. Revenue will be received
from the sale of state general obligation bonds.
Authorized bond sales of $1.1 billion will support
the construction and debt service grants.
Secondly. the infrastructure program will receive
one-half of the new revenue generated from the
increase in the telecommunications tax.

For the Future. Statewide accounting
changes, a new budget, income tax reform, and
surplus funds are some of the areas where future
initiatives are anticipated. These future initiatives
are discussed below.

Year 2000

The Year 2000 is a common issue all
organizations (including the State) must address
related to their computer systems. As a space
saving convention, most computer systems have
been developed using a two digit fiscal year.
When the year 2000 arrives, these systems will not
be able to accommodate the four positions needed
to specify the new millennium. The cost for the
State to convert 85 separate accounting and
information systems is astronomical and it
becomes more expensive as time progresses.
Public Act 90-666 (effective July 30. 1998)
created a Year 2000 Task Force composed of
various State and local officials and seven mission
critical State agencies to help address the 1ssue.

Fiscal Year 1999 Budget

On May 23, 1998, the General Assembly approved
a $38 billion fiscal year 1999 budget which the
Governor has signed. One highlight is tax relief
for businesses and individuals (see Income Tax
Changes below). The new budget also provides
for expansion of the State’s Circuit Breaker
Program which provides cash grants to the elderly
to help offset property taxes and pay for
medication. Another aspect of the budget is the
implementation of the second phase of the Kid
Care Program which provides health insurance
coverage for children of the working poor.
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Income Tax Changes

The General Assembly passed House Bill 2363
which raises the standard income tax exemption
and changes the formula for computing tax
liability for multi-state businesses operating in
lllinois.

The standard exemption for individual taxpayers
and their dependents will increase for the first
time since the State income tax was imposed in
1969. Under the legislation, the standard
exemption will increase to $1.300 for income
earned during 1998, $1.650 for 1999 income and
$2.000 for 2000 income. The Department of
Revenue estimates that State revenues will be
reduced $96 million from income earned in
calendar 1998.  When fully implemented. the
gstimated annual reduction in revenues will be
$326 million.

After a three year transition period, multi-state
businesses will determine their allocation of
income using one factor, the share of corporate
sales in Illinois, Before passage of the new law a
three factor formula was used.

Rainy Day Fund Proposal

Legislation continues to be introduced in the
General Assembly to create a Rainy Day Fund.
This fund would allow State government to hold
funds in reserve, with the specific use being to
address a fiscal emergency during an economic
downturn. Now would appear to be an opportune
time to pass such a law with the State’s strong
revenues and restrained spending. Such a fund
would improve the State’s bond rating (lack of a
rainy day fund has been cited by the bond rating
houses as a factor in the State's bond rating) and
provide for smooth State cash management during
cyclical highs and lows.



ECONOMIC AND FISCAL
OUTLOOK

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

Economic problems in Asia, Russia, and portions of
Latin America have started to affect [llinois
industries whose products are sold on world markets
or who face low priced Asian competitors. On the
other hand, a strong domestic economy allows
sectors that are shielded from foreign markets to
continue to prosper.

[llinois came out of the economic crisis of the
1980s with many innovative aggressive businesses
capable of dealing with adverse economic
conditions. The current world crisis is creating new
challenges that will test the resilience of the [llinois
economy. The recent success of the Illinois
economy is apparent with a 661.000 or 12.8%
increase in jobs since fiscal year 1989 and a 4.6%
average unemployment rate for fiscal year 1998, the
second consecutive year Illinois unemployment has
averaged below 5%,

Home to such major exporters as Caterpillar,
Motorola. and Abbott Labs. Ilinois merchandise
exports totaled $34.2 billion during 1997 - fifth
highest among the states. [llinois exports were up
6.2% in calendar 1997 and up 68.2% between 1993
and 1997, Nationally, the value of exports was up
47.9% during the period.

industrial

Manufacturing  exports are led by

machinery and computers accounting for 26.5% of

exports in 1997 followed by electric and electronic
equipment accounting for 20.1%. The next four
largest manufacturing export sectors were chemical
products (12.6%), transportation equipment (7.8%),
food products (5.5%), and scientific and measuring
instruments (4.6%).

[linois ranked third in agricultural export sales in
1997 with total agricultural exports valued at
$3.7 billion.  Specialization in corn and soybean
production is reflected in Ilinois’ rank as the

second largest exporter of each crop. Depressed
commodity prices. due in large part to dwindling
demand from East Asia, are putting financial stress
on the [llinois farm sector. After a few good years.
farmers should be able to withstand this year's low
prices, but some could falter if there is no future
revival of weak product prices.

Illinois” success in the competitive world market has
been based on technical expertise and a strong
resource base rather than low labor costs as the State
has maintained its position as one of the country's
wealthiest states. [llinois per capita income during
fiscal year 1998 stood at $28,609, 10.3% or $2,674
greater than the national average.

The Illinois economy takes advantage of its many
natural strengths. During 1997 the State was the
second largest producer of corn and soybeans and
the fourth largest producer of hogs. Illinois
agri-business has developed to add value to these
products.  Illinois is the number one ethanol
producer among the states. With such major [llinois
companies as Archer Daniels Midland and A.E.
Staley (both headquartered in Decatur, the soybean
capital of the world). [llinois produces a wide variety
of specialized products based on corn and soybeans.

lHlinois continues to be home to major producers of
heavy equipment. Examples include agricultural
equipment (such as the Deere plants in the Quad
Cities), construction equipment (Caterpillar, which
is based in Peoria and is the world's largest earth
moving equipment company), and machine tools (a
specialty of the Rockford area). Although
manufacturing payrolls have been trimmed in recent
years, an average of 979.000 Ilinoisans held
manufacturing jobs during fiscal year 1998, The
Asian economic turmoil has indirectly had an
adverse effect on Illinois steel and farm machinery
industries. Surging low priced steel imports have
put the domestic steel industry at a serious
disadvantage. while a first reaction of farmers to low
prices has been decreased equipment purchases.
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[llinois’ central location makes it the logical
transportation hub for the nation. Illinois is home to
OHare airport. the nation’s largest, and an excellent
highway and railroad network. The low distribution
costs from basing an operation in [llinois allow for
the continued generation of new jobs in
transportation and merchandising. During fiscal
year 1998, 340.000 llinoisans were employed in the
transportation, communications. and public utilities
sector., while 1.3 million were employed in
wholesale and retail trade.

The State’s role as the central distribution point for
agricultural commodities allowed it to develop the
world’s leading futures market. [llinois continues to
be a national leader in financial industries such as
banking. derivatives trading. and insurance and is
corporate headquarters for many of the countrys
leading companies.  During fiscal year 1998,
finance. insurance. and real estate employed an
average of 405,000 llinoisans. As home to 41 of
the Fortune 500 companies. Illinois ranked third
among the states, trailing only New York and
California. A new wave of super mergers. as
companies seek to increase their size in response to
competitive pressures, is impacting some of [llinois’
largest firms such as Amoco and Ameritech.

lllinois' reputation for research and technical
innovation is well founded. Illinois is home to major
government research laboratories such as the
Argonne National Laboratory and the Fermi
National Accelerator Lab, major private research
labs such as those operated by Amoco Oil and
Tellabs. major private universities including
Northwestern University and the University of
Chicago. and the state's network of nine public
universities including the University of [llinois home
of the Beckman Institute. The brainpower generated
from these institutions continues to make Illinois a
major center for technological advancement and a
logical location for the production of advanced
products.
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Forecast for the Future

The most recent economic forecast for the Illinois
economy prepared by the consulting firm of
DRI/McGraw-Hill sees lllinois employment growth
being constrained by Asia’s economic problems and
a slowdown in the domestic economy over the next
five years. Illinois employment is forecast to
increase at a (.7% annual rate between 1998 and
2003. DRI notes that the strengths of the Hlinois
economy are its diversified economy including high
technology clusters. its role as the regional center for
trade and exports. and its skilled labor force.

The longer term forecast expects continued growth
in the Illinois economy. particularly in the service
and trade sectors. Between 1998 and 2015, Illinois
is expected to add 549,000 jobs, a 9.4% increase.
Most of these new jobs are expected to be in
services where employment is forecast to increase by
469.000 jobs or 27.0%. In contrast. continued
automation of production processes 1s expected (o
cause manufacturing employment to decline by
112,000 jobs or 11.5% over the next seventeen
years.

The long term forecast is vulnerable to unexpected
economic fluctuations. Traditionally. the Hlinois
economy, with its emphasis on durable
manufacturing, has been extremely sensitive to the
business cycle. However, the increased emphasis on
services and finance in the [llinocis economy and
better control over inventories by manufacturers are
likely to reduce the impact of economic downturns
on [llinois.

Long-Term Demographic Trends

The steady increase in the Illinois population is
expected to continue into the twenty-first century.
[llinois Bureau of the Budget estimates released in
1997 predict that the Ilinois population will



increase from 11.4 million in 1990 to 13.3 million in
2020.

As the baby boom generation ages. there is expected
to be a shift in the age distribution of the Ilinois
population that may have an impact on the types of
services demanded from state government. In 1990,
39.8% of the llinois population was in the 20-44
age group and 18.7% was in the 45-64 age group.
In 2020, the portion in the 20-44 bracket is expected
to decline to 37.1% with the 45-64 share increasing
to 22.0%. As the baby boom reaches age 65 after
2015. the population will age fairly quickly and a
significant increase in the proportion of elderly is
expected.

FISCAL OUTLOOK

For the fifth consecutive year the State's General
Fund GAAP balance improved. from a $443
million deficit in 1997 to a $213 million deficit in
1998, This $230 million growth is about half of
last year's improvement. Fiscal year 1998 also
marked the sixth straight improvement in the
State’s  General Funds budgetary balance
(measured on a cash basis) as the balance rose
from a $45 million surplus in fiscal year 1997 to a
$356 million surplus in 1998--the second positive
budgetary balance in a row.

The GAAP and cash basis improvements were due
to the continued strength of the economy. Illlinois’
General Funds saw an increase of $1.130 billion
or 6.0% in revenue for fiscal year 1998, This
revenue growth was the third highest on record
and offset an increase in Section 25 liabilities
payable out of future year appropriations.

Those involved in evaluating the fiscal health of
governments generally believe that the ability to
maintain working balances in the range of 4%-5%
of annual budgetary expenditures indicates a
strong fiscal position, As evident in the chart
below, the State’s General Funds end-of-month
balance in June ($1.202 billion) was over the 4%
threshold for the second year in a row.
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While there have been improvements across a
broad spectrum over the last several years, the fact
that Illinois still has a GAAP deficit suggests that
there is room for improvement. But in order to
continue to improve its fiscal health, the State
faces several challenges. To keep balances at
acceptable levels and payment cycles under
control. resources must continue to be directed to
these purposes. The ability to allocate resources
will be constrained on the one hand by revenue
growth and on the other hand by competing
budgetary needs.

Since revenue growth will mirror the strength of
the economy. the record revenue growth of the
past few years is not likely to be repeated. While
revenues are estimated to increase $1.4 billion for
fiscal year 1999, much of the growth will be due

to  one-time enhancements such as the
annualization of last year's restructuring of
riverboat taxes and insurance taxes. Current

ecconomic forecasts are predicting a slowing in
economic growth over the next few years.

On the spending side of the budget, fiscal
improvements will be competing with the needs of

programs such as education and those
administered by the Departments of Human
Services, Corrections. Children and Family

Services, and Public Aid. One area that bears
close watching is the growth of medical costs and
the deferral of those costs to future years.

After falling dramatically over the last three years,
Section 25 General Fund liabilities payable out of
future year appropriations grew by $151 million
last year. This included a $113 million increase
under the State’s Medicaid program. and a $38
million wcrease under the group health insurance
program for employees. retirees. and their
dependents administered by the Department of
Central Management Services,

While it appears that Section 25 deferred
liabilities are still largely under control. continued
efforts will be required to keep deferrals from
again becoming a budgetary black hole. This is
especially applicable to the Medicaid program.



The size. scope and demographics of Medicaid are
not static but are driven by several dynamic
factors. New and beneficial advancements in
medicine are often extremely costly. The aging of
the population in general, and in Ilinois in
particular, means that one of the fastest growing
and most expensive to reat segments of the
population will exert an even stronger influence
on the demand for health care. In addition, current
estimates are forecasting an increase in the growth
of medical costs over the next few years.

Future budgets will also have to address other
long-term issues as well, particularly legislated
increases in funding for pensions and education.
In the past, fiscal problems occurred when
revenue growth slowed and spending pressures

remained. Now attention must be focused on
lessons learned and on maintaining budget
discipline.

Comparison of General Funds Cash Balances
and 4% of Annual Budgetary Expenditures (in millions)
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Service Efforts and
Accomplishments (SEA)

Background

One of the Comptroller’s priorities has been
improving the amount and quality of information
on the performance of State government. A part
of this goal was the introduction of service efforts
and accomplishments (SEA) reporting last year in
the State’s FY 1997 financial reports. SEA
reporting improves financial reports by linking
information on the performance of government
programs and services with financial data. TIts
purpose is to shed some light on the results of
government spending.

Performance management and reporting remains
one of the highest priorities in the lexicon of
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public administration today, and state and local
governments throughout the nation continue to
devote ever greater attention to the subject.

However. the impetus for linking performance

measurement with financial reporting is the
Governmental ~ Accounting  Standards  Board

(GASB). GASB establishes standards for state
and local government financial reporting. As part
of its SEA initiative. GASB is encouraging and
promoting broad-scale experimentation prior to
issuing SEA reporting standards. In April 1997
GASB  designated  Illinois  an  official
‘experimentation site’ for SEA reporting.

This Office’s purpose last year was simply to
introduce and illustrate various aspects of SEA
reporting.  Following the release of last year's
report, the Comptroller’s Office surveyed a broad
range of interests for their perceptions on SEA
information and reporting. Respondents provided
some predictable. some surprising, and even some




contradictory opinions.

were:

Among the major ones

To some extent or better, all respondents
reported that SEA information was
important. served accountability, and
added value.

Most  respondents  preferred  some
combination of methods for presenting
SEA information.

Several commented that the narrative
material was too long, did not provide
conclusions.,  or  lacked  sufficient
explanation: others thought the narrative
was the best part. The general sense was
that narrative material is important. can
say something of value, and yet be
concise.

Geographic comparisons within the same
jurisdiction seemed to be of least interest
or value.

The major issue cited by most respondents
was the reliability and verifiability of the
performance data and systems: following
closely were the need for some
performance standards or benchmarks. the
importance and difficulty of developing
outcome measures, and comparability
between jurisdictions.

Most respondents preferred to see SEA
information  on  major  government
functions as part of financial reports,
while reporting periodically throughout
the year had the least support.

Near-Term Goals

[llinois” experiment in SEA reporting is
continuing, and within the framework of this
experimentation, the Comptroller’s Office has
three primary and complementary short-term goals
for this project:

T ‘Institutionalization’ of SEA
reporting:

T Greater integration of financial and
SEA information: and

T3 Broader coverage of SEA reporting.

Toward these ends. the Comptroller’s Office this
past summer issued Procedure Bulletin No. 47,
Service Efforts and Accomplishments Reporting.
as part of the Statewide Accounting Management
System (SAMS) Manual. This is a general
procedure on SEA reporting, applicable to all state
agencies required to meet State Comptroller
reporting requirements,

There already exist performance management and
reporting provisions. requirements. or
expectations in Illinois state statutes. Examples
are the Civil Administrative Code, which requires
annual accountability reports based on criteria,
goals, and objectives established by agencies. and
the Fiscal Control and Internal Auditing Act.
which requires the necessary information to
substantiate the effectiveness and efficiency of
State agency operations.  The plan of the
Comptroller’s Office was to capitalize on these
existing provisions and requirements for SEA
reporting this year, while building upon,
claritying. and strengthening them over the longer-
term. The most important point worth noting here
is that these actions moved last year's very
informal, voluntary participation to a more formal
reporting requirement applicable to all State
agencies.
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The Fiscal Year 1998 SEA Report

As was the case last year, SEA information on

individual agencies is included in a separate
section at the back of this report.  This
introduction makes some general comments and
observations about this year’s SEA report in terms
of the overall process or considerations generally
applicable to all reporting agencies.

®

As part of the objective to broaden the
coverage of SEA reporting, this year's report
includes some SEA information for each of
the GAAP expenditure functions. Although
the aim was to include the major agencies or
programs within each function, some smaller

programs or agencies were included where »

they represented especially good examples of
SEA reporting.

For various reasons (e.g.. limited measures,
very small reporting entities. etc.) this report
does not include SEA information from all of
the agencies that reported. Higher education
serves as an example. While most universities
provided SEA information, the indicators
differed among institutions. For comparison
purposes. the higher education section in this
report includes both aggregate data on the
higher education system. as well as one
particularly good example of a more detailed,

individual institutional report submitted by °

Southern Illinois University.

Individual agency reports include editorial
guidance to help the reader understand the
SEA information reported by those agencies.
These include  observations on  the
comprehensiveness of the information, the
adequacy of performance indicators used by
agencies, issues or problems with the
performance data reported. and what the
reported information may or may not say
about the performance of government,
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This Office believes SEA reporting is an
evolutionary initiative that should be a
learning experience for all involved. One
survey respondent specifically suggested that
this Office provide evaluative commentary on
performance. In the context of the annual
report, the Comptroller’s Office believes its
proper role is to gather and report information
that may shed light on the performance of
government, Evaluative judgments and
conclusions about the adequacy or sufficiency
of that performance are the responsibility of
the report’s users.

Except for specific instances that may have
required clarification. there has been no effort
or attempt to verify or reconcile reported
expenditures or performance data. and there is
no representation to the contrary. Neither has
any of the reported performance data been
audited, nor does it fall within the scope of the
audit opinion. The information provided is
that reported or submitted by each agency,
unless explicitly noted otherwise.  The
verifiability and reliability of reported
performance data remains a longer-term
challenge, which is discussed further in the
section immediately following.

This year’s format has been somewhat
standardized and simplified. In an effort to
balance the amount of detail provided without
compromising understandability, each agency
report includes a basic, concise narrative and
one or more data pages designed to generally
familiarize readers -- most of whom will not
be users of an agency's services -- with
various programs, efforts. services, and
accomplishments.



Agenda for the Future

The Comptroller's Office remains committed to
meaningful, practical, and useful SEA reporting.
An inability or unwillingness on government's
part to voluntarily provide information on the
overall performance of its programs and services
is an implicit acknowledgment of government’s
inability or unwillingness to say anything
meaningful about its spending. But SEA reporting
is still experimental., and some approaches will
prove to be more promising and fruitful than
others. Within this broad experimentation,
however. there remain a number of issues to be
resolved and various possible approaches to
resolving them.

B Performance reporting policy must focus
more on the goals and objectives of government
programs and services. lLack of clear thinking
about goals and objectives results in poor or
ineffective performance information. A recent
General Accounting Office report cited vague and
meaningless statements of missions and goals as a
major reason why federal agencies have difficulty
defining successful performance. Performance
reporting must emphasize what government is
trying to accomplish as opposed to what
government merely does. There is a difference
between the two. and that difference is critical in
assessing the impact of government spending.

B SEA reporting will require at least minimal
reporting standards. This year’s report relies
largely on information readily available to
reporting agencies. And although this may suffice
for purposes of experimentation, performance
reporting that lacks the necessary thinking,
planning. and development may be less than
adequate. A number of agencies expressed
support for SEA reporting and a willingness to
work with the Comptroller’s Office in improving
performance information. Reporting standards,
which are presently lacking, would establish the
basic rules governing performance reporting and
should address many of the outstanding issues.
State agencies, as well as various users and
interest groups, should play an appropriate role in
defining and shaping such standards. Additionally.
a number of survey respondents indicated they

would be willing to serve in some advisory
capacity to the project.

B Many agency budget and accounting systems
cannot generate the necessary performance
information as presently structured. Measuring
efficiency and cost-effectiveness means agencies
must be able to bring together the appropriate cost
and service information.  This includes the
capability of identifying costs and evaluating
benefits at the activity level. Given the nature of
state budgeting and the multiplicity of agency
accounting systems. the allocation of costs among
various activities remains a challenge. One survey
respondent stated flatly that programs with goals
to save taxpayers money should be able to “clearly
state how much money was actually saved by
implementing the program.” Without accurate
cost information at the activity level. however, the
necessary data for measuring efficiency, cost-
effectiveness. or cost savings is either unavailable
at worst or questionable at best.

B There is a need to rationalize the overall
institutional and programmatic framework for
SEA reporting. What government operations or
entities should be subject to SEA reporting
remains a question. This is true in terms of not
only how much of state government should be
covered, but also what should be included at the
individual agency level. There is no assumption
that SEA reporting must or even should cover all
agencies and programs in every report, and in fact
most survey respondents proposed that only major
government functions be covered.

B The amount of information provided and

frequency of reporting are open gquestions. Too

much data and information can be confusing and
overwhelming, while too little may be incomplete

or insufficient. Some survey respondents
expressed a general preference for simpler
indicators. data. and narrative information,

especially if the audience is the general public. A
proper balance would not exclude relevant
information because it may be difficult or of no
interest to some. nor include information which
may be of interest to only a few. The general
public is likely to be more interested in outcome
and efficiency measures rather than numerous
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output and activity measures. A related question
is the frequency of SEA reporting.  Annual
reporting is a problem in terms of both the
timeliness and volume of data. Periodic reporting
throughout the year is one possible answer. More
than one survey respondent suggested SEA
reporting every two years (e.g.. perhaps in
conjunction with the biennial audit). but others
observed that information in the annual financial
report is already dated and stale. A combination
of approaches may provide the most flexibility to
respond to a variety of needs and circumstances.

B The validity and reliability of SEA
information remains a major issue. As already
noted. the SEA data in this report has not been
audited nor does it fall within the scope of the
audit opinion. Al preseni no one is advocating
that SEA data be subject to audit, but everyone
agrees that the issue of validity and reliability
must be addressed in some manner if SEA
information is to have any credibility.  An
established set of measurement and reporting
standards  would  provide benchmarks for
reasonably assuring that the performance
measurement and reporting process has some
integrity. if not the performance data itself.
Possible areas of review could be the process for
setting goals and objectives and developing
performance indicators. the design of the overall
performance management system. definitions of
performance indicators and data, the methods or
formulas for calculating performance measures,
the system of internal controls, and the adequacy
of documentation.

The above limitations and qualifications
notwithstanding, this vear's report demonstrates
what is possible in SEA reporting and provides a
platform for improving both the amount and
quality of information available on the
performance of Illinois state government.

Independent Audit

The Ilinois Auditor General has elected to
perform a “department by department” single
audit in conformity with the provisions of the
Single Audir Act Amendments of 1996. Separate
departmental financial reports for those State
agencies subject to the Single Audit Act
Amendments include the schedule of expenditures
of federal awards, findings and questioned costs,
and the auditor’s reports on internal control and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The Ilinois Auditor General has performed an
audit of the accompanying general purpose
financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards, and his opinion is
presented herein. Readers will note that the
opinion is qualified on account of the disclosures
concerning the Year 2000 (see Note 21). Such a
qualification was unavoidable. but has no impact
beyond the note.

Certificate of Achievement

The Government Finance Officers Association of
the United States and Canada (“GFOA") awarded
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting (“Certificate™) to the State of
llinois for its comprehensive annual financial
report (“CAFR™) for the fiscal year ended June
30. 1997. This is the fourteenth consecutive year
that the State has received this prestigious award
in governmental financial reporting. In order to be
awarded a Certificate. the State of Illinois
published an easily readable and efficiently
organized CAFR whose contents conform (o
program standards. This report satisfied both
generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements. A Certificate is
valid for a period of one year only. We believe
our current report continues to conform to the
Certificate Program’s requirements. [ will be
submitting this report to the GFOA to determine
its eligibility for another certificate.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS

WILLIAM G. HOLLAND
AUDITOR GENERAL

Honorable James “Pate” Philip, President of the Senate
Honorable Michael J. Madigan., Speaker of the House
Members of the General Assembly

Honorable Jim Edgar, Governor

Honorable Loleta Didrickson, Comptroller

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of the State of Illinois as
of and for the year ended June 30, 1998 as listed in the foregoing Table of Contents for Section II. These
general-purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the State’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these general-purpose financial statements based on our audit.

Except as discussed in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general-purpose financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the general-purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall general-
purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Technical Bulletin 98-1, Disclosures about Year 2000
Issues, requires disclosure of certain matters regarding the year 2000 issue. The State of Illinois has
included such disclosures in Note 21. Because of the unprecedented nature of the year 2000 issue, its
effects and the success of related remediation efforts will not be fully determinable until the year 2000 and
thereafter. Accordingly, insufficient audit evidence exists to support the State’s disclosures with respect
to the year 2000 issue made in Note 21. Further, we do not provide assurance that the State of Illinois is
or will be year 2000 ready, that the State’s year 2000 remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in
part, or that parties with which the State does business will be year 2000 ready.

In our opinion, except for the effects of such adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to
be necessary had we been able to examine evidence regarding year 2000 disclosures, the general-purpose
financial statements listed in the foregoing Table of Contents for Section Il present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the State of Illinois as of June 30, 1998, and the results of its operations
and cash flows of its proprietary fund types and nonexpendable trust funds for the year then ended, in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL * |ILES PARK PLAZA * 740 EAST ASH * SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS 62703-3154 « 217/782-6046

RECYCLED PAPER  SOYBEAN INKS



As discussed in Note 3 to the financial statements, the State of Illinois adopted, in Fiscal Year
1998, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial
statements taken as a whole. The required schedule of funding progress for pension trust funds, the
combining and individual fund and account group financial statements, and budgetary schedules, listed in
the Table of Contents for Section II, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the general-purpose financial statements of the State of Illinois. Such information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements
and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the general-purpose financial
statements taken as a whole. The statistical and economic data and service efforts and accomplishments
data listed in the Table of Contents for Section III has not been subjected 46 the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements, and geCordingly, we do not express an
opinion thereon.

WILLIAM G HOLLAND
Auditor General
State of Illinois

Springfield, Illinois
December 31, 1998



GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General Purpose Financial Statements provide a summary overview of the
financial position of all funds and account groups and of the operating
results by fund type. They also serve as an introduction of the more
detailed statements and schedules that follow.



State of lllinois
Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types, Account Groups

and Discretely Presented Component Units
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Fiduciary
Governmental Fund Types Proprietary Fund Types Fund Type
Trust
Special Debt Capital Internal and
General Revenue Service Projects Enterprise Service Agency
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Cashandcasheqmvalen!s iR o 1.234301 $ 2556505 $ 850,241 - $ 398,144 $ 99021 $ 121405 § 3164507
Investments 0 HR at Gl Og1BATA 269 68,061 ] CH70H0E sl 46,387,631
Receivables, net:
Taxes 834,949 375,118 332,923
lntergovernmental 574907 8 1,485 ) 8,124 831 13,483
: Other G 4656270 21080 LA 024 o A4880 L he5 606,484
. "Dia-from otheriunds _ LSBT e 51 8851 138431, 34044
Duefrom,componantum] Gooesnl L n e e G 3925820
Due from primary government :
Inventories 30,488 5,053 13,084
Prepaid expenses 344 625
Loans and notes recsivabié et e S egn084 CERNESOT T e
Restnctadassehs(MEZmacasheqmva%on!s)' [ 55t S B BOITATB 08
.. Property, plant and equipmert; net . i SRR T LAB8T U gebI2 i 2,005,
Other assets 12,103 953,137
Other debits:

Amount available in debt service funds for:
‘ Retirement of general-obligation bands -
-.Retirementof special-obligation: bmds
Retirement of other obitigations. .-

" Amount to be provided for:

Retirement of general obligation bonds
Retirement of special obligation bonds

Raﬁrementofoﬂ:arohhgaﬁms it N
‘Pension fiabilities " L il
Tmtmmmm . 318,585 Bt
LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 2056 468 $ 445 757 $ 38 $§ 43127 § 78,978 $ 133,711 3 1213 268
imergovemmntalpayabies U e a0 L 040) “ LR i R R Gl e R R L
Dustootherfunds: i £ 414,988 13,24 7.125__ 4,088
Dus to.component units. i QTR0 e T e T
Due to primary govemment
Deferred revenues 288,374 135,186 5317 10,919 8,000 3,188
Liabilities payable from restricted assets
-Diepository and other: babﬂatles g LB ATE. L L ARATO 5604407
 Notes payable 5 ; e T CCOREABA. Lnon e e e
Accrued retirement costs
General obligation bonds payable
Special obligation bonds payable
Revenue bonds payable 1,140,103 17,354
o i Fepip L R T i W I R e TM&%QH o R A
Totaﬂiabilrhes FETE R 3872689 - 1765299 . 1230 1,433,039 196 634 c 7188360
Eqmandb‘thereredts T T T s T e T e g B T e R R R R e il
Conttibuted capital 19,1 73

Investment in fixed assets
Retalned eamlngs o
nresenred : B
Fund balanices (defict): o
Reserved for:
Employees’ pension banefits
Extemal |nvestment pool partlclpants

37,243,492
4,199,951
Caeened

Undesignated (deficit) o  (386,996) 834079 61,992 ' o C T ope27
Total equity (deficit) and other credits (213,149) 2,042,752 744,686 357,163 166,156 121951 43,635,614
Total liabilities, equity and other credits $ 8,669,540 §$ 4728051 § 745916 § 408,131 § 1,595,195 § _ 818,585 § 50,818,974

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Account Groups Total Total

(Memorandum (Memorandum
General General Only) Only)
Fixed Long-Term Primary Component Reporting
Asgets Obligations  Government Units Entity

$ 8,224714 ES 676017 S 8900,7'31

e 4G 081,898 T 248,754 48,484,353

1,542,990 1,542,990

1,307,518 9,828 1,317,346

Lin291026 0 1B 081 T 1 4pa007

a1.B6% 40,880 TR 202

..... 17023l T Y028

203,740 203,740

89,835 51,470 141,305

969 34,411 35,380

1,671,855 1,796,383 1 3468238

et SRR LS a0 o8B L BR0I0R0 870,308

$ 5,061,496 S BABBRU0. 7436972 - 12563172

983,300 99,891 1,083,191
SU8 NN 443 8000 T 443500
TooEAs01 246001
0T8I 718.

5,442,505 5,442,505 5,442,595

1,586,305 1,586,305 1,586,305

1675409 1575408 0 01575409

11304862 11,804,662 i S804 682

_$ 061,496 $20609199 5 87948087 s 13292,235 $ 101,247,322

$ 3971347 § 837,370 $ 4,808,717

12,186,379 SUe2a890 0 2,168,588
731,883 idgees . 781903
203,740 il 203740,
17,023 17,023
450,984 71,555 522,539
24,154 24,154
e a5 5,869,955
139 . 302,008
S $11,304,882 PRI 1,504,862
5,886,104 5,886,104 ~
1,832,306 1,832,306 -
3,765,178 4,922 635
1586427 BEA202 U IaNAget Y By a0
20,609,199 B © 40,310,992
19,173 33,530 52,703
$ 5,061,496 5,061,496 4,856,333 9,917,820

37,243,492 37,243,492
_4.196,851 i 4199,051
- 4,762/435 .. 1,538,054 .. 5 291 189

Fio18s . 14err . vEa

552,002 (39,183) 512,819
5,061,496 52,816,669 8,113,661 60,930,330

$ 5,061,496 $ 20,609,199 $ 87,949,087 $ 13,292,235 § 101,241,322




State of lllinois

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - All Governmental Fund
Types, Expendable Trust Funds and Discretely Presented Component Units

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

,sourges (uses) offlnancm resources

Fundb tanaes (deﬁcit), Juty

230.269

s f.m

105,845

| 2.682,967

134,705

Lp0tTIes

Fiduclary Total
Governmental Fund Types Fund Type (Memorandum
Only)
Special Debt Capital Expendable Primary
General Revenue Service Projects Trust Government
REVENUES o )
“income taxes S ABUB0RYERL ST AR gAs s g 8810,664
Sales taxes’ T 5240898= d 1827044 SR e 7,167,862
" Mator fuel taxes ' / : bl 1,287,585
Public utility taxes “o11 644 296,250 1,207,894
Other taxes 1,154,767 449,092 $ 1,170,696 2,774,555
Federal government 4,495,660 4,429 B60 $ 3,546 21,467 /8,950,849
Lisenses and fees . s | 65333 ' 1007008 R 1003480
. tnterestandomer mveslmem mcome' i SBBI028 2,070 1,184, . 119,546 421 475'
. Other:: i 806,999 o 7ARBER 7918 ;3,086 4,551,960
Total revenues 20,890,490 11,007,740 40,709 12,618 1,314,745 33,266,302
EXPENDITURES
UBARA30° 12182180 0 608 - PB6 8,963,460
L 5860882 1 1888414 ST 6.785,608
General government 1,181,422 4,335,266 111 4,264 5,565,134
Social assistance 1,155,732 1,245,240 1,138,997 3,539,969
Transportation 38,099 2,554,171 2,649,178
4 Public protection and justice : 4 Sl 1,678,187
Namrazresoumsandmatm 1,598 o 414082'
Del:i service: : :
Principal 499,537 522 953
Interest 66,852 365,020 24 443,161
Capital outlays 102,795 153,294 407 342,900
‘l‘otni expendiium 1B IBBBA4 .-, 866,866 309,162 1 Jadaity 31,904,632
Exms(ﬂaﬂcimv)ommuu e G A T e e e i
over (under) expenditures 2,731,646 (417,909) (826,157) (296,544) 170,634 1,361,670
OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF
FINANCIAL RESOURCES. ..
o Prooeedsfmmganeralfspemal e ‘\‘ iy
" .. obligation bondissues ¢ T e 597,628 | 887428
Proceeds from general/special
obligation bond refunding issues 123,257 185,481 308,738
Operating transfers-in 1,019,019 ° 2,576,893 933,465 7,224 9,315 4 545,916
Operating transters fom component unns R o R HEATE T g
- Operating transfersiout i +{2146,087) 1 C{1,854,668) (1,669 (24,138). - (18,782) . - (4,040.335)
- Operating transfers to: component units’ (1,383,064 0 MBOIBY AB1,518) Gl H1492,592)
Operating transfers to primary government
Capital lease financing 8,755 3,235 11,990
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent (123,257) (185,481) (308,738)
: Ngtmswrm‘um)of S e i D g LT U B
: Mmimwm= s 12,501,377} ga1sp2 . - 5190 - a77,548)
Exoess (deﬂc:eney) of revenues over
{under) expenditures and net other
259,785 222,458 166,167 984,324

5.-023,‘521

. previoysly reportad:. - T i
Restatement/reclassmcatlon of fund balances 8,039 80 8,119
Fund batances (deficit), July 1, 1997, as restated (443,418) 2,682,967 639,041 134,705 2,017,845 5,031,140
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), JUNE 30,1998 . * | §  (213149) § 2942752 '§ = 7v4ages § 357163 ' $ 2184012 § 6,015484

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Total
{Memorandum
Only)
Component Reporting
Units Entity

§ 8810604
S 167852
11,287,585
1,207,894
2,798,291
8,968,799
1,003,604
o4paBle
1,560,284

33,318,487

3,539,969
2,649,178
678,187

8 522961
4 443,165
65 342,965

14283 - 31918015

37,902 1,399,572

. Be7.428

308,738

4,545,916

R e e
{7;880) *1i(4,048,224)
Clena{1.482,592)
@ @)
11,990

(208.738)

1,014,335

5,166,947
8,119

143,926 5,175,066

173,937 % 16189401




State of lllinois

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
All Budgeted Fund Groups (See Note 2)

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this staternent.

General Funds Highway Funds
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES
Incomme taxes . 7,345000. $. /7,982,380 5 637,380, . © G
Salestaxes . . 5140,000 . 5274138;:__ Masias. . Lo e s
Motor fusitaxes .0 = 0 Lo 1,207,800 0 1288201 0 24,801
Public utility taxes eso,ooo 912,133' 52,138 S o
Federal government 3,430,000 3,255,754 (174,246) 638,700 729,294 90,594
Other 1 386 000 1,415,369 29,369 794,863 860,269 65 406
‘Refunds - S 16963 3874 (2080) o idG4dAR 1 ABE '(4955;
.Totalrevenues SIS 18,144,037 . - 18,825,814 . 681,777 2624721 . 2,810,308 .. 185587
EXPENDITURES
Current:
.+ Health and soclal serviges 1 01 i ‘7518514 7,426,085 0 (82,479)
“Education.. . . 6,880,770 - . 16,620,582 i {21,178) e Gedpnalo i T
'Generalgovemiﬁem-f_“-,f';i “1,198.922 © © 1.163,387 = (35535) SPT4.443 . P6R.380 T {12,08)
Transportation 40,927 40,323 (604) 2,247,653 2,182,210 (65,443)
Social assistance 1,145,203 1,017,791 {(127,412) 2,000 1,666 (334)
Public protection and justice 1,401,291 1,374,823 (26,468) 52,733 52,733 -
Natural resoiirces and recreatlon i A4B3020 1 145 663 R el '
bt sarvier . _ e Y oY ;
Principal
Interest
Capital outlays 93,933 92,159 (1,774) 21,981 20,202 (1,779)
Tolal expendltures 18,195,862 17,8_8_9,_773 (306,08?2_ 2,598,810 2,519,191 (79,619)
Excass(deﬂclencv)ofmvenuesmr(under) SN DR e Cha
expenditures : . 51,825) 936,041 987,866, " 2s911t 28T £65,206
OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Proceeds from general and speclal obhgatlon bond issues
Qperating transfers:in 8261000 32965564 (44436)7 1200746 1080024
'Oparatmg transfers-out co (B841,400) 0 (3841420 - e (1 41860‘()____ A1, 418, 607)_ :
Budgetary funds-nonbudgeted accounts
Excess (deficienty) of revenues over (under)
expenditures; pther-sources (usesyof: - .. ... i
-ﬁnancialmsoumesaﬂdbudgetaryfunds- ; S e Sy B
nonbudgeted accounts: " (632,254) 811176 .0:943,430 264,284
Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1997, as
previously reported 44,716 44,716 - 544,930 544 930 ]
Heclaaﬂﬁcatmns betwwn budgetarylnonbudgetafy Ty i i R R A o
funds—net E 3 ik
Budgetary fund balances (defncns) July 1, 1997 as
reclassified . 44716 44,716 - 544,930 544,930 —
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1998 $ (587,538) $ 355,892 $ 943430 $ 442,980 $ 707,364 $ 264,384




University Funds Special State Funds Bond Financed Funds

Final Variance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

: 1,582651 $3” i
520 696 : 3,945
279 648 281 ,191 1,543
- $ 30 % 30 1,429,103 1,495,013 65,910
-— 314 314 3,572,458 3,697,334 24 876

5,000

o ey o 7578700 745004 3‘1(12566) s

T@) 344 BAB | 6682691 . 6800538 . . 117,847

: u2211878;;:!_'.1',938,‘312:f-i.‘_.i'_‘uf(z'/asse) % 58018
: 562 . 13838 5gA25
7341 e .25863.
50,609

e e oo

59 2 (57) 10,5631 6,541 (3,990) 171,860 169,697 (2,163)

530 369 (161) 6,677,160 6.066,038 (611,122) 563,291 538,335 (24,956)

532 s sor 734500 . 728969 . | (563291) . (538,335) . 24,956

603,900 782,909 179,009

S 148 . -1.476.718 .
O s (1456 22}; . (1458,722)

(115,690) {115,690) ——

3 @O sor . arse) | emsor 7

145 145 - 412,256 412,256 -

 aem

145 145 - 415,949 415,949 - = 128,534 128,534 ——

(392) $ 115 § 507 § 321,217 § 1,054,756 $ 733539 § 169,143 $ 373,108 $ 203,965

(continued)



State of Hlinois

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

All Budgeted Fund Groups (See Note 2)

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

(continued)
Debt Service Funds Federal Trust Funds
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES
- Incorne takes
Sdles taxes 1 10
CMotorfueltaxes o Ul e
Public utility taxes
Federal government $ 300 $ 354 $ 54 § 2344824 § 2,230,578 § (114,246)
Other 17,590 28,418 10,828 83,190 116,007 32,817
Refunds " UL R i 2918 Do 49 e R, T86)
Total nwenues i 17,800 40,882 2,425,009 2,346,436 < {78,663)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
. -_Healthandsaoaalsewioes Temie R e Sl GBABRT U BTRFAY i (311,908)
o Edueation i ,'1144342 PUOITTeER L TT2,850)
; Generalgovemmem e LABBZIBOT T B24i502 U {G58,008)
Transportation 217,163 144,319 (72,844)
Social assistance 357,167 185,586 (171,581)
Public protection and ;ustlce 233,247 98,297 (134,950)
Naturai resourcas 8

: crsatton

" Debt service::

e

(32.831)

 Principal . 7e4zyT . 7BI782 . 496)
Interest 290,558 268,396 (22 162)

Capital outlays 11,336 7,630 (3,706)
Total expendltures ‘ ‘ 1,059,885 1,035,228 (24,657) 3,397,330 2,339,153 (1,058,177)
expandltﬂres s {1,041 995} 85,539 - {972,231) 7,283 0 . D79.514

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Proceeds from general and speclal obllgatlon bond sssues _ 123,257 123,257 -

Opérating trangfersin L 903448 .. 016921 L 134720 0 0 47842

Operatmgtransfers—out : HENAE] I i i ; :  -_ =‘(4‘,52_:4) :

Budgetarytunds-nonbudgeted accounts ) (41,'1:é9)': ' '(4'1,199)'. -

Excess (deflciency) of revenues over (under) ‘

(15,289)

L4901

rogia)

351

974,223

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1997, as
previously reported 422,953 422,953 (82,418) (82,418) —
Reclasﬂmtwnsbetweenbudgetary/nonbudgetary Lot e [ : e By “‘.. ) i
5 funds-net D : i :‘:' TR (31) H i (31)
Budgetary fund balances (deﬁcns) July ' ;l,' 'as ' ' o o
reclassified 422 953 422,953 -— (82,449) {82,449) -
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1998 3 407,664 $ 456,675 § 49,011 $  (1,053,161) § (78,938) $ 974,223

10



Revolving Funds

State Trust Funds

Total

(Memorandum Only)

Final
Budget

Actual

Variance
Qver (Under)

Final
Budget

Final
Budget

Variance

Actual Over (Under)

Actual

Variance
Over (Under)

$ 272,618 $

"B

260,832 §

‘ (11,786)___

258,170

s weE5s
e 242807 0

389,469

S 8922651 S
U B.0R0,656
742006 280
1,139,648
8,101,097
6,516,188

293, eos $-f
24259

149,223
576,200

(108,947)
186,731

‘793918

272,582

260800 _

(11,783) 995 483

6 854 743

£ 19,565,040" 5
8118839

1,304,897, .

1,193,329
7,860,246

7713‘.6_06' i

..64'2,389
186,083
. 28608

53,681
(240,851)
338,555

e 3122

073267 - 7IT8A 31,162,511

32,146,288

B3I

e

285,067

1,000

45,367

3,897

et

100549 . (44,

789

489

3,081

- 142 721“

142,201
2,952

{816)

2,197

ey

10}
210) :
Cipseany

“10 427,574

.'-.122090?'?

112,770
N 1159
: ;770.... e

(29,431)
(1,793)
o) -

_ @9354.
290,558

1,846 315,794

(351)

: pa7.258
268,396
301,158

fhiii(483,076)
1(295,734)
{639,738)
(169,715)
(330,304)
(212,340)
- {111,369)

 (2a95)
(22,162)
(14,636)

286,449

237,079

(49,370).

523,993

396,575

33,303,310

(2,281,569)

(13,857

‘e37s0

. B7.587

471890

“(127.418)

676692 . 205202 (2140799)

31,021,741

1124547

8,265,346

2,400

o AT8)

7).

(1, 897)'

‘(534 500)

727,157

¢ (84026) o (saos4aa>‘

(534,500) " (691,389)

Ik radol e

906,166

- o2y
| (6,805,488)

(691,389)

179,009
T (34.400)

1,531

. pa158 ... 35

. (147,036)

58,166 (1.983,432)

1476519

4005t

33,573

33,573

114 286

i (5339)

114,286 1 618 976

1 618 975

33,573

33,573

108,897

108,897 1,617,248

n 727)'j s

1,617,248

$ 22,042 §

57,732 §

(38,139) §

167,063 § 205202 $ (316,184) $

3,093,767 $

3,409,951
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State of Hlinols

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained
Earnings/Fund Balances - All Proprietary Fund Types, Nonexpendable

Trust Funds, and Discretely Presented Component Units
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expresased in Thousands)

Proprietary Fiduciary
Fund Type Fund Type Total Total
(Memorandum (Memorandum
Non- Only) Only)
Internal expendable Primary Component Reporting
Enterprise Service Trust Government Units Entity
OPERATING REVENUES ] ) ) )
Charges for sales and services - $ - 7 1004225 8 545 . 2766934 % 364470 $ 3 51,404
Lot B : -k SLPOR LBB B2 T 128720 0 212/044
-- s 28,857 LTI LT 20877 168,805 108,382
Total operatmg revenues 1,879,609 1,004,963 263 2,884,835 656,995 3,541,830
OPERATING EXPENSES -
“Cost of sales and services BO2 L 1767 Zap08g. o oiss088 o 3RS
' Bangfit payments.and. refunds : 03¢ 569767 . s THABOR. i 40,448 v THE, 246
i Prizés and claims B4R 343 : LA RAg 348 ol T B s
Interest 57,318 602 57,921 56,067 113,988
General and administrative 147,836 31,314 21 179,171 253,574 432,745
Dep recnatnon 1 ,481 24,185 ] 25,666 131,870 157,536
. Total dpemtinlgjaxpm .354.597 o B1344b g : 178,1363 41 538,077 12,716,140
Operating income 515 012 191 518 242 706,772 118,918 825,690
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) ) B o
imeraslandmvestmemmme ST VPR e 16,437 £ 35954
interest oxpense LOIR8Y e ;
{Other revenues S omsr
Other expenses (1,939)
Income before operaling transfers 191,882 333
G ‘ -
Cperating transfers from;| pnmaty govarm'aem L e . e Laa 7,897
Operating transfers-out (65) (68) (537,671) (539,417)
Operating transfers to component units (192,730) (192,730) (192,730)
Operatlng lrans!ers to pnmary govemment {166)
Net inuome . 449 S po2de
Hetamed eamlngslfund balancas JuIy 1 1997 as )
previously reported 102,176 3,410 266,934 1,615,125 1,881,059
Restatemment of retained earnings/fund balances (47) 6,015 5,968
Retainad eammgs/fund halamasduly 1“”1997 asrestaxed G AQ2ATE e 3410 el PBBBRT 821140 1,887,027
ns‘mraen Ennumesmmn 8Aunoes, .nmeamm 3159 s CH710450°°3 1987243

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of lilinois
Combined Statement of Cash Flows - All Proprietary Fund Types,

Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Discretely Presented Component Units
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Proprietary Fiduciary Totatl Total
Fund Type Fund Type {Memorandum (Memorandum
Only) Only)
internal Nonexpendable Primary Component Reporting
Ei p Service Trust Government Units Entity
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash recaived from sales and services : SN 7e1 0 s Ygpsde) ool ST U eR AT L8 e80i882 1 8. /8,457:33
Cash payments to-suppliers forgoods and: servibss U (e4,391) L HBT,BE0) e (7 032,081) o 162,088) 1 (4,004770)
‘Gash payments to emplioyees for services : "-'(115,512) 6, 808) +.4168,470) {97399y (266,799)
Cash payments for lottery prizes (796,920) {796,920) (796,920)
Cash receipts from other operating activities 184,478 43 26 184,546 204,256 388,802
Cash payments for other operating activitias ] (323,593) (1,383) (21) (324,997) (407,873) (732.870)
chashpmvldadbyopetmmvmes e EREEN pign. (75244 0 o PA2BBR v 58 . 617.555 S ‘.317,‘1’27.‘ 934‘882
CASH FLOWS FROMNONCARITAL: FNMGINGAGTWMES : = : ST [ : :
Proceads fom salé of reveritie bonds apd otherBongwing ;5o 0 i 220,925, i ;‘.;220,325 e 181 : ms‘,sas
Principal paid on revenue bonds and othar borrowing (21,600) (21,600) (360 91 0) (382,510)
Interest paid on revenue bonds and other borrowing (1,902) {1,902) (137,276} (139,178)
Operating grants received ) .3
Qperating transfars-in from: other funds & aeA0e 1.864 4.474 32‘532 ik s 350
Oparating transfers from primary: govemmam : R A e R o e Lt ; 47587
‘Operating transfers-out to/atharfunds. s - (5B4; 186y Sy L 458) ; -(554.358) i R {BT0852)
Operating transfers to primary govemment (154)
Operating transfers to component units {192,730) (192,730) (192,730)
Other noncapital financing activitias (5} 79 74 3,403 3, 477
Net cash provided (used) by noricapital finaricing activities = 112" L " [340.874) S{191,201) - 4',116 {527.859) o
'CASHFLDWSFHOMGAPHALANDRELATED‘FNANGNGAOTN{NES : S S ey g
i Aoquisition and construction of capial assets 31 : L1878). gLy L+ (17,004) 930) 8.024)
Principal paid on bond maturities and equipment contracts (9,786) (13,061) (22,847) (26,960) (49,807)
Intarest paid on bond maturitias and equipment contracts (183) (183) {61,076) (51,259)
Procesds from sale of aquipment ) )
Cther capital and related financing activities : i e i
Net cash (Gsad) i capm:l ‘At miatedfmandn . acﬁw?}s : ;34 124)
Purchase of mvestmem secumles (269,882) (65) (269 947) (2,424,462) (2,694,409)
Procesds from sale and maturities of investmant securities 262,122 262,122 2,299,743 2,561,865
Intarest and dividends on investments 4,185 2,169 6,609
Not cash provided {used) by investing activities {3.575) 2,169 Derey o
mttnwmmmhmdmheqmvm 19,631 30281 545!
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1,1887 234,805 91,144 433,390 761,595
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS .IUNE 30 199 $ 254,436 § 121,405 434,565 § 817,326
‘Recontillation mmmmmmmmawmm e
« . Fotalcash and cash bquivalents per the balance shebt: | L L2408
Add: restricted cash equivalents 1655415 192, 902
Less: expandable trust, pension, investment, and non-proprietary component units (3,157,677) (3, 157 677) (278 939) (3,436,616)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30, 1998 $ 254436 § 121,405 6,920 $ 382,761 $ 434,565 $ 817,326
‘Recoriciliation of operating income to net |
cash provided (Used) by operating activities R R R et AR ; ihi b
Operating income $ 515012 § 191,518 ] 242§ $ 118918 § 825,690
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to nst cash prov:ded (usad) by opera!mg actlvmes
‘Deprociation .- 1,481 : 24 185
“iPrpvision for: unoo&leeﬁble s By 1 258 :
i Ghangeslnassmmdhabim : :
(Increase) decrease in accounts rscewabla (170,834) (432) (171,266) (144,407)
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds (153) {57,402) (57,555) (63,111)

(Increase) decrease in due from pnmary govemment
: _-(%mrease} decreaso i &
{lncmass) ﬂocrease Wiavantory.
..+ (Inronse) dacrense. in. mpaidaxpensas il
Increase (decreass) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in intargovemmentat payables
_Increase (decrease) in due to other funds
incranse {dacroase) in dhig'to aﬂmary govemment.
Ji+incronse (decrease) in dua-t.companant unlte -
IncreRae {decrease) in deférred ravenusa :
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities

“asn

Increase (decreass) in liabilities payabie from restricted assets {2,085)
Other 91 (84) (46 054)
otal adjustments: 5 FE . ————————————,’39768:_ TR T -

NE!‘ LASH PROVIDED 8Y. OPEHATNG Ac'nvmﬁs

Noncnsh mvelhng, capml md ﬁnancmg lchvitlcs
Capital leages (initial year):

Fair market value $

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of lllinois

Combined Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Pension and Investment Trust Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Total
Pension Investment (Memorandum
Trust Trust only)
ADDITIONS ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ o
Gontributions i - sl Sl I R el L g 1781020 S8 781,020
. Participant's:deposits; net . L G L s R $ 00 568,393 01 568,303
Total contrbitions and pammpants daposets, e 1781,020 L5 568,808 12,348,413
Investment income:
Interest and other investment i mcome ‘ ) o ] 1,423_,54_6 258,342 1,681,888
ot appraciation afinvestmants Sl s i s AZIBABY 0T 736807 4349847
investmerit expense S{ONEB8R) oo (2850) - {209,233) .
‘Net'invastment incorié 5,492,850 "1 320 55D 5,822,602
Total additions 7,273,870 898,045 8,171,915
DEDUCTIONS : Gl
Beneﬁtpaymamsandreﬂmds LN E Sl e b T by LEAGYBAG L R
. Participant’s withdrawals, net: /00 5 L0 s LI CL e e pied SEIe1BI8
Interest expense 1,210
Distribution to pool investors 121,707
) Generat and admlnlsiratlve
______ ToZEA7A | 2085
Net additions 5,054,696 674,520 5,729,216
Fund balances reservad for smployees’ 't L e
panslmbeneﬁts,du!yi 1997, aspremoustyrepaned i SRR O e el i e 32,188,796 732,188,796
RQMQmenUma!assiﬁcaﬂonnfwndbalances SR ArpiE il s LR e G BB 43 3525434
Fund balances reserved for employees’ pension benefits,
and external investment pool participants, July 1, 1997, as restated 32,188,796 3,525,431 35,714,227
FUND BALANCES RESERVED FOR EMPLOYEES' PENSION BENEFITS L
ANDEXTERNAL INVESTMENT FOOL PARTICIPANTS, JUNE 30,1993 : TG 37243402 8. 141998951 § 41,443,443

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of lllinois

Combining Statement of Change in Fund Balances -
University and College Component Units

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 {(Expressed in Thousands)

Component Units
- Chicago Eastern Governors Northeastern Waestern Hiinois
~ State Iinois State Ninois Hlinois State
University University University University University University
REVENUES AND OTHER ADDITIONS
Unrestricied current fund revenues ; Ci§hs 23533 % 68478 R 21130080 24,364 % 75,608 5 128,418
. Fedaral and local grants and contracts-restricted Soo1es72 0 58BB 7971 9485 41,559 . 10,708
. Stdte grants and contracts-restricted . - 389 860 (IR 472 i 8,485
Other state sources 424 357 3,286
Private gifts, grants and contracts-restricted 664 3,540 257 1,369 3,945 6,208
_Investment income ‘ . 64 3 544 157 40 1,431 1,799
!ntemstandfeesonloansmewabia S Ly [ 183 CURT 216
“Expended for plant facilities: el § iy L e
Current funds ™~ : S 81 ires 2,740 Vool 11,443
Plant funds 3,007 1,317 487 2,980 766
Other
Retirement of Iong—tem'l obhgatlons 375 2,717 1,035 1,449 4,047
Qther 5 : g GLeet 526 BegT i iEge IpDu8T 8,148
Tmai ravenues”ndoﬂmradamona 44,946, 92,742 30,963 - 40,729 106,358 1B1,520
EXPEND!TURES AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS
Educational and general expenditures 74,651 103,173 55,588 122,636 198,003
Auxiliary enterprises expendltures 6,761 21018 954 25,727 36,907
Hospital expanditures. - sl i P :
- “independent: operatlmsexnenduwas GE L S G ol R
Foundation expenditures 11585 1,840 0 £ 485 2821 15,000
Indirect costs recovered 43 571 796
Refunds of grants and adjustments to grants
Loan cancellations and write-offs 23 68 9 43 300
Changemaﬁmanee!nruncoﬂechbienotes ;.88 G Sl 15 BEL )]
Administrative and sollestion costs ' . AT el a8 BB Far
Expendad for plant facifities {(including - : :
noncapitalized expenditures of $30,558) 2,895 985 4,169 8,223
Retirement of long-term obligations 1,771 4,002 3,682 5,011
Disposal of plant facumes 660 1,618 3,865 574 2,027 5,528
omar‘ L - ' D 3876 ' 1543 N
Totai expanditures andotherdeduclmn& k T B4SA9 188684 - 6125 7 T OTVeMIE T 63976 . 265,385
TRANSFERS—ADDITIONS (DEDUCTIONS)
Nonmandatory transfers:
Operating transfers-in ‘
Oparafing transters: frompmnarygovemment i PBB6A. Lo UBRIBRTL el 70870 © 108557
‘Operafing transfars-out = ey g : S e S <)
Operaling transfers-to pnmary govemment Hgy L)
Other 6 2
Total transfers 28,568 55,630 70,364 108,520
uatkmraue(uemsa) 18,47 .594) " pagss
Fund:balahcas; July 1, 1907, 8 previous;yvepaned 182,741 734820 194 o ass484
Restatement/reciassification of fund balances 1,943 1,152 2,479
Fund balances, July 1, 1997, as restated 76,649 154,684 73,452 91,659 211,346 387,913
FUNDBALANCES, JUNE 30,1998 . G.8 0 7984 8. 173863 § . 71858 'S joB704 § 224885 § 412568

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Component Units (continued)

Northern Southern University
lilinois llinois ot
University University lilinolg Total

$7 48,0176, . 236911 Care 0188 1686571
it qagay 43,331 386274+ 4s6 723
S S edBgan b ase0g it 189,700

3,120 7,187
7.276 20,728 166,229 210,214
2,990 9,116 110,456 129,697
LT R sy e 8eg T B

294887 0014605 . 109:868 5 184,008

16,243 74,814 99,614
1,394 641 46,479 48,514
2,759 3,568 27,894 43,844
L2280 e S OR T U YBe0E TR A38

508,449 263,163 3,011,015 3,119,008

226,891 480,416 1,858,706 3,194,566
47,725 49,585 151,174 341,765

.. 20880
1,826 3,901
310

80 34
&7 ooas
76 . og09 oo

14,465 32,180
6,422 6,741
11,278 87,016
Sl BBl 5P BER

BIaNT6 . 78535,

887 1,012
GiNRTFeN e pTEess. 1 BeRSAE L L 1BET,TE5.
DGy T ey T BBy (1,012)
Ea T e B )
(1.165) 9,100 7,943

126,573 287,510 891,965 1,675,589

URAS6 U (43832) . pE0get azd7a4

ap7169 | 822308 3550566 5778944
1,546 6,398 58,644 72,390

408,715 828,706 3,618,210 5,851,334

§ 480561 8 784874 068




State of lllinois

Combining Statement of University and College Current Funds -

Revenues, Expenditures and Other Changes

University and College Component Units
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Unrestricted
Chicago Eastern Governors  Northeastern Western lllinois
State Illinois State lllinols lllinois State
University University University University University University
REVENUES B
" Fyition and fees : 13,084 $ 35179 $ CLBa78 8. 19,806 8 PRBYs 8 T B4a70"
Federalandlocalgramsandcommcts g T i : L PRy &
';Siata gmntsand contracts .0 13 it ORNEEN {5 non
Private gifts, grants and contracts 302 79 61
Investment income 10 166 1,625
Sales and services 10,124 906 39,325
Other 1+ e LABB0Y e g osger
Tuialrevenues ;21 139 i 75898
EXPENDrrUFIES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS
Educational and general:
Instruction ) 25,064 45,774 18,677 24,752 40,041 62,287
Research i ol e B : i 230 g
Public service. .. ' 1,482
‘Academic support. - 504 25,116 ;
Student services 8,024 11,528 22,299
Institutional support 17,993 15,355 42,335
Operation and maintenance of plant 6,733 1245 19,258
'Schoiarsh«ps and fellowships .| 0 1,280 caERs 0 gopy
Tntai educauonalandgenerai L 83,299 108,839 L AT703Y
Auxiliary enterpnses 1,959 25,727 36,690
Hospitals
Independent operations 413 _
L Fetal expendiwras=" 111,952 ABDE3 €5.258 . 134,866
Mandatotytransfers e
Retirement of long- term obllgatlons 3,600 574
Student loan matching grant 297 68 55
Henewal and replacement 50 1,879
" Other . . o e BB s P2R
Total mandatorytransfers : ihamer 188 767 540
Total expendltures and mandatory transfers 65,558 115,249 48,236 66,025 139,969

OPERATING TRANSFERS AND
ADDITIONS {DEDUCT%ONS)
: Operatmgt:ansfem-m B Hlienia
- Openating transters from: mnmrygcvsmmem gt ey

agm

. eBgEe

Operating transfers-out (17)
Operating transfers to pimary government (3) (1) 4)
Other transfers {224) (1,341) (1,820)
Exesss (deficiency) of rsstncted raeeims over (undar) ) e i
transferstorevenue . R
" Other additions {deductions). Sl B g e enp T D R g L BT L) e ST e T LpTRY

Total operating transfers and addltlons
(deductions) 41,406 26,766 43,972 65,302 99,761

TOTAL INCREASES (DECREASES) IN FUND -BALANCES. . g ==$ o 1619) $ LA 44D 1 f {331) 8. 2@ 5 '1&1 S e

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Unrestricted (continued)

Northemn
Iilinois
University

Southern
Hlinols
University

University
of
Ilincis

Total

5 basee

328
3,077
1,434
69,278

4197

68§
1,785

1,227
4,682
129,949

5,479
558,221
98

agrt

B76.010

93168 1% 2050168 620973
2663 .
61,

72934
isam
14,969
16,263
889,394
ree

145017

91,222

B89

4,983
2,647
9,952
47,946
17,183
110,708

e e

173,234

11,6087
7887
LTB285

36,047
53,072
43,391

L 7378

563,330

86,941
109,135

52,514
141,689

207,336

" 47,708

9817

48,858

260,272
6,632

iapase

1806571

1,064,390
. 106,227
M

280,682

154,423
356,416

260,272
7,045

73,100,938

oS5 044

“Tgeiz

1,749,656

36,244

60,413

909

_ 17,539
PR .2'1529

81400

266,509

474,787

3,191,428

123298 .

(4)

(1,075)

(1aesy

L gy
11,551,062
(9,808)

(75)

(21,170)

120,994

247,709

821,619

1,621,742

8 {588) $ 0833

o ee%0

{continued)

19



State of Hlinois

Combining Statement of University and College Current Funds -
Revenues, Expenditures and Other Changes

University and College Component Units
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressad in Thousands)

Restricted
Chicago Eastern Governors  Northeastern Western liinols
State Minois State Ninois Hlinois State
University University Unlversity University University University
REVENUES
Tultlonand fees = S e T R R e e e e SR :
Faderalwiocalgranisandconh‘acts i $ % 5578 § 7RIS 9,033 8§ wgsa s ‘10,545
. ‘State granis and contracts S . ) Lfg4 - BABS
Private gifts, grants and contracts 664 2,676 180. 1,012 2426 7.078
Investment income 64 881 97 18 364 1,076
Sales and services ] o )
- Other i SHGEETS ATT g AT T 1,053 1,549
o Totairevenuas 17,300 8310 -BETT T 40,287 14811 26,733
EXPENDITURES AND MANDATOHY TRANSFERS
Educational and general:

Instruction 7,508 570 339 334 2,937 2,654
“Regearch 808 R iiges o o967
‘Pyblic service 1 785 66881 Yiq2es 3.972---_. Loaees Lrsg
Academnic support.’ 1,037, 51 258 R eis iR 2595 : 1420
Student services 1,267 27 6,718 804 264

Institutional support 2,488 1,687 386 112 497 3,867

~ Operation and maintenance of plant 1,566 288 o . 64
. .‘Sehalarships and fellowships .500: 4,094 - s BABY 7080
S Temal educammai and genarai 10 463 LATAER. 26,968
Auxullary anterpnses 10 217
Hospitals

Independent operations

Total axpend;tures 17,673 L BOTA 40,473

Mandatorytransiers

Retirement of long-term obllgatlons

Student Ioan matching grant (237)

Renewal and replacement o
HOther : e Spsy Jieey “{225)

Totalmandatmyiransfsrs ---------- {287 o MmB) H(R8) B (225) """
Total expandltures and mandatory transfers 17,673 14,246 8,859 10,385 16,938 27,183
OPERATING TRANSFERS AND
ADDITIONS {DEDUCTIONS) e
- Operating transfers:in R 10 Bl
. Ogarating transfers from primary govemmmt ok 739 L(ea0) 1,871 2883
Operating transfers-out (11) (7) (35)
Operating transfers to primary government
Other transfers 224 ) (193) (340)
‘Exuess(deﬁczemy) otre&nctedreceiptsmsr(unﬂar) i ek s
L. lransfarstoTevenus L e {28} BTE o) 838
Other additions {deductions) i S 72) ‘ vl )
Total operating transfers and addmons
(deductions) 973 6,461 464 (277) 1,791 3,337
TOTAL: INCREASES (DECREASES) IN FUND BALANCES $0 800§ 1525 .8 (24)°8 . (405) § - {336) § - 2887

The accompanying notes 1o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Restricted (Continued)

Northern Southern University Total
lilinois Hlinois of Current
University University liinols Total Funhds

L ez0aTs
452661
7578
218,286
34,721
889,442
185,314

§ 2018 g
L28Et
5,166

84

a8

2051 05

CUTE g FAAST 476,569

1,894
6,733 1
4812

127,239
B804
©A11,800
13874

1,216,191

2,489
556

§,054 U B1760° 30808

T 23049 81,788

17 677

23,086 . B2465

25,066 82,465 558,020 758,835 3,950,263

4498

THNe09,656
(10,822)
(79)
(29,106)

fBAAS
(19)

(126)

o _@o280)

68

Edooh

2,672 17,493 (13,120) 19,794 1,541,536

§ T B 26888 '8 40957 4 B7R4D




State of Illinois Notes to the Financial Statements
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STATE OF ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 1998

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements of the State of
Illinois have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”)
as prescribed in pronouncements of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”).

B. Financial Reporting Entity

The State of Illinois is a “primary government” whose
financial statements consist of the primary
government, organizations for which the primary
government is financially accountable, and other
organizations for which the nature and significance of
their relationship with the primary government are
such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.
The financial statements include all funds, account
groups, elected offices, departments and agencies as
well as boards, commissions, authorities, and
universities and colleges for which the State’s elected
officials are financially accountable.  Financial
accountability exists when the State’s governing body
appoints a majority of an organization’s governing
board and (1) the State can impose its will upon the
organization or (2) there is a potential for the
organization to provide specific financial benefit to,
or impose specific financial burdens on the State.

The State’s governing body consists of the legislative,
executive, and judicial branches of government. The
legislative function is controlled by an elected
General Assembly composed of a 59-member Senate
and a 118-member House of Representatives. The
executive branch consists of the Governor, the chief
executive of the State, the Lieutenant Governor,
Attorney General, Secretary of State, Comptroller,
and Treasurer. The judicial branch is composed of a
seven-member Supreme Court, five Appellate court
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districts and twenty-two Circuit Court judicial
districts including Cook County.

The financial statements distinguish between the
“primary government” and its “component units.”
The State’s participation in joint ventures, related
organizations, and jointly governed organizations are
separately  disclosed below. The primary
government, which consists of organizations that
make up the State’s legal entity, is the nucleus of the
State’s reporting entity and is generally the focal
point for wusers of the financial statements.
Component units are legally separate organizations
for which the State is financially accountable. An
overview of the State’s component units is presented
in the financial statements by “discrete” presentation
(i.c., columns presently separately from the primary
government). Condensed financial statements for the
State’s discretely presented . component units are
displayed in note 18.

Discretely Presented Component Units

"Component units are reported in separate columns to

emphasize that they are legally separate from the
State. Complete financial statements of the individual
component units can be obtained from the respective
component unit administrative offices (as listed in
parenthesis below). Except for the Board of Trustees
of the University of Illinois, whose current board is
partly elected, the major component units presented
below have governing bodies appointed by the
governing board of the State. The State is financially
accountable for these component units, and,
therefore, they are reported in separate “discrete”
columns in the State’s financial statements.

1. Minois Conservation Foundation
(“Foundation”). The Foundation was created to
promote, support, assist, sustain, and encourage
the charitable, educational, scientific, and
recreational programs, projects, and policies of
the Illinois Department of Natural Resources.
The State has the ability to impose its will on the
Foundation. (Administrative Offices: 524 South
2% Street, Springfield, Illinois 62701-1787).
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East St. Louis Financial Advisory Authority
("Authority”). The Authority was created to
provide a secure financial basis for and to furnish
assistance to the city of East St. Louis. The State
substantively approves the Authority’s budget.
(Administrative Offices: 10 Collinsville Ave.,
East St. Louis, Illinois 62201).

lllinois  Medical  District = Commission
{(“Commission”). The Commission was created
to maintain and expand a designated “medical
district.” The State substantively approves the
Commission’s budget. (Administrative Offices:
600 S. Hoyne, Chicago, Illinois 60612).
Comprehensive Health Insurance Plan
(“CHIP”) Board. The CHIP provides an alternate
market for health insurance for eligible Illinois
residents having a preexisting health condition.
The State provides significant operating
subsidies to the CHIP. (Administrative Offices:
400 West Monroe Street, Suite 202, Springfield,
Illinois 62704).

Hlinois Development Finance Authority
(IDFA”). The IDFA provides funding for
industrial, commercial and manufacturing
development in arcas of Illinois with critical
unemployment. The State appropriates funds for
certain IDFA programs. (Administrative Offices:
233 South Wacker Drive, Suite 5310, Chicago,
Illinois 60606).

llinois  Housing Development Authority
(“IHDA"). The THDA issue notes and bonds to
make loans for the acquisition, construction and
rehabilitation of housing and to make loans to
encourage home ownership. The State approves
bonds and notes issued by the THDA and is
secondarily liable for its debt if there are not
sufficient THDA monies to pay principal and
interest.  (Administrative Offices: 401 North
Michigan Avenue, Suite 900, Chicago, Illinois
60611).

Hllinois Rural Bond Bank (“Bond Bank”). The
Bond Bank provides assistance to rural
governmental units by providing adequate capital
markets and facilities for borrowing money and
financing public improvements at low interest
rates. The State is secondarily liable for payment
of principal and interest on the Bond Bank debt.
Excess reserves of the Bond Bank must be
returned to the State’s General Fund.
(Administrative Offices: 427 East Monroe Street,
Suite 202, Springfield, Illinois 62701).

Hiinois State Toll Highway Authority (“THA”).
The THA operates a toll highway system to
promote the public welfare, and to facilitate
vehicular traffic by providing convenient, safe,
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10.

11.

modern and limited access highways within
Illinois. The State approves new toll highways
and issuance of bonds. (Administrative Offices:
One Authonty Drive, Downers Grove, Illinois
60515).

Boards’ of Trustees of Eastern lllinois
University (“EIU”), Western Illinois University
(“WIU), Chicago State University ("CSU”),
Nottheastern linois University (“NEIU),
Governors State University (“GSU’), Mllinois
State University (“ISU”), and Northern lllinois
University (“NIU") (‘boards”). The boards of
the respective universities operate, manage,
control and maintain the schools. Until January
1, 1996, these universities were legally
controlled by the Board of Governors and Board
of Regents which have been abolished. The State
provides significant financial support to the
boards of the universities. (Administrative
Offices:

® (CSU, 9501 South King Dr., Chicago, Illinois
60628

® EIU, 113 West Old Main, Charleston,
Illinois 61920

® GSU, Route 54 & Stuenkel Rd., University
Park, Illinois 60466

® NEIU, 5500 N. St. Louis Avenue, Chicago,
Illinois 60625

® WIU, 1 University Circle, Macomb, Illinois
61455

® [SU, Campus Box 1200, Normal, Illinois
61790-1200

® NIU, 104 Altgeld Hall, DeKalb, Illinois
60115).

Board of Trustees of Southern lilinois

University (“SIU Board’). The SIU Board
operates, manages, controls and maintains
Southern Illinois University. The State provides
significant financial support to the  SIU Board.
(Administrative Offices: Colyer  Hall,
Carbondale, Illinois 62901).

Board of Trustees of the University of lllinois
("U of | Board”). The U of I Board contains
both elected and appointed trustees who manage
the University of Illinois. As existing board
members’ terms expire, they will be appointed by
the Governor. The State provides significant
financial support to the U of 1 Board.
(Administrative Offices: 346 Administration
Building, 506 South Wright Street, Urbana,
Illinois 61801).
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Joint Ventures

The State is a participant with the states of Michigan,
Minnesota, New York, Ohio, Pennsylvania, and
Wisconsin in the Great Lakes Protection Fund
(“Fund™), an Ilinois not-for-profit corporation. The
nation’s first multi-state environmental endowment
was established in 1989 for furthering Federal and
State commitments to programs that restore and
maintain the Great Lakes water quality. This purpose
is achieved by providing grant money for projects
that promote the objectives of the regional Great
Lakes Toxic Substances Control Agreement and the
binational Great L.akes Water Quality Agreement.

A state becomes a member of the organization by
agreeing to contribute an amount set forth in the
articles of incorporation. In August 1998, Illinois
made its final payment of $4.2 million for a total
contribution of $15 million. There is still an
outstanding amount due for $1.9 million in interest,
which stopped accruing upon receipt of the final
payment. The required contribution from all member
states at December 31, 1997, with Illinois’ paid up
membership is $81 million. The Fund’s net assets on
that date were $116 million.

Once a state agrees to make the required contribution,
that state’s governor becomes a “member” of the
corporation. Each member is entitled to elect two
individuals to the board of directors. Budgetary and
financial decisions rest with the board of directors
except where restricted by the articles of
incorporation. Two-thirds of the Fund’s income is
used to finance projects compatible with the
organization’s objectives as set forth in the articles of
incorporation. The remaining one-third of income is
paid to member states in proportion to the amount
and period of time that each state’s contribution was
invested with the Fund (“state shares”). Illinois did
not receive a share payment in 1997 but has received
nearly $1.1 million since the Fund’s inception. In
accordance’ with the Articles of Incorporation,
Illinois’ state share will be used each year to reduce
the amount of interest due until such time as the entire
amount is eliminated. Illinois may make a cash
payment at any time to expedite the reduction of
interest due. The affirmative vote of all of the
members is required for all actions of the Fund.
Complete financial statements of the Fund can be
obtained from the Fund’s administrative offices at 35
East Wacker Drive, Suite 1880, Chicago, Illinois
60601.
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Related Organizations

The State’s officials are also responsible for
appointing the majority of the boards of other
organizations, but the State’s accountability does not
go beyond making the appointments. The State,
generally the Governor, in certain instances with the
advice and consent of the Senate, appoints the
members of the following boards:

® (Central Midwest Interstate Low-Level
Radioactive Waste Commission

Havana Regional Port District
Kaskaskia Regional Port District
Mt. Carmel Regional Port District
Shawneetown Regional Port District
Southwest Regional Port District
Tri-City Regional Port District
Waukegan Port District

White County Port District

Illinois Community College System Foundation

The State maintains accounting records for the
Central Midwest & Interstate Low-Level Radioactive
Waste Commission. The Illinois Community College
Board provides nominal support services for the
Illinois Community College System Foundation.
These are the only related-party activities that the
State has with the above organizations.

Jointly Governed Organizations

The State’s officials, in conjunction with various
other state and local government officials, are
members of the boards of other organizations.
However, the State has no ongoing financial interest
or responsibility except the role of a participant in the
organization’s purpose and, in certain instances, pays
annual dues or assessments. The Governor,
sometimes with the advice and consent of the Senate,
appoints the number of board members (as indicated
in parenthesis below) of the following organizations:

® Bi-State Development Agency of the
Missouri/Illinois Metropolitan District (5 of 10)

® Education Commission of the States (7 of
approximately 350)

Ilincis/Indiana Bi-State Commission (2 of 12)
Illinois/Indiana Bridge Commission (5 of 10)
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Illinois Valley Regional Port District (2 of 5)
Interstate Mining Commission (1 of 17)
Jackson/Union Counties Port District (4 of 23)
Joliet Regional Port District (3 of 7)

Lawyers Trust Fund (3 of 9)

Midwestern Higher Education Commission (5 of
60)

® Northeastern Illinois Planning Commission (5 of
33)

® Ohio River Valley Water Sanitation Commission
(20f 18)

® Southwestern Illinois Metropolitan & Regional
Planning Commission (8 appointed)

® Wabash Valley Interstate Commission (7 of 14)

The State has no significant related-party activities
with the above organizations.

C. Fund Accounting

Financial activities of the State are organized on the
basis of individual funds and account groups, each of
which is a separate accounting entity segregated for
the purpose of carrying on specific activities or
attaining certain objectives in accordance with
specific regulations, restrictions or limitations. The
financial activities of the State accounted for in the
accompanying financial statements have been
classified into the following fund categories and
account groups:

Governmental Fund Types

General - Transactions related to resources obtained
and used for those services traditionally provided by a
state government which are not required to be
accounted for in other funds are accounted for in the
General Fund. These services include, among others,
social assistance, education (other than institutions of
higher education), and health and social services.
Certain resources obtained from federal grants and
used to support general governmental activities are
accounted for in the General Fund consistent with
applicable legal requirements. The State’s General
Fund contains four primary sub-accounts (General
Revenue, Education Assistance, Common School,
and Medicaid Provider Assessment Program) with
numerous secondary sub-accounts.
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Special Revenue - Transactions related to
resources obtained from specific revenue sources
(other than for expendable trusts or major capital
projects) that are legally restricted to expenditure for
specified purposes are accounted for in special
revenue funds. Special revenue funds account for,
among other things, federal grant programs, taxes
levied with statutorily defined distributions, and other
resources restricted as to purpose.

Debt Service - Transactions related to
governmental resources obtained and accumulated to
pay interest and principal on general long-term
obligations (other than capital leases, compensated
absences, workers’ compensation, and unfunded
retirement costs) are generally accounted for in debt
service funds,

Capital Projects - Transactions related to resources
obtained and used for the acquisition or construction
of major capital facilities, including those provided to
political subdivisions and other public organizations,
which are charged to expenditures (other than those
financed by proprietary, fiduciary, and university and
college fund types) are accounted for in capital
projects funds. Such resources are derived
principally from proceeds of general and special
obligation bond issues.

Proprietary Fund Types

Enterprise - Enterprise funds account for operations
where the intent of the State is that the cost of
providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily
through user charges, or where periodic measurement
of the results of operations is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability, or other purposes.

Internal Service - Internal service funds account
for the operations of State agencies which render
services and provide goods to other State agencies or
governmental units on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Fund Types

Trust -

Expendable - Expendable trust funds account for
assets held by the State in a trustee capacity where the
principal and income may be expended in the course
of the funds’ designated operations.
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Nonexpendable - Nonexpendable trust funds account
for assets held by the State in a trustee capacity where
only the income may be expended in the course of the
funds’ designated operations.

Pension - Pension tust funds account for
transactions, assets, liabiliies and fund balances
reserved for employees’ pension benefits of the
various State public employee retirement systems.

Investment — Investment trust funds account for
transactions, assets, liabilities and fund balances
reserved for pool participants.

Agency

Agency funds account for the various taxes, deposits,
deductions, and property collected by the State,
acting in the capacity of an agent, for distribution to
other governmental units or designated beneficiaries.

Universities and Colleges

University and college funds account for the
operations of State universities and colleges,
including their related foundations and associations
(referred to as university related organizations or
“UROs”). The URQs are component units of their
related universities and the universities are, in turn,
component units of the State.  The discrete
presentation of the universitics and colleges within
the State’s financial statements is in accordance with
NACUBO accounting and reporting principles. The
universities are reported in the financial statements
based upon their legal ownership as follows:

® Chicago State, Eastern Illinois, Governors State,
Northeastern Illinois, Western Illinois, Illinois
State, and Northern Illinois are managed,
operated, controlled, and maintained by
individual boards of trustees at those universities.

® Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois University
- Southern Illinois University at Carbondale,
Edwardsville, and the Medical School at
Springfield are operated, managed, controlled,
and maintained by the STU Board of Trustees.

®  University of Illinois Board of Trustees - The
Unjversity of Illinois at Champaign-Urbana,
Chicago, Springfield, and the Medical Center at
Chicago, are managed by the University of
Illinois Board of Trustees.

Account Groups

General Fixed Assets. General fixed assets
acquired or constructed for use by the State in the
conduct of its activities, other than those
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accounted for in proprietary, fiduciary and
university and college fund types are accounted
for in the General Fixed Assets Account Group.

General Long-Term Obligations.
Unmatured general and special obligation bonds,
unfunded retirement costs, and other long-term
obligations not recorded in proprietary, fiduciary
and university and college fund types are
recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group.

D. Basis of Accounting and
Measurement Focus

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Governmental Fund and Expendable Trust Funds.
The accounts of the general, special revenue, debt
service, capital projects and expendable trust funds
are reported using a current financial resources
measurement focus and modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this measurement focus only
current assets and current liabilities are included on
the balance sheet. Fund balance represents a
measure of “available spendable resources.” Under
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when
they become both measurable and available to finance
expenditures of the fiscal year). “Measurable” means
when the amount of the transaction can be determined
and “available” means collectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred.
Significant revenue sources which are susceptible to
accrual include individual and corporate income
taxes, sales taxes, public utility taxes and motor fuel
taxes.

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to
intergovernmental revenues, the legal and contractual
requirements of the numerous individual programs
are used as guidance. There are, however, essentially
two types of these revenues. In one type, monies
must be expended on the specific purpose or project
before any amounts will be paid to the State;



State of Illinois

Notes to the Financial Statements

therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the
expenditure recorded. In the other type, monies are
virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and
are usually revocable only for failure to comply with
prescribed compliance requirements. These
resources are reflected as revenues at the time of
receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
are met.

Modifications to the accrual basis of accounting
include:

® Sclf assessed taxes, principally income, excise
and wealth taxes are recognized as receivables
and revenues in the period to which they apply
subject to their availability.

®  Fines, penalties, licenses and other miscellaneous
revenues are recognized when received since
they normally are only measurable at that time.

® Interest on long-term obligations reflected in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group
is recognized in the debt service funds when it
becomes payable.

Proprietary Funds, Nonexpendable Trust, Pension
Trust and Investment Trust Funds. The accounts of
the enterprise, internal service, nonexpendable trust,
pension trust and investment trust funds are reported
using the capital maintenance measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting.  Under this
measurement focus, all assets and liabilities
associated with the operation of these funds are
included on the balance sheet. Fund equity is
segregated into contributed capital and retained
earnings components for enterprise and internal
service funds. Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses
are recognized when incurred.

As permitted by GASB Statement 20, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and
Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary
Fund Accounting, generally, the State has elected to
apply only statements and interpretations of the
Financial Accounting Standards Board, Accounting
Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research
Bulletins of the Committee on Accounting Procedure
issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements.

Agency Funds. The accounts of agency funds are
reported using the modified accrual basis of
accounting as described above for govemmental and
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expendable trust funds. Agency funds do not
measure hor report operations. Instead, changes in
assets and liabilities are presented for agency funds.

University and College Funds. The accounts of the
university and college funds are reported using the
accrual basis of accounting with the following
exceptions:

® Depreciation expense related to plant fund assets
generally is not recorded.

® Revenues and expenditures of an academic term
encompassing more than one fiscal year are
solely reported in the fiscal year in which the
program is predominantly conducted.

E. Eliminations

Eliminations have been integrated into the report to
eliminate those items that would significantly
overstate the financial activities of certain funds and
intrafund accounts within the related fund type.

F. Total (Memorandum Only)
Columns

Total columns represent an aggregation of the fund
type and account group financial statements. They
are presented for informational purposes and do not
represent consolidated financial information. '

G. Budgetary Process

The State Constitution requires the Governor to
prepare and submit to the General Assembly an
Executive Budget for the ensuing fiscal year. The
budget covers most funds held by the State, but
excludes all locally held funds and various treasury
held funds which are not subject to appropriation
pursuant to State law. The General Assembly enacts
the budget through passage of specific line-item
appropriations (i.e., personal services, contractual
services, equipment, etc.), the sum of which must not
exceed estimated revenues pursuant to the State
Constitution. The Governor has the power to
approve, reduce or veto each appropriation passed by
the General Assembly. Transfers infout contained in
the Executive Budget are not a part of the General
Assembly’s appropriation process.  The actual
amounts are determined either by State law or by
discretionary action available to the Governor. The
Statewide  Accounting  Management  System
(“SAMS”) controls expenditures by line-item as
established in approved appropriation bills and
insures that appropriated expenditure amounts are not
exceeded.
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The level of legal control is reported in a publication
titled IHlinois Detailed Annual Report of Revenues
and Expenditures. A separate document is necessary
since the State has approximately 9,300 appropriated
line items. Administrative transfers between certain
appropriation line items within the same treasury held
fund cannot exceed 2% of the aggregate amount
appropriated to an agency from that fund, Legislative
action is required for more substantial transfers.
Unexpended appropriations at June 30 are available
for subsequent expenditure to the extent that
encumbrances have been incurred at June 30,
provided they are presented for payment during the
succeeding 2-month “lapse period.” Certain
appropriations referred to as ‘“reappropriations”
represent the continvation of a prior year’s program
that requires additional time for completion.

Budgeted revenues in the accompanying Combined
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources
and Uses of Financial Resources and Changes in
Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-
GAAP) represent original estimates, while budgeted
expenditures represent ~ original/continuing
appropriations modified by supplemental and
amendatory appropriations aggregating $702 million.
Budgets are essentially on the cash basis, modified
for expenditures during the lapse period (beginning
and end of year) as described in the preceding
paragraph. '

SAMS establishes the following budgetary fund
groups to account for the State’s budgetary activities:

General - funds established to account for those
services traditionally provided by a state
government which are not required to be
accounted for in other funds;

Highway - funds established to receive and
distribute assessments related to transportation,
and to support the construction and maintenance
of transportation facilities and activities of the
State;

University - funds established to  receive
revenues such as fees, tuition and excess income
from auxiliary enterprises at State-supported
institutions of higher education;

Special State - funds designated by statute as
special funds in the State Treasury and not
elsewhere classified;
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Bond Financed - funds established to receive
and administer the proceeds of various bond
issues of the State;

Debt Service - funds established to finance and
account for the payment of principal and interest
generally associated with the general and special
obligation bond issues of the State;

Federal Trust - funds established pursuant to
grants and contracts or under statutory authority
between State agencies and the federal
government;

Revolving - funds established to finance and
account for intra-governmental services; and,

State Trust - funds established by statute or
under statutory authority for nonfederal programs
which are not deemed to be a traditional govern-
mental activity or elsewhere classified.

H. Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly
liquid investments readily convertible to cash with
original maturities of three months or less. Cash
equivalents consist principally of certificates of
deposit, repurchase agreements, and U.S. treasury
bills, and are stated at cost.

. Investmentis

Investments are stated at fair value based on
implementation of GASB Statement 31 for fiscal year
1998. Generally, the State’s pension systems’
marketable securities are valued at closing prices
listed on national securities exchanges and quotes
from independent pricing services as of June 30.
Real estate and venture capital are valued based upon
appraisals and discounted cash flow analysis.

The Illinois Public Treasurer’s Investment Pool
(IPTIP) operates as a 2a7-like pool and thus reports
all investments at amortized cost rather than market
value. The Treasurer’s investment policies are
governed by State statute. In addition, the
Treasurer’s Office has adopted its own investment
practices that supplement the statutory requirement.
The Treasurer’s Office issues a separate financial
report for IPTIP. It may be obtained by contacting
them at Jefferson Terrace, 300 West Jefferson Street,
Second Level, Springfield, Illinois 62702.
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Investment income is recorded as revenue in the
General Fund, except for resources of retirement
systems and certain other individual funds that are
statutorily authorized to be separately invested and
specifically credited with the income realized thereon.
The State financial statements contain certain
investments that meet the definition of “derivatives.”
Derivative investments are included in the pension
trust funds as disclosed in note 4.

J. Inventories

Inventories for governmental funds are valued at cost,
principally on the first-in, first-out consumption
method.

K. Interfund Transactions

The State has the following types of interfund
transactions:

Quasi-external transactions - Charges for
services rendered by one fund to another are
treated as revenues of the recipient fund and
expenditures or expenses of the disbursing fund.

Reimbursements -  Reimbursement  of
expenditures made by one fund for another are
recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund
and as a reduction of expenditures in the
reimbursed fund.

Residual Equity Transfers - Nonroutine or
nonrecurring transfers between funds are
reported as additions to or deductions from fund

equity.

Operating Transfers - Legally authorized
transfers other than residual equity transfers are
reported as operating transfers.

L. Property, Plant and Equipment

Fixed assets are recorded at cost or, for donated
assets, at fair market value at date of acquisition.

General Fixed Assets - Fixed asset records are
used by the State primarily to assure
accountability. Historical cost records for certain
general fixed assets are incomplete or not
available.  Accordingly, estimated historical
costs have been used. Public domain
(infrastructure) general fixed assets such as
highways, bridges, and lighting systems are not
capitalized. Depreciation is not provided on
general fixed assets and interest expenditures
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incurred during the construction period are not
capitalized.

Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Types - It is the
State’s policy to capitalize interest expense
incurred on significant assets during their
construction. Generally, property, plant and
equipment, excluding land, are depreciated on
the straight-line method over the estimated
service lives of the respective assets as follows:

Years
Land improvements 20-50
Buildings and building improvements 20-50
Equipment 3-10

University and College Funds - Generally,
public domain (infrastructure) assets such as
streets, sidewalks, and lighting systems are not
capitalized. Depreciation generally is not
provided on property, plant and equipment.

M. Retirement Costs

Substantially all State employees, including members
of the General Assembly and Judicial Branch,
participate in one of three State public employee
retirement systems (see Note 10). The State also
maintains and funds public employee retirement
systemns for employees of the various State supported
universities and colleges, and for public school
teachers in cities other than Chicago. It is the State’s
policy to fund retirement costs without regard to
amounts calculated under the actuarial requirements.
Based on actmarial consultations, the State’s
contributions have been less than the retirement
benefits paid during the year for the last seventeen
fiscal years. Prior to fiscal year 1982, the State had
funded the retirement costs at a level at least as great
as the retirement benefits paid during the year.

Effective July 1, 1996, the State adopted the
provisions of GASB Statement 27, Accounting for
Pensions by State and Local Governmental
Employers to determine pension cost. Accordingly,
calculated pension cost comprises the employer’s
annual required contributions (i.e., the “ARC"),
which equals normal cost plus interest on unfunded
prior service cost and amortization of prior service
cost over forty years, one year’s interest on the net
pension obligation, and an adjustment to the ARC to
offset the effect of actuarial amortization of past
under or over coniributions.
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N. Capital Appreciation
(“deep-discount’’) Bonds

Capital appreciation bonds are those bonds that arc
issued at stated interest rates significantly below their
effective interest rate, resulting in a substantial
discount. The implicit interest (i.e., discount) is not
paid until the bond matures. Therefore, the net value
of the bonds “accretes” (i.¢., the discount is reduced)
over the life of the bonds. For general and special
obligation bonds, the accreted amounts are included
in the General Long-Term Obligations Account
Group.

0. Compensated Absences

The amounts of vested unpaid vacation and sick leave
accumulated by State employees are accrued when
incurred in proprietary and university and college
funds, which use the accrual basis of accounting. In
the governmental funds, only the amounts that
normally would be liquidated with expendable
available financial resources are accrued as
current-year expenditures. Legislation that became
effective January 1, 1998 capped the paid sick leave
for all State Employees’ Retirement System members
at December 31, 1997. Employees continue to accrue
twelve sick days per year, but will not receive
monetary compensation for any additional time
earned after January 1, 1998. Sick days earned
between 1984 and December 31, 1997 (with a 50%
cash value) would only be used after all days with no
cash valuec are depleted. Any sick days earned and
unused after December 31, 1997 will be converted to
service time for purposes of calculating employee
pension benefits. The State’s liability for unused
vested sick leave and vacation time, including salary
related costs (e.g., social security and Medicare tax),
is recorded in the accompanying financial statements
at the employees’ current salary level. Unless if is
anticipated that compensated absences will be used in
excess of a normal year’s accumulation, no additional
expenditures are accrued. Therefore, the entire
unpaid liability for the governmental funds is
recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group.

P. Workers’ Compensation Liability

The fund liabilities of the General Fund, Road and
Mental Health (Special Revenue) Funds include the
amount of workers’ compensation claims that would
normally be liquidated with expendable available
financial resources. The remaining liability, based on
the State’s workers’ compensation laws, is reported in
the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group
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and University and College Funds.

Q. Encumbrances

The State employs encumbrance accounting for all
governmental fund types. All contracts, purchase
orders and other commitments for goods or services
that have not been received/rendered by June 30 are
reported as reservations of fund balances, not as
expenditures.

R. Reservations/Designations of
Fund Equity

Reservations

Governmental and Fiduciary Funds - Fund balances
of governmental and fiduciary fund types that are
legally restricted to a specific future use or that are
not available for appropriation or expenditure are
reported as reservations of fund balances.

University and College Funds - Fund balances of
university and college funds that are legally restricted
by outside sources to specific future use are reported
as reservations of fund balances.

Proprietary Funds - Reserved retained earnings of
the proprietary funds are legally restricted for the
payments of capital maintenance and debt service
related to revenue bonds and bond anticipation notes
and for other purposes.

Designations

Designations of unreserved fund balances in
governmental, fiduciary and university and college
funds indicate the State’s plan for use of financial
resources in future periods.

S. Financial Reporting Standards

For periods beginning after December 31, 1998,
GASB Statement 32, “Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457
Deferred Compensation Plans,” is effective. The
statement will require all amounts deferred under a
Section 457 plan maintained by the State must be
held in trust for exclusive benefit of plan participants.
The State of Illinois Department of Central
Management Services will implement the trust
requirement in fiscal year 1999 prior to January 1,
1999 and will report the Section 457 plan as an
expendable trust in the fiscal year 1999 CATFR.
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2 BUDGETARY BASIS VS. GAAP

The accompanying Combined Statement
Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of

of

Financial Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund
Balances-Budget - and Actual (Non-GAAP), All
Budgeted Fund Groups, presents comparisons of the
legally adopted budget (more fully described in Note
1-G) with actual data on a budgetary basis. Since
accounting principles applied for purposes of

- (uses) ofﬁnamial resourcesirto
5t financial reswrees ((:‘:MP bas&s)--

Hedassmwons &adusﬁnents
: Tareclassifyemess(de&:enq)of S

o financial resolrces into financial
statemamsfundtypes o

b Toracordm(deﬁdency)drevenues
: aver (under) empsndstumdem\ses and

famonbwgetedmmémmum

mnﬁtwedmwmsowm
{uses) ofﬁnancia! resources (GAAP hmis)

wvanueswar(mder)axpmturesf_-l Peia
expenmandomersourees(uses)'" ey

Exoaes (daﬂdemy}of revenuesover(under)

(17593):"_‘;:":';"-' 5
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developing data on a budgetary basis differ
significantly from those used to present financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles, a reconciliation (amounts
expressed in thousands) of resulting basis, perspective,

Federal o
_Trugt . Rev

Trust

entity and timing differences in the excess (deficiency)
of revenues over (under) expenditures/expenses and
other sources (uses) of financial resources for the year
ended June 30, 1998 is presented below:

33

Trust




State of Illinois Notes to the Financial Statements
L Prize Wi T d has b d ined
3 RECLASSIFICATION/RESTATE- ottery Prize Winners Trust fund has been determined to

MENT OF EQUITY BALANCES

In accordance with Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement 31, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for

External Investment Pools, the Illinois Public
Treasurers’ Investment Pool has been determined to
be an external investment pool and the Deferred

be individual investment accounts.

been reclassified from Agency fund type to Investment
Trust fund type.

The equity balances for applicable funds have been
restated to reflect the adjustment of investrnents to “fair
value” as required by GASB Statement 31 which was
implemented in the current fiscal year. The July 1, 1997
equity balances (amounts expressed in thousands) have
been reclassified/restated as follows:

Tofeclassﬂvfunds datermmed >
“fo'be Investment Trust
ilﬂndcs Publlchass.lrers
lwestment Pool
Deferredl.mtmyPnze
WimersTmst Fund
Restate msm e i
To adiust invostmanm 1o. fait vaiue

i :_ Fu m _ ey
Elpﬂnﬂﬂlle i lnvastment nent
FmﬂﬁaianoelﬁetamedEammgs L L N
00T asp“"""“s‘y"""""ﬂd % (451457) '§ 2017765 $ 160848 ' $
: Fledassiﬁcatim i By o¥he i i

Fund Balanmlﬂetamed Eamings .

July 1, 19a7,asmlmtﬁedmm - :f;:'gvgm!hgf $ 2017045 § 160301 5 3525431 § 1621140 § 5881,

I 4 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS I

The State Treasurer is the custodian of the State’s cash,
cash equivalents, and investments for most funds
maintained in the State Treasury. Funds maintained
outside the State Treasury (locally held funds) have
independent authority to manage their own cash and
investments. As described later, the funds of the
State’s retirement systems are invested separately.

Investment Policy -

General

Statutes authorize public agencies, including the State
of Illinois Primary Government and its Component
Units, to engage in a wide variety of investment
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activities. These include bonds, notes, certificates of
indebtedness, treasury bills or other securities
guaranteed by the United States; interest-bearing
savings accounts, certificates of deposit, or
interest-bearing time deposits or any other investments
that constitute direct obligations of any bank;
short-term obligations of certain qualified United States
corporations; short-term discount obligations of the
Federal National Mortgage Association; shares or other
securities legally issued by certain state or federal
savings and loan associations; insured dividend-bearing
share accounts and certain other accounts of chartered
credit unions; certain money market mutual funds;
Public Treasurer’s Pool; and repurchase agreements
that meet certain insttument and transaction
requirements. Statutes require that investments
purchased must mature or be redeemable prior to the
date they will be needed to pay expenditures.
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The investments of the State's five retirement systems
(classified as pension trust funds) are governed by the
State Pension Code. Authorized investments consist of
bonds, equities, real estate, venture capital and other
activities that are consistent with the “prudent person”
rule. The “prudent person” rule, as adopted by the
Illinois General Assembly in 1982, states that
fiduciaries must discharge their duties with the care,
skill, prudence and diligence which a prudent person
acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters
would use under conditions prevailing at the time.

In addition to statutory requirements, Primary
Government agencies and Component Units have
adopted their own supplemental investment practices
which further regulate such activities.

Derivatives

Certain  State  agencies, principally Teachers’
Retirement System (TRS) and State Universities
Retirement System (SURS), invest in derivative
securities. A derivative security is an investment whose
payoff depends upon the value of other assets such as
commodity prices, bond and stock prices or a market
index. In general, a derivative is used to modify
exposure to undesirable risks, to increase portfolio
liquidity and flexibility, or to enhance investment yields
within the level of risk defined in the agency’s
investment guidelines.

Derivative transactions involve, to varying degrees,
credit risk and market risk. Credit risk is the possibility
that a loss may occur because a party to a transaction
fails to perform according to terms. In order to
eliminate credit risk, all derivative securities of TRS
and SURS are done through a clearinghouse which
guarantees delivery and accepts the risk of default by
either party. Market risk is the possibility that a change
in interest or currency rates will cause the value of a
financial instrument to decrease or become more costly
to settle. The market risk associated with derivatives,
the prices of which are constantly fluctuating, is
regulated by TRS and SURS by imposing strict limits
as to the types, amounts and degree of risk that
investment managers may undertake. These limits are
approved by governing bodies and senior management,
and the risk positions of the investment managers are
reviewed periodically to monitor compliance with
limits.

TRS and SURS invest in the following types of
derivatives: foreign currency forward contracts,
collateralized  mortgage  obligations (CMO’s),
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financial futures, and financial options.

Foreign currency forward contracts are used to hedge
against the currency risk in agencies’ foreign stock and
fixed income security portfolios. Foreign currency
forward contracts are an agreement to buy or sell a
specific amount of a foreign currency at a specified
delivery or maturity date for an agreed upon price.
Fluctuations in the market value of foreign currency
forward contracts are recognized as incurred rather than
at the maturity or the settlement date of the contract.
Foreign currency forward contracts represent an off-
balance sheet obligation because there are no balance
sheet assets or liabilities associated with those
contracts.

Financial futures are an agreement to buy or sell a
specific amount of an asset at a specified delivery or on
maturity date for an agreed-upon price. As the market
value of the futures contract varies from the original
contract price, a gain or loss is recognized and paid to
the clearinghouse. Financial futures represent an off-
balance sheet obligation because there are no balance
sheet assets or liabilities associated with those
contracts.

Financial options are an agreement that gives one party
the right, but not the obligation, to buy or sell a specific
amount of an asset for a specified price, called the
strike price, on or before a specified expiration date.
As writers of financial options, TRS and SURS receive
a premium at the outset of the agreement and bear the
risk of an unfavorable change in the price of the
financial instrument underlying the option. Premiums
received are recorded as a liability when the financial
option is written. Fluctuations in the fair value of
financial options are recognized in the financial
statements as incurred rather than at the time the
options are exercised or when they expire. As a
purchaser of financial options, SURS pays a premium
at the outset of the agreement and the counterparty
bears the risk of an unfavorable change in the price of
the financial instrument underlying the option.
Premiums paid are recorded as an asset when the
financial option is purchased and gains/losses are
recognized when the options are exercised by the
agency or they expire.

As of June 30, 1998, TRS net costs and fair values
(expressed in thousands) of option contracts written
were ($263) and $789, respectively. The cost value of
option contracts written represents the premiums
received, and the fair value represents the amount to be
paid to close all positions as of that date.
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| Domesuc mterest Rate Pmducts
: _Fixed income futures purchased
P -Faxed mcome futures sold:‘;

Fixed mcéme purchasad call aptmns
- Fixed income written call optiens
L leed income credrt spreads

i ';'s-i ]aaa,ﬂa_jf

o apEss

Universmes e
B#t*'?ment ‘

162000

The preceding table represents the derivative positions
held by TRS and SURS at June 30, 1998 in financial
futures and financial options (expressed in thousands).
Additional information concerning the derivative
investments of TRS and SURS can be obtained from
their separately issucd annual reports.

Contractual principal amounts are often used to express
the volume of these transactions but do not reflect the
extent to which positions may offset one another. These
amounts do not represent the much smaller amounts
potentially subject to risk.

Deposits -

Primary Government

On June 30, 1998, the carrying amount of the State’s
Primary Government cash deposits (amounts expressed
in thousands) was $1,979,883 and the bank balance was
$2,509.447. Of the bank balance, $2,322,406 was
covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral
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held by the State or the State’s agent in the State’s
name, $2,976 was covered by collateral held in the
pledging bank’s trust department or by its agent in the
State’s name, and $184,065 was uninsured and
uncollateralized.

Component Units

On June 30, 1998, the carrying amount of the State’s
Component Units cash deposits (amounts expressed in
thousands) was $263,493, and the bank balance was
$332,591. Of the bank balance, $293,882 was covered
by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by
the State or the State’s agent in the State’s name,
$23,358 was covered by collateral held in the pledging -
bank’s trust department or by its agent in the State’s
name, and $15,351 was uninsured and uncollateralized.
At June 30, 1998, the State Treasurer held $324 of the
component unit agencies bank balances. By statute,
public monies deposited in financial institutions must
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either be collateralized; insured by an agency of the
federal government; or not exceed 75% of the capital
stock and surplus, 75% of the net worth, or 50% of the
unimpaired capital and surplus of a financial institution.

Investments —

Investments (amounts expressed in thousands), are
categorized below to give an indication of the level of
custodial credit risk assumed by the State at June 30,
1998. Category 1 includes investments that are insured
or registered or for which the securities are held by the
State or its agent in the State’s name. Category 2
includes uninsured and unregistered investments for
which the securities are held by the counterparty trust

department or agent in the State’s name. Category 3,
includes uninsured and unregistered investments for
which the securities are held by the counterparty, or by
a trust department or agent but not in the State’s name.
Of the amounts shown below in category 3, 77%
pertain to the enterprise and 23% pension fund types.

The master repurchase agreements utilized by the
Treasurer require the broker or financial institution to
maintain the fair value of collateral securities at 102%
of the agreement. The carrying amount was
approximately $1,942,023 and the fair value of the
collateral securities to be resold based on commitments
under the repurchase agreements was approximately
$1,987,956 as of June 30, 1998.

Primary Government

i ererr

_ ‘Hepurchase agreements L
B Tfeasury and Agency abhgatlons -
Commercial paper .

Corporate debt sacurmes

- giraa

508,21

2: .
2,170,670

Corporate equety secunﬂes

anestment' Cbntrécts 0y
Tangible property ‘
Investments m mutuai funds

Componentnite, ... .

Repurchase agreemems :
U.S. Treasury.and Agency ob!rgatlons
Commergiaipaper .0 oo
Corporate debt securities

i 24447
14418
. 37,862

. 2532

Gomorateeqwtvsec rties

lnvestment cantracts
Tangabie‘pro ety

_427,497 s 115,316.-‘

s 179,059

Of the amounts shown above in category 3, the
university funds constitute 79%, and special revenue

constitute 21%.
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Reconciliation to Balance Sheet -

The balance sheet account cash and cash equivalents
contains certain short-term investments (included as
investments above) to reflect their liquidity. In

addition, the disclosures related to deposits and
investments above include certain items that the balance
sheet shows as restricted assets or other assets. A
reconciliation follows:

4 Amount Per Note'

. Restricted Assets
_Other Assets

. Primary. Gavemmen Deposnts/investments
i b ‘ :

cash and
. Cash
Eguwa ents Investmems

”979 883 $,52 624 931

/$8,900731  $48,484,353 I

Securities Lendmg Transactions -

The investment policies of certain State agencies,
principally the retirement systems and certain
universities, permit them to enter into -securities
lending transactions. In these transactions, the
agency loans their securities to broker-dealers and
other entities for collateral with a simultaneous
agreement to return the collateral for the same
securities in the future. The agencies’ securities
custodians are agents in lending the securities for
collateral of at least 102% of the market/fair value of
the securities. Collateral can consist of cash, cash
equivalents, government securities, commercial paper
or irrevocable letters of credit. Depending on their
nature, securities on loan at year-end are presented as
classified or unclassified in the preceding schedule of

custodial credit risk. Generally, at year end, agencies had
no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the amounts
they owed to the borrowers exceeded the amounts the
borrowers owe the agencies. Policies regarding
indemnification vary among agencies. Some agencies’
contracts with custodians require them to indemnify the
agency if the borrowers fail to return the securities (and if
the collateral is inadequate to replace the securities lent)
or the borrowers fail to pay the agency for income
distributions by the securities’ issuers while the securities
are out on loan, Other agencies have no provisions for
indemnification.

As of June 30, 1998, agencies had outstanding loaned
investment securities (amounts expressed in thousands)
having a fair value of $4,489,004 against which they had
received collateral having a fair value of $4,694,752.

5 TAXES RECEIVABLE

Taxes receivable (amounts expressed in thousands) at
June 30, 1998 consisted of the following:

5 eseeds
729,850

Mnior:fuei taxes
Public utility taxes
Unemployment .
comyensaﬁan taxes
Othor taxes :

" Funatrmes
Specil s

: veni ;
$ 102,087
270,343
202,568
122974

125652 169

5150275

Less Anowance for. i
uncc _:ctmie taxes g

553,804 714,

..718.9855 3

T2s01,165

Taxas Roeelvable, net
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DUE FROM/TO OTHER FUNDS

AND COMPONENT UNITS

The following balances (amounts expressed in
thousands) at June 30, 1998 represent due from/to
balances among all funds and component units:

Due From

Other
Fsms!a

§1-93,821 s

Géherai o

- 101

Speclal Revenue i
L State Gonstructlon Account
:Local Govemment Dustnbut:ve 11
: Public Transpnrtaxion s A

Motor Fuel Tax: '

“Road i
" Tourism Promnt!cm

" RTAQécupation &

: Use Tax Replacement
--'-Specnal Purposes Trust
‘. Personal Property Tax Replaceme :
" State & Local Sales Tax Reform
. County & Mass Transit mstrmi

- Build Hllinois

i Downstate Public Transponahon

[ State Gaming . :
- Vehicle inspect:oh‘

. Rate Adjustment -

By Oiher

42,472-= :
199,768
..B6,568
24,108
BB 442
V7,282

408
b5
it

12 339

: 35?!92..
. ..813372

Debt Servlce

Caplta} ijecis e
“ESCO.COP Capltal Pro;ects
iOther

Enterprise:
State Lottery
- Other. -

L B1546

--_Commumcanons Revoving =~ = 20331
S.Statlstlcal Sarvnces F%evolvlng_:_ e 304 o
""" Lo 54230
+80,000.. 2753
5942 Gt g

ik S
138431

C . Health' Ensuranca Reserve. eal
i Workmg Capital Hevalvmg :
“zOther

Component anary

s
678

EEETY R i

Other anary

: Gom'pouent
: Gﬂemmﬂm

Units

.:..::60237-‘ G
49,053

-‘--5,4-.66 i
20 91g_
24_3 2_46

11726

39



State of Illinois

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 6 (continued)

“Fund TypefFund

' 'Dueﬁo

Trustand Agency: -
" Expendablé Trust:
Unampioyment (:ompensatmn Tmst
Other " ..

_ Ofher -

‘Component
__Units -

Primary
Government _

Pensmn Trust s
State Umversittes Rettrement System
Other .

State Ermiployes’s Retirernent. System

‘7,23'2:
My

Investment Trust» '

Agency o o
-1 Sports Facilltres Tax g
Public Assistance Recoverigs Trust
Group Insurance Premium Fund T

- ATASales Tax Trust '
Social Semces ;
Other "

Total Trust and Agency =+

Total (Memorandum Only)
Primary Gmrnmeht

- Component Units
Govarnmental
Proprietaty: Gl

Housing DevelopmentAuthonty e
-Incustrial Revolving Fund ° ‘
ot

University and College;
Chicago State’ Umvemity
Northern Hilinois Umvarsﬁy

'Southern: lHlincis Unwersity

‘ Umversﬂy.of.j]lmms

-Tbtal;Comp'nn'ent Untt-==- :

Toml (Memorandum Gniy) -
Heportmg Entsty

oty T g

7,496’ -

..mm 0

;. Government.

3619
~ 1e8

3,787

74

68

a2
. R8858

AEST?

L BBTT

o BT38d

61544 -

731&

203 740

4183 ..

"3.,133.':: b

11436\ .

e
es7t
. 185,116
9607

1373-..‘.'

20308
2,708 S

§7s1, ‘§' 17,023 § ,740 §781,222 § g_ng,uo _§_.__17;.__.

. meso
R 992-_-
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7

LOANS AND NOTES
RECEIVABLE

Loans and notes receivable (amounts expressed in
thousands) at June 30, 1998 consisted of the following:

5 Total

IMortgage foan program’
‘Student:oan program. . S
Local govermment mfrastructure e
Business loan.program:; = G
Portdlstnctsoonstructmn
Other i

Less 'Ailowénoe fo:r : ,
unnoiiectlble aocountsvg o

Fund Types ==

(ﬁemn‘r_andﬁtﬂ
- Only)
 Primary

_ Ctxmponent ‘
s Ants

1,833,545

_zss

sk i ‘ 37162
CBIAE07T . $ 1, s 1796383- -

In the accompanying financial statements, the General,
Special Revenue and Debt Service fund types reflect
loans and notes receivable of $757.3 million. Fund
balances in the amount of $702.1 million have been
reserved to indicate their long-term nature and that they
are not available to meet current appropriation or
expenditure needs.

A portion of the General fund type business loan
programs ($32.8 million) represents various funds’
pooled resources that the State has invested in a pilot
mortgage program since fiscal year 1983. The
programs are categorized as commercial and hotel
loans as discussed below.

Commercial Loans - During fiscal year 1989, the
remaining business loan outstanding, with a balance of
$3.3 million, was restructured. During fiscal years
1993 and 1994, the Treasurer recorded write-down
provisions totaling $1.6 million (i.e. $1.5 million and
$150 thousand, respectively). On August 24, 1994 the
loan was declared in default, and as such, has been
classified as a nonperforming asset. A judgment of
foreclosure was entered on October 8, 1997 in the
amount of $4.2 million. The trustee took title to the
property at a sheriff’s sale in January 1998 and then
sold the property in May 1998 for $2.1 million. The
closing on the property did not occur until July 1998 so
the sale will be reflected in the financial statements of
the fiscal year ending June 30, 1999.
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Hotel Loans - Effective January 12, 1987, two of the
program’s outstanding mortgage loans aggregating
$28.9 million were restructured. One of these loans
with an original balance of $15.5 million was
restructured again effective January 1, 1990. The
remaining loan totaling $13.4 million in original value
was restructured effective January 1, 1991. Through
June 30, 1998, the Treasurer recorded a provision for
the write-down of $17.1 million for these two
properties based on independent valuations. These two
loans have been classified as nonperforming assets.

In 1995, the Treasurer authorized the trustee to sell the
mortgage loans, However, the Attorney General
opined that both his and the Governor’s consent were
required, which was not provided. Affiliates of the
owners of the hotel loans filed a lawsuit against the
trustee and the Treasurer seeking specific performance
of the buy-sell agreement on the agreed to terms. This
lawsuit is still pending and the ultimate outcome of this
proceeding is not presently determinable.

On October 31, 1997, the trustee filed suit against the
Hotel ventures for making improper deductions in
determining payments due, creating a default and
making the loan balances due upon demand. At the
time of the filing of the suit, the trustee presented letters
of credit with a value of $2.7 million, which serve as
collateral for the loans of one of the properties, for
collection. The ventures obtained a restraining order to
prevent collection of the letters of credit.
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On December 9, 1997, the Circuit Court dissolved the
restraining order of one Hotel venture and denied the
venture’s motion to stop the trustee from calling the
letter of credit. The court stayed the effectiveness of
this order pending appeal. Subsequent to the end of the
fiscal year the Appellate Court reversed the Circuit
Court’s ruling. The Treasurer and trustee have
appealed this ruling and the outcome of this proceeding
is not presently determinable.

The lawsuit against the other venture has been stayed
pending the resolution of certain related issues
discussed above. Once -the Illinois Supreme Court
rules on the related issues, a decision will likely be
made on whether to lift the stay or not. The outcome of
this litigation is not presently determinable.

The write-down of the above Hotel and Commercial
loans is not considered forgiveness of the obligations
and collection efforts will continue for the entire loan
balance including principal and interest.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment (amounts expressed in
thousands) at June 30, 1998 consisted of the following:

Changes in general fixed assets (amounts expressed in
thousands) for the year ended June 30, 1998 are

iGeneral - O Total’

..... : 5 Fm 3 !mmmwm
iAggets - - Only) T
. AcGount . S intemalE Prlmary Componern‘
______ i 'Gfraup . Enterpﬂae Serv!ae' ‘Trust . Trust Govermnent _Unhts
Landandiandmprovemenis s soyo?a e f‘:"$ 888 .. g sossvo $ 3082169
Buildings and'building - | s R g o
- improvements : '3,9_31,_357 SRl aTe0s 57 ¢ ‘."-3,062;72@; 3.114,734
Equipment I T 3‘3564380 $AZBAT 187,820 al 41050 5RE.A80 0 D00.5g8
Comtmﬁminpmgress S cBBATE L Sl DU BEATE | E74802
; _ i 5,061,486 [ 18,316,854 | 8,681,000

Less: Acqumu!ated A

depreciation. =

presented below:

- 1"366330‘
56,176

Balance
duly 1,
e R ey
nLanci and tand 1mprovements % 586389
Buﬂdmgsandbuﬂdmg """ D
:mpmvement" " “ - 2,851,786
Equipment L . 1301806
Canstmctlomn progress G 98010
- 3 4833871 §

562,189 § 336,564 $ 5,061 496 |
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in
and

Construction
thousands)

in progress
for  general

(amounts
fixed

expressed
assets,

component units as of June 30, 1998 is composed of
the following:

i1k Prolwl
Aa.ﬁhmimnom

ijoct

Junezn TO88 ' Y

Genem! Fimed Aueca Mcoum Group i
_.Lawremevi!le Correctional Gsntar ;
YCiKewanse. Gl
Fcrenmum:ElglnMHC i

2138 § 65404

. =
o2ame L AD12
93613 ca38418

98231 5

lCommem Uni‘les‘ : o
State Toll Highway. Impmvemants .

“ Faraday aiIAdditlon___NlU St
 Faraday Engineering Building « NI
*Stavenson Towers Renovation = NIL:
Ambulatoty Gare Facility - 13 ofi g8
' Parking Structure D-1.2nd Addition - u'&n
:Agsembly Hall Additian & Hemodanng Ukl
'-Acesubrary Wl
-Engmeeﬂng Hall Flshabﬂitaﬂon Lofl

‘Performing Arts Center-iSU.

: '28,‘133
L6088
BTBIB
S0
Coste
21100

; 15,107

Sputidck Museur - Ut i o800
Science Building - ISU ... 29400
18000

305202
26684

LgTArs.
sHo.
az067
12,300‘

Projects less than $10,000

930,619

l 9 NOTES PAYABLE I

revenue sources,
Outstanding notes

to provide temporary financing.
payable (amounts expressed in

The State agencies listed below generally issue thousands) at June 30, 1998 were as follows:
short term notcs, norma]ly secured by spcciﬁc
C . : : i ::!nt:ergs_t‘s--:f-‘. =::§_ CRnnuel
Maturity To.

_ ﬁlmpts' Studant Ass:stance Comm:ssmn

‘:;compommt unnt -,= :
-'Govemmemal i
Medlcal Qenter Commlssion

Proprietary
: Soumwestern mm

- :__Northeastem minois Univers:fy
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lllinois Student Assistance
Commission (ISAC) -

The ISAC is authorized to issue Student Loan Revenue
Notes. The notes and related interest are payable solely
from the revenues and other resources of the ISAC. On
June 30, 1998, the ISAC had $96 million of notes
outstanding due 2005 or upon demand. The interest rate
is 69.875% of the weekly 91-day U.S. Treasury bill
rate, with a minimum interest rate of 3.38% and a
maximum interest rate of 11.725%.

Medical Center Commission
(Commission) —

The Commission obtained a note payable from a local
bank in the amount of $174 thousand as interim
financing for expenses in the construction of the
Chicago Technology Park Enterprise Center. The loan
will be converted to a 20-year mortgage when
construction is completed in Fiscal Year 1999.

Southwestern Illinois Development
Authority (SWIDA) —

The SWIDA obtained a note payable from the
Department of Commerce and Community Affairs in
the amount of $100 thousand in fiscal year 1997, the
proceeds of which were used for start-up costs. This
note is non-interest bearing and matures on July 1,
2008, As of June 30, 1998, there were notes payable
outstanding of $99 thousand.

Universities and Colleges -

Universities and colleges have issued notes payable
aggregating $5.9 million at June 30, 1998. The notes
are generally secured through revenues (i.e., lease
payment agreements) derived from the operations of
the projects constructed, although portions of the notes
outstanding are unsecured.

10 RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

Plan Descriptions. The State of Illinois sponsors
five public employee retirement systems (“PERS”) that
are included in the State’s financial statements as
pension trust funds. The General Assembly Retirement
System (“GARS”), Judges' Retirement System
(“JRS™) and State Employees’ Retirement System
(“SERS”), are the administrators of single-employer
defined benefit pension plans. The GARS, JRS and
SERS are governed by articles 2, 18, and 14,
respectively, of the Illinois Pension Code (40 ILCS 5/1,
et. al.).

The Teachers’ Retirement System (“TRS”) is the
administrator of a defined benefit pension plan with
“special funding sitmations.” It provides coverage to
teachers employed by public school districts in Illinois
(excluding Chicago) even though most covered
employees are not State employees. The State
Universities Retirement System (“SURS”) is the
administrator of a defined benefit pension plan and a
defined contribution plan. They also have “special
funding sitnations.” The SURS provides coverage to
faculty and staff of State universities, community
colleges and related agencies, of which, some covered
employees are not State employees.
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The State of Illinois is legally mandated to make
contributions to the TRS and SURS. Because the State
contributes most of the TRS and SURS employer
contributions, the single employer provisions of GASB
Statement 27 have been followed for reporting those
systems in the statewide CAFR. The TRS and SURS
are governed by articles 16 and 15, respectively, of the
Illinois Pension Code.

Public Act 90-448 was enacted effective January 1,
1998 and established an alternative defined benefit
program known as the Portable Benefit Option Plan
within the SURS. This option is offered in addition to
the existing traditional benefit option. All members
who are eligible for the traditional benefit option are
eligible for the portable option. New and existing
members are provided a window period in which to
make an irrevocable election. The portable option
provides an enhanced refund at termination for those
who leave SURS with at least five years of service.
Offsetting this additional cost is the elimination of the
survivor benefit package. This program is designed to
be cost neutral in relation to the traditional option.
Approximately 2,000 out of a total of 77,000 members
have chosen this option.

In addition, Public Act 90-448 required the SURS to
offer a Self-Managed Plan. This is a defined
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contribution plan and is offered to employees of all  Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost.
SURS employers who elect to participate.  The Member contributions are based on fixed percentages
contribution rate is 8% of their gross earnings. It is a set by statute ranging from 4% to 11.5%. The State’s
qualified money purchase plan under Section 401(a) of  funding requirements have been established by statute
the Internal Revenue Code. The assets are maintained (Public Act 88-593) effective July 1, 1995 and provides
under trust administered by the SURS Board of for a systematic 50-year funding plan with an ultimate

Trustees in accordance with the Illinois Pension Code. goal to achieve “90% funding” of the systems’
845 of the 77,000 members have chosen this option. liabilities. In addition, the funding plan provides for a
$1.7 million of the $10.8 billion total assets relate to 15-year phase-in period to allow the State to adapt to
the Self-Managed Plan. the increased financial commitment. Once the 15- year

phase-in period is complete, the State’s contribution
Each of the five State-sponsored retirement systems will then remain at a level percentage of payroll for the
provide retirement, death and disability benefits to next 35 years until the 90% funded level is achieved.
members and beneficiaries. Each plan also issues'a  As illustrated in Table I, the State met its funding

PUbliC.ly available financial report that includes requirement established by starurory law for the fiscal
financial statements and required supplementary  year ended June 30, 1998. Actual contributions varied

information for that plan. Those reports may be slightly from contributions required by statute mainly

obtained by writing or calling the plan as follows: because of differences between estimated and actual

federal contributions.

o  General Assembly Retirement System and Judges’ .

Retirement System, 2101 S. Veterans Parkway, The current statutory law includes a “continuing
Springﬁeld, Illinois, 62794-9255, (217)782-8500 appropriatjon,” which means that the State must
automatically provide funding to the pension systems

e  State Employees’ Retirement System, 2101 S. Vet- based on actuarial cost requirements and amortization
erans Parkway, Springfield, Illinois, 62794-9255, of the unfunded liability without being subject to the
(217)785-2340. General Assembly’s appropriation process.

o Teachers’ Retirement System, 2815 W. Wash- This statutory funding requirement differs significantly
ington Street, PO Box 19253, Springfield, Illinois from the annual pension cost (“APC”) because the
62794-9253,.(217)753-0311. statutory plan does not conform with the GASB

Statement 27 accounting parameters. The State’s APC

e State Universities Retirement System, 1901 Fox for the current year and related information for each
Drive, Champaign, Illinois 61820-7333, (217) plan (dollar amounts expressed in thousands) are
378-8800. included in Table 1.
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Trend Information. The annual pension cost, the
percentage of annual pension cost contributed for

the year, and the NPO at the end of the year are
presented in the following Table II: ‘

TABLE _ li =(dollar amo nts in thnusands)

.Annual Pension
Cost( APCY).

41,891 '$ 1,108,974

i 3349%

Postemployment Benefits. In addition to
providing pension benefits, the State Employees Group
Insurance Act requires that the State pay the cost of
basic noncontributory health and dental, and life insur-
ance benefits to annuitants who are former State em-
ployees. This includes annuitants of all of the State’s
retirement systems, except the non-state employee
members of TRS.

Effective January 1, 1996, legislation transferred the
administration of the TRS health insurance program to
the Illinois Department of Central Management
Services (“CMS”). The legislation also established a
funding mechanism consisting of a one-half of one
percent contribution from active teachers and matching
appropriations from the State to pay the subsidy portion
of participating annuitants during fiscal year 1996 and
thereafter. Persons enrolling in TRS managed care or
residing in areas with no managed care receive a 75%
premium subsidy. All others receive a 50% subsidy.
At June 30, 1998, there were approximately 31,300
TRS annuitants enrolled in the health plan. Payments
into this plan by the annuitants as well as the state
subsidy were approximately $52.5 million. The
teachers health insurance program is accounted for in
the Teachers Health Insurance Security Fund, an
enterprise fund. TRS is responsible for program
enrollment and eligibility determination. CMS is
responsible for providing information and consultation
to plan participants.
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Substantially all of the State’s employees may become
eligible for postemployment benefits if they eventually
become an annuitant. Health- and dental benefits
include basic benefits for annuitants under the State’s
self-insurance plan and insurance contracts currently in
force. Life insurance benefits are limited to $5,000 per
annuitant age 60 and older. For fiscal year 1998, the
State did not segregate payments made to annuitants
from those made to current employees for health and
dental, and life insurance benefits. The total cost of all
members including postemployment health and dental,
and life insurance benefits is recognized as an
expenditure in the accompanying financial statements
as claims are reported and are financed on a
pay-as-you-go basis. For fiscal year 1998, the cost of
providing postemployment health and dental, and life
insurance benefits for approximately 66,000 annuitants
was estimated to be $172.3 million and $1.3 million,
respectively.

Subsequent events. Subsequent to the balance
sheet date, Public Act 90-0582 was enacted which
changed the retirement benefit formula for TRS to a
22% flat rate formula. The increased retirement
benefit formula is applicable to all eligible members
effective July 1, 1998. This legislation also increased
the member retirement contribution rate from 8% to
9%.
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11 GENERAL OBLIGATION

BONDS

General obligation bonds have been authorized and
issued primarily to provide funds for acquisition and
construction of capital facilities for higher education,
public and mental health, correction and conservation
purposes and for maintenance and construction of
highway and waterway facilities. Bonds also have been
issued to provide assistance to municipalities for
construction of sewage treatment facilities, port
districts, aquarium facilities, local schools, mass
transportation and aviation purposes, and to fund
research and development of coal as an energy source.
In addition, bonds have been authorized to refund any
general obligation bonds outstanding.

The State Constitution provides that the State may issue
general obligation bonds for specific purposes in such
amounts as provided either by the General

Assembly with a three-fifths vote of each house or by a
majority of voters in a general election. The enabling
acts pursuant to which the bonds are issued provide that
all bonds issued thereunder shall be direct obligations
of the State of Illinois and pledge the full faith and
credit of the State. General obligation bonds are
redeemed over a period not to exceed 30 years, from
available resources in the debt service funds. However,
the State of Illinois has generally issued 25 year serial
bonds with equal amounts of principal maturing each
year, except for capital appreciation and refunding
bonds which mature in varying amounts. With the
exception of anti-pollution bonds, Illinois offerings
generally. have call provisions providing for early
redemption at the option of the State. Calls can begin
10 years following the date of issuance, in whole or in
part, in such order as the State shall determine and at a
redemption price not to exceed 102% of par value.

General obligation bonds outstanding and bonds
authorized but unissued (amounts expressed in
thousands) at June 30, 1998 are as follows:

___ Outstandin

: interes' Rates

- Authorized

o Transportatmn
. Anti-Pollution .

. School' construcho
“:Coal Bevelopment
-'Refundmg :

8. 90% td 6. 70%"‘7'
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Changes in general obligation bonds during the year
ended June 30, 1998 are summarized in Note 15.

Future general obligation debt service requirements
(amounts expressed in thousands) at June 30, 1998 are
as follows:

Year Ending L

671,803
652,902
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On April 28, 1998, the State issued $250 million in
general obligation bonds. A portion thereof, $119.9
million with an average interest rate of 5.1%, plus a
reoffering premium of $3.7 million, were used to
advance refund $117.6 million of certain callable
maturities of previously issued general obligation
bonds which had interest rates ranging from 5% to
6.75%. The principal of the refunded bonds will be
redeemed on various dates through 2001 at
redemption prices ranging from 100% to 102%. The
net proceeds of $123.3 million (after payment of $.3
million in underwriting fees) were used to purchase
U.S. government securities which were deposited in
an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide
for all future debt service payments on the refunded
bonds. As aresult, the refunded bonds are considered
to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has
been removed from the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group. At June 30, 1998, the
outstanding balance of the defeased bonds is $74.7
million.

This advance refunding transaction has reduced the
State's aggregate debt service payments by $7.7
million, resulting in an economic gain (the difference
between the present values of the debt service
payments on the old and new debt) of $6 million over
the life of the refunded bonds.

In prior years, the State defeased certain callable
maturities of general obligation bonds by placing the
proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to
provide for all future debt service payments on the
old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and
the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in
the accompanying financial statements. At June 30,
1998, the outstanding balance of these defeased
bonds is $50.2 million. These bonds, bearing interest
at rates ranging from 5.8% to 6.75%, are to be
redeemed on various dates through 2001 at
redemption prices varying from 100% to 102%.

Subsequent to June 30, 1998, the State issued $122.3
million of general obligation college savings bonds
(accretion bonds that have a par value of $187.4
million at maturity). The bonds, issued on November
10, 1998, mature annually from 2001 through 2020
and bear interest at rates ranging from 3.55% to
4.85%.
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I 12  SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS I

Special obligation bonds have been authorized and
issued to provide funds for the Build Illinois
Program, the State’s Metropolitan Civic Center
Support Program, and to refund any bonds previously
issued under these programs.

The Build Illinois Program was implemented to
expand the State’s efforts in economic development
by providing financing in certain areas. These areas
include construction, reconstruction, modernization,
and extension of the State’s infrastructure;
development and improvement of educational,
scientific, technical and vocational programs and
facilities; expansion of health and human services in
the State; protection, preservation, restoration, and
conservation of the State’s environmental and natural
resources; and provision of incentives for the location
and expansion of businesses in Illinois resulting in
increased employment.

The State’s Metropolitan Civic Center Support Act
(Support Act) was amended on September 3, 1985,
to allow the issuance of bonds to refinance the State’s
Metropolitan Civic Center Support Program and to
provide additional capital for new projects to be
financed under the Support Act. The refinancing of
the  State’s Metropolitan Civic Center Support
Program is discussed further in Note 14. The Support
Act was amended further on September 11, 1990, to
allow the issuance of bonds for making construction
and improvement grants by the Secretary of State, as
State Librarian, to public libraries and library
systems.  Special obligation bonds are payable
primarily from dedicated portions of the State’s sales
tax and the horse racing privilege tax and are
redeemed over a period of not more than 30 years.
Additionally, these bonds have call provisions
providing for early redemption at the option of the
State, beginning 10 years following the date of
issuance, in whole or in part, in such order as the
State shall determine and within any maturity by lot at
varying premiums which decrease periodically.

Special obligation bonds outstanding and bonds
authorized but unissued (amounts expressed in
thousands) at June 30, 1998, are as follows:



State of Illinois

Notes to the Financial Statements

|Buddillmms e
. Public frastructure gl

Cw:c Center

9% 107.5%

. Business ﬂevelopme 1 B%1675%

" Eduscation - ‘ . B0%1075%

:"Eh'wranment . B9%107.5% . 7,17

_:;Refunﬁmg ‘ 9%:070% S0 897887 . Uniimited
dptiaae T g T .. 1,880,658

108,978

81,309

----- CWIC centers
_Libraries: ¢ 6964 30
______ Refundmg L. 103375  Unlimited
171648 - 135,465 |
1832306 S 245448

Changes in special obligation bonds during the year
ended June 30, 1998, are summarized in Note 15.
Future special obligation debt service requirements

(amounts expressed in thousands) at June 30,1998,
are as follows:

Year Endmg

169, 2123 :
168,630,
67,003
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On January 8, 1998, the State issued $145.5 million in
special obligation Build Illinois bonds with an average
interest rate of 5.12% to advance refund $140.1
million of certain callable maturities of previously
issued Build Illinois bonds with interest rates ranging
from 6.0% to 7.25%. The principal of the refunded
bonds will be redeemed on various dates through 2001
at redemption prices ranging from 100% to 102%. The
net proceeds of $148.1 million (which includes a
reoffering premium of $3.2 million and excludes $.6
million in underwriting fees and issuance costs) were
used to purchase U.S. government securities. The
securities were deposited with an escrow agent to
provide for all future debt service payments on the
refunded bonds. As a result, the refunded bonds are
considered to be defeased and the liability for those
bonds has been removed from the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group. At June 30, 1998, the
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outstanding balance of the defeased bonds is $128.3
million.

On May 14, 1998, the State issued $37.6 million in
special obligation Civic Center bonds with an average
interest rate of 4.78% to advance refund $34.5 million
of certain callable maturities of previously issued Civic
Center bonds with interest rates ranging from 6.0% to
9.20%. The principal of the refunded bonds will be
redeemed on various dates through 2001 at redemption
prices ranging from 100% to -102.5%. The net
proceeds of $37.4 million (which includes a reoffering
premium of $.1 million and excludes $.3 million in
underwriting fees and issuance costs) were used to
purchase U.S. government securities. The securities
were deposited with an escrow agent to provide for all
future debt service payments on the refunded bonds.
As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to be
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defeased and the liability for those bonds has been
removed from the General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group. At June 30, 1998, the outstanding
balance of the defeased bonds is $29.5 million.

Respectively, the refunding transactions have reduced
the State's aggregate debt service payments by $17.3
million and $3.2 million, resulting in economic gains
(present value savings) of $11.1 million and $2.4
million over the life of the refunded bonds.

In prior years, the State defeased certain callable

maturities of Build Illinois and Civic Center bonds by
placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable
trust to provide for all future debt service payments on
the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets
and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included
in the accompanying financial statements. At June 30,
1998, the outstanding balance of the defeased bonds is
$388.8 million. These bonds, with interest rates
ranging from 5.6% to 7.6%, are to be redeemed on
various dates through 2008 at redemption prices
varying from 100% to 102%.

13 REVENUE BONDS

The State Constitution empowers certain State agencies
and authorities to issue bonds that are not supported by
the full faith and credit of the State. The bond
indentures include a pledge from these agencies and
authorities that income derived from acquired or
constructed assets be used to retire the debt and service
related interest. In addition, certain authorities have
issued debt which is classified as “conduit” debt of the
State.

Revenue bonds issued by individual agencies are
supported by fees, rentals, tolls assessed to users and
loan repayments. Issuing agencies of the primary
government include the Illinois Student Assistance
Commission (Student Loan Revenue Bonds) and the

Universities Retirement System Special Revenue
Bonds). Component unit issuing agencies include the
Illinois Housing Development Authority (Housing
Development, Multi-Family Housing, Residential
Mortgage, Multi-Family Program, Homeowner
Mortgage Revenue and Affordable Housing Program
Trust Fund Bonds), Illinois State Toll Highway
Authority (Construction Revenue Bonds), Illinois Rural
Bond Bank (Bond Bank Revenue Bonds), and
universities consisting of Chicago State University,
Eastern Illinois University, Northeastern Illinois
University, Western Illinois University, Illinois State
University, Northern Illinois University, Southern
Illinois University and the University of Illinois
(University Revenue Producing Facilities Construction
Bonds). Bonds outstanding (amounts expressed in
thousands) at June 30, 1998, net of unamortized
discounts, are as follows:

H
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Changes in revenue bonds during the year ended June
30, 1998 are summarized in Note 15.

Revenue bond debt service requirements, principal and

interest, (amounts expressed in thousands) as of June
30, 1998 are as follows:

- Year Endlng
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Total principal debt service requirements for the
primary government includes bond discounts of $6.1
million for enterprise funds. Component unit bond
discounts include $16.9 million for proprietary funds
and $3.8 million for university funds.

Mlinois Student Assistance Commission
(Commission) -

The Commission issues student loan revenue bonds, the
proceeds of which are used to purchase student loans
from eligible lenders and to issue Stafford subsidized
and nonsubsidized loans to Illinois
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residents. The bonds mature annually in varying
amounts, bearing interest ranging from 3.8% to 18%.

Bonds outstanding exclusive of refunding issues may
not exceed $2,100 million ($1,140.1 million was
outstanding at June 30, 1998, net of $6.1 million of
unamortized discounts). All student loans purchased by
the Commission and all loans financed from the
proceeds of bonds issued, along with all revenues
received from or on account of these bonds, are
pledged as collateral for the bonds. Any losses are
guaranteed as to principal and interest by the
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Commission’s Guarantee Loan Program, which can be
subrogated to the United States Department of
Education.

The bond resolutions provide for early retirement for
various bond issues at rates ranging from 100% to
102.5% of par value, with premiums decreasing
periodically until unmatured bonds can only be retired
at par value. Pursuant to the bond resolutions, reserves
for bond retirement and interest payments aggregated
$75.3 million at June 30, 1998.

Included in the $1,140.1 million of outstanding revenue
bonds are $346.6 million of variable rate demand
bonds, (Series B, Series C, Series D, Series 1996A and
1996B, Series 1997A, Series 1997B, Series 1998A and
Series 1998B), the proceeds of which were used to
purchase student loans. The bonds mature at various
dates, bearing interest rates as determined by the
remarketing agent that would enable the bonds to be
sold at a price equal to their principal amount, but not
to exceed 18% per annum for the Series B and Series C
bonds, 15% per annum for the Series D, Series 1996B,
Series 1997B, and Series 1998B bonds, 12% per
annum for the Series 1996A bonds, Series 1997A and
Series 1998 A bonds.

The bonds, if in a weekly or monthly mode, are subject
to purchase on demand of the holder at a price equal to
principal plus accrued interest on seven days’ notice
and delivery to the remarketing agent. The remarketing
agent is authorized to sell the repurchased bonds at a
price equal to their principal amount by adjusting the
interest rate.

Irrevocable letters of credit have been issued by various
credit facilities in order to permit the Trustee to draw
amounts to pay the tender price of the variable rate
demand bonds tendered for payment under early
redemption and demand provisions of the bond issues.
Under these letters of credit, the various credit
facilities, acting as tender agent, paying agent, and
bond registrar for the respective bond issues are
entitled to draw the amount needed (a) to pay interest
on the bonds on each interest payment date; (b) to pay
principal and interest on the bonds called for
redemption; (c) to pay principal and interest on the
bonds resulting from an acceleration of maturity due to
an event of default; and (d) to pay the tender price of
bonds tendered or required to be tendered for purchase
which is not to be paid from remarketing proceeds or
from certain funds held under the indenture. The letters
of credit have variable interest rates ranging from the
Federal funds rate plus .5% to 20% per annum and
expire at various dates from December 1, 1998 through
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February 25, 2002. If the remarketing agent is unable
to resell any bonds that are “put” within 180 days of the
“put” date, the Commission is required to repay the
amounts drawn on the letters of credit for the
redemption of these bonds. Repayments of amounts
drawn on the letters of credit will be made by the
Comrmnission from the trustee accounts.

The Commission is required to pay to the credit
facilities an origination fee based on the line of credit
amounts and thereafter, a quarterly commitment fee
based on the available amount of the letters of credit.
Quarterly commitment fees currently in effect range
from .375% to .55% of the available arount of the
letters of credit.

State  Universities  Retirement
(System)-

The System issued revenue bonds to finance the design,
acquisition, construction and equipping of a new
permanent administrative office building. The bonds
are capital appreciation bonds with interest rates
ranging from 7.25% to 7.45%. These bonds are
payable solely from and secured by a pledge of and
first lien on the net revenues derived from investments
of the System. They are not payable from any
employer or employee contributions to the System.
The bond resolutions do mnot provide for early
redemption prior to maturity. At June 30, 1998, bonds
outstanding were $17.4 million.

System

{llinois
(IHDA) -

The IHDA was created in 1967 to increase the
production of low and moderate income housing in
Illinois by providing mortgage loans. The IHDA is
authorized to have bonds and notes outstanding in an
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $3,600
million exclusive of refunding issues. Bonds issued
must mature within 50 years from the date of issue,
bearing interest rates as determined by the IHDA.
Subsequent to July 1, 1983, the maximum interest rate
cannot exceed 11% or 70% of the prime rate,
whichever is greater. All revenue bonds issued to
provide mortgage loans are secured by first mortgage
liens on the related developments.

Housing Development Authority

In the event that IHDA determines that funds will not
be sufficient for the payment of the principal of and
interest on its bonds during the next succeeding State
fiscal period, the Chairman of IHDA shall certify to the
Governor on or before September of the then current
State fiscal period the amount required by IHDA to
enable it to pay such principal and interest. The
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Governor shall include the amount so certified in the
State budget; however, the General Assembly has no
obligation to appropriate funds for IHDA.

At June 30, 1998, bonds outstanding aggregated
$2,077.1 million, before unamortized discounts of
$16.9 million. Sinking funds established pursuant to
bond resolutions at year end aggregated $121.7
million. The bonds mature annually through 2031,
bearing interest from 3.65% to 15%. The bonds
provide for early redemption at the option of ITHDA, in
whole or in part, in inverse order of maturity at varying
premiums which decrease periodically.

Included within the $2,077.1 million of outstanding
revenue bonds are $347.4 million of Multi-Family
Program Bonds, $66.5 million of Multi-Family
Housing Bonds, $760.8 million of Homeowner
Mortgage Revenue Bonds and $102.5 million of
Affordable Housing Program Trust Fund Bonds which
are not a debt of the State of Illinois and, therefore, the
State of Illinois is not liable for them. However,
$316.0 million of the Multi-Family Program Bonds are
direct and general obligations of the IHDA and the full
faith and credit of the IHDA is pledged for their
repayment. The remainder of the bonds are special,
limited obligations of the IHDA with a claim for
payment solely from pledged property.

The IHDA has also issued $69.8 million of Housing
Revenue Bonds, Series 1985 which are secured by a
joint and several guaranty to provide construction and
permanent financing for one development with 600
dwelling units. This guaranty is with Fuji Bank and
approved by the bondholders of the Housing Revenue
Bonds. In addition, the ITHDA has issued $12.4 million
of Multi-Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series 1989
which are secured by a guarantee of the Government
National Mortgage Association, to provide construction
and permanent financing of multi-family housing
development of which certain units are intended for
occupancy by low to moderate income persons. Also,
the ITHDA has issued $83.1 million of Multi-Family
Housing Revenue Bonds, Series 1991, Series 1993,
Series 1995, Series 1997A and Series 1997B. The
Series 1991, Series 1995, Series 1997A and Series
1997B bonds were used to finance the costs of
acquiring, rehabilitating and equipping multi-family
residential rental housing projects. The Series 1993
bonds were used to refund, on a current basis, a portion
of the IHDA’s Multi-Family Housing Bonds.
Additionally, the THDA has issued $61.8 million of
Section 8 Housing Revenue Bonds, the proceeds of
which were used to (1) provide financing for the
acquisition of several developments, (2) pay issuance
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costs, and (3) fund debt service reserves. These bonds
are special, limited obligations of the IHDA and can
only be repaid from payments received with respect to
the mortgage loans. The bonds are not a debt of the
IHDA or the State of Illinois and neither are liable on
the bonds. They are, however, included in the THDA’s
authorized debt limitation. As of June 30, 1998,
$224.3 million of these bonds were outstanding.

Subsequent to June 30, 1998, IHDA issued
Homeowner Mortgage Revenue Bonds, 1998 Subseries
D-3 bonds, 1998 Series E bonds, and 1998 Series F
bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $68.4
million. The 1998 Series D-3 bonds and the 1998
Series F bonds are subject to mandatory tender no later
than June 29, 1999 and October 7, 1999 respectively.
The 1998 Series E bonds bear interest at rates ranging
from 5.66% to 6.31%, and mature from 2009 through
2029. In addition, the ITHDA issued Section 8 Elderly
Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 1998 in the
amount of $21.4 million. These bonds are special
limited obligations of the IHDA, and do not constitute
an indebtedness or an obligation of [HDA or the State
of Ilinois. They do, however, apply toward the IHDA’s
authorized debt limitation.

fllinois State Toll HighwayAuthority (THA) -

The THA issued revenue bonds to finance construction
of the State toll highway system and to refund in
advance of maturity certain outstanding bonds of the
Authority. The bond resolutions, with the exception of
Series 1996A bonds, provide for early redemption at
the option of the THA, in whole or in part, at a cost not
to exceed 102% of par value, declining periodically
through December 31, 2004. All unmatured bonds
outstanding January 1, 2005, are redeemable thereafter
at par, with the exception of the Series 1996A bonds.
These bonds are not redeemable prior to maturity. In
accordance with the provisions of the bond resolutions,
debt reserves on deposit with and invested by the Bond
Trustee at June 30, 1998, aggregated $157.5 million.

At June 30, 1998, THA had bonds outstanding in the
amount of $904.2. These bonds mature at various
dates through 2017 and bear interest at rates ranging
from 3.5% to 6.45%.

Included within the THA’s outstanding revenue bonds
arec $178.2 million of Series 1993B bonds which are
variable rate demand bonds. These bonds mature in
2010, and bear interest rates as determined by the
remarketing agent that would result in the market value
of the bonds being 100% of the principal amount, plus
accrued interest, but not to exceed 22% per annum.



State of Illinois

Notes to the Financial Statements

The Series 1993B bonds, if in a daily mode, are subject
to purchase by demand of the holder at a price equal to
the principal amount plus accrued interest on notice and
delivery to the remarketing agent. If the bonds are in
any other interest mode except a fixed rate, they are
subject to purchase by demand of the holder at the
same price but on seven days’ notice and delivery to
the remarketing agent.

If the remarketing agent is unable to resell any 1993B
bonds that are “put,” the THA has entered into a
reimbursement agreement to purchase the bonds. The
purchased bonds rate will be equal to the prime lending
rate plus 2% per annum, however, not to exceed 22%
per annum. Under an irrevocable letter of credit, the
THA is entitled to draw an amount sufficient to pay the
purchase price of bonds delivered to it. The letter of
credit is valid through December 31, 2009 and such
payment shall be made by the delivery of purchased
bonds.

The THA was required to pay on the date of closing of
the letter of credit, an origination fee of .05% per
annum of the face amount of the letter of credit. In
addition, the THA must pay .20% per annum of the
maximum available amount to be drawn under the letter
of credit. In conjunction with the issuance of the Series
1993B bonds, the THA entered into an interest rate
swap, to mitigate the effect of changes in interest rates
on its demand bonds. The swap effectively changes the
THA’s interest costs on the $178.2 million Series
1993B bonds due in 2010 to a fixed rate of 4.92% for
the life of the bonds. The THA is exposed to credit
risk of nonperformance. This risk could result in the
THA’s not receiving the agreed upon payments if the
variable interest rate exceeds 4.92%. However, the
THA does not anticipate nonperformance. The
amounts shown in the schedule of revenue bond debt
service requirements are based on the fixed rate effects
of this interest rate swap.

Hlinois Rural Bond Bank (Bank) -

The Bank issues revenue bonds and notes whose
proceeds are used for (1) the purchase of securities of
local Illinois governmental units to include the
establishing or increasing reserves in securing the
payment of the bonds and/or interest on the bonds and
(2) to pay, fund or refund any bonds issued by the
Bank. The Bank is authorized to have bonds and notes
outstanding in an aggregate original principal amount
not to exceed $150 million.

In the event that the Bank determines that funds will
not be sufficient for the payment of the principal and

54

interest on its bonds and notes, the Chairman of the
Bank shall certify to the Governor, as soon as possible,
the amount required by the Bank to enable it to pay
such principal and interest. The Governor shall include
the amount so certified in the State budget as soon as
practically possible; however, the General Assembly
has no obligation to appropriate funds for the Bank.

At June 30, 1998, bonds outstanding aggregated $74.6
million. Sinking funds established pursuant to bond
resolutions at year end aggregated $1 million. The
bonds mature annually through 2027, bearing interest
rates from 3.8% to 7.3%. The bonds provide for early
redemption at the option of the Bank, in whole or in
part, for bonds maturing on various dates between
February 1, 2001 through February 1, 2009 at 102% of
par, with the premium decreasing periodically until
February 1, 2008, after which unmatured bonds can
only be redeemed at par value.

Included within the $74.6 million of outstanding
revenue bonds are $8.9 million of bonds which do not
require the Governor to include in the State budget the
amount necessary for payment of principal and interest.
Payment of principal and interest on these bonds is
guaranteed by financial guaranty bonds. -

Subsequent to June 30, 1998, the Bank issued the Bond
Bank Revenue Bonds Series 1998 in the amount of
$11.1 million. The bonds mature annually from 2000
through 2013 at interest rates ranging from 4% to 4.8%.

Universities and Colleges -

The Boards of Chicago State University, Eastern
Illinois University, Northeastern Illinois University,
Western Illinois University, Illinois State University,
Northern Illinois  University, Southern Illinois
University, and the University of Illinois (hereinafter
the “Boards”), as empowered by enabling acts, have
issued various revenue bonds to support construction of
student housing and other revenue producing facilities
at State universities. These bonds do not constitute
general obligations of either the State of Illinois or the
Boards but, together with interest thereon, are payable
solely from and are secured by, subject to the prior
pledge and lien of existing refunded bonds, (1) the net
revenues of the Boards; (ii) debt service grants; (iii)
income received from certain special accounts; (iv)
retained tuition fees (subject to prior payment of related
operating and maintenance expenses); (v) certain debt
service reserves; (vi) certain repair and replacement
reserves; and (vii) the principal of the special accounts
arising on refundings, all as defined in the various bond
resolutions. In accordance with provisions of the bond
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resolutions, debt service funds and reserves on deposit
aggregated $171.1 million at June 30, 1998. The bonds
are callable prior to their maturity in accordance with
the provisions of the bond resolutions, including
premiums of up to 5%.

Contingent Liabilities -

Metropolitan Pier and Exposition Authority
(McCormick Place) -

In July 1998, the State amended the Metropolitan Pier
and Exposition Authority Act (Act) to authorize the
issuance of McCormick Place Expansion Project bonds
in the aggregate original principal amount of $1,037
million (excluding the amount of any refunding bonds
and notes). The Act also authorizes the McCormick
Place to levy certain taxes (MPEA Taxes) to secure the
bonds and for certain other purposes. The MPEA
Taxes would include (i) a sales tax within portions of
the City of Chicago on food, alcoholic beverages, and
soft drinks sold for consumption on the premises and
on certain sales for immediate consumption off the
premises, (i) a tax at the rate of 2.5% of the gross
rental receipts of hotels located within the City of
Chicago, (iii) a 6% tax on gross receipts of the business
of renting automobiles in Cook County, Illinois, (iv) a
6% use tax on automobiles rented outside Illinois
which are titled or registered with an agency of the
State for use in Cook County, Illinois, and (v) a tax on
taxis and livery vehicles ranging from $2 per taxi
departure to $27 per bus having a capacity of over 24
passengers. In addition, subject to appropriation,
amounts of State sales tax ranging from $68 million for
fiscal year 1998 and graduating to $106 million for
fiscal year 2007 and thereafter (until 2029) would be
available for the payment of debt service on the
additional bonds to the extent that the MPEA Taxes are
not sufficient for such purpose.

The McCormick Place issued revenue bonds Series
1992A and Series 1994B in the aggregate principal
amount of $936.4 million to finance the McCormick
Place expansion and certain other improvements to its
facilities and Navy Pier. The McCormick Place also
issued revenue refunding bonds Series 1994A and
Series 1996A in the aggregate principal amount of
$636.2 to refund in advance of their maturity $479.1
million of the Series 1992A bonds.

As of June 30, 1998, the outstanding bonds which the
State is contingently obligated to pay is $1,174 million.
These bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 4.35%
to 8.5% with the exception of certain bonds. The
Series 1992A and Series 1994B bonds maturing in
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2004 in the aggregate principal amount of $13.4
million bear interest at a rate of 50%. These bonds
were sold at a premium with an effective yield of
5.88% and 5.8% respectively. The McCormick Place
bonds mature annually until 2029.

In addition, as of June 30, 1998, the McCormick Place
has $489.3 million of revenue bonds outstanding
which have been advance refunded. U. S. Government
securities have been deposited in an irrevocable trust
with an escrow agent to satisfy all future debt service
requirements of these bonds. As a result, these bonds
are considered defeased and the State is no longer
contingently liable for them.

Subsequent to June 30, 1998, the McCormick Place
issued $100.7 million of refunding bonds and $100.0
million of expansion bonds. These bonds mature
annually from 2005 through 2029 at interest rates
ranging from 4.5% to 5.5% with the exception of the
bonds maturing in 2009. These bonds bear interest at a
rate of 50% with an effective yield of 4.728%.

Southwestern lllinois Development Authority
(SWIDA) -

SWIDA has issued $108.9 million of revenue bonds,
the proceeds of which were loaned to several
companies for the acquisition of land and construction
of various types of facilities. These companies are
primarily liable for repayment of the bonds, which are
secured by SWIDA loan agreements with the
companies. These bonds bear interest rates ranging
from 4.4% to 9.25% and mature annually through
2020. The State has accepted a moral obligation to
repay the bonds in the event SWIDA and the
companies are unable to meet the bonds’ repayment
commitments.

During 1994, Wood River Township Hospital
deposited $9.1 million of cash into an irrevocable trust
with an escrow agent to provide for the advance
refunding of $8.2 million of bonds maturing through
2003. During 1996, SWIDA issued $2.9 million of
refunding revenue bonds which were loaned to
McKendree College. The proceeds of the bonds, along
with $.3 million of reserves from the Series 1990 bond
issue, were deposited by McKendree College into an
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for
the advance refunding of $2.6 million Series 1990
bonds maturing through 2011. As a result, the refunded
bonds are considered defeased and the State no longer
has a moral obligation to repay the bonds.
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As of June 30, 1998, the outstanding balance of bonds
which the State is morally obligated to repay is $76.5
million. The outstanding balance of the refunded
bonds is $8.4 million.

The SWIDA has also issued $127.2 million of revenue
bonds, the proceeds of which were loaned to Shell Oil
Company, Monsanto Company, Robinson Steel
Company, Inc., Anderson Hospital, Kienstra, Inc.,
BASCC, YMCA of Edwardsville, Illinois-American
Water Company, Holten Meat, Inc., and Fiber L.L.C.
These bonds are special, limited obligations of the
SWIDA and can only be repaid from payments by the
above companies. Unlike the bonds in the preceding
paragraph, the State has not accepted a moral
obligation to repay the bonds in the event the SWIDA
and the companies are unable to meet the bonds’
repayment commitments. At June 30, 1998, the
outstanding balance is $122.5 million.

Subsequent to June 30, 1998, SWIDA issued revenue
bonds in the amount of $3.7 million. The proceeds of
these bonds together with other available funds were
used to refund the outstanding Solid Waste Disposal
Revenue Bonds, Series 1994. These bonds carry the
moral obligation of the State.

Quad Cities Regional Economic Development
Authority (Authority) -

The Authority has issued $27.2 million of revenue
bonds, the proceeds of which were loaned to HDC, Inc.
and to Thoms-Proestler Company to provide permanent
financing for the acquisition and construction of
various types of facilities. These companies are
primarily liable for repayment of the bonds, which are
secured by (i) mortgages and security agreements from
HDC, Inc. and Thoms-Proestler Company to the
Authority, (ii) a leasehold mortgage and security
agreement from HDC, Inc. to the Authority, (iii) an
assignment of leases, rents and revenues from HDC,
Inc. to the Authority, and (iv) a guaranty by HDC, Inc.
to the trustee. The bonds mature semiannually through
2017 and bear interest rates of 8.7% and 9.75% until
February 1, 2004, at which time the 9.75% will be reset
to 10.25% plus a supplemental coupon rate, if required,
whose combined rate is not to exceed the limits of
Illinois law. The State has accepted a moral obligation
to repay the bonds in the event the Authority and
companies are unable to meet the bonds’ repayment
commitments. At June 30, 1998, the outstanding
balance is $25.1 million.

The Authority has also issued $11.8 million of revenue
bonds, the proceeds of which were loaned to Whitey’s
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Ice Cream Manufacturers, Inc., Plastic Products
Company, Inc. and Steel Warehouse Quad Cities, Inc.
These bonds are special, limited obligations of the
Authority and can only be repaid from repayments by
Whitey’s Ice Cream Manufacturers, Inc., Plastic
Products Company, Inc. and Steel Warchouse Quad
Cities, Inc. Unlike the bonds of the preceding
paragraph, the State has not accepted a moral
obligation to repay the bonds in the event the Authority
or the Company is unable to meet the bonds’ repayment
commitments. At June 30, 1998, the outstanding
balance is $11.3 million. ‘

Subsequent to June 30, 1998, the Authority issued $2
million of revenue bonds, the proceeds of which were
loaned to the Plastic Products Company, Inc. The
bonds do not carry the moral obligation of the State.

Upper lllinois River Valley Development
Authority (UIRVDA) -

The UIRVDA has issued $4 million of revenue bonds,
the proceeds of which were loaned to Waste Recovery -
Illinois (the Company) to finance the acquisition,
construction, equipment and installation of a tire
recycling and tire-derived fuel processing facility. The
Company is primarily liable for repayment of the
bonds, which are secured by an assignment and a
pledge of revenues derived from a separate loan
agreement between the UIRVDA and the Company. In
addition, the bonds will be secured by (i) moneys held
by the trustee under a debt service reserve fund
established under the indenture, (ii) guaranty agreement
from Waste Recovery, Inc., a Texas corporation and a
general partner of the Company, to the trustee, and (jii)
a separate mortgage and security agreement from the
Company to the trustee granting a mortgage lien on and
security interest in the project. These bonds mature
annually through 2004 and bear an interest rate of
6.5%. The State has accepted a moral obligation to
repay the bonds in the event the UIRVDA and the
Company are unable to meet the bonds’ repayment
commitments. At June 30, 1998, the outstanding
balance is $2.9 million.

UIRVDA has also issued $16.6 million of revenue
bonds, the proceeds of which were loaned to Exolon-
Esk Company and General Electric Company. These
bonds are special limited obligations of UIRVDA and
can only be repaid from payments by Exolon-Esk
Company and General Electric Company. Unlike the
bonds in the preceding paragraph, the State has not
accepted a moral obligation to repay the bonds in the
event the UIRVDA and the companies are unable to
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meet the bonds’ repayment commitments. At June 30,
1998, the outstanding balance is $16.6 million.

Subsequent to June 30, 1998, UIRVDA issued revenue
bonds in the amount of $2.9 million which together
with other available funds were used to refund the Solid
Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds Series 1994. These
bonds carry the moral obligation of the State.

Defeased Revenue Bonds -

On February 25, 1998, the Illinois Student Assistance
Commission (ISAC) issued $19.3 million of variable
rate demand bonds to current refund a like amount of
bonds maturing on March 1, 1998. Although, the
variable rate bonds have minimum and maximum rate
limits, ISAC estimates that the rate will average 4.0%
over the life of the bonds.

The current refunding resulted in no difference between
the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of
the old debt. However, ISAC estimates an increase in
its debt service payments of $9.0 million over the life
of the new debt and an economic present value loss of
$6.0 million. This debt service increase could range
from $7.0 to $21.0 million, depending on interest rate
fluctuations applicable to the wvariable rate debt;
likewise, the economic loss could range from $4.0 to
$16.0 million.

The State Toll Highway Authority, the Illinois Housing
Development Authority, and State universities
consisting of Chicago State University, Eastern Illinois
University, Western Illinois University, Northern

Illinois University, Illinois State University, Southern
Ilinois University, and the University of Illinois bhad
previously defeased outstanding bonds by placing the
proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to
provide for all future debt service payments on the old
bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and
liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the
financial statements. On June 30, 1998, $377.7 million
of bonds outstanding are considered defeased. These
bonds have interest rates ranging from .05% to 10.8%
with principal maturing until 2021.

in financial

Conduit Debt (not included

stlatements) -

The State of Illinois by action of the General Assembly
created various authorities for the express purpose of
providing private entities with an available low cost
source of capital financing for construction of facilities
deemed to be in the public interest. Fees are assessed
to recover related processing and application costs
incurred. Bonds issued by the authorities represent
limited obligations payable solely from payments made
by the borrowing entities. The majority of the bonds
are secured by the property financed. Upon repayment
of a bond, ownership of acquired property transfers to
the entity served by the bond issuance. The State has
no obligation for this debt. Accordingly, these bonds
arc not reflected in the accompanying financial
statements. At June 30, 1998, recorded amounts of
revenue bonds, net of defeased bonds, and notes
outstanding (amounts expressed in thousands) as
reported by authority officials are as follows:

L fiinols Development Finance uthumy
o ;rmnmental facilities
-591 &) 3not for profit
. industrial developmient
'irgs_t_r_ucmrg ‘

s _13980890 .
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Other long-term obligations reported in the General
14 OTHER LONG-TERM Long-Term Obligations Account Group and disclosed
OBLIGATIONS below are as follows (in millions):
Description Reference Amount
Metropolitan Pier and Exposition Authority
{McCormick Place) liability A $ 326.4
Compensated absences (B) 511.5
Regional Transportation Authority liability <) 483.8
Workers' compensation liability D) 53.4
Capital lease obligations : (E) 19.4
linois Sports Facilities Authority fiability F) 309
Installment purchase obligations (G) 21.8
Certificates of participation H) 1297
Other obligations ()] 9.2
Total Other Long-Term Obligations : $ 1,586.1

(A) Metropolitan Pier and Exposition
Authority(Authority) Liability -

In July 1984, and November 1985, the State amended
the "Metropolitan Fair and Exposition Authority Act”
(Act) to authorize the issuance of $265 and $47.5
million, respectively, for a total authorization of $312.5
million, in additional bonds. Bond proceeds were used
(1) to pay construction costs of completing the
McCormick Place expansion, (2) to pay the
construction costs of projects authorized by the Illinois
General Assembly in the future, and (3) to refund any
outstanding bonds of the McCormick Place that were
issued prior to July 1, 1984. The Act was further
amended in July and August 1986 to authorize the
issuance of refunding bonds either on a parity with or
subordinated to the 1984 and 1985 bonds. In addition,
in July 1989 the Act was amended to change the name
to Metropolitan Pier and Exposition Authority and to
expand its purposes to provide for the acquisition and
improvement of the Navy Pier in Chicago.

The lllinois General Assembly also amended certain
tax laws in July 1984 and November 1985 to provide
for 1.75% of total State sales tax revenues, 3% of 94%
of total hotel room rental receipts, and $1.7 million per
year out of 7% of State racing tax revenues to be
deposited into the Build Illinois Fund, which replaced
the Tourism Fund, as collected. The legislation
provides for credits to separate accounts within the
Build Illinois Fund of which the "McCormick Place
Account” is one and has first priority credit of the
amounts collected.
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In August 1984, the Metropolitan Fair and Exposition
Authority issued $252.5 million of bonds at interest
rates ranging from 7% to 10.375% and maturing
annually through 2014. Additionally, in December
1985, the Authority issued $60.1 million in bonds at
interest rates varying from 6% to 8.875% and maturing
annually through 2015,

During 1986, the Authority issued 1986 and 1986A
Series refunding bonds. The 1986 Series bonds, issued
in the amount of $324.2 million with interest rates
ranging from 4.9% to 8% and maturing annually
through 2014, were used to defease the remaining 1984
Series bonds. The 1986A Series bonds, issued in the
amount of $62.6 million with interest rates ranging
from 3.75% to 7% and maturing annually through
2015, were used to defease certain callable maturities
of 1985 Series bonds. In March 1992, the 1992 Series
refunding bonds were issued in the amount of $182.1
million, with interest rates ranging from 4% to 6.75%
and maturing annually through 2010, to defease certain
callable maturities of 1985 Series bonds and 1986
Series bonds. I[n July 1995, the 1995 Series refunding
bonds were issued in the amount of $54.1 million,
with interest rates ranging from 4.3% to 6.25% and
maturing annually through 2011, to defease $51.6
million of certain callable maturities of 1986 Series
bonds and 1986A Series bonds. The proceeds of the
1986, 1986A, 1992 and 1995 Series bonds were placed
in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt
service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the
trust account assets and the liability for the defeased
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bonds are not included in the financial statements. As
of June 30, 1998, the outstanding balance of the
defeased bonds was zero.

On July 2, 1997, the Metropolitan Pier and Exposition
Authority issued $95.7 million of revenue bonds, with
interest rates ranging from 4% to 5.375%, to advance
refund the remaining $93.0 million of 1986 Series
bonds, with interest rates of 6%. The net proceeds
were used to purchase U.S. government securities,
which were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an
escrow agent to provide for all future debt service
requirements of the refunded bonds. As a result, the
refunded bonds are considered defeased and the
liability for those bonds has been removed from the

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. As
of June 30, 1998, the outstanding balance of the
defeased bonds was zero. The refunding transaction
has reduced the Authority's aggregate debt service
payments by $8.4 million, resulting in an economic
gain (present value savings) of $3.4 million over the
life of the refunded bonds.

As of June 30, 1998, the balance of the bonds
outstanding was $326.4 million and is included as
"Other Obligations” in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group. Future McCormick Place
debt service requirements (amounts expressed in
thousands) at June 30, 1998 are as follows:

Year Ending =

June 30 Principal Interest Total
1999 $ 12,285 $ 19,327 $ 31,642
2000 " 12,995 18,586 31,581
2001 13,785 17,807 31,592
2002 14,645 16,985 31,630
2003 15,530 16,067 31,597
Thereafter 257,160 97,005 354,165
$ 326,400 $ 185777 $ 512177

{B) Compensated Absences -

Most employees earn annual leave ranging from 1 to 2
days per month with maximum accumulation ranging
from 20 to 50 days. At June 30, 1998, the liability for

accrued annual leave was approximately $253.0-

million, including salary-related costs of $15.4 million,
for the governmental funds.

Until January 1, 1984, sick leave, which generally is
earned one day per month with unlimited
accumulation, was paid only when an employee was
absent due to illness or other acceptable circumstances
as outlined by personnel regulations. Effective January
1, 1984, upon death, retirement, resignation or
termination from State employment, employees are
able to receive payment for one-half of accumulated
sick leave earned subsequent to January 1, 1984, or full
service credit for such accumulated sick leave under
the State Employees Article of the State Pension Code.

During fiscal year 1998, Public Act 90-65 was enacted,
which e¢liminates compensation for sick leave
accumulated on or after January 1, 1998. However, the
unused sick leave may be used to establish retirement
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system service credit as provided in the Illinois Pension
Code.

At June 30, 1998, the lability for sick leave eamed
subsequent to January 1, 1984 was $258.5 million,
including $15.3 million of salary-related costs. Thus,
the State's liability for compensated absences reported
in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group
amounted to $511.5 million at June 30, 1998. As
explained in Note 1-O, this amount does not include
compensated absences labilities for proprietary funds
and component units.

(C) Regional Transportation Authority
(Authority) Liability -

The Authority was authorized by the Regional
Transportation Authority Act to issue bonds in the
principal amount of $100 million on or after January 1,
1990 and increasing $100 million per year until
January 1, 1994, for a total authorization of $500
million used for Strategic Capital Improvement
Projects (SCIP). These projects were used to acquire,
repair or replace public transportation facilities in the
metropolitan region as approved by the Govemnor.
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Since June 1992, the Authority has issued $500 million
of bonds with interest rates ranging from 3.75% to 9%
and maturing annually through 2025.

The bonds are general obligations of the Authority to
which the full faith and credit of the Authority is
pledged. However, for State fiscal years in which the
SCIP bonds are outstanding, the State's assistance shall
be transferred monthly from the General Revenue Fund
to the Public Transportation Fund for payment in an
amount equal to the lesser of monthly debt service on
the SCIP bonds, or one-twelfth of the amount of the
State's assistance as provided in the authorization. The
authorization provided for $40 million for 1996, $50

million for 1997, and $55 million for each year
thereafter.  Although the amount of the State's
assistance is measured by the debt service on the SCIP
bonds, the assistance is not pledged for payment of or
security for the SCIP bonds. The State's assistance is
paid directly to the Authority and may be spent by the
Authority at its discretion. As of June 30, 1998, the
outstanding balance included in the General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group is $483.8 million.

Future Regional Transportation Authority debt service
requirements (amounts expressed in thousands) at June
30, 1998 are as follows:

;. Year-Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total

1999 $ 7875 % 31562 $ 39,437
2000 8,310 31,145 39,455°

2001 8,770 30,690 39,460

2002 9,275 30,202 39,477

2003 9,815 29,677 39,492
- Thereafter =~ 439,735 365,534 805,269

' $ 483,780 $ 518810 $ 1,002,590

(D) Workers' Compensation Liability —

The = workers' compensation liability has been
determined using claims outstanding and a projection
of claims to be submitted, based upon prior years'
experience of the State. Claims that will be liquidated
with expendable available financial resources have
been recorded as a liability in the General Fund, Road
Fund and Mental Health Fund (Special Revenue
Funds), in the amounts of $33.3, $15.7 and $21.0
million, respectively. The remaining portion of the
liability, $53.4 million as of June 30, 1998, is included
in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.
Of this liability, $28.4, $10.0 and $15.0 million are
expected to be paid from future resources of the
General Fund, the Road Fund and the Mental Health
Fund, respectively. In addition, an $8.6 million

workers' compensation liability has been included in
the University and College fund types included in
component units.

(E) Lease Commitments -

The State leases land, office facilities, office and
computer equipment and other assets. Although lease
terms vary, certain leases are renewable subject to
appropriation by the General Assembly. If renewal is
reasonably assured, leases requiring appropriation by
the General Assembly are considered noncancelable
leases for financial reporting purposes. At June 30,
1998, assets capitalized under capitalized leases
included in property, plant and equipment (amounts
expressed in thousands) are as follows:

Land and land improVements
Buildings ‘and building improvements
Equipment

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Primary Government
General S
Fixed Proprietary - Component
Assets . - Fund Types Units
‘ P e - 895
$ 4032 3 1,808 3,535
18,444 3,179 - 25,820
22,475 4,987 30,250 .
903 1,812
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Future minimum commitments for noncancelable
leases (amounts expressed in thousands) as of June

30, 1998 are as follows:

Primary Government
Capitalized Leases
General
Year Ending Operating Long-Term Proprietary
June 30 Leases Obligations Fund Types Total
1999 $ 87,334 § 5457 $ 754 $ 93,545
2000 74,107 3,704 646 78,457
2001 58,785 3,118 426 62,329
2002 31,392 2,680 266 34,338
2003 13,155 2,449 210 15,814
Thereafter 15,759 8,705 420 24,884
Total minimum lease o
payments $ 280,532 26,113 2,722 $ 309,367
Less amounts representing
interest 6,722 340
Present value of net minimum
lease payments $ 19,391  § 2,382
Component Units
Capitalized Leases
University
Year Ending Operating and College Proprietary
"~ June 30 Leases Funds Fund Types Total
1999 $ 5940 $ 4752 % 43 $ 10,735
2000 4,795 3,134 31 7,960
2001 3,747 1,680 22 5,449
2002 2,755 916 2 3,673
2003 1,786 466 - 2,252
Thereafter 3,680 2,438 - 6,118
Total minimum:lease : ,
payments _ $ 22,703 13,386 98 $ 36,187
Less amounts representing
interest 1,389 B
Present value of net minimum
lease payments $ 11,997 § 92

Rental payments (amounts expressed in thousands) for
operating leases charged to operations during the year
ended June 30, 1998 aggregated $264.596 for the
primary government and $18,700 for component units.

(F) lllinois Sports Facilities Authority
(Authority) Liability -
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The Authority is authorized by the Illinois Sports
Facilities Authority Act to issue bonds in the principal
amount of $150 million to be used for providing sports
stadiums for professional sports teams. On March 1,
1989, $150 million of bonds were issued with interest
rates ranging from 6.8% to 7.875% and maturing
annually through 2010.
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The bonds are secured by payments from the Illinois
Sports Facilities Fund that consist of annual payments
of $5 million from the State's Hotel Operator's
" Occupation Tax, $8 million from the Authority's Hotel
Tax and $5 million from the City of Chicago's share of
the Local Government Distributive Fund. The State's
maximum liability is limited to $13 million annually,
but the State anticipates that $8 million, derived from
the Authority's Hotel Tax, will reduce this liability to

$5 million annually. In fiscal year 1998, receipts from
the Authority's Hotel Tax totaled $21.6 million. As of
June 30, 1998, the State's share of the outstanding
principal balance was $30.9 million.

The State (and non-State) share of future Illinois Sports
Facilities Authority debt service requirements
(amounts expressed in thousands) at June 30, 1998 are
as follows:

Year Ending State Share Non-State Share Total
. June 30 Principal Interest Principal .  Interest Principal Interest
1999 $ 1662 $ 2406 $ 4323 $ 6255 % 5985 $ 8,661
2000 1,788 -+ 2,282 4,647 5,933 6,435 8,215
2001 1,921 2,148 4994 5,585 6,915 7,733
2002 2,067 2,002 5,373 5,205 7,440 7,207
2003 2,225 1,844 5,785 4,794 8,010 6,638
Thereafter 21,276 - 7,204 55,319 18,731 76,595 25,035
'$ 30,939 $ 17,886 .. % 80441 $ 46503 $ 111,380 $ 64,389

(G) Installment Purchase Obligations -

The State has acquired certain land, office facilities,
office and computer equipment, and other assets

through installment purchase arrangements. Future
commitments under installment purchase contracts
(amounts expressed in thousands) as of June 30, 1998
are as follows:

Primary Government Component Units -
General University
: Long-Term Proprietary and
Year Ending Obligations Fund Types Gollege Fund
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interost Total Principal Interest Total
1999 $ 12376 $ 591 § 9469 $ 256 § 22692 % . 3435 $ 904 - § . 4339
2000 6,262 331 938 9 7.540 3,049 715 3,764
2001 12,233 131 9 - 2,373 2,223 569 2,792
2002 845 50 : - [ 895 1,320 459 1,789
2003 42 2 - el 44 896 405 - 1,301
Theredfter . - - - R 7.010 3,001 +10,011
Total future S

commitments..... $ 21758 % 1,105 $. 10416 $ 265 $ 33544 $ 17,933 -§ §063 § . 23,996

(H) Certificates of Participation -

State-issued Certificates of Participation. The State is
authorized to issue certificates of participation
(“certificates”) representing the right to receive a
proportionate share in lease-purchase or installment
purchase payments to be made for the benefit of State
agencies for the acquisition or improvement of real or
personal property, refinancing of such property,
payment of expenses of such property, or payment of
expenses related to the issuance. During fiscal year

1996, the State, acting by and through the Bureau of
the Budget, issued $38.8 million of these certificates
to provide for the construction and lease purchase of
certain correctional facilities to be operated by the
Department of Corrections at various sites within the
State. The certificates have interest rates ranging from
4.15% to 6.375% and maturing annually through 2017,
The outstanding balance of the certificates as of June
30, 1998 included i the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group is $38.3 million.
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The University of Illinois has also issued certificates of
participation representing the right to receive a
proportionate share of lease-purchase or installment
payments. On August 1, 1990, the University of
[llinois issued $3.3 million of the certificates, with an
interest rate of 7.25% and maturing in 2000, to finance
the construction of a facility to house academic units in
Area Studies and International Programs. On January
1, 1991, $16.8 million of the certificates were issued, at
interest rates ranging from 5.9% to 6.4% and maturing
annually through 1998, to finance the acquisition and
installation of and the construction of a building for an
electrical and high temperature hot water cogeneration
system. On April 1, 1995, $29.9 million of the
certificates were issued, at interest rates ranging from
4.1% to 5.4% and maturing semi-annually through
2005, to finance the purchase of a firm supply of
natural gas from MidCon Gas Services Corporation.
On September 15, 1997, $46.0 million of the
certificates were issued, at interest rates ranging from
4% to 5.75% and maturing annually through 2009, to
finance various utility system development projects.

The outstanding balance of the certificates as of June
30, 1998 is $74.9 million and is included as "Other
Obligations” in the component units.

Non-State-issued Certificates of Participation. The
State also finances the purchase of certain state-owned
real and personal property through third party (non-
State issued) certificates. These non-State issued
certificates are sold by private concerns and are repaid
by State agency appropriations pursuant to installment
purchase agreements. The outstanding balance of non-
State issued certificates included in the General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group as of June 30, 1998
is $91.4 miltion. There are no outstanding non-State
issued certificates in the component units as of June 30,
1998.

Future commitments by the State to make installment
payments to pay for the assets acquired and related
financing costs for State and non-State issued
certificates (amounts expressed in thousands) at June
30, 1998 are as follows:

Certificates of Participation
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group
Year Ending State Issued Non-State Issued Total
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
1999 $ 1,140 $ 2133 § 3650 $ 5318 § 4,790 $ 7,451
2000 1,190 2,080 3,840 5125 5,030 7,205
2001 1,240 2,023 4,075 4,916 5,315 6,839
2002 - 1,295 1,062 4,325 4,688 ‘5,620 6,650
2003 1,360 1,896 4,570 4,442 5,930 6.338
Thereafter 32,075 16,286 70,955 31,489 103,030 47,775
$ 38,300 $ 26,380 $ 91,415 $ 55978 $ 129,715 $ 82,358
Certificates of Participation
Component Unit
Year Ending State Issued Non-State Issued Total _
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal interest
1999 $ 7145 $ 3813 - - $ 7,145 $ 3813
2000 6,165 3,463 - - 6,165 3,463
2001 6,790 3,145 - - 6,790 3,145
2002 8,375 2,821 - - 6,375 2,821
2003 6,695 2,500 - - 6,695 2,500
Thereafter 41,680 7,490 - - 41,680 7,490
$ 74,850 $ 23,232 $ - $ - $ 74,850 $ 23,232
%
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() Other Obligations -

The State's risk financing of auto liability, determined
using an estimate of claims outstanding, approximates
$2.6 million as of June 30, 1998. Both the General
Fund and the Road Fund have recorded liabilities of
$1.3 million that will be liquidated with expendable
available resources.

Also, as of June 30, 1998, commitments under service
related contracts aggregated $10.3 million that require
debt service payments of $9.2 million principal and
$1.1 million interest through December 31, 2002.

In addition, the Tax Reform Act of 1986 requires
issuers of state and local government bonds to rebate to
the federal government arbitrage profits €arned on
those bonds under certain circumstances. In
accordance with this requirement, it was determined
that there was an arbitrage rebate liability of $26
thousand as of June 30, 1998.

The total of "Other Obligations" recorded in the
General [.ong-Term Obligations Account Group as of
June 30, 1998 is $9.2 million.

(J) Metropolitan Exposition Auditorium
and Office Building Authorities -

The General Assembly, through adoption of the
"Metropolitan Civic Center Support Act” (Support
Act), created the Metropolitan Exposition Auditorium
and Office Building Fund (Fund) into which 33.5% of

all monies received by the State as horse racing taxes
are deposited. At June 30, 1998, the balance of the
Fund is $31.7 million. The purpose of the Fund is to
secure and retire a proportionate share of locally issued
revenue bonds, the proceeds of which were used to
construct local civic and exposition centers. The
Support Act was amended in September 1985 to
provide State financial support by issuing direct,
limited obligation revenue bonds for the advanced
refunding of any civic center bond issued before July
1, 1985 and for newly certified applicants after July 1,
1985. It was further amended to increase the limitation
of the aggregate amount of principal issued and
outstanding in State and local bonds subject to State
financial support for all Authorities from $75 million
to $200 million. In addition, further restrictions exist
as to the amount to be committed on behalf of any
single taxing authority.

On December 15, 1985, the State defeased previous
State supported guarantees by placing the proceeds of
new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all
future debt service payments on the State supported
guarantees. Accordingly, the trust account assets and
the liability for the guarantees are not included in the
State's financial statements. The bonds used to defease
the State supported guarantees are further discussed in
Note 12, Special Obligation Bonds.

At June 30, 1998, the unpaid principal on State
supported guarantees (amounts expressed in thousands)
are as follows:

\,

: Ar_nount Interest . Annual

Authority Defeased Rates Maturity To
DeKalb $ 2125 10.85% 2003
Joliet 1,500 9.40% - 2003

' $ 3625 o

Beginning July 1, 1985, the following newly certified
local governmental units have received grants ranging

from $.4 to $20 million through June 30, 1998:

Quad Cities Bureau County Aledo

Rosemont Oriand Park Benton

Centre East Knox County Herrin

Quincy River Forest Rockford

Peoria Aurora Bowdre Township
Ogle County Pekin Mason County
Coliinsville LaSalle County
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Changes in long-term obligations (amounts expressed

15 CHANGES IN LONG-TERM in thousands) for the year ended June 30, 1998 are
OBLIGATIONS summarized as follows:

Proprietary and Other General Long-Terrn Obligations Account Group
Accrued General Special Other
Notes . ‘Revenue Retirement Obligation Obligation Long-Term
Payable "Bonds Costs Bonds Bonids Obligations
(Note 9) {Note 13) {Note 10) {Note 11) (Note 12) {Note 14)

Balances at July 1, 1997, as .
oniginally reported $ 102,099 $. 4,687,976 $ 10,556,544 $ 5,654,397 § 1,885,167 $ 1,621,788
Adjustment to prior year balance for ‘ ’ ' : :
LJRS and SURS due 1o changes in . .
actuarial calculations {207,230)
Balances at July 1, 1997, as restated 102,099 . 4,687,976 © 10,349,314 5,654,307 1,885,167 1,621,786
Primary Government: . Co
Compensated absences eamed , ‘ ‘ 387.647
Decrease in workers' compensation :

liability : . ‘ (1;820)
Debt issues - - ) 219,075 . ' 718331 * 183,085 * 95,0756 *
Increase inlease and installment . .

purchase obligations o ' ) 12,004
Compensated absences taken : ' (390,732)
Amortization of borid discounts and - . '

bond issuanca costs : S 444
Amortization- of-deferred amounts on : ’ ‘

bond refundings - ’ o : i85
Increase in accreted value of capital e S _

appreciation bonds R ) 1,797 109,809 11,089
Principal retirements and terminations N (31,382) - (596,433) (247,025) {139,906)
Excess of aninual pension cost ("APC") T ) ) ’
over employer. contributions from
governmental fund types 5 ’ 955,348
Other o -
Total Primary Government $

2,173
$ 190,319 $ 965,348 $ 231,707 $ . {52,861) $ (35,659)

Component Units: - :
Debt Issues ' CUUBIM T T as 43
Amortization-of bond discounts and bond S

issuance costs ) 670
Amortization of deferred amounts on band

refundings - ' : 386
Increase inaccreted value of capital ’ B

appreciation bonds : © 24,038
Principal retirements and terminations (637) . {422,185)
Total component units {6) 44,340 - _
Balances at June 30,1998 $ 102,093 °$ 4,922,635 . § 11,304,662  § 5,886,104 § 1,832,306 $ 1,586,127

*The debt issues amount represents the gross issuance the operating statements.
amount and not the net proceeds that are reported in
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e

16 FUND EQUITY

{amounts expressed in thousands) at June 30, 1998

consisted of the following:

Fund equity reservations and designations not
displayed separately on the combined balance sheet
Fund Types Total
{Memorandum
Only) )
Special Debt Capital Expendable Primary  Component
General Revenue Service Projects Enterprise ~ Trust Govemment Units
|Fund Equity:
Retained Earnings:
Reserved for:
Revenue bond and
note retirement $ 87,256 3 87,256 $ 280,249
High risk insurance
program and other 25918 29,916 66,805
Total reserved T -
retained eamings $ 117472 $ 7,172 $ 347,454
Fund Balances:
Reserved for other:
L.ong-term portion of
Federal highway :
program receivable $ 137646 $ 137,646
Intergovernmental receivables  § 372 372 § 4.500
Other receivables 2,709 2,709
Loans and notes receivable 35,590 641058 § 25,500 702,148 103,292
Encumbrances 81,917 1,275,557 $ 295,171 3 089 1,653,614 61,931
Inventories 32,210 39,488 71,698
Restricted fund balances » - 572,422
Endowment and similar funds : 770,433
Unemployment Comp. Benefits ) 2,166,688 . 2,166,688 ‘
Other 3,758 12,215 1,587 17,560 26,176 |
Total fund balances
reserved for other $ 153,847 § 2108673 $ 25500 $ 295171 $ 2,169,244 $ 4,752,435 § 1,538,754
Unreserved:
Designated for:
Debt service $- 719186 $ 719,186
Other $ 14,077
Total unreserved, T .
$ 719,186 $ 14,077

designated fund balances

$ 719,186

As disclosed in note 1-R, the above fund equity
reservations are not available to finance current
operations of State government at the balance sheet
date or are legally restricted to a specific future use. In
governmental funds, the reserves represent portions of
asset accounts that are noncurrent.
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Specifically, the $137,646 Federal highway program
receivable is due from the Federal government and will
be received upon the Federal government increasing
their grant amount to exceed their apportionment

authorization.
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B. During the year, contributed capital increased
pursuant-to the following schedule (amounts expressed

in thousands):

Primary Government -

Internal Service:
Central Management Services:
Statistical Services Revolving Fund
Depértm ent.of Corrections:
Working Capital Revolving Fund
Other S ‘
Total Internal Service

Total (Memorandum Only)
Primary Government

Component Unit -

Development Finance Authority
Farm Development Authority
Other .

Total Component Unit

Total (Memorandum- Only)
Reporting Entity

Contributed Contributed
Capital Fixed Assets Capital
71197 Additions Deletions 6/30/98

$ 8,157 $ 8,157
9,129  $ 50 9,179
1,837 1,837
18,960 50 - 19,173
19,123 50 - 19,173
18,508 18,508
12,232 _12,232

, 2,790 2,790
33,530 33,530

§ 52853 $ S0 $ - § 52,703

l 17  FUND DEFICITS | I

Primary Government:

The State’s General Fund, from which a significant
portion of day to day operating expenditures are paid,
has a GAAP deficit aggregating $213 million at June
30, 1998, aithough the cash basis fund balance at that
date was $1,202 million. This deficit results from
recognition of fund liabilities significantly in excess of
accrued revenues.

The Drivers Education Fund of the State Board of
Education (reported as a special revenue fund) has a
deficit at June 30, 1998, aggregating $13.2 million,
resulting from reimbursement to school districts for
drivers education program costs incurred in the current
year but not paid until the subsequent year.
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The Mental Health Fund of the Department of Human
Services (reported as a special revenue fund) has a
deficit at June 30, 1998, aggregating $11.9 million,
resulting from workers’ compensation claims incurred
in the current year but not paid until the subsequent
year.

The Local Government Health Insurance Reserve Fund
(reported as an enterprise fund) has a deficit at June 30,
1998, aggregating $73 thousand, resulting from a rate
structure which was insufficient to support claims paid
in the current year. The rate structure was amended in
the subsequent year to ensure payments received would
support future claims. '

The above Governmental Funds’ deficits will be
eliminated by future revenue increases and/or
expenditure reductions in the following year(s).
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Condensed financial statements (amounts expressed in
18 CONDENSED FINANCIAL the  State’s

STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY
PRESENTED COMPONENT

UNITS

thousands) for

discretely presented
component units for the fiscal year ended June 30,
1998 are as follows:

CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS:

BALANCE SHEETS

GovernmentalProprietary
Hiinois East -Develop- ’ Minois
Conser- 5t. Louis ment Housing Medical NoniMajor
vation Fin't Adv Finance Development District Component
Foundation _ Authority =~ Authority Authority Commission Units
Assets:
Due from other funds $ 237
Due from primary government $ 1 $ 47
Other current assets 844 § 4,543 5 4700 $ 161,386 410 3428
Property, plant, and equipment 11,777 199
Other assets 4 . 52
Total assets $ 849 § 4543 5 4,700 3 161,386 $ 12,476 3 3,674
Liabilities: .
Due to other funds 3 1 3 1,184 $ 188
Due to primary government . ’ 1
Other current liabilities $ B 333
Bonds payable
Other long-term liabilities .
Total liahilities 8 - 1 1,185 521 -
Equity: :
Contributed capital
Investment in fixed assets 11,777 3 199
Retained earnings .
Fund balance 841 $ 4,543 4,699 160,201 _ 178 3,475
Total equity 841 4,543 4,699 160,201 11,955 3.674
Tota! liabilities and equity $ 849 § 4543 § 4700 5 161,388 $ 12,478 3 3674
(Continued)
CONDENSED STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS:
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY
Governmental
lilinois East Develop- lilinois
Conser- . St. Louis ment Housing Medical Non-Major
vation Fin'l Adv . Finance = Development . District . Component
Foundation Authority - Authority . Authority = Commission Units _Total
Revenues $ 1176 § 356 $ 43311 '3 987" % 355 § 752,185
Expenditures . : : :
Current M 15 11,825 1,105 250 14,206
Capital outlays ‘ 65 : 65
Debt service . ) . 12, 12
Transfers {out) $ (24). (7,867) ' {7,891)
Excess (deficiency of revenues :
over {under} expenditures 265 341 (24) 28,519 (195) 105 30,011
Fund baiance - beginning 576 4,202 4,723 130,682 373 3,370 143,926
Fund balance - ending $ 841 $§ 4543 $ 4699 3§ 160201 § 178 $ 3475 § 173,937
(Continued)
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CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS:

BALANCE SHEETS
(Continued)
‘ Proprietary University and College University and Co
Comprehensive ) ]
Health Housing Rural State Toll Non-Major Chicago Eastemn Governor's . Northeastern
Insurance Development Bond Highway Component State Hlinois State State
Board Authority Bank Authority Units University . University  University  University
$ 21492 '$ 4183 $ - 3188 8 15 $ 314
‘ ' $ 158 240 935 $ .2,044 372
$ - 82228 488,291 - $ 25,430 403,187 48,614 13,161 83,637 11,097 18,206
114 752 . : 38 1,843,081 149 109,949 178,313 71,941 119,516
o 2,063,527 - 85,307 157,541 15,381 326 727 1,117 2
5 82,340 § 2,564,082 ' 110,776 § 2403987 $ 68,227 § 126864 .3 263627 $ 86199 § 139,110
$ 20,308 5 12 $ 4182 $. 3,182 $ 314
8 ‘6 : 1 =] 974 - 1 : $ 148 .% 74 : 75
16,579 - 407,195 - 5417 126,540 6,300 18,753 37,410 13,453 19,537
1,819,206 71,295 876,405 23,010 42,972 6,290
1,182 30,000 o 89 2,535 10,234 814 4,190
16,585 2,347,891 108,725 1,003,919 10,572 47,480 90,764 14,341 30,406
2,790 30,740
. h 84,404 131,688 71,127 112,708
65,755 121,659 1,049 157,541 1,150
94,512 212 1,242,507 25,765 (5,020) 41,175 731 (4,002)
65,755 216,171 4,051 1,400,048 57,655 79,384 172,863 71,858 108,704
3 82340 ¢ 2564062 ' § 110,776  § 2,403,967/ $ 68,227 $ 126864 . § 263627 § 86,199 § 139110
(Continued)
CONDENSED STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS:
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY
(Continued)
Proprietiary
Comprehensive Lo
Health Housing Rurai State Toll. .. Non-Major
insurance : Development . Bond Highway.: . Component
Board Authority Bank Authority Units Total
Operating revenues 3 20977 '§ 291916 .8 5966 - $ 330,713 . $..7423 3 1656995
Operating expenses: ‘ .
Depreciation 50 : 278 8 131421 00113 131,870 °
Other 43,551 - 174,621 6,007 175846 006,582 406,207
Operating income {loss) : (22,824) =+ -+ 117,117 (49) 23,746 728 118,918
Other non-operating revenue (expense) - 12,612 (98,972). . 29,061 L 2,07 (55,228)
Transfers-in (out) p 7,865 . . 24 7.889
Transfers from (to) primary government 17,324 261 (154) 17,431
Net income for the year 7.312° 26,010 12 52,653 2,823 89,010
Equity-beginning, as restated 58,443 190,181 1,049 1,347,395 24,092 1,621,140
Contributed capital - i 2.790 30,740 33,530
Equity-ending $ 65755 .- $- 216171 $ 4051 ' $ 1400048  § 57,655 3 1,743680
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CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS: BALANCE

SHEETS
(Continued)
University and College {(continued)
Western Hlinois Northern Southern University
Hinois State tllinois lilinois - of }
University  University University  University Hinois Total

Due from other funds $ 287 § 1021 % 7496 % 11,436 § 49,669
Due from primary_government $ 1,340 . 1,867 3,049 8,571 185,116 203,740
Other current assets 51,361 112,099 102,693 236,591 1,403,545 3,256,049
Property,-plant, and equipment 246,432 394,636 470,433 752,030 3,237,611 7,436,972
Other assets ' .. 258 2,455 12,531 16,577 2,345,805
Total assets $ 299133 § 509,147 §$ 579651 $ 1017219 § 48584285 § 13,292.235
Liabilities: ~ .

Due to other funds $ 28 285 § 1035 % 5568 % 13,398 ° % 49,669
Due to primary government T 508 145 42 3,008 11,850 S17.023
Other current liabilities 134,632 31,724 51,254 113,205 422,533 1,304,773
Bonds payable 38,756 61,381 .- 84,328 105,139 364,226 3,593,008
Other long-term liabilities . 650 3,034 12431 5,335 143,607 214,101

Tatal liabilities 74,448 86,579 139,090 232,345 955,714 5./8574

Contributed capital _ . . $ 33,830
Investment in fixed assets 206,557 348,468 372,521 657,445 2,869,441 4,856,333
Retained.earnings . . : ‘ : 347,154
Fund balance . 18,128 64,100 58,040 127,429 1,038,130 2,876,644

Total equity.
Total liabilities and aquity

§ 295133 § 500,147 & 5796561 § 1,017,219 & 4,854,285 & 13.292.235
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19 SEGMENT INFORMATION -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Selected financial information by enterprise fund
segment (amounts expressed in thousands) is as
follows:

[Primary Government : -~ -

Oparatmg ravenuss

Deprecratian
Oparatmg lncame (Ioss)
Opera*tmg transfer-m

Operatmg transfer—out
Nonoperatmg revenues
Nonoparatmg expenses

: Operahngr
Omerrevenues
ITotaE-eqn:gg L

e G . i 74480
48984 166,166

The above referenced organizations and activities
generate enterprise fund revenues as follows:

¢} Illinois State Lottery revenues and operations.

2) Administration of State-authorized financial
aid programs for post-secondary students in
Hlinois.

(3) Service and processing fees charged by the

following board, departments, and
commissions for their operations:

Board
Board of Admissions to the Bar

VAl

Departments

Central Management Services
Corrections

Human Services

Insurance

Veterans® Affairs

Commissions

Attorney Registration & Disciplinary Commission
Office of Banks and Real Estate

Ilinois Industrial Commission
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I20 RISK MANAGEMENT l

Insurance in force on State-owned assets is limited
except for certain university facilities. Further, the
State makes no provision for anticipated losses in the
event of involuntary conversions. The State’s liability
exposures, including workers’ compensation, vehicle,
employee fidelity and surety, legal representation and
employee indemnification, general liability, and other
tort liability are retained. Liabilities for claims,
including claims incurred but not reported, are recorded

Obligations Account Group as appropriate. Claims
liabilities are carried at present value, discounted at
4.95%, the average interest rate for fiscal year 1998
general obligation debt issues. The amounts are based
on actual claims that are outstanding, historical trend
data and known inflation and cost of living factors. The
State purchases minimal commercial insurance. There
were no significant reductions in insurance coverage
from the prior fiscal year. The amount of settlements
has not exceeded insurance coverage in the past three
fiscal years. A reconciliation of the State’s claims
liabilities for its major claims categories for the current
fiscal year and prior fiscal year (amounts expressed in

in the funds or the General Long-Term thousands) is as follows:
" YearEnded  Beginning . Claims - Ending
__June30  Balance  Incurred  Decreases _ Balance
197§ 1014788 19810 § 58798 § 62490

The State administers two public entity risk pools for
non-state employers - one for local governments and
another for school districts. The Local Government
Health Insurance Reserve Fund offers a health
insurance program to local governments for its
employees and retirees and the Teacher Health
Insurance Security Fund offers to school districts

health insurance for its teachers and retirees. These
funds are included as enterprise funds in the State’s
CAFR. Detailed information on these programs can be
obtained from the Department of Central Management
Services, which administers both plans. Separate audit
reports are issued for both plans and include the
required pool supplementary information.

21 YEAR 2000 DISCLOSURES

The Year 2000 issue is the result of shortcomings in
many electronic data processing systems and other
electronic equipment that may adversely affect the
State’s operations as early as fiscal year 1999, The
Year 2000 issue refers to the fact that many computer
programs use only the last two digits to designate a
year. Therefore, both 1900 and 2000 would be referred
to as “00.” Computer programs have to be adjusted to
recognize the difference between those two years or the
programs will fail or create errors. Also, some
programs may not be able to recognize that 2000 is a
leap year. Further, the Year 2000 issue could affect
electronic equipment — such as environmental systems,
elevators, and vehicles — containing computer chips
that have date recognition features.
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With the enactment of Public Act 90-666, which was
effective July 30, 1998, the State of Illinois created a
Year 2000 Technology Task Force (“Task Force™).

The Task Force is composed of several elected
constitutional State officials, including four members of
the General Assembly, the Auditor General, the Chief
Justice of the Supreme Court, two representatives from
municipalities, townships and counties, and seven
representatives from major critical mission agencies.

The information provided in this note was taken from
information contained in (1) the November 30, 1998
Task Force’s Preliminary Report and (2) agency survey
information collected and summarized by the
Governor’s Illinois Year 2000 Project Office for the
quarter ended September 30, 1998.
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In completing the Awareness Stage, the Task Force
issued its Preliminary Report on November 30, 1998.
The awareness stage is the first stage necessary to
implement a Year 2000 compliant system. An
organization establishes a budget and project plan for
dealing with the Year 2000 issue.

The State of Illinois completed the Assessment Stage,
which is the second stage necessary to implement a
Year 2000 compliant system. The assessment stage
includes inventorying computer systems and other
electronic equipment that may be affected by the Year
2000 issue and are necessary to conduct State
operations. Also, this stage identified mission critical
systems and equipment. Based on this inventory,
agencies reporting have identified and determined 381
systems are critical {directly or indirectly required to
support the health, welfare, revenue and public safety
of Illinois citizens or whose failure could impact
continued and uninterrupted operation.)

Progress has been made in the Remediation Stage on
the critical systems effort. During this third stage, each
agency actually makes changes to systems and equip-
ment. This stage involves the technical issues of
converting existing systems, or switching to compliant
systems.

Reporting agencies expect all Year 2000 projects,
including the Validation/Testing Stage, to be com-
pleted by December 31, 1999. However, the Task
Force’s Preliminary Report states “nevertheless, there
are signs the assessments and projections provided by
the agencies may be too optmustic.” The
validation/testing stage is the final stage necessary to
complete the Year 2000 compliant implementation. At
this stage, an agency validates and tests the changes
made during the remediation stage.

The State’s major University component units, the
University of Illinois, Southern Ilinois University,
Northern Illinois University, and Illinois State
University did not early implement the provisions of
GASB Technical Bulletin 98-1. The independent
auditor’s report on each respective component unit’s
financial statements was dated prior to November 1,
1998. Consequently, disclosures on Year 2000 issues
under GASB Technical Bulletin 98-1 for these major
component units are not available for inclusion in this
report.

The State’s annual budgetary process does not readily
support multi-year contracts. Therefore, the amount of
the outstanding commitments applicable to Year 2000
vendors at June 30, 1998 was minimal and not inform-
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ative in assessing the State’s expected current external
costs. However, reporting agencies have estimated in
the aforementioned Task Force Survey that the total
cost of completing the Year 2000 projects will exceed
$100 million. Further, since all agencies have not
reported the information on costs for completing the
Year 2000 issues, the total estimated costs are not
determinable at this time.

Because of the unprecedented nature of the Year 2000
issue, its effects and the success of related remediation
effort will not be fully determinable until the year 2000
and thereafter. Management cannot assure that the
State is or will be Year 2000 ready, that the State’s
remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in
part, or that parties with whom the State does business
will be Year 2000 ready.

I 22  CONTINGENCIES I

The State offers its employees a deferred compensation
plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457. The plan, available to all State
employees, permits them to defer a portion of their
salary until future years. The deferred compensation is
not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death, or an unforeseeable emergency.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan,
all property and rights purchased with those amounts,
and all income attributable to those amounts, property,
or rights are (until paid or made available to the
employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and
rights of the State (without being restricted to the
provisions of benefits under the plan), subject only to
the claims of the State’s general creditors. Participants’
rights under the plan are equal to those of general
creditors of the State in an amount equal to the fair
value of the deferred account for each participant.

The State has no liability for losses under the plan but
does have the duty of due care that would be required
of an ordinary prudent investor. The State belicves that
it is unlikely that it will use the assets to satisfy the
claims of general creditors in the future,

GASB Statement 32 is effective for financial statements
for periods beginning after December 31, 1998 or when
plan assets are held in trust under the requirements of
IRC Section 457 subsection (g), if sooner. The laws
governing these plans were changed to state that, as of
August 20, 1996, new plans would not be considered
eligible plans “unless all assets and income of the plan
described in subsection (b) (6) are held in trust for the
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exclusive benefit of the participants.” Existing plans
also are required to comply with this requirement by
January 1, 1999. The State of Illinois Deferred
Compensation Plan will comply with the new
requirement by establishing the appropriate trust prior
to January 1, 1999. Thus, in accordance with GASB
Statement 32, the Illinois Deferred Compensation Plan
will be reported as an “expendable trust” in the State’s
CAPFR for fiscal year 1999,

The State Lottery has entered into agreements with
insurance companies under which the Lottery purchases
annuities under group contracts which provide
payments corresponding to the Lottery’s obligation to
prize winners. The Statc would be liable for such
future payments if the insurance companies defaulted
on their payment obligation. At June 30, 1998, the
Lottery had purchased annuity contracts to fund future
installment payments aggregating approximately $46.8
million. Effective July 30, 1983, the law provides that
the State Treasurer may, with the consent of the
Director of Lottery, contract to invest in securities
which provide payments corresponding to the Lottery’s
obligation to prize winners. The securities purchased
subsequent to July 30, 1985 are accounted for in the
accompanying financial statements in an investment
trust fund at the fair value of the investments.

The Illinois State Toll Highway Authority has entered
into commitments for road construction of $340
million, The Illinois Housing Development Authority
has entered into commitments aggregating $27.3
million for home loans.

The State receives significant financial assistance from
the U.S. Government in the form of grants and
entitlements.  Entitlement to these resources is
generally conditioned upon compliance with terms and
conditions of the grant agreements and applicable
federal regulations, including the expenditure of the
resources for eligible purposes. Substantially all grants
are subject to financial and compliance audits by the
grantors. Any adjudicated disallowance as a result of
these audits becomes a liability of the State.

In November, 1998, the State joined 46 other states in
the settlement of the historic tobacco industry lawsuit.
The State is to receive $9.1 billion from tobacco
companies over the next 25 years. In addition to the
$9.1 billion, the tobacco industry is required to expend
resources to curb teen smoking, including prohibitions
on advertising directed toward minors.

Also, the State, its units and employees are parties to
numerous legal proceedings, many of which normally
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recur, in governmental operations. All legal
proceedings are not, in the opinion of the Attorney
General, likely to have a material impact on any of the
State’s fund types or account groups.

In addition, the State and its units are involved in
certain other legal proceedings, which, if decided
adversely to the State, may require the State to make
material future expenditures for expanded services or
capital facilities or may impair future revenue sources.
It is neither possible to determine the outcome of these
proceedings nor to estimate the possible effects adverse
decisions may have on future expenditures or revenue
sources.
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Required Supplementary Information
Pension Trust Funds - Schedule of Funding Progress

The following schedule of funding progress (dollar amounts in thousands) for the State of
Illinois’ retirement systems is provided for fiscal years ended June 30, 1997 and 1998. These

years are the only years for which this information is available.

(=) (b) (c) @ {e) U]

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Liability ("AAL") AAL Funded Percentage of
Valuation Value of Projected Unit ("UAAL") Ratio Covered Covered Payroll
Date Assets Credit (b-a) {a/b) Payroll (c/e)
General Assembly
6/30/97 $ 56710 § 143837 $ 87127 394% § 9362 930.6%
6/30/98 62,738 150,408 87,671 41.7% 10,005 876.3%
Judges'
6/30/97 314,561 704.460 389,899 44.7% 87,171 447.3%
6/30/98 356,693 747,276 390,583 47.7% 94,626 412.8%
State Employees’
B/30/97 6,048,027 7,548,208 1,500,181 80.1% 3,003,628 49.9%
6/30/98 7,064,495 9,341,898 2.277,403 756% 3,096,087 73.6%
Teachers'
6/30/97 17,393,108 26,951,585 9,558,477 64.5% 5013583 190.7%
6/30/98 19,965,887 26,908,241 9,942,354 66.8% 5,323,403 186.8%
State Universities
6/30/97 8,376,300 10,552,200 2,175,900 794% 2,298,000 84.7%
6/30/98 9,792,000 11,416,100 1,624,100 858% 2,377,600 68.3%
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is maintained to account for resources obtained and
used for those services traditionally provided by State government which
are not required to be accounted for in another fund.
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State of lilinois
Combining Schedule of Accounts

General Fund
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Medicaid
Provider
General Education Common Assessment
Revenue Assistance School Program Eliminations Total

ASSETS

Taxes 20,731 834,
Intergovernmental 267,979 708,980
Other 106,617

oG
Loans and notes receivable 41,764 41,764
Other assets 18,060 18,060
Total assets $ 2787227 § 113,557 § 269,165 § 489,591 § - $ 3,659,540

Intergovemmental payables 814,250 104,163 4,285 4 922,702
Dus to other funds 319,797 2 51,475 43,111 414,385
Due to component units 90,014 5,051 95,695 190,760

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Reserved for:
Encumbran

Inventories
Other

U ed, und

78



State of lllinois
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balance

General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Medicaid
Provider
General Education Common Assessment
Revenue Assistance School Program Eliminations Total

REVENUES

Other taxes 865,917 101,164 $ 187,686 1,154,767
Federal government 3,711,585 784,075 4,495,660
Licenses and fees 64,718 615 65,333

EXPENDITURES
Current

Social assistance 1,155,732 1,155,732

Transportation 38,099
i i justi 1,346,174

nterest !
Capital outlays 1 102,795
Total expenditures 18,158,844

e

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Capitél ieése financing\' ' 8,755 ' 8,755
Net other sources (uses) of
financial resources

1,197,729

230,269

sources (uses) of financial resoﬁi'ées (55,125)

Ix reported ) 45 45

$  (312,541)
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State of lllinois
Combining Schedule of Accounts - General Fund

Medicaid Provider Assessment Program
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

University of

linois Long-Term
Hospital Care
Services Provider Hospital Other Total

ASSETS

ntergovemmental 267,979
Other 106,617
fy ds 10

Due from oth

Accounts payable and accrued liabilitiss $ 77,806 $ 260,158 $ 12,755 § 350,720
Intergovemmental payables 2 2 4
Due to other funds 3 43,101 5 [ 43,111

FUND BALANCES
Unreserved, undesignated 55 55
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State of lllinois
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balance - General Fund

Medicaid Provider Assessment Program
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

University of
Minois Long-Term
Hospital Care
Services Provider Hospital Other Total

REVENUES

Other h 69,750 522,591 592,341
Total revenues 169,584 308,211 1,054,267 33,451 1,665,513

A7.07
47,070

Total expenditures 151,178 308,198 1,054,258 33,436 1,5

Excess of revenues

B
FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Operating transfers-in 44,700 1 1 44,702
Operating transfers-out

Excess of revenues over
expenditures and net other
sources (uses) of financlal resources _ - - - - 5 (]

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1968 : ST
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

The Special Revenue Funds are maintained to account for the
proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes.
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SIGNIFICANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS DESCRIPTIONS

Department of Children and Family Services
DCFS Children’s Services Fund--to account for revenues and expenditures related to the federal Title

IV-E foster care and adoption service program.

Department of Employment Security
Title III Social Security and Employment Services Fund--to account for monies received from the
federal government for the specific purpose of administering the Unemployment Compensation Act.

Department of Financial Institutions
State Pensions Fund--receipts from the sale of abandoned property. Expenditures are primarily to the
various state retirement systems for the reduction of the accrued actuarial unfunded liability.

Department of Public Aid
Child Support Enforcement Trust Fund--to record child support payments, federal grants, and incentive
payments that are related to the Child Support Enforcement Program.

Department of Revenue
County and Mass Transit District Fund--to record 4% of the proceeds from a 6.25% Retailers’ and

Service Occupation tax.

Local Government Tax Fund--to account for 15% share of various sales taxes that will be distributed to
cities and counties.

Local Government Distributive Fund--a portion of State income tax collections that are distributed to
the various municipalities and counties within the State. On a monthly basis, 1/12 of the income tax
receipts are transferred to this fund from the General Fund for such distributions.

Personal Property Tax Replacement Fund--the net revenue received from the personal property
replacement income tax. Expenditures consist of allocations to each taxing district within the State and

administrative costs.

Department of Transportation
Road Fund--monies collected for the purpose of administering State highway programs. Funding
sources include federal aid, State motor fuel taxes and various license and fee charges. Expenditures
are for highway maintenance and construction, traffic control and safety, and administering motor
vehicle laws and regulations.

Motor Fuel Tax Fund--various transportation related program expenditures and the administrative cost
of supervising the use of funds apportioned to municipalities, counties and road districts. Revenue is
derived from State fuel taxes and an allocation (transfer) of State sales tax collections from the General
Fund.

State Construction Account Fund--a portion of motor vehicle registration fees, weight taxes and
transfers from the Motor Fuel Tax Fund. The fund is used exclusively for the construction,
reconstruction, and maintenance of the State maintained highway system.

Environmental Protection Agency
Water_Pollution Control Revolving Fund--to assist units of local government in financing the
construction of wastewater treatment facilities by making direct loans at or below market interest rates.

Nlinois Student Assistance Commission
Student Loan Fund--to account for monies collected on defaulted student loans from individuals and the

federal government under the student loan guarantee program. Expenditures are primarily to lenders of
defaulted guaranteed student loans.
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State of lllinois
Combining Balance Sheet

Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Departments
Commerce
and
Community Human Other
Affairs Services Revenue Transportation Departments

Taxes 792 228,530 125,416
Intergovernmental 18,169 36,701 88,339 171,775 80,150
Other 83 9,226 429 33,192

Loans and notes receivable 5,851 23,063
Other assets 9,316 322 580 812
Total assets $ 49847 § 96,388 $ 942997 $ 1,411,331 §

Intergovernmental payables " i ; 7 508 667,736 5,5724'
Due to other funds 247 2,012 102,386 4,746

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)
d for:

Loans and notes receivable 4,638 21,645
Inventories 5,205 21,561 7,066
Other 9,316 580

Total liabllities and fund balances $ 49847 § 96,388 § 942997 & 1411331 § 449 456
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Higher

Agencies, Boards and Authorities Education
Student
Assistance
Commission
Other
Environmental State Agencles,
Protection Board of Boards and
Agency Education Authoritles Student Loan Other Total

5,536 14,844 375,118
233 87,124 30,381 62,035 574,907
460 37,186 165,527

647,650 13,520 690,084
125 948 12,103

$ 777,485 $ 104,369 $ 41,768 $ 112,567  § 741,843 § 4,728,051

15,678
89

603,213

1,701
128

$ 777485 5 104,369 § 41,768 8§ 112,667  § 741,843 § 4,728,051
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances

Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed In Thousands)

Departments
Commerce
and
Community Human Other
Affairs Services Revenue Transportation Departments

REVENUES

ublic |‘|ty taxes 08,
Other taxes $ 349,423 3 16,616
Federal m

Total revenues " 270,096 1423607 8,258,127 *2.707,469 733,008

Generél govemment 268,989 3,445,279 257,583 9,470
Social assistance 864,611 369,941
Transportation 2,493,995

Principal 22 1,470 113

Interest 10,494 423 5

Capital outlays 498 2,965 173 30,380 9,876
¥ ¥ =z B LY

over (under) expenditures 539 38,572 (197,819) (129,115) {145,420)

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF

Operafing transfers-out - (1,767) (28,216) (734,252) (951,338) (16,268)
Operating transfers to component units (656) (1,041) (461) (11,404)
Capital lease financing ] 410

Excess (deficlency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures and net other
sources (uses) of financlal resources
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Higher

Agencies, Boards and Authorities Education
Student
Assistance
Commission
Other
Environmental State Agencies,
Protection Board of Boards and
Agency Education Authorities Student Loan Other Total

113,622 1,175,759 129,164 160,983 1,035,885 11,007,740

s
1,792 67,028 285,125 4,335,266
20,688 1,245,240
60,176 2,554,171

: i
12 31 2,625 4273
2 5 336 11,265

316 662 98 352 41,094 86,404

(785)  (7.016) 058)  (100,073)  (1,854,668)
(3) (2,630) (31,818) (48,013)
44 2,781 3,235

259,785

$ 746431 $ (11,989) $ 37442 § 86,131 $ 567,057 $ 2942752
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State of lllinois
Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Commerce and Community Affairs
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Low Income Community

Home Energy Development/ Job Build lllingis
Assistance Small Clties Training Loan
Block Grant  Block Grant Partnerghip Programs Total

Other & e 85
Loans and notes receivable 5,851 5,851
9,31 9,316

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 901 8 2593 § 14,481 § 1639 § 19,614
Intergovemmental payables 3 2 10 2 17
Due to other funds 13 8 220 6 247

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:
Encumbrances 69 679 2,573 32 3,353

Total fund balances - 29,906 29,906
Total llabllities and fund balances $ 917§ 2603 § 14,774 § 31,5663 § 49,847
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Commerce and Community Affairs
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed In Thousands)

Low Income Community

Home Energy Development/ Job Build Hlinols
Asgistance  Small Cltles Training Loan
Block Grant _ Block Grant _ Partnership Programs Total

REVENUES

Total revenues

71,054 130,633 269,487

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

Operating transfers-out (3) (1,764) { ,767)'
Operating transfers to component units (656)
Other (uses) of financlal resources

{uses) of financlal resources (1,884) (1,884)

=== - - 31,790 31,790

Fund balances, July 1, 1997 ) » _ -
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State of lllinois
Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Human Services
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Prevention and

Treatment of
Alcoholism and
Substance Special Oid Age USDA Woman,
Abuse Block Mental Vocational Purposes Survivors Infants and
Grant Health Rehabilitation Trust Ingurance Children

Intergovemrmental

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 3098 $ 23132 $ 4722 $ 6,145 § 2885 $ 16,986

19 2,461
Total llabllities 3,124 25,436 5,957 6,237 3275 19,953

Deferred revenues 2,097

Inventories ' 351 411 2,708
Unreserved, undesignated (deficits) {4) (11,839) 14,325 13,210 (423) (2,722)
Total fund balances (deficit)
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Maternal and
Child Health  Food Stamp
Services Block and
Grant Commodity Total

10,800 36,701

76,927

13 1,722 5,205
(48) 12,399
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Human Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed In Thousands)

Prevention and

Treatment of
Alcoholism and
Substance Special Old Age USDA Woman,
Abuse Block Mental Vocational Purposes Survivors Infants and
Grant Health Rehabliltation Trust insurance Chiidren

"Tota 62,062 26317 102,914 74,112 57466 21278

'EXPENDITURES

Debt service:
Principal 15

Capital outlays 100 98 167 516 279

over (under) expenditures 35 (1,839) 4,508 35,298 (193) 23

OTHER (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), JUNE 30, 1998 $ - $ (11,939 % 14704 $ 14974 $ - $ -
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Maternal and
Child Health  Food Stamp
Services Block and
Grant Commodity Total

22,738 865,302 1,423 697

49 691 38,572

$ —-- 3 1,722 § 19,461
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State of lllinois
Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Revenue
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Metropolitan
Exposition
Auditorium State and County and Local Local
and Office State Local Sales  Mass Transit Government Government
Building Gaming Tax Reform District Tax Distributive

Intergovernmental

Other 15
Due from other funds 99,768

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 141 $ 1,561
Intergovernmental payables 10,499 $§ 8,167 § 30615 § 267,353 109,232
Due to other funds 5,441 32,667 19,573 625

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for Encumbrances 66
d 'gr:at d (deficit ‘ $ 32,104 13,561
.
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Personal
Property Tax Build
Replacement Hlinois Total

3 2682 § 21,738 26,122
241,870 667,736
44,080 102,386
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Revenue
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expreased in Thousands)

Metropolitan
Exposition
Auditorium State and County and Local Local
and Office State Local Sales  Mass Transit Government Government
Bullding Gaming Tax Reform District Tax Distributive

Other taxes $ 9,138 $ 263,980

Licenses and fees 1,189
Interest and other investment income

ur}ént.
General govemment 90,257 33,948 247,906 1,160,566 898,133
Debt service:

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Operating transfers-in 28,764 880,805
Operating transfers-out (24,872) (170,781) {138,776) (5,035)

Net other sources (uses) of

{under) expenditures and net cother
sources (uses) of financial resources 13,030 4,047 - - - I
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Pergonal
Property Tax Bulid
Replacement fllinols Total

76,305 349,423
1,189

_2,797 798 3,595

983,601 30,868 3,445,279

355,261

37,845 947,504
(38) (394,750 (734,252)

- - (1,644) 15,433
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State of lllinois
Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Transportation
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Grade Federal/ State Rail State
Motor Crossing Local Freight Loan Public Conastruction
Road Fuel Tax Protection Alrport Repayment Transporiation Account Total

ASSETS

Intergovemmental 159,455 12,320 171,775
Other 32,009 23 1,070 33,192
Due from other funds 35,442 24,104 1,500 36,568 42,472 140,086

" § 268,587

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Due to component units 2,950 35 é,985
Deferred revenues 18,016 2,901 20,917
Total labllities 155,985 123,785 2,180 13,570 877 36,575 36,964 369,936

Encumbrances
Long-term portion of:
Intergovernmental and other receivables

Unreserved, undesignated (deficits) (183,425) 144,801 (14,505) (67,398) 3,363 (92,622) (209,686)

Total fund balances 6592 465 144,802 40,572 - - 27,310 236,246 1,041,395
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds

Department of Transportation
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed In Thousands)

Grade Federal/ State Rail State
Motor Crossing Local Frelght Loan Publlc Construction
Road Fuel Tax Protection Airport Repayment Transporiation Account Total

$ 859 o 33,138
93,426
5707,469_

Interest and other investment income
Other

Transportation 1,113,199 488,391 § 20,696 119,224 $ 183,039 569,446 2,493,995
Public protection and justice 52,733 52,733

Capital outlays 29,473 907 30,380
Total expenditures " 1,392,783 561,396 20,696 119,224 183,039 569,448 2,836,584

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF
FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Operating transfers-in ) 424,600 96,793 18000 776 2,292 183,049 285919 1,011,429

i
Net other sources (uses) of
financial resources 233,281 (661,676) 16,499 714 2,292 183,039 265,891 60,040

Fund balances, July 1, 1997 703,602 129,326 44,769 - - 24,137 - 208,636 1,110,470
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State of lllinois
Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds

Other Code Departments
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Children
and
Family Natural Employment Financial Public Public
Services Resources Security Institutions Aid Health
Open Space
Lands Title Il Social Child
Acquisition  Security and Support Public
Childrens’ and Employment State Enforcement Health
Services Development Service Pensgions Trust Services Total

Cther 83,765 512 84,277
Due from other funds 1,236 172 130 1,538
Due from component units 18 18

LIABILITIES

Deferred revenues 3,466 3,466
Total liabilities 36,653 28 11,811 708 29,203 11,599 89,802

inventories 2,053 5,013 7,066
Unreserved, undesignated (deficit) 97,284 6,959 34,034 82,917 103,262 (5,018) 319,438

Total fund balances
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State of lllinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds
Other Code Departments

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Children
and
Family Natural Employment Financial Public Public
Services Resources Security Institutions Aid Health
Open Space
Lands Title Il Social Child
Acquisition  Security and Support Public
Chlidrens' and Employment State Enforcement Health
Services  Development Service Penslons Trust Services Total

Other " : 10,075 117§ 99,724 176,799 637 287,352

Total revenues 119,379 16,616 163,563 99,724 258,820 74,908 733,008

Education 42,174 42,174
General govemment 9,470 9,470
Social assistance 160,084 ,B57

Principal 108 4 113
Interest 5 5

Capital outlays 2,679 113 5,236 80 B3 955 9,876

et
over (under) expenditures (241,700) 6,349 (1,757) 40,175 58,036 (6,523) (145,420)

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF

Operating transfers to component units (108) (11,296) (11,404)
Net other sources (uses) of
financial resources

11,296

259,219

21,797

113,799

76,579 245,855
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Siate of lllinois
Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds

Environmental Protection Agency
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Water
Pollution
Control Vehicle
Revolving Ingpection Total

ASSETS

Other 460 480
Due from other funds 12,339 12,339
» B 3 647,650

L oans and notes receivable

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 692 $ 14,670 $ 15,262
15,661 17 15,678

Intergovemmental payables

FUND BALANCES

43524 (1,653) 41871
733,113 13,318 746,431

Unresarved, undesignated (deficit)
Total tund balances
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds

Environmental Protection Agency
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Water
Pollution
Control Vehicle
Revolving Inspection Total

Total revenues 80,436 33,1886 113,622

XPENDITURES

Debt service
Principal 6 6 12
Interest 1 1 2

Excess (deficlency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 74,517 (21,229) 53,288

Operating transfers-out (508) 277) {785)
Operating transfers to component units (3) (3)
Capital lease financin 26 18 44

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures and net other
sources (uses) of financial resources 90,984

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1998 $ 733113 § 13318 § 746,431
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State of lllinois
Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds

State Board of Education
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Special Federal Federal
Education Department Department
Drivers Medicald of of
Education Matching Agriculture Education Total

ASSETS

1,701 1,701

Inventories
Total assets $ 10,434 § 11,131 § 43,017 § 39,787 § 104,369

Due to other funds 356 198 554
Due to component units 12

187 199

678 102 132

Inventories
Unreserved, undesignated (deficits)
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds

State Board of Education
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed In Thousands)

Special Federal Federal
Education Department Department
Drivers Medicaid of of
Education Matching Agriculture Education Total

'REVENUES

Total revenues

p
Interest 1 2 2 5
Capital outlays ) ) ) - ‘ 60 319 273 652

ovaer (under) expenditures 480 427 (572) 8,398 8,733

OTHER USES OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Excess (deficiency) of revenuss over
(under) expenditures and other

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), JUNE 30, 1998 $  (13,195) § - 1,206 $ —— % (11,989
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State of lllinois
Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds

Other Agencies, Boards and Authorities
June 30, 1998 (Expressed In Thousands)

Metropolitan
Fair and
Exposition State Fire
Authority Marshal
McCormick
Place Underground
Expansion Storage
Project Tank Total

SSETS

Other 117 117
Total assets 3 - § 41,768 $ 41,768

Due to other funds =~ S o E ' 38 .‘38>

Deferred revenues 8 8
Total liabilities ) ) 4,326 4,326

Total fund balances 57,442 3;/',442

Total liabllities and fund balances 3 ~-—- § 41,768 $ 41,768
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State of Hlinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds

Other Agencies, Boards and Authorities
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed In Thousands)

Metropolitan
Fair and
¢ Exposttion State Fire
Authorlty Marshal
McCormick
Place Underground
Expansion Storage
Project Tank Total

REVE!\IUES

Total revenues 66,463 62,701 129,164

EXPENDITURES

“Natural resources and recreation
Capital outlays
T

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

23,069 23,060

Fund balances, July 1, 1997

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1998 $ - § 37442 % 37,442
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

The Debt Service Funds are maintained to account for resources obtained
and accumulated to pay interest and principal on general long-term
obligations.
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SIGNIFICANT DEBT SERVICE FUNDS DESCRIPTIONS

Treasurer
General Obligation Bond Retirement and Interest Fund--to account for payments of principal and
interest related to general obligation bonds. These bonds provide financing for the protection of the
environment within the State; the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, extension, and improvement
of highways; the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, and improvement of capital projects; the
construction of facilities leased back to the State; and the development of mass transportation and
aviation systems within the State.

Department of Commerce and Community Affairs
Illinois Civic Center Bond Retirement and Interest Fund--to account for the payment of principal and
interest upon bonds issued to finance the construction of local civic centers. Funding consists of
transfers from the Metropolitan Exposition Auditorium and Office Building Fund and investment
income.

Bureau of the Budget
Build Illinois Bond Retirement and Interest Fund--to account for the payment of principal and interest
upon bonds issued to finance improvements related to existing or planned scientific research,
manufacturing or industrial development or expansion in Illinois. Funding consists of transfers from
the Build Illinois Fund and investment income.
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State of lllinois
Combining Balance Sheet

Debt Service Funds
June 30, 1998 (Expressed In Thousands)

Commerce and Bureau
Community of the
Treagurer Affairs Budget
General
Obligation Illinois Clvic Build Hlinols
BR&I Center BR&I BR&I Qther Total

ASSETS

B

i £ 8
Intergovernmental 8 2]
Other 1,758 94 247 7 2,106

Loans and notes receivable 25,500 ‘ ] 25,500

Ah,

‘ .I\ccoun s payable and s;ccrued iabilities
Due to other funds

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:

Encumbrances

L

Total liabliities and fund balances $ 469,009 $ 25,893 § 239,104 $ 11,910 § 745,916
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances

Debt Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Commerce
and Bureau
Community of the
Treasurer Affairs Budget
General
Obligation lllinois Civic Buiid Illinols
BR&( Center BR&I BR&I Other Total

REVENUES

Other o ' 281 130 411

Total revenues 25523 878 13,879 429 40,709

General government 28 79 4 111
Natural resources and recreation 1,593 1,593

Debt service:

(Deficiency) of revenues
(under) expenditures

Pfoceeﬂ& from generaVspecial obligation bond refunding issues 123,257
Operating transfers-in 689,431 14,872 212,650 16,512 933,465
Operating transf ut

{Deficlency) of revenues (under)
expenditures and net other

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1998 $ 469,009 3 25893 $ 239,086 $ 10,718 § 744,686
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The Capital Projects Funds are maintained to account for the acquisition
and/or construction of major capital facilities.
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SIGNIFICANT CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS DESCRIPTIONS

Department of Central Management Services
ESCO COP Capital Projects Fund--to account for proceeds from issuance of certificates of
participation for energy service agreements at various sites within the State. Also to receive lease
payments from other State agencies for the agreements.

EPA COP Capital Projects Fund--to account for proceeds from the issuance of certificates of
participation for the purchase and renovation of a building for use by the Environmental Protection
Agency.

Department of Commerce and Community Affairs
Build Illinois Bond Fund--to account for the proceeds of bond sales from the Build Illinois Bond
Program. The proceeds are used to finance improvements related to scientific research, manufacturing,
and industrial development or expansion.

Department of Natural Resources
Conservation 2000 Projects Fund--to receive proceeds from general obligation bonds from the Capital
Development Board and other monies as may be provided by law. Monies in the fund are to be used
for purposes relating to natural resource protection, recreation, tourism, and compatible agricultural
and economic development activities.

Department of Transportation
Transportation Bond Series B Fund--to provide funds through the sale of bond issues for mass
transportation and aviation purposes including, but not limited to, the acquisition of mass transportation
equipment, including rail and bus, and other equipment for counties under the Regional Transportation
Authority.

Capital Development Board
Capital Development Fund--to account for proceeds from bond issues and disbursements for capital
development projects within the State.

Capital Development Board Contributory Trust Fund--to account for local, state, and federal funding
for the construction and remodeling of buildings, and the purchase of land and equipment in connection
with the various contributing educational institutions, State departments and agencies as authorized by
law.

Environmental Protection Agency
Anti-Pollution Fund--to account for proceeds from bond issues and disbursements for the planning,
financing, and construction of municipal sewage treatment works and solid waste disposal facilities.

119



State of lllinois
Combining Balance Sheet

Capital Projects Funds
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Agencies, Boards and

Departments Authorities
Commerce and Environmental
Community Natural Protection
Affairs Resources  Transportation Agency
Central Build Conservation Transportation Capital
Management Ilinois 2000 Bond Development Anti-
Services Bond Projects Serles B Board Pollution

Intergovernmental payables
Due to other funds

Total liablllties o 1,049 378 3,666 45,846 5

FUND BALANCES

Total llabllities and fund balances $ 8,168 § 19918 § 8605 § 28978 8 314,007 § 20,400
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Other Total

24 50,068

$ 8,055 $ 408,131

121



State of Hllinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances

Capital Projects Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Agencies, Boards and

Departments Authorities
Commerce
and Environmental
Community Natural Protection
Affairs Resources Transportation Agency
Central Build Conservation Transportation Capital
Management llinois 2000 Bond Development Anti-

Services Bond Projects Serles B Board Pollution

REVENUES

Total revenues 1,121 11,291

EXPENDITURES

General government 15 301 $ 378 41,734
Transportation 204 $ 56,487 217
Natural resources and recreation 17,372 1,158

18,515

" FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Proceeds from general/special obligation bond issues 46,642 516,060 $ 29,703
Proceeds from general/special obligation bond refunding issues

Paﬁneh to refunded bond escrow 'ag'enit
Net other sources (uses) of
financial resources

sources (uses) of firihnclal resources (32,348) (22,253) 5,227 (10,688) 263,836 16,266

Fund balances, July 1, 1997 40,514 41,122

36,000

4,325 4,129
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Other Total

206 12,618

56,908

1827 309,162

5,023 597,428
37,411 185,481

37,411) (185,481)

4,037 519,002

2,416 222,458

5,615 134,705
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State of lllinois
Combining Balance Sheet - Capital Projects Funds

Department of Central Management Services
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Certlificates of Participation

ESCO DPA EPA
Capltal Capital Capital
Projects Projects Projects Total

Total assets § 7480 $ 2 3 686§ 8.168

FUND BALANCES

2 8 686 $ 8,168

Total llabliities and fund balances $ 7480 $
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Capital Projects Funds

Department of Central Management Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Certificates of Participation
ESCO DPA EPA
Capital Capital Capital
Projects Projects Projects Total

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Health and social se 10

100

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Operatlng 1ran§f;r”s‘-‘i|‘:;m ' , ' ' ' 217
Operating transfers-out (2,406) (661) (3,067)
Net other sources (uses) of

(under) expendifu res and net other
sources (uses) of financial resources (596) (19,272) (12,478) (32,346)

s

125



State of lllinois
Combining Balance Sheet - Capital Projects Funds

Capital Development Board
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

coB
Capital Contributory
Development Trust Total

ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Other liabilities
Total liabllities

nreserved, uni emgnatéd (de icit)
Total fund balances

126



State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - Capital Projects Funds

Capital Development Board
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

cDB
Capital Contributory
Development Trust Total

REVENUES

Total revenues ' 2 11,989 11,291

EXPENDITURES

General govermment
Transportation
Natural resources and recreation

ltal , Bo: S
Total expenditures 189,204 10,739 199,943

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Proceeds from general/special obligation bond issues 516,060 516,060
Operating transfers-out (6,000) (83) (6,083)

Exceass {deficlency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures and net other

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1958 $ 268161 § - § 268,161
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are maintained to account for the operations where the
intent of the State is to provide services to the general public in a manner
similar to private business enterprises.
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SIGNIFICANT ENTERPRISE FUNDS DESCRIPTIONS

Department of Central Management Services
Local Government Health Insurance Reserve Fund--to provide health and dental insurance to
participating local government entities. Premiums are collected from units of local government and the
insurance plan is administered by private companies.

Teacher Health Insurance Security Fund--to provide health benefits for the Teachers’ Retirement
System recipient and dependent beneficiaries.

Department of Lottery
State Lottery Fund--to account for all receipts and expenses from the operation of the State Lottery.
The net proceeds are transferred to the General Fund.

Student Assistance Commission
Designated Account Purchase Program Fund--to account for bond proceeds used to purchase defaulted
loans from lenders. Revenue is generated primarily from investment income and bond proceeds.

Iilinois Opportunity Loan Program Fund--to account for a direct loan program that assists full-time
Illinois college students.
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State of lllinois
Combining Balance Sheet

Enterprise Funds
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Higher
Departments Education
Insurance Lottery
Office of
Central the Speclal Student
Management Deputy State Asslistance
Services Recelver Lottery Commission Other Total

Intergovemnﬁéntal 261 7,863 8,124
Other 2,789 2,010 20,138 15,717 4,036 44,690
Due from other funds 51,546 339 51,885

" Total current assets 46,884 2,387 94,838 285,482 27,324 456,015

Investments 74,463 5,475

5 ;
Total assets ) $ 46,884 $ 2387 $ 170,701 $ 1,344228 §$ 34995 § 1,599,195

Notes payable, current 95,954
Re bords payable
a SR

i e = S
Revenue bonds payable 752,590 752,590
Other obligations 74,480 74,480
13,279 2,387 140,785 1,256,972 19,616 1,433,039

Reserved for.
Revenue bond and note retirement ] o o ) 87,256 87,256

Bl R g5
Total liabilities and fund equity $ 46,884 3§ 2387 § 170,701 § 1344228 § 34995 §$ 1,599,195
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Retained Earnings

Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Higher
Departments Education
insurance Lottery
Office of
Central the Special Student
Management Deputy State Assistance
Services Receiver Lottery Commission Other Total

OPERATING REVENUES

115,886 75,340 1,541,738 88,097 58,548 1,879,609

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Interest 57,319
General and administrative 3,217 65,010 58,844 18,656 2,109
Depreciation 685 130 666

535,044 9,523 2,807 515,012

~(32,362)

pel 9

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

e

Other expenses

before operating tr

i

Net income (loss) (4,232) - - 1,950 7,860 277 5,855

RETAINED EARNINGS, JUNE 30, 1998 3 33,605 § -- 8 29916 % 87256 § 15379 § 166,156

133



State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed In Thousands)

Higher
Departments Education
Insurance Lottery
Office of
Central the Special Student
Management Deputy State Assistance
Services Receiver Lottery Commission Other Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash payments for lottery prizes (796,920) (796,820)
Cash receipts from other operating activities 2,085 181,906 477 184,478
ayments for othe i iviti 323,593

pal p
Interest paid on revenue bonds and other borrowing
Operating transfers-in from other funds

Cl\gH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (408) (189) (781) (1,378)
incipal paid on bond maturiti i

"Proceeds from sale and maturities of investment securities 251,922 10,200 262,122
Interest and dividends on investments 2,082 99 826 1,178 4,185
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 2,082 99 5,684 72 3,575

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30, 1998 $ 4384 § 377§ 1,954 $ 196,108 § 12,163 & 254,436

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30, 1998 $ 43834 $ 377 % 1,954 $ 196,108 § 12,163 § 254,436

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net

“to net cash provided (used5 b)} bperatmg activities:
Depreciation 685 130 666 1,481
Provision for uncollectible accounts (46) (4€)

(increase) decrease in inventories {430) 7 (333)
{Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 7) 142
Increase (decrease) i ayable and accrued liabiliti 21,882

ncrease (decrease) in other liabilities
Other
~ Total adjustments
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State of lllinois
Combining Balance Sheet - Enterprise Funds

Department of Central Management Services
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Local
Government Teacher
Health Health
Insurance Insurance
Reserve Security Total

Other 876 1,913 2,789
Total assets 3 5792 § 41,092 $ 46,884

Due to other tunds 25 310 335

Other liabilities a7 a5 82
Total liabilities , ‘ N 5,865 7,414 13,279

Retained eamings, unreserved (deficit) (73) 33,678 33,605
Total fund equity (deficit) (73) 33,678 33,605
Total llabllities and fund equity 3 5792 % 41,092 § 46,984
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Retained Earnings - Enterprise Funds

Department of Central Management Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed In Thousands)

Local
Government Teacher
Health Health
Insurance Insurance
Reserve Security Total

OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Benﬂﬂ payments and refunds 52,774 92,257 145,031

Operating (loss) (7,641) (24,721) (32,362)

NONOPERATING REVENUES

Operating transfers-in 26,081 26,081
Operating transfers-out

Rété edeér;'l gs, uly’1l;19‘9‘7

37,837

RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT), JUNE 30, 1998 $ (73) 3 33678 § 33,605
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Enterprise Funds

Department of Central Management Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Local
Government Teacher
Health Healith
Insurance Insurance
Reserve Security Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(5.771) (22,197) (27,968)

Net cash (used) in operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Operating transters-in from other funds 26,081 26,081

interest and dividends on investments 299 1,783 2,082
Net cash provided by investing activities 299 1,783 2,082
188

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

$ $ 43,834

"to net cash provnd'édr (uééd) by oberétmg activities:
Changes in assets and liabilities:
ivable

1,870 2504 4,394

Total a&iustments
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (5,771) 8 (22,197) $ (27,968)
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State of lilinois
Combining Balance Sheet - Enterprise Funds

Student Assistance Commission
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Deslgnated
Account Opportunity
Purchase Loan
Program Program Total

ASSETS

Intergovemmental 7,863 7.863

Other 14,331 1,386 15,717
Prepaid expenses . 140 140

Loans and notes receivable 895,049 19,458 914,507
Restricted assets 143,948 143,948
Property, plant and equipment, net _ 291 291

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 16,976 $ 16,976
Notes payable, current 95,954 95,954

Revenue bonds payable 733,241 19,349 752,590

1,228,546 28,426 1,256,972

Retained eamings.
Reserved for revenue bond and note retirement 81,655 87,256
Total fund equity ‘ 81,565 87,256
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Retained Earnings - Enterprise Funds

Student Assistance Commission
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed In Thousands)

Designated
Account Opportunity
Purchase Loan
Program Program Total

OPERATING REVENUES

PE
Cost of sales and services 625 625
Interest

78,574

9,623

Interest expense (1,902) {1,902)

Inco! 8,402 99 8,501

before operating transfe

Net income 7,761 99 7,860
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Enterprise Funds

Student Assistance Commission
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Designated
Account Opportunity
Purchase Loan
Program Program Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash payfheﬁts for other opérahngéétmtles (316,050) (316,050)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (166,262) 13,167 (153,095)

ks

Operating transfers-ou 0}61 er funds ) (641)
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 196,834 (1,902) 194,932
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities (256,408) (2,024) (258,432)
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investment securities 251,922 251,922

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 1997 168,091 1,835 169,926

Total cash and cash equivalents per the balance sheet $ 38519 $ 2174 $ 40,693
Add: restricted cash equivalents 155,415 155,415
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30, 1998 3 193,934 % 2174 3 196,108

Operating income o [ 8402 S 1,121
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
et i i

9,523

i B

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in cther liabilities
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are maintained to account for the operations of state
agencies which render services to other State agencies or governmental
units on a cost-reimbursement basis.
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SIGNIFICANT INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS DESCRIPTIONS

Central Management Services .
State Garage Revolving Fund--to account for the operation and maintenance of State garages
including the servicing and repair of all automotive equipment owned or controlled by the State,
Revenues consist of charges to user agencies.

Statistical Services Revolving Fund--to account for the purchase, maintenance, and operation of
electronic data processing and information devices used by State agencies. Revenues consist of
charges from the user agencies.

Communications Revolving Fund--to account for the expenses related to telecommunications services
for State agencies. Revenues consist of reimbursements from user agencies.

Health Insurance Reserve Fund--to account for the self-insurance medical and dental plan for State
employees and qualified dependents. This fund records all contributions, appropriations, interest,
dividends, and expenses related to the plan.

Department of Corrections
Working Capital Revolving Fund--to account for the income and expenses associated with the
industrial operations at the several State institutions.
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State of lllinois
Combining Balance Sheet

Internal Service Funds
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Departments
Corrections
Central Working
Management Capital
Services Revolving Other Total

ASSETS

her B ' 1,184 379 2 1,565
Due from other funds 132,078 5,942 411 138,431
f i 3,178 4 5 3,324

Restricted assets 108 108
Property, plant and equipment, net 30,848 8,489 175 39,512

T A
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 130,336 $ 3037 $ 338 $ 133,711
Intergovernmental payables 4

Other liabilities 46,204 1,683 283 48,072)5

Total current llabliities 188,330 4,945 674 193,949

FUND EQUITY
Contributed capital ‘ 9,292 9,179 702 19,173
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Retained Earnings

Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Departments
Corrections
Central Working
Management Capital
Services Revolving Other Total

OPERATING REVENUES

Total operating revenues 954,822 45,513 4,628 1,004,963

OPERATING EPXPENSES

ne 23847 5,050 2,417 31,314
Depreciation 22,4687 1,578 140 24,185
Other 8,004 6 8,010

&

S

Income (loss) before operating transfers 188,171 3,861 (150) 191,882

Net income (loss) (3,061) 3,826 (163) 802
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Departments
Corrections
Central Working
Management Capital
Services Revoiving Other Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

her operating activities 24 19 43
Cash payments for other operating activities (1.330) (53) (1,383)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 240,759 1,685 191 242,253

Qperating transfers to component units (192,730) (192,730)
Other noncapital financing activities ’ - 79 79

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 191,232

Interest paid on bond maturities and equipment contracts (176) (7) (1‘873):
Net cash (used) in capital and related financing activities (21,154) (1,720) (86) (22,960)
H FLOWS FROM INVE AL

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 1997 81,510 7,421 2,213 91,144

operating activitles:
Operating income (loss) $ 187,848 § 3838 8§ (169) § 191,518
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (448) 7 7 (432)
(increase) decrease in due from other funds (55,767) (1,572) (63) (57,402)

Increase (decrease) in accounts payagieﬁénd accrued liabilities 50,113 (926) 105
Increase (decrease) in intergovernmental payables
(decrease) in due to other funds =~ 2 325

Total adjusiments o . b T seam 2,154) 50,735
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 240,750 % 1,686 & 1s1) § 242253

i
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State of lllinols
Combining Balance Sheet - Internal Service Funds

Department of Central Management Services
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

State Statistical Commun- Health
Garage Services Ications Insurance
Revoiving Revolving Revolving Reserve Total

Other 1,059
Due from other funds 5,423 26,324 20,331
Due from component units 404

132,078

Restricted assets 108 108
Property, plant and equi 2,970 16,746 11,132 30,848

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 4853 $ 4863 $ 16,015 $ 104,605 3 130,336
Intergovemmental pa ab!es 5 42 ) 47

Other liabilities 2,431 40,879 5,521 373 46,204
Taotal current liablilities 7,490 54,395 20,280 106,165 188,330

FUND EQUITY
Contributed
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State of lilinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Retained Earnings - internal Service Funds

Department of Central Management Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thougands)

State Statistical Commun- Health
Garage Services Ications Insurance
Revolving Revolving Revolving Reserve Total

OPERATING REVENUES

Total operating revenues 30,917 47,303 108,652 767,950 954,822

OPERATING EXPENSES

General and administrative 7,158 2,282 6,807 7,600 23,847
Depreciation 1,211 8,294 12,962 22,467
Other 964 _ X 8,004

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income

Income (loss) before operating transfers (371) (8,688) 4,500 192,730 188,171

Net income (loss) (373) (7,181) 4,493 - (3,061)
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Internal Service Funds

Department of Central Management Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

State Statistical Commun- Health
Garage Services lcations Ingurance
Revolving Revolving Revolving Reserve Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from other operating activities 24 24

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,092 29,454 23,089 187,124 240,759
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

~(191,232)

ef cash'provide (used) be' honcapl al financing activities B (2) 1,507 - (7) (152,736)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (112) (8,002)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividends on investments 2,147 2,147
,N,e“,:a h oyi_d i vesiin__ iviti 2,147 2,147

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30, 1998 $ 744 § 47,764 § 40235 § 23287 8 112,030

.Adjustrr{ents to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
D -

(Increase) decrease in due from other funds 411 (4,584) (803) (50,791) " (55,767)
{Increase) decrease in due from component units 2 (3) 900 155 1,054
(Increase) decrease in inventories (78) (17) (95)

Increase {decrease) in due to other funds (43) 494 528 773 1,752

Increase (decrease) in due to component units 30 (1) 29
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues 8,000
o

Noncash Iinvesting, capital, and financing activities
Capital leases (initlal year):
% i
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS

Trust and Agency Funds are maintained to account for assets held by the
State acting in the capacity of trustee or agent.
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SIGNIFICANT TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS DESCRIPTIONS

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS:

Department of Employment Security
Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund--to provide for unemployment insurance benefit claims.
Funding 1s through employer contributions and Federal Unemployment Trust advances.

Industrial Commission
Self-Insurers Security Fund--to cover claims for compensation made on self-insured employers with
respect to employment related injuries and diseases.

STATE PENSION FUNDS:
See Note 10 on page 44 for description of pension funds.

INVESTMENT TRUST FUNDS:

Treasurer
Public Treasurers’ Investment Pool Fund--to hold and invest public funds deposited by local Treasurers
to enhance investment opportunities - in effect a mutual fund.

Department of Lottery
Deferred Lottery Prize Winners Trust Fund--to hold the proceeds of investments that will be paid to
Illinois State Lottery prize winners. Investment contracts are executed by the State Treasurer with the
State Lottery Director’s approval in a manner which ensures the timely payment to prize winners.

AGENCY FUNDS:

Department of Central Management Services
Deferred Compensation Plan Fund--to defer gross compensation of any State employee and invest the
funds until retirement, death or extreme hardship.

Department of Insurance
Security Deposit Fund--to hold securities on deposit by domestic and certain foreign domiciled
insurance companies in the State for protection of all policyholders, policy obligations and creditors of
the companies.

Department of Public Aid
Child Support Enforcement Agency Fund--to account for that portion of the Child Support
Enforcement Trust Fund that hold monies recovered under the Child Support Enforcement Program
until they can be paid over to the appropriate third parties.
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State of lllinois
Combining Balance Sheet
Trust and Agency Funds

June 30, 1998 (Expresased in Thousands)

Trust Agency

Non-

Expendable
Expendable Other Pengion Invegtment Total

Taxes ' 265,770 ' 77,153 332923
Intergovemmental 11,869 1,614 13,483
h

X
Other assets 953,137 953,137
Total assets $ 2232895 $% 8,164 $ 41,263,358 $ 4,211,879 $ 3,102678 $ 50,818,974

Intergovemi‘nental payables 3,744 § 5 279,803 283;532

Due to other funds 3,787 298 95 57,364 61,544
Due to component units 47 a7

Total ilabilities 48,883 5 4,019,866 11,928 3,102,678 7,1 83,360

Unemployment compensation benefits 2,166,688 2,166,688

Employees' pension benefits 37,243,492 37,243,492
External investment pool participants 4,199,951 4,199,951
Other 1,587 1,587
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State of lllinois
Combining Balance Sheet
Expendable Trust Funds

June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Agencies,
Boards and
Departments Authorlties
Employment Industrial
Security Commigsion

Unemployment
Compensation  Self-Insurer's
Trust Securlty Other Total

ASSETS

axes : :
Intergovernmental 11,869 11,869

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3 $ 13 § 57 §

Deferreéwrevenuﬁss - o 3,182 6 3,-1- 88
Other liabilities 1,650 1,487 867 4,004
Total llabllities 46,238 1,506 1,139 48,883

Encumbrances 26 943 969
Unemployment compensation benefits 2,166,688 2,166,688
Oth. 1,587

Total liabllities and fund balances $ 2,212,926 $ 2243 § 17,726 § 2,232,895
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State of llinois

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances

Expendable Trust Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Agenciles,
Boards and
Departments Authorities
Employment Industrial
Securlty Commission
Unemployment
Compensation  Seif-Insurer's
Trust Security Other Total

Other ' 121 325 2,590
Total revenues 1,310,680 538 3,527 1,314,745

General government 4,264 4,264
Social assistance 1,138,929 68 1,138,997
Public protection and justice 23 58 81

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures 171,751

Operating transfers-in 7,401 1.914 9,315
Operating transfers-out (12,995) 4) (783) (13,782)
Net other sources (uses) of

g

(under) expenditures an ‘other
sources (uses) of financial resources 166,157 511 (501) 166,167

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1998 3 2,166,688  § 737§ 16,587 § 2,184,012
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Net Assets

Pension Trust Funds
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

State Unlversities'

Retirement System
General State
Assembly Judges' Employees’ Teachers'
Retirement Retirement Retirement Retiroment Defined Defined
System System System System Benefit Contribution Total

ASSETS

7,232 44 7,326

Due from other funds 50
Due from component units

$ $

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .
Due to other funds 61 18
Other liabiliti

DB
Reserved for employees'
pension benefits

19,965,888
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Pension Trust Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

State Universities

Retirement System
General State
Assembly Judges’ Employees’ Teachers’
Retirement Retirement Retirement  Retirement Defined Defined
System System System System Benefit Contribution Total

ADDITIONS

4

her 25,249 6 25,255 :
Total contributions 4,337 26,525 356,640 943,950 449,411 157 1,781,020
Investment income:

z Al i ‘ et
Net investment income 9,781 55,142 1,080,235 2,873,102 1,474,575 15 5,492,850
Total additions 14,118 81,667 1,436,875 3,817,052 1,923,986 172 7,273,870

p
General and administration 5,968 0,280 8,138 23,940
Other 182 . 182

Fund balances reserved for employees’

nefits, July 56,710 6,048,070 8,376,347 32,188,796

$10,965888 $ 9,792,000 $

PENSION BENEFITS, JUNE 30, 1998 S 62738 § 356,693
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Net Assets

Investment Trust Funds
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Elected
Officials Departments
Treasurer Lottery
Public Deferred
Treasurers' Prize
Investment Winners
Pool Trust Total

ASSETS

Total assets $ 2447883 § 1,763,996 5 4,211,879

LIABILITIES

Total liabllities 11,413 515 1 ;l..928

FUND BALANCES

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 2447883 § 1,763,996 $ 4,211,879
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Investment Trust Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Elected
Officials Departments
Treasurer Lottery
Public Deferred
Treasurers’ Prize
Investment Winners
Pool Trust Total

ADDITIONS

Net appreciation {depreciation) of investments 73,660 73,660
Investment expense {2,350) (2,350)
Net investment income 121,707 207,945 329,652

Participant’s withdrawals, net 101,818
Distribution to pool investors 121,707
Total deductions N 121,707 101,818

‘Fund ba ances, July ‘16: , as previously reporte -
Restatement/reclassification of fund balances 1,868,077 1,657,354 3,525,431
Fund bal erved for ext | invest

INVESTMENT POOL PARTICIPANTS, JUNE 30, 1998 . $ 2436470 $ 1763481 $ 4,199,951
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State of lllinois
Combining Balance Sheet
Agency Funds

June 30, 1998 (Exprassed in Thousands)

Elected
Officials Departments
Central
Management Human Public
Treasurer Services Services Insurance Aid Revenue
Employee’s Public
Deferred Assistance Child Support
Compensation Recoveries Security Enforcement RTA Sales
Protest Plan Trust Deposit Trust Tax Trust Other Total

Taxes 7,480 24,170 45,503 77,163
Intergovernmental 1,614 1,614
Other

Total

e
$ 194176 S 1,236,710 S 91,093 $ 933,340 § 281,182 § 92460 §$ 273,717 $ 3,102678

LIABILITIES

.Débésltory and.bther iabilities A 1236, i y ) y 1750,
Total liabilities $ 194176 S 1236710 § 81,093 $ 933,340 § 281,182 $ 92460 $ 273,717 $ 3,102,678
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State of lllinois

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
All Agency Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Cash Receivables Due From
and Cash Intergovern- Other
Equivalents Investments Taxes mental Other Funds
ORGANIZATION/FUND
Treasurer:
Protest
Balance July 1, 1997 $ 111,590 $ 1,491 $ 2 58
Additions 87,513 7,480 8
Deductions 12,415 1,491 2 58
Balance June 30, 1998 186,688 7,480 - - 8
Central Management Services:
State Employees’ Deferred
Compensation Plan
Balance July 1, 1997 507 $ 967,545 165
Additions 115,578 579,208 379
Deductions 115,337 311,170 165
Balance June 30, 1998 748 1,235,583 379
Human Services:
Public Assistance Recoveries
Trust
Balance July 1, 1997 45,229 43,865
Additions 181,533 147,452
Deductions 178,301 148,685
Balance June 30, 1998 48,461 42,632
Insurance:
Security Deposit
Balance July 1, 1997
Additions
Deductions
Balance June 30, 1998
Public Aid:
Child Support Enforcement Trust
Balance July 1, 1997 648,132
Additions 357,640
Deductions 724,590
Balance June 30, 1998 281,182
Revenue:
RTA Sales Tax Trust
Balance July 1, 1997 45,046 22,218 138 18,552
Additions 451,315 24,170 124 19,573
Deductions 447,768 22,218 138 18,552
Balance June 30, 1998 48,593 24,170 124 19,573
Other:
Balance July 1, 1997 195,010 41,986 $ 1,722 8,637 2,046
Additions 1,833,879 45,503 1,614 1,476 4,448
Deductions 1,829,121 41,986 1,722 8,529 1,987
Balance June 30, 1998 199,768 45,503 1,614 1,484 4,507
Total-All Agency Funds:
Balance July 1, 1997, as restated 397,382 967,545 65,695 1,722 700,839 20,656
Additions 2,669,818 579,208 77,153 1,614 507,071 24,029
Deductions 2,582,942 311,170 65,695 1,722 882,109 20,597
Balance June 30, 1998 $ 484258 § 1,235583 § 77153 § 1614 §$ 325,801 24,088
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ASSETS (CONT.) LIABILITIES
Accounts Depository
Due From Payable Intergovern- Due To and
Component Other Total and Accrued mental Other Other Total
Units Assets Assets Liabilities Payables Funds Liabilities Liabilities
$ 113,141 $ 449 112,692 113,141
95,001 2,104 92,897 95,001
13,966 449 13,517 13,966
194,176 2,104 192,072 194,176
968,217 § 86 968,131 968,217
695,165 125 579,859 579,984
426,672 86 311,405 311,491
1,236,710 125 1,236,585 1,236,710
89,094 $ 5,888 53,740 29,466 89,094
328,985 14,320 53,246 261,419 328,985
326,986 7,634 78,328 241,024 326,986
91,093 12,574 28,658 49,861 91,093
$ 942,895 942,895 942,895 942,895
325,931 325,931 325,931 325,931
335,486 335,486 335,486 335,486
933,340 933,340 933,340 933,340
648,132 648,132 648,132
357,640 357,640 357,640
724,590 724,590 724,590
281,182 281,182 281,182
85,954 85,954 85,954
495,182 92,460 92,460
488,676 85,954 85,954
92,460 92,460 92,460
133 20,359 269,793 13,512 180,885 24,975 50,421 269,793
1,044 3,657 1,891,621 23,506 324,054 121,172 637,876 1,106,608
133 4,219 1,887,697 21,943 330,170 119,545 631,026 1,102,684
1,044 19,797 273,717 15,075 174,769 26,602 57,271 273,717
133 963,254 3,117,226 13,598 272,727 79,164 2,751,737 3,117,226
1,044 329,588 4,189,525 23,631 430,834 176,522 2,255,622 2,886,609
133 339,705 4,204,073 22,029 423,758 198,322 2,257,048 2,901,157
1,044 § 953,137 § 3,102678 $ 15200 § 279,803 § 57,364 2,750,311 3,102,678
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GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

General Fixed Assets Account Group is maintained to account for fixed
assets acquired or constructed for use by the State for general
governmental purposes. These include all fixed assets of the primary
government except those accounted for in the proprietary and fiduciary
fund types.

165



This Page Intentionally Left Blank

166



State of lllinois

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Balance Deletions/ Net Balance
July 1, 1997 Additions Transfers June 30, 1998

State of Illinois

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets
By Function

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Balance Deletions/ Net Balance
July 1, 1997 Additions Transters June 30, 1998

Function

Departments and agencies 500,851 59,209 8,434 551,626
Total general government 895,766 . 952,074

1,501,328 146,631 23,094 1,624,866

“Pubhc protection “and justice
801,973 26,621 (15,452) B44,046
4 BEhi

Natural resources and recreation

98,737 6,367 3,903 101,201
83,910 166,387 204,121 56,176

‘Education
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State of lllinois
Schedule of General Fixed Assets

By Function
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Land Buildings
and Land and Building
Function Total Improvements  Improvements Equipment

551,626 457,838
952,074

Deﬁanments and agencies
Total general government

1,186,250 330,252

1,624,865
844,046

R

Public protection and justice

Natural resources and recreation
o

ucation
Total general fixed assets

Construction in progress
Total general fixed assets

$ 5,061,496
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GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group is maintained to account
for the State’s unmatured general obligation bonds, unfunded retirement
costs, and other long-term obligations.
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State of llinois

Schedule of Changes in General Long-Term Obligations
For the Year Erided June 30, 1898 (Expressed in Thousands)

Accrued General Spegcial Other
Retirement Obligation Obligation Long-Term
Costs Bonds Bonds Obligations Total
BALANCES JULY 1, 1997,
AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED $ 10,556,544 § 5654397 $ 1885167 $ 1,621,786 $ 19,717,894

BALANCES AT JULY 1, 1997, AS RESTATED $ 10,349,314 § 56564,397 $ 1,885167 § 1,621,786 $ 19,510,664

12,004 12,004

increase in lease and installment purchase obligations
(390,732) (390,732)

Compensated absences taken
i ccret

955,348

employer contributions from govermmental fund types 955,348
2173 2,173

Other
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COMPONENT UNITS

The Component Units Section includes legally separate organizations for
which the elected officials of the primary government are financially
accountable. It also includes certain other organizations because of the
nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government.
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SIGNIFICANT COMPONENT UNITS DESCRIPTIONS

GOVERNMENTAL:
Illinois Conservation Foundation--to provide additional funding for the Illinois Department of Natural
Resources’ conservation programs that either are not receiving adequate State funding or else cannot
be implemented because State funding is not available.

East St. Louis Finance Advisory Authority--to provide a secure financial basis for and to furnish
assistance to the city of East St. Louis.

lllinois Development Finance Authority--to provide funding for industrial, commercial, and
manufacturing development in areas of Illinois with critical unemployment.

Medical Center Commission--to combine the resources of diverse medical institutions to promote low
cost medical care in the City of Chicago, accelerate scientific research, improve diagnostic methods,
and train health care professionals.

PROPRIETARY:
The Comprehensive Health Insurance Board--to provide an alternate market for health insurance for
eligible Hlinois residents having a preexisting health condition.

Illinois Housing Development Authority--to make loans and issue notes and bonds for the acquisition,
construction, and rehabilitation of housing and to make loans to encourage home ownership.

Illinois Rural Bond Bank--to provide assistance to rural government units by providing adequate
capital markets and facilities for borrowing money and financing improvements at low interest rates.

Illinois State Toll Highway Authority--to operate a toll highway system to promote the public welfare,
and to facilitate vehicular traffic by providing convenient, safe, modern, and limited access highways
within Illinois.

UNIVERSITY AND COLLEGE:
Board of Trustees of Chicago State University--to operate, manage, control, and maintain Chicago
State University. The Board was created on January 1, 1996 with the dissolution of the Board of
Governors of State Colleges and Universities.

Board of Trustees of Eastern Illinois University--to operate, manage, control, and maintain Eastern
Illinois University. The Board was created on January 1, 1996 with the dissolution of the Board of
Governors of State Colleges and Universities.

Board of Trustees of Governors State University--to operate, manage, control, and maintain Governors
State University. The Board was created on January 1, 1996 with the dissolution of the Board of
Governors of State Colleges and Universities.

Board of Trustees of Northeastern University--to operate, manage, control, and maintain Northeastern
University. The Board was created on January 1, 1996 with the dissolution of the Board of Governors
of State Colleges and Universities.

Board of Trustees of Western Illinois University--to operate, manage, control, and maintain Western
Illinois University. The Board was created on January 1, 1996 with the dissolution of the Board of
Governors of State Colleges and Universities.

Board of Trustees of Illinois State University--to operate, manage, control, and maintain Illinois State
University. The Board was created on January 1, 1996 with the dissolution of the Board of Regents.
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Board of Trustees of Northern Illinois University--to operate, manage, control, and maintain Northern
Illinois University. The Board was created on January 1, 1996 with the dissolution of the Board of
Regents.

Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois University--to operate, manage, control, and maintain Southern
Illinois University. The Board was created on July 1, 1949. Southern Illinois University consists of
campuses at Carbondale and Edwardsville. In addition, the University operates a medical school.

Board of Trustees of University of Illinois--to manage the University of Illinois. The Board is a
separately clected body created by law on July 1, 1876. The University of Illinois consists of
campuses at Champaign-Urbana, Springfield, and Chicago. In addition, the university operates a
medical school.
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State of lllinois
Combining Balance Sheet - Component Units
All Fund Types and Account Groups

June 30, 1998 (Expressed In Thousands)

Governmental  Proprietary

Fund Types Fund Types University and College Funds
Chicago Eastem  Govemors Northeastemn Western
State inois State lllinois lliinois

University  University  University University University

Recelvablés, net:
Intergovermmental 6,211 188 } 802

Other ‘ 429 42,254 6,731 10,414 3,458 1173 283

Prepaid expenses
Loans and notes receivable 107,814
Restricted assets ($37,487 cash equivalents)

808 4,325 2,957 1,775 1,794

LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS

Due fo other funds 1,373 24,502 3,182
Due to primary govemment 1 982
Def_g_rred revenues

- 38,756
650
74,448

evenus bonds payaB e
Other obligations
Total llabiliti

Contributed capital ' o 33,530
Investment in fixed assels 11,976 84,404 131,688 71,127 112,706 206,557

"

Unreserved 1,362,996
Fund balances (deficits):
Reserved for:

Laans and notes recelvéble 103,292
Restricted fund balances 3,264 28,701 4,724 1,739 17,066
Endowment and similar funds 378 20,037 492 974 888

b2 i
Undesignated 47,224 (8,662) (7,563) (4,485) {6,737) (8,691)
Total equity and other credits 185,913 1,743,680 79,384 172,863 71,858 108,704 224,685
Total llabilities, equity and other credits 3 187628 § 5220372 § 126,864 § 263,627 § 86,199 § 139,110 §$ 299,133
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University and College Funds (continued)

Ilinois Northem Southem University
State lllinois lllincis of
University University University lilinois Total

1,467 407 5,990 20,707 34,411
9,273 7,388 15,251 56,452 1,796,383
12,295 369,039

295 1,035 5,568 13,398 49,669
145 42 3,098 11,950 17,023
1,652 5,789 16,888 29,533 71,565

-
61,381 84,328 105,139 364,226 3,765,178
3,034 12,431 5,335 143,607 214,012
232,345 955,714 5,178,574

33,530
348,468 372,521 657,445 2,859,441 4,856,333

103,292
11,353 51,080 73,084 381,431 572,422

968 (15,693) 8,774 (49,318) (39,183)
212,568 430,561 784,874 3,898,571 8,113,661
§ 500,147 § 579,851 § 1,017,219 _§ 4,854,085 § 13,202,235

179



State of Hlinois
Combining Balance Sheet

Component Units - Governmental Funds
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

East St. Louis
lilinols Finance Development Housing Medical Non-Major
Conservation Advisory Finance Developrment Center Component
Foundatlon Authority Authority Authority Commission Units Total

Intergovemmental h 4,500 1,561 150 6,211

Other 257 <] 429
Due frol nds 237

Property, plant and equipment, net 1,777 199 11,976
Other assets 4 52 56

Total agsets $ 849 § 4543 § 4700 § 161,386 $ 12,476  § 3674 $ 187,628

Due to other funds ) i $ 18 1,184 188 1,373
Due to primary government ' 1 1
Deferred revenues 39 39

EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS
Investment in fixed assets $ 199

thg-ten'n bo&ion of:
Intergovernmental and other receivables 4,500 4,500
Loans and notes receivable

Total liabllities, equity and other credits 8 849 § 4543 $ 4,700 § 161,386 $ 12,476 $ 3,674 $ 187,628
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances

Component Units - Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

East St. Louls
lllinois Finance Development Housing Medical Non-Major
Conservation Advisory Finance Development Center Component
Foundation Authorlty Authority Authority Commission Units Total

Interest and other investment income $ 728 11 1673 8 7 173 2,036
Other 1,104 245 5,805 980 98 8,322
Total revenues e 1,176 356 49,311 987 355 52,185

Health and social services
Education 186
General government 11,925

Interest 4 4
Capital outlays 65 65
Total expenditures 911 15 11,925 1,182 250 14,283

OTHER (USES) OF
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

tinancial resources (24) (7.867) (7,891)

Excess (deficlency) of revenues over

s, July 1,1997 S 576

3 3 5

373 3,370 143,926

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1998 $ 841 $ 4543 § 4698 §$ 160201 $ 178§ 3475 § 173,937
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State of lHlinois
Combining Balance Sheet

Component Units - Proprietary Funds
June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Comprehensive Housing Rural State Toll Non-Major
Health Development Bond Highway Component
ingurance Board  Authority Bank Authorlty Units Total

ASSETS

Other 1,074 21,837 1,683 15,797 1,863 42,254
Due from other funds 21,4092 4,183 25,675
i 158 158

. 4 X
Total current agsets 82,226 509,783 25,430 403,345 52,697 1,073,481

Property, plant a 114 752 39 1,843,081 149 1,844,135
Other assets 75,531 2,606 78,137
Total assets $ 82,390 $ 2,564,062 $ 110,776 $ 2,403,967 § 68,227 $ 5,020,372

Accounts payabie and accrued liabilities $ 4507 § 135,738 $ 3B § 74695 § 985 $ 216,960
Intergovemmental payables 12 1,856 1,868
Due to other funds 20,308 12 4,182 24,502

Notes payable, current T o 10 10
Revenue bonds payable, current 141,040 3,295 27,835 172,170
Other liabilities 12,072 130,417 2,075 3,393 147,957

Revenue bonds payable 1,919,206 71,295 876,405 2,866,906
Other obligations 1,182 30,000 31,182
1,003,919 3,485,692

on;ﬁbufé capital
Retained earmnings:
Reserved for:

? 5 facka:
Total fund equity 65,755 216,171 4,051 1,400,048 57,655 1,743,680
Total liabilities and fund equity ] 82,340 $ 2564062 $ 110776 3 2403967 $ 68,227 $ 5,229,372
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Retained Earnings

Component Units - Proprietary Funds
Far the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Comprehensive Housing Rural State Toll Non-Major
Health Development Bond Highway Component
Insurance Board  Authority Bank Authority Units Total

OPERATING REVENUES

Total operating revenues 20,977 291 91 6. 5,966 330,713 7,423 656,995

3,108 174,521 472 70,876 4,597 253,574
Depreciation 50 278 B8 131,421 113 131,870
Other 544 491 1,035

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

t

Income (loss) before operating transfers (10,012) 18,145 (49) 52,807 2,799 63,690

Operating transfers to primary government

Net income

1,621,140

Retained eamings, July 1, 1997, as restated 58,443 190,161 1,049 1,347,395 24,092

RETAINED EARNINGS, JUNE 30, 1998 $ 65755 § 216171 § 1,261 $ 1400048 § 26,915 $ 1,710,150
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State of lllinois
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Component Units - Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Comprehensive Housing Rural State Toll Non-Major
Health Insurance Development Bond Highway Component
Board Authority Bank Authority Units Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

ebélp er operating activities 196.,.1 00 $ 5,690 . 2,466 204,256
Cash payments for other operating activities {(330,730) (22,538) (51,076) (3,629)  (407,973)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 175,112 (16,848 182,104 317,127

Interes\t' paid on revenue bonds and other borrowing " (30) (137,276)
Operating grants received 35
(o] i fars-in f

Other noncapital financing activities 7,500 (4.097)
Net cash provided {used) by noncapital financing activities 24,824 (107.673) 40,173 (154) 29
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

eq
Other capital and related financing activities 37,448 83 37,531
Net cash (used) in capital and related financing activities

Interest and dividends on investments 5,049 42,842 {11) 29,068 2,051 78,999
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (1,742) {60,838) (23,314) 37,687 2,487 (45,720)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 90 6,289 3

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30, 1998 $ 13848 § 6904 § 439 $ 377539 § 35,835 § 434,565

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:

[+ ]

Depreciation 50 278
Provision for uncollectible accounts 610 205 815

131,421 113 131,870

Ch. i ts and liabiliti

(Increase) decrease in inventory (452) (452)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 2 (3) 2,135 (10) 2,120
(decrt i nts payable and accrued liabilities (1,539) 52,337 (75) 27,912 301 78,936

(1 (1)
Increase (decrease) in cther liabilities 1,449 4,726 682 (497) 6,260
Increase (decrease) in liabilities payabie from restricted assets

184



BUDGETARY SCHEDULES

Budgetary Schedules provide a comparison of the legally adopted
budgeted amounts with actual results of operations on a budgetary (Non-
GAAP) basis.
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State of Hllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

General Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

General Revenue Special Account
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

Federal government 3,430,000 255, (17
Other 1,328,000 1,356,412 28,412

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Health and social services 7,518,514 7,426,035 (92,479)

Social assistance 1,145,203 1,017,791 (127.412)
Public protection and justice 1,401,291 1,374,823 (26,468)
Natural resources and recreation 146,302 145,663 (639)

48

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 1,392,929 2,296,385 903,456 1,285,000 1,311,995 26,995

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {under)
expenditures and other sources (uses) of

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1998 5 (623,715)$ 280,793 § 904,508 $ 32,387 $ 59,382 § 26,995
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Education Assistance Common School Total
Finat Variance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

3,430,000 3,266,754 (174,246)
- 864 864 58,000 58,093 93 1,386,000 1,415,369 29,369

7,518,514 7,426,035 (92,479)

1,145,203 1,017,791 (127,412)
1,401,291 1,374,823 (26,468)
146,302 145,663 (639)

(273,713) (225,378) 48,335 (2,456,041)  (2,446,961) 9,080 (51,825) 936,041 987,866

$ (63,631) $ (25,281) $ 38,350 § 67,421 $ 40,998 § (26,423) $ (587,538) % 355882 $ 943,430
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Highway Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Road Motor Fuel Tax-State
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

Less:
Refunds 1,542 1,530 (12) 14,900 9,826 (4,974)

Total revenues 1,144,558 1,281,916 137,358 1,192,700 1,222,871 30,271

General government 208,632 196,945 (11,687) 65,811 65,435 (376)
Transportation 1,144,523 1,097,999 (46,524) 8,702 8,441 (261)
Social assistance , 2,000 1,666 (334)

ke

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (285,130) (87,450) 197,680 1,118,006 1,148,916 30,910

Operating transfers-out (191,001) (191,001) - (1,226,086) (1,226,086) -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (und

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1997

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1998 § 176,503 § 370,980 $ 194,477 § 73,649 § 105,536 $ 31,887
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Grade Crossing Protection State Construction Account Motor Fuel Tax-Counties
Final Variance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

287,463 305,421 17,958

$ 20,375 § 20,257 § (118) 575,553 575,653 - E 174,550 § 168,033 $ (6,517)

34 246)

$ 41,135 § 41,253 § 118§ 206,771 § 229,668 § 22,807 $ (19,296) § (14,029) $ 5,267

(continued)
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Highway Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

(continued)
Motor Fuel Tax-Municipalities Motor Fuel Tax-Township
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES:

Less:
Refunds
Total revenues

General govemment
Transportation § 244750 5§ 235661 § (9,089) § 79,200 § 76,266 § (2,934)

Social assistance

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

penditu (244,750)  (235,661) 9,089 (79,200) (76,266) 2,934

Operating transfers-out

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

(5,55

Budgetary fu

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1998 § (27,024) $ (18,676) $ 7348 § (8,758) $ (6,368) $ 2,390
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Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under)

16,442 11,456 (4,986)
2,624,721 2,810,308 185,587

274,443 262,380 (12,063)
2,247,653 2,182,210 (65.443)
000 1,666 334

265,206

(1,418,607) (1,418,607)

3 442,980 $ 707,364 $ 264,384
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Uses of Financial Resources
and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

University Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Other Total
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

Refunds ) 2 - (2) 2 - (2)
Total revenues (2) 344 346 (2) 344 346

Capital outlays ‘ 59 2 (67) 59 2 (57)
Total expenditures 530 369 (161) 530 369 (161)

OTHER (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES:

expenditures and other (uses) of financial
resources (537) (30) 507 (537) (30) 507

i
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State of lllinois ]
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial

Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Code Departments Agencies, Boards & Commissions
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

REVENUES

i
206,134 - 35,191 35,191 -

Public utility taxes 206,134

Federal government 1,164,558 1,238,839 74,281 216,440 209,240 (7.200)
Other 2,950,884 2,988,109 37,225 123,993 114,074 (9,919)

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Transportation 225,969 202,845 (23,124)
Social assistance
Public protection and justice 16,215 (1,966) 2,387 2,195 (192)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures 304,511 794,198 489,687 {13,413) 21,015 34,428

B
(1,407,230) (13,766)

Operating transfers-out (1,407,230) (13,7€6)

Budgetary funds-nonbudgeted accounts (113,979) (113,979) -

financial resources and budgetary funds-
nonbudgeted accounts 21,808 520,435 498,629 29,911 65,632 35,721

}un

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), Jul
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Other Total
Final Variance Final Variance
Budgst Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

38,323 39,866 1,543 279,648 281,191 1,543
48,105 46,934 (1,171) 1,429,103 1,495,013 65,910
497,581 485,151 (2,430) 3,572,458 3,597,334 24,876

18,384 15,079 (3,305) 244,353 217,924 (26,429)
22,692 21,146 (1,546) 22,692 21,146 (1,546)
221,275 178,306 (42,969) 239,877 194,750 (45,127)

e

(285,567) (80,713) 204,854 5,531 734,500 728,969

(35,726) (35,726) (1,456,722)  (1,456,722) -

(115,690) (115,680)

{(1,711) (1,711)

(146,449) 52,740 199,189 (94,732) 638,807 733,539
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - Code Departments
For the Year Ended June 30, 1898 (Expreased In Thousands)

Central Management Services Commerce and Community Affairs
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under)

803,621 836,098

s,

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Health and social services

Public protection and justice
Natural resources and recreation
Capital outlays 38 38

expenditures 84,652 117,299 32,647 (17,767) (17,057) 710

OTHER SOUHCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES:

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

3

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1997 (32,859) (32,859) - 22,843 22,843 -

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1998 § (62,207) $  (29,556) § 32651 § 31,729 $ 38,480 $ 6,751
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Human Services Public Aid Revenue
Final Variance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

$ 92,560 $ 88,124 % (4436) § 675852 § 735969 S 60,117
29,226 28,980 (246) 680,418 715,355 34,937 410,488 407,439 (3,049)

5 1 (@) _ 100 76 (24)

(13,012) 13,762

(8,582) (8,582) - (72,748) (72,748) - (32,288) (32,288) -

$ (22,761) $ (8,997) § 13,764 § (312,231) § (9,068) $ 303,163 $ 341,775 § 355387 § 13,612

(continued)
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - Code Departments
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

(continued)
Transportation Other Code Departments
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

7
(26.915)

1,017,997 991,082

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Health and social services 391,526 359,616 (31,910)
%

Public protection and justice 16,215 14,249 (1,966)
Natural resources and recreation 27,465 26,484 (981)
Capital outlays 1,908 i 1,762 (146)

expenditures (225,969) (202,845) 23,124 509,564 614,978 105,414

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES:

SR e

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1997 11,059 11,059 - 55,313 56,313

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1998 § (8,648) § 12,809 $ 21,457 % (3,113) 8 104,118 § 107,231
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Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under)

1,164,558 1,238,839 74,281
2,950,884 2,988,109 37,225

16,215 14,249 (1,9686)
27,465 26,484 (981)
2,051 1,877 (174)

304,511 794,198 489,687

(57,262) (57,262) -

$ (35456) § 463,173 § 498,629
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - Department of Central Management Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

State Employees Deferred

Compensation Plan Health Insurance Reserve
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Excess {(deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures 114733 115,016 283 {(30,081) 2,283 32,364

perating tran

Budgetary funds-nonbudgeted accounts (113,979) (113,979) -

financial resources and budgetary funds-
nonbudgeted accounts 733 1,020 287 (30,081) 2,283 32,364
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Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under)

84,652 117,289 32,647

{113,979) (113,979) -

(29,348) 3,303 32,651
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Special State Funds - Department of Commerce and Community Affairs

Far the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Metropolitan Exposition

Auditorium and Office Building Tourism Promotion
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under)

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government 26,863 26,174 (689)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {(under)

expenditures 9,134 9,134 - (26,901) (26,191) 710

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

expenditures and other sources (uses) of

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1998 $ 27,828 § 31,719 § 3,801 § 3,901 § 6,761 § 2,860

202



Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under)

26,863 26,174 (689)

(17,767) (17,057) 710

$ 31,729 $ 38,480 $ 6,751
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - Department of Human Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Mental Health Substance Abuse Block Grant
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

Total revenues 29,122 28,969 (153) 56,522 59,867 3,345

Capital outlays 5 1 (4)
Total expenditures 29,421 28,006 (1,415) 69,225 59,214 (10,011)

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES:
Operating transfers-in
Operating transfers-out v - - (42) (42) -

S

financial resources : (1,424) (162) 1,262 (12,745) 611 13,356
Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1997 (58) (58) - (737) (737) -
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1998 § (1,482) § (220) $ 1262 $ (13,482 § (126) $ 13,356
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Child Care & Development Total
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

100 11 " (89)
36,042 28,257 {7,785) 121,686 117,093 (4,593)

5 1 (4)
36,052 29,123 (6,929) 134,698 116,343 (18,355)

- 2 2 - 2
(1,167)
e

(10) (864) (854) (14,179) (415) 13,764
(7,787) (7,787) it (8,582) (8,582) -
5 (7,797) $ (8,651) § (854) $ (22,761) $ (8,997) $ 13,764
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Special State Funds - Department of Public Aid

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

University of lllinois

Hospital Services County Hospital Services
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual QOver (Under)

00)
138,048 134,624 (3,424) 827,155 915,255 88,100

Total expenditures 173,400 115,781 (57.619) 964,119 920,611 (43,508)

iency) of revenues over (under)

cess (def

44,700 44,700 -
(52,659) (52,659) -

2
’ Operating transfers-in
Operating transfers-out

22,447 - (29,105) (29,105) - —

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1997 22,447

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1998 $ (20,864) $ 33,331 $ 54,195 § (166,069) § (34,461) $ 131,608

206



Care Provider Fund for Persons

with Developmental Disabilities Long Term Care Provider Hospital Provider
Final Variance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

401 (599) 2,750 1,624 (1,126) 7,500 39 (7,461)
33,837 {792) 333,388 328,673 (4,715) 9,300 36,871 27,571

40,106 31,626 (8,480) 376,368 289,637 (86,731) 20,000 18,917 (83)

(25) (25) -— (13) (13) - (13) -

(1,753) (1,753) - (49,834) (49,834) - (14,503) (14,503) -

$ (7,255) $ 433 § 7,688 § (92,827) $ (10,810) $ 82,017 § (25,216) $ 2,439 § 27,655

(continued)
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Special State Funds - Department of Public Aid

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

(continued)

Total
Final Variance
Budget Actuat Over (Under)

7 "2,06 .
Total revenues 1,342,620 1,449,260 106,740

5739 T
Total expenditures 1,573,993 1,377,57. (196,421)

Excesg (qeficiency) of revenues aver (under)

Operating transfers-in 44,700 44,702 2
Operating transfers-out (52,710) (52,710) -

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1997 (72,748) {72,748) -

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1998 $ (312231)§ (9,068) $ 303,163
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - Department of Revenue
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

State Gaming State and Local Sales Tax Reform
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

Other $ 264000 § 261,000 § (3,000)
Less:
Refunds 200 50 (150)

General government 95,233 90,361 {4,872) 34,000 34,000 -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures 168,497 170,543 2,046 135,819 138,821 3,002

ik

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
pendi he {us

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1998 § 2,351 § 4,397 § 2,046 $ 26,748 $ 29,750 § 3,002
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Income Tax Refund McCormick Place Expansion Project Local Government Distributive

Final } Variance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

$ 66,512 § 66,463 % (49)

740,629 740,629 -

A

112,309 117,308 5,000 (38) - 38 (800,352) (799,771) 581

$ 140,347 § 145,347 § 5000 § (38) $ - = $ 8 $ 6,112 § 9,436 $ 3,324

{continued)
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State of lllinois
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - Department of Revenue
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

{continued)

Personal Property Tax Replacement Build IHlinois
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

Less:
Hefupds

Current:
General government 739,093 738,891 (202)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures 194,508 194,710 202 387,773 387,773 -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and other sources (uses) of

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1998 § 166,255 § 166,457 § 202 § - = 5 == == 3 -
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Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under)

740,679

1,757,032 1,751,871 (5,161)

198,516 209,385 10,869

$ 341,775 $§ 355387 § 13,612
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial Resources
and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - Department of Transportation
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Public Transportation Downstate Public Transportation
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

EXPENDITURES:

(Deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures (197,655) (181,503) 16,152 (28,314) (21,342) 6,972

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
dit d oth es) of

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), JUNE 30,1998 § (13,620) $ 7% 13,627 $ 4,972 $ 12,802 § 7,830
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Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under)

(225,969) (202,845) 23,124

$ (8,648) $ 12,809 § 21,457
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State of lllinois
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - Other Code Departments
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Agriculture Children and Family Services
Agricultural Premium DCFS Children's Services
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

REVENUES:

Refunds 1 - (1)
Total revenues 22,833 21,906 (927) 383,188 405,831 22,643

Education 8,720 8,720 -
General govemment 17,466 17,251 (215)
Public protection and justice 6,236 5,906 (330)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (9,926) (10,302) {376) (8,338) 46,215 54,553

(16,100)

Operating transfers-out (48) (48) (16,100)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (unr_ler)

19,374 19,374

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1997 (900) (900)

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1998 $ (1,282) $ (756) $ 526 § (5064)$ 49,501 $ 54,565
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Financial Institutions Lottery Natural Resources
State Pensions State Lottery Wildlife and Fish
Final Variance Final Variance Finat Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

()
70,140 99,979 29,839 895,238 835,610 (59,628) 28,385 29,341

62,938 62,934 4) 363,982 286,673 (77,309)
9,979 8,343 (1,636)

(2,825) 31,504 548,736 17,691 (392) 1,650 2,042

(560,034)  (560,034)

53,250 53,260 (17,503) (17.503) 1,092 1,092 -

$ 50,425 $ 81,929 $ 31,504 § (46,492) $ (27,899) $ 18,593 § (700) $ 1,343 § 2,043

(continued)
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Special State Funds - Other Code Departments

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

(continued)

Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under)

46)
1,399,784 1,392,667 (7,117)

Refunds
Total revenues

Education 8,720 8,720
General government 444,386 366,858 (77,528)

blic proti nd j

16,215 14,249 {1,966)
o A :

A

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

expenditures
7 o

105,414

(577,582)  (577,582) -

Operating transfers-out

Excess{ (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

55,313 -

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1997 ' 55,313

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1998 $ (3,113) § 104,118 § 107,231
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - Agencies, Boards and Commissions
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Other Agencies,
Environmental Protection Agency Boards, and Commissions
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

Other 96,120 81,727 (14,393) 27,873 32,347 4,474
Less:
Refunds 222 57 (165)

Current:
Education 162,000 161,960 (40)
General government 1,956 1,767 (189) 64,147 54,647 (9,500)

otal expenditures 161,886 156,284 (6.602) 291,379 250,606  (40,773)

Excess (deficienp ) of revenues over (under)

dperating transfers-in 25,000 25,003 3 32,090 33,380 1,290
Operating transfers-out (1) (1) - (13,765) (13,765) - -

s

Budgetary fund balances, July 1, 1997 103,133 103,133 - 23,474 23,474 -

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1998 § 158,806 $ 105,841 § (52,965) § (2,286) § 86,398 & 88,686
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Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under)

162,000 161,960 (40)
66,103 56,414 (9.689)

453,265 405,890 (47,375)

57,090 58,383 1,293
(13,766) (13,766) -

126,607 126,607 —-—

$ 156,518 § 192,239 § 35,721
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - Environmental Protection Agency
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Water Pollution Control Vehicle Inspection
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under)

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

e

Total expenditures 115,886 112,960 (2,926) 46,000 42,324 (3.676)

E Qgss__(_deficiem_:y) of revenues over (under)

p

)

Budgetary fund balances, July 1, 1997 93,497 93,497 e 9,636 9,636 v

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1998 $ 122170 § 92,680 $ (29,490) § 36,636 $ 13,161 § (23,475)
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Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under)

161,886 155,284 (6,602)

25,000 25,003 3
() m -

103,133 103,133 ———

$ 158,806 $ 105,841 $ (52,965)
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Special State Funds - Other Agencies, Boards and Commissions
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

State Fire Marshal Housing Development Authority
Underground Storage Tank lllinois Affordable Housing
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

Less:
Refunds 222 57 (165)

Education
General government 597 565 (32) 31,400 23,214 (8,186)
blic protection justi 185 (192

34,518 (3,527) 11,978

Operating transfers-out (13,763) (13,763) (1) (1) -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {under)

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1997 8,404 8,404 24,725 24,725 -

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1998 § (6,960) $ 31,671 § 38,631 § 21,197 § 33,175 § 11,978
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State Board of Education Capital Development Board Metrapolitan Pier and Exposition Authority
Metropolitan Fair and Exposition

Special Education Medicaid Matching School Infrastructure Authority Improvement Bond
Final Variance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

150,000 149,997 (3) 12,000 11,963 (37)
$ 32,150 $ 30,868 $ (1,282)

(30,000) 231 91

(9,655) (9,655)

$  (39,656) (1676) 8 37,080 § 23,191 § 23,228 $ 37 & (60) $ -— $ 60

{continued)
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Special State Funds - Other Agencies, Boards and Commissions

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

(continued)

Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under)

REVENUES:

Other 27,873 32,347 4,474
Less:
Refunds 222 57 (165)

Education 162,000 161,960 (40)
64,147 54,647 (9,500)

General government
2,195 (192)
t)

Public protection and justice 2,387

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

(44,087)

Operating transfers-out (13,765) (1 3,765)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

23,474 23,474

Budgetary fund balances, July 1, 1997

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1998 $ (2,288) $ 86,398 3 88,686

226



This Page Intentionally Left Blank

227



State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Expenditures, Other Sources of Financial Resources and
Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Bond Financed Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Transportation
Commerce and Community Affairs Transportation Series B
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual  Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

EXPENDITURES:

. General government 1,290 530 (760)

Transportation 4,936 752 (4184) & 54,560 $ 54,560 $ -
Public protection and justice

Capital outlays 2,980 2,911 (69)

Total expenditures 221,255 215,812 (5,443) 54,560 54,560 -

THE ES OF FINAN ESOURC

Proceeds from general obli

ation bond issues 108,900 185,481 76,581 64,350 46,642 (17,708)

it
nancial resources ,355}) (30,331) 9,790 (7,918) (17,708)

Budgetary fund balances, July 1, 1997 50,033 50,033 - 36,895 36,895 -—

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1998 $ (62,322)$ 19,702 $ 82024 §$ 46685 $ 28977 §  (17,708)
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Capital Development Board

Capital Development Other Total
Final Variance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

22,392 22,358 (33) 2,181 2,181 - 25,863 25,070 (793)

203 203 - 59,699 565,515 (4,184)

661 177 (484) 661 177 (484)

168,880 166,786 (2,094) 171,860 169,697 (2,163)

270,560 251,744 (18,816) 16,916 16,219 (697) 563,291 538,335 (24,956)

394,020 (1,904) 603,800

33,421 33,421 - 8,185 8,185 - - 128,534 128,534 -

$ 156881 $ 297,737 $§ 140856 § 27,803 § 26,692 § (1.207) § 169,143 § 373,108 $ 203,985
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Expenditures, Other Sources of Financial Resources
and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Bond Financed Funds - Department of Commerce and Community Affairs

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed In Thousands)

Ilinois Civic Center Bond Build lllinois Bond
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

Transportation 4,936 752 (4,184)
Natural resources and recreation 25,228 24,803 (425)
Debt service:

{Deficiency) of revenues (under) i
expenditures (37,908) (37,490) 418 (183,347) (178,322) 5,025

A

i & SRR
Proceeds from general obligation bond issues - 37,411 37,411

108900 148,070

Budgetary fund balances, July 1, 1997 257 257 - 49,776 49,776

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1998 § (37,651) § 178 $ 37829 3 (24671) % 19,524 $ 44,195
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Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under)

4,936 752 (4,184)
25,228 24,803 (425)

108,900 185,481 76,581

50,033 50,033

$ (62,322) % 19,702 $ 82,024
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources of Financial Resources
and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Debt Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Build lllincis General Obligations
Bond, Retirement and Interest Bond, Retirement and Interest
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Interest 476 476 278,700 258,845 (19,855)
Total expenditures 213,126 213,126 - 831,757 809,407 (22,350)

A

207,600 212,650 5,050 681,247 689,399 8,152

BRanen

Budgetary fund balances, July 1, 1997 1,437 1,437 - 411,016 411,016 -

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1998 § (3,934) $ 1,548 $ 5482 $ 401,348 $§ 441,743 § 40,385

232



Other Total
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

11,382 9,075 (2,307) 290,558 268,396 (22,162)
15,002 12,695 (2,307) 1,059,885 1,035,228 (24,657)

123,257 123,257 -
14,602 14,872 270 903,449 916,921 13,472

10,500 10,500 —_ 422,953 422,953 - -

$ 10,250 $ 13,384 § 3,134 § 407,664 $ 456,675 $ 49,011
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State of lllinois
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Federal Trust Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Code Departments Agencies, Boards & Commissions
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual QOver (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

REVENUES:

Refunds 2,225 148 (2,077)
Total revenues 1,082,733 1,041,264 (51,469) 1,046,684 1,056,835 10,151

Education 1,116,675 958,075 (158,500)
General government 521,547 262,333 (259,214)
Transportation 119,331 118,331 == ==

b

Capital outlays 9,228 6,195 (3,033) 1,506 966 (540)E
Total expenditures 1,521,562 1,047,108 (474,454) 1,356,286 1,047,082 (308,204)

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Operating transfers-in 37,427 37,427 -
0 i f ut

xcess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures, other sources (uses) of
financial resources and budgetary funds-

Reclassifications between budgetary/nonbudgetary
funds-net

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1998 $ (450,824) $ (27,839) § 422985 $ (403,155) $ (83,800) § 319,355
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Other Total
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual QOver (Under)

690 1 (689 91
285,682 248,337 (37,345) 2,425,099 2,346,436 (78,663)

13,917 (13,850) 1,144,342 971,092 (172,350)
62,259 (98,795) 682,601 824,592 (358,009)
(728 31! 44)

,706)
{1,058,177)

519,482 244,663 (274,518) 3,397,330 2,339,153

s %

9,915 4,624 {(5.291) 47,342 42,051 (5.291)
(3,482) (3,482) - (4,624) (4,624)

37,343 37,343 (82,418) (82,418)

(31) (31) - - (31) (31) -

$ (199,182) § 32,701 § 231,883 § (1,053,161) § (78,938) § 974,223
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Federal Trust Funds - Code Departments
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Commaerce and Community Affairs Human Services
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

Total revenues 255,050 260,389 318,386 243,433 (74,953)

General govemment 521,547 262,333 (259,214)

Transportation
Social assistance 129,428 15,761 (113,667)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (266,617) (2,058) 264,559 (98,852) (7,175) 91,677

Budgetary funds-nonbudgeted accounts (29,906) (29,9086) -

i

Ziaid
(3.200)

nonbudgeted accounts

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1997 (17,851) (17,851) - (3,170) {3,170) -

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1998 § (285,610) $ (21,051) § 264559 § (94,501) § (2,824) § 91,677
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Other Code Departments Total
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

""" \ 14 7)
519,297 537,442 18,145 1,002,733 1,041,264 (51,469)

B

521,547 262,333 (259,214)
119,331 119,331 —— 119,331 119,331 -
190,253 163,467 (26,786) 319,681 179,228 (140,453)

(63,360) 3,389 66,749 {428,829) (5,844) 422,985

(39) (39) - (29,945) (29,945) -

(7,314) (7,314) - (28,335) (28,335) -

$ (70,713) $ (3,964) § 66,749 § (450,824) $ (27,839) § 422,985
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Uses of Financial Resources
and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Federal Trust Funds - Department of Commerce and Community Affairs
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Low income Home Community Development/
Energy Assistance Block Grant Small Cities Block Grant
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

)
51,200 61,310 10,110 59,700 71,656 11,856

Total expenditures 121,937 60,718 (61,219) 163,134 70,308 (92,826)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {under)

Operating transfers-out (3} (3)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

W
Budgetary fund balances (deficits),

uly 1,

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1998 §  (72,189) § (860) $ 71,329 $ (107,918) (3,236) § 104,682
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Job Training Partnership Total
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

144,150 127,623 (16,627) 255,050 260,389

236,596 131,421 (105,175) 521,667 262,447 (259,220);

(1,142) (1,142) -

(1,139) {(1,139)

(11,818)

$ (105503) 6  (16,955) § 88548 $ (285610)% (21,051) $ 264,559
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources of Financial Resources
and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Federal Trust Funds - Department of Human Services

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Public Health Services Vocational Rehabiitation
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

REVENUES:

Refunds 170 140 (30) 5 (5)
Total revenues 48,730 59,282 10,552 97,943 98,292 349

Social assistance
Capital outlays 1,651 604 (1,047) 1,759 1,444 (315)
Total expenditures 87,237 56,801 (30,436) 108,253 99,066 (9,187)

S 78
OTHER SOURCES OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES:
Operating transfers-in

expenditures, other sources of financial

resources and budgetary funds-
nonbudgeted accounts (38,507) 2,481 40,988 (10,750) (1,214) 9,536

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1998 § (48,064) $ (7,076) $ 40,988 § (2,152) § 7,384 § 9,536
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Special Purposes Trust Old Age Survivors Insurance Total
Final Variance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

175 140 (35)
118,301 27,851 {90,450) 53,412 58,008 4,586 318,386 243,433 (74,953)

129,428 15,761 (113,667) 129,428 16,761 (113,667)
3 2 (1) 1,900 513 (1,387) 5,313 2,563 (2,750)
155,744 37,245 (118,499) 66,004 57,496 (8,508) 417,238 250,608 (166,630)

37,427 37,427 - 37,427 37,427 = -

(29,464) (1,415) 28,049 (12,610) 494 13,104 {91,331) 345 91,677

$ (28,063) $ (14) § 28,049 § (16,222) § (3,118) § 13,104 § (94,501) $ (2.824) $ 91,677

241



State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Federal Trust Funds - Other Code Departments

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Employment Security Transportation
Title Wl Social Security & Employment Service Federal/L.ocal Airport
Final Variance Final Variance
Budgst Actual QOver (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

00 1
Total revenues 159,968 167,932 108,938 117,205 8,267

Social assistance 190,253 163,467 (26,786)
Capital outlays 3,515 (168)

expenditures

Budgetary funds-nonbudgeted accounts

ources and budgetary funds-non budgeted
accounts (33,800) 1,118 34,918 (10,393) (2,126) 8,267
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Aging Public Health

Services for Older Americans USDA, Woman, Infants and Children Total
Final Variance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

200 - (200) 500 1 (499)
50,591 48,970 (1,621) 199,800 203,335 3,535 519,297 537,442 18,145

190,253 163,467 (26,786)
1 1 - 279 170 (108) 3,795 3,518 277

(1,338) 2,211 3,548 (17,829) 2,186 20,015 (63,360) 3,389 66,749

(39) (39) (39) (39) --

(1,377) 2,172 3,549 (17,829) 2,186 20,015 (63,399) 3,350 66,749
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Federal Trust Funds - Agencies, Boards and Commissions

For the Year Ended June 30, 1988 (Exp dinTh ds)
Environmental Protection Agency
State Board of Education U. S. Environmental Protection
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES:

EXPENDITURES:
qurent

£y
Capital outlays 603 411 (199) 903 555 (348)

Total expenditures 1,117,178 958,486 (158,692) 51,821 24,902 (26,919)

Budgetary funds-nonbudgeted accounts (333) (333) -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1997 (83,876) (83,876) - (514) (514) -

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1998 $ (266357)% (77,376)% 188981 & (18,321) % 785 $ 19,108
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Criminal Justice Information Authority Emergency Management Agency

Criminal Justice Trust Federal Aid Disaster Total
Final Variance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

1,506 966 (540)
74,912 32,484 (42,428) 112,375 31,210 (81,165) 1,356,286 1,047,082 (309,204)

(1,794) (1,794) - (2,127) (2,127)

(3.259) (3.259) (3777 (3,777 - (91,428) (91,426)

$ (40531) % (3,586) § 36,945 § (77,946) § (3,623) § 74,323 § (403,155)$  (83,800) $ 319,355
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Federal Trust Funds - State Board of Education

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

S.B.E. Federal S.B.E. Federal
Department of Agriculture Department of Education
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver {(Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

23,466 3,388 (20,078) (205,614) 3,445 209,059

expenditures and budgetary funds-nonbudgeted
accounts 23,148 3,070 (20,078) (205,629) 3,430 209,059
-

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1998 §  (21,146) § (41,224) $ (20,078) § (245.211)$% (36,152) § 209,059
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Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under)

188,981

(182,481) 6,500 188,981

$ (266357)$ (77.376)$ 188,981
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Revolving Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Carrections
Central Management Services Working Capital
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under)

REVENUES:

h : i A = . o Lo ka4
Total revenues 222,080 212,768 {9,312) 43,698 43,497 (201)

ransportatio
Public protection and justice 45,367 41,849 (3,518)
Capital outlays 1,594 1,502 (92) 2,082

expenditures . (9,022) 24,203 23,315 (3,751) 143 3,804

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES:

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and other sources (uses) of
i ial

(6,634) 24,784 31,418 (3,786) 108 3,894

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1998 3 23,355 § 54,773 § 31,418 § (2,935) $ 959 § 3,894
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Other Total
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under)

6,814 4,544 (2.270) 272,592 260,809 (11,783)

(1,084) (708) 378 (13,857) 23,730 37,587

(1,111) (733) a78 {11,531) 24,159 35,690

$ 1,622 $ 2,000 § 378§ 22,042 $ 57,732 § 35,690
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Revolving Funds - Department of Central Management Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

State Garage Statistical Services
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budgst Actual Over (Under)

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
_General government 33,684 29,931 (3,753) 71,513 57,268 (14,245)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures (4,889) 121 5,010 (1,660) 17,684 19,344

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses)

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1997 (4.975) (4,975) - 21,572 21572 --

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1998 $ (9,866) $ (4,855) $ 5011 § 22,309 $ 39,753 § 17,444
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Communications Total
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

99,774 (24,537) 229,508 186,973 (42,535)

(2,473) 6,488 8,961 (9,022) 24,293 33,315

13,382 13,392

29,989 29,989

$ 10,912 $ 19,875 $ 8,963 § 23,355 § 54,773 § 31,418
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State of Hllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Uses of Financial Resources
and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

State Trust Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Exp dinTh 1ds)
Central Management Services Public Aid
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)
REV]ENUES'

Total revenues 108,330 12,562 308,933 418,086 109,153

Educa
General government 117,807 107,335 (10,472)
Social assistance

627 (15)

Total expenditures 117,825 107,335 (10,490) 144,642 114,869 (29,773)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

Operating transfers-out (13) (13) (83,950) (83,950)

Budgetary funds-nonbudgeted accounts (211,176) (211,176) -

and budgetary funds-nonbudgeted accounts (22,070) 982 23,052 (130,835) 8,091 138,926

Budgetaty fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1997, as

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1997 as
reclassified (2,635) (2,635) - 58,491 58,491 -

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1998 $§ (24,705) § (1,653) $§ 23,052 § (72,344) $ 66,582 $ 138,926
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Revenue Student Assistance Commission

Home Rule Municipal R.O.T. ISAC Student Loan Other
Final Variance Final Variance Finai Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

988 988 65,000 89,863 24,863 14,422 12,86:9 (1,653)
324,593 324,593 - 202,000 167,218 (34,782) 64,189 55,040 (9,149)

820)
316 309 )] 18,819 (5,137)

316 309 (1) 200,889 146,493 (54.396) 60,321 27,569 (32,752)

(57 (57) 6 (6) -

(299,411) (299,411) -—— (23,913) (23,913) ~—

24,866 24,873 7 1,054 20,668 19,614 (20,051) 3,652 23,603

1,706 1,706 - 43,756 43,756 - - 7,579 7,579 -

5 26,572 $ 26,579 $ 7 § 44,810 § 64,424 $ 19,614 § (12,472) $ 11,131 § 23,603

(continued)
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Uses of Financial Resources
and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
State Trust Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

(continued)

Total
Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under)

, 86,
1,073,267 77,784

i

Education o " h 1

. 210)
General government 127,090 (15,631)
Social assistance ’ 142 201 112,770 (29,431)

Total expenditures 523,993 396,575 (127,418)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

Operating transfers-out (84,026) (84,026)

Budgetary funds-nonbudgeted accounts (534,500) (534,500)

and budgetary funds-nonbudgeted accounts (147,036) 58,166 205,202

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1997, as

Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1997 as
reclassified 108,897 108,897 —-—

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1998 $ (38,139) $§ 167,063 $ 205,202
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State of llinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Uses of Financial Resources
and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

State Trust Funds - Department of Central Management Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Local Govemment

Health Insurance Reserve Group Insurance Premium
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Qver (Under)

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (9,225) . (509) 8,716 (12,832) 1,504 14,336

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures, other (uses) of financial resources (9,230) {514) 8,716 (12,840) 1,496 14,336

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30,1998 $  (5769) $ 2,947 § B716 $ (18936)§  (4,600)$ 14,336
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Total

Final Variance
Budget Actual Qver (Under)

(22,057) 995

(22,070) 982 23,052

$ (24,705) § (1653) § 23,052
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State of lllinois

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Uses of Financial Resources
and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

State Trust Funds - Department of Public Aid
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 (Expressed in Thousands)

Public Assistance Recoveries Child Support Enforcement
Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Total expenditures 144,642 114,869 (29,773)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

: Oberatmg transfers-otjlt‘ o (77,849) (77,849)

(6,101) {6,101) -

Budgetary funds-nonbudgeted accounts (83,037) (83,037) (128,139) (12B,139) -

:xgﬁgm» g Faidnd i
and budgetary funds - nonbudgeted accounts 20,647 20,653 6 (151,482) (12,562) 138,920
Budgetary fund balances, July 1, 1987 25,010 25,010 - 33,481 33,481 -
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1998 $ 45,657 § 45,663 § 6 $ (118001)% 20,919 $§ 138,920
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Total
Final Variance
Budgst Actual Over (Under)

144,642 114,869 (29,773)

(83950)  (83,350) .

(211,176)  (211,176) -

(130,835) 8,091 138,926

58,491 58,491 -

$ (72344)$ 66582 § 138,926
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STATISTICAL AND ECONOMIC DATA

261



State of Illinois

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
Other Sources and Uses of Financial Resources - GAAP Basis
All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years (Expressed in Thousands)

1998 1997 1996 1995 1994
REVENUES
INCOME 1AXES...0vvecrrrrreeireiesameserimere e senseeneeneesesnens $ 8810664 $ 7931647 $ 7,350,286 $ 6,862,484 6,341,405
SAlBS TAXES. .. i ceeereneireie e e e e 7,167,852 6,823,157 6,520,321 6,271,692 5,984,237
Motor fuel taxes.... 1,287,585 1,231,754 1,197,268 1,154,482 1,098,820
Public utility taxes........co.ccrerrrremrinnrererinrree e 1,207,894 1,092,681 1,047,020 985,016 1,011,616
Other 1aXeS8.......ccvvcieinries et b s 2,774,555 2,854,650 2,901,397 3,266,077 3,110,413
Federal government, 8,950,849 8,909,679 8,409,885 8,639,857 8,404,474
Licenses and fees.... 1,093,463 1,078,001 1,020,758 1,001,099 996,453
Interest and other investment income... 421,478 359,404 351,718 311,898 202,119
[ 111 SO PRSP PUPPSIRRPS 1,551,962 1,395,495 1,099,356 1,035,374 1,308,394
Total revenues 33,266,302 31,676,468 29,898,029 29,527,979 28,457,931
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Health and social services............ccivceiviiniiinnns 9,963,460 9,289,837 8,732,071 8,623,643 7,855,039
Education........c.cceceeervnnenn. 6,785,608 6,131,774 5,752,793 5,395,845 5,128,035
General government.. 5,565,134 4,986,851 4,817,335 4,671,183 4,417,418
Social assistanCe. ..o, 3,539,969 3,873,387 4,131,674 3,995,466 4,698,546
Transportation.........cccccvircenireermrnriereecrarer e 2,649,178 2,697,520 2,627,170 2,713,372 2,535,653
Public protection and justice 1,678,187 1,613,345 1,481,413 1,437,874 1,412,870
Natural resources and recreation.............ccceoeeuee. 414,082 418,567 364,848 388,607 426,270
Debt service:
PrinCipal....c.oeceeroecermrmreneimtie i 522,953 501,299 456,350 443,676 427,646
Interest......... . 443,161 442,578 433,587 444,490 396,971
Capital QUAYS.....c..oceveeerreecrrceseee et e 342,900 374,703 366,518 290,361 263,573
Total expenditures 31,904,632 30,329,861 29,263,759 28,304,517 27,562,021
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures 1,361,670 1,346,607 634,270 1,223,462 895,910
OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Proceeds from notes and general/special
obligation bond iISSUES........c.cccereriirinen i, 597,428 406,473 728,944 776,220 686,929
Proceeds from general/special obligation
refunding bond iISSUES........ccceveveirriicecre e 308,738 84,803 318,040 501,162
Operating transfers-in............coccinnnenn 4,545,916 4,460,454 4,395,048 4,149,874 3,559,780
Operating transfers from component units.... 247 777 18 40 113
Operating transfers-out............ocecveeieninn (4,040,335) (3,876,480) (3.790,475) (3,564,180} (3,002,277)
Operating transfers to component units...........c.o..... (1,492,592) (1,423,032) (1,402,746) (1,377,869) (1,284,315)
Capital lease financing..........cccomiiionnnnn, 11,990 19,249 26,411 10,711 23,148
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent..... (308,738) (84,803) (318,040) (501,162)
Proceeds from certificates of participation................ 90,052 18,802
Proceeds from certificates of participation refunding...
Net other sources (uses) of financial
resources (377,348) (412,559) 47,252 13,598 (16,622)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and net other sources (uses)
of financial resources $ 984,324 934,048 $ 681,522 $ 1,237,060 879,288

* As restated
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1993 1992 1991 1090 * 1989

$ 5927379 § 5645604 $ 5472105 $ 5338959 $ 4,677,087
5,514,941 5,183,617 5,263,439 4,825,537 * 3,937,291
1,056,565 1,032,741 1,020,294 947,840 725,929
970,740 952,493 927,745 913,222 910,247
2,739,100 1,672,536 1,903,844 1,980,669 2,047,575
8,078,948 7,075,372 5,583,518 5,083,032 4,687,304
1,144,715 1,317,403 839,862 830,495 776,878
171,410 254,302 339,960 373,813 302,439
552,133 470,987 416,791 390,013 278,257
26,155,931 23805055 21,767,558 20,683,580 18,343,007
7,387,137 6,369,477 5,117,272 4,501,034 3,885,003
4,857,626 4,679,110 4,667,968 4,480,114 4,047,950
4,182,189 3,967,119 4,147,658 3,608,186 2,459,502
4,706,918 4,649,024 3,935,452 3,350,807 2,983,126
2,372,496 2,605,775 2,540,051 2,207,848 1,954,240
1,168,459 1,114,520 1,089,656 988,815 888,238
369,944 394,158 429,966 420,014 363,986
394,935 379,301 354,320 324,240 280,653
380,755 350,639 343,337 378,989 367,814
272,729 253,729 367,077 367,790 303,723
26,003,188 24,762,852 22,992,757 20,627,837 17,534,325
62,743 (857,797)  (1,225,199) 55,743 808,682
522,808 588,673 621,703 635,530 529,152

880,673 436,203 181,164
3,546,143 3,402,400 3,204,329° 2,893,649 2,515,717
(4136,820)  (3,965,878)  (3,861,013) (3,520,707) (2,960,409)
41,719 21,245 35,642 39,369 20,272

(880,673) (438,686) (224,211)

16,671

2,483

(26,150) 46,440 661 21,465 104,732
$ 36593 $  (811,357) $ (1,224,538) $ 77,208 § 913,414
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State of Illinois

Ratio of General and Special Obligation Bonded Debt
To Assessed Value and Net Bonded Debt Per Capita
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years (Expressed in Thousands Except Ratio and Per Capita Data)

Net General and Special
Obligation Bond Debt

For the Equalized General and Special Obligation Bond Debt Ratio to
Year Ended Assessed Less Debt Assessed Per
June 30 Population Value Total Service Fund Net Value Capita
1988 11,392 $ 99,720,000 $ 4456376 § 167,180 $ 4,289,196 430 % 376.51
1989 11,410 107,416,000 4,756,265 203,301 4,552,964 424 399.03
1990 11,431 117,543,328 5,144,930 214,029 4,930,901 419 431.36
1991 11,543 127,707,027 = 5,520,230 251,506 5,268,724 413 456.44
1992 11,613 136,609,057 5,918,461 257,655 5,660,806 414 487.45
1993 11,697 144,468,536 6,274,656 355,254 5,919,402 410 506.06
1994 11,752 150,144,693 6,699,950 361,549 6,338,401 4.22 539.35
1995 11,830 157,653,737 7,143,804 416,068 6,727,736 4.27 568.70
1996 11,847 165,443,101 7,537,521 499,319 7,038,202 4.25 594.09
1997 11,896 171,381,749 e 7,539,564 605,629 6,933,935 4.05 582.88
1998 (a) 7,718,410 689,510 7,028,900
e-estimated

(a)- Population and Equalized Assessed Value data are not available.

Source: Illinols Property Tax Statistics - lilinois Department of Revenue.
U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census.
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State of Illinois

Ratio of Annual Debt Service for General and Special Obligation
Debt to Total Revenues and Expenditures - GAAP Basis
All Governmental Fund Types

(Primary Government and Component Units)
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years (Expressed in Thousands Except Ratio Data)

For the
Year
Ended Total
June 30 Principal Interest Debt Service Revenues Ratio Expenditures Ratio

1989 $ 256,620 $ 305289 & 561,909 $ 18,343,007 3.06 % $ 17,534,325 3.20 %

1990 294,075 302,188 596,263 20,683,580 2.88 20,627,837 2.88
1991 323,270 299,723 622,993 21,767,558 2.86 22,992,757 271
1992 349,878 296,405 646,283 23,905,055 2.70 24,762,852 2.61
1993 369,687 318,813 688,500 26,155,931 2.63 26,083,188 2.64
1994 410,292 323,309 733,601 28,463,037 2.58 27,567,179 2.66
1995 427,902 350,295 778,197 29,555,580 2.63 28,311,880 2.75
1996 440,080 352,906 782,986 29,945,854 2.65 29,281,140 2.7
1997 479,810 359,718 839,528 31,716,307 2.65 30,345,472 2.77
1998 496,882 357,405 854,287 33,318,487 2.56 31,918,915 2.68
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State of Illinois

Revenue Bond Coverage

Proprietary
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years (Exp din Th ds Except Ci ge Data)
Direct Net Revenue
Fiscal Gross Operating  Availabie for Debt Service Requirements
Year Revenues Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
llinois Student Assistance Commission -
1989 $ 33440 $ 5668 $§ 27772 % 30,960 $ 21,744 $ 52,704 .53
1990 58,665 (a) 7,101 52,564 56,795 (a) 31,251 88,046 .60
1991 73,133 (b) 12,859 60,274 33,200 (b) 17,184 50,384 1.20
1992 121,320 (c) 9,600 111,720 58,690 (c) 38,526 97,216 1.18
1993 131,411 (d) 12,591 118,820 68,930 (d) 40,367 109,297 1.08
1904 202,314 (e) 13,053 189,261 140,680 (e) 42,548 183,228 1.03
1995 117,416 (f) 14,142 103,274 61,720 (f) 44,596 106,316 0.97
1996 124,164 (g) 15,338 108,826 61,025 (g) 47,692 108,717 1.00
1897 144,930 (p) 20,078 124,852 76,165 (p) 51,995 128,160 0.97
1998 107,397 (n) 21,125 86,272 29,895 (r) 57,604 87,599 0.98
COMPONENT UNITS

llinois State Toll Highway Authority -

1989
1990
1991
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998

1989
1990
1991
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997

$ 213941 $ 75289 $ 138672 $ 4,025 $ 40776 § 44,801 3.10
248,602 85,900 160,693 4,285 40517 44,802 3.59
247,381 99,256 148,125 15,735 40,231 55,966 2,65
268,248 101,606 156,742 27,230 48,385 75,615 2.07
262,209 80,311 171,898 17,710 47,818 65,528 262
203,002 127,132 165,960 21,545 52,149 73,684 2.25
314,657 186,967 127,690 24,250 53,962 78,212 1.63
325,410 167,580 157,830 25,750 54,354 80,104 197
460,329 (@) 178,901 281,428 174,590 (q) 54,565 229,155 1.23
330,713 124,470 206,243 26,610 51,553 78,163 2.64

iMinois Housing Devalapment Authority -

$ 191,766 $ 13137 § 178629 § 7381 $ 157220 $ 231,031 77
198,080 11,426 186,654 89,455 165,763 255,218 73
521,256 () 12,224 508,032 421485 () 176,302 597,787 85
277,018 () 12,979 264,039 146,388 () 184,577 330,965 80
272,645 (K) 14,651 257,984 328,676 (k) 172455 501,131 51
329,589 () 18,429 311,160 793,354 () 149,209 942,563 33
220,268 (m) 16,446 203,822 226,107 (m) 121482 347,589 59
360,854 (n) 174,136 186,718 173,146 () 129,502 302,648 62
162,470 9,970 152,500 194,067 132,541 326,608 47
291,916 174,521 117,395 367,165 145,732 532,807 22

1998

Illinois Rural Bond Bank -

1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998

@)

(0)
(©)
(a)
(e)
(U]
@
0]
0]
(k)
0]
(m)
(n)
(0)
®)
(C)]

(n

(0) $ 1,343 $ 700 $ 643 § 95 $ 279 $ 374 172
1,917 535 1,382 630 1,384 2,014 .69
2,528 642 1,886 1,135 1,730 2,865 .66
3,068 564 2,504 1,325 2455 3,780 .66
3,338 511 2,827 1,875 2,932 4,807 59
3,940 730 3,210 2,130 3,469 5,599 57
5,966 1,016 4,950 2,975 4,410 7,385 .67

The Commission advance refunded their previously issued bonds in January, 1990. The amount of the

procesds utilized for refunding was $27,570

The Commission redeemed $33.2 million of principal with bond proceeds in Fabruary, 1991.

The Commission redeemed $58.89 million of principal with bond proceeds in January, 1992.

The Commission redeemed $68.27 million of principal with bond procesds in December, 1892,

The Commission redeemed $135.86 million of principal with bond proceeds in February, 199«

The Commission redeemed $49.695 million of principal with bond proceeds in February, 199¢

The Commission redeemed $49.9 million of principal with bond proceeds in February, 199¢

The Authority advance refunded their previously issued bonds throughout the year. The amount af th
proceeds used for refunding was $301,737

The Authority advance refunded their previously issued bonds throughout the year. The amount of the
proceeds used for refunding was $58,75C

The Authority redeemed $58.005 million of principal with bond proceeds throughout the year. In addition, t+
Authority used $4.241 million from the sale of mortgage loan receivables to redeem previously issued bonds

The Authority redeemed $146.645 million of principal with bond proceeds throughout the year

The Autharity redeemed $57.625 million of principal with bond proceeds in November, 1992

The Authority redeemed $32.44 million of principal with bond proceeds in November, 199¢

First year the Bank issued revenue bonds

The Commission redeemed $68.0 million of principal with bond issuance proceeds of $23,7 million
in February, 1997 and $44.3 million in May, 1997.

The Authority issued $148.3 million of revenue bonds in October, 1996
to current refund $144.3 million of revenue bonds.

The Commission redeemed $19.3 million of principal with bond issuance proceeds of $19.3 million
in February 1998
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State of Illinois

Revenue Bond Coverage *

University and College
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years (Expressed in Thousands Except Coverage Data)

Net Revenue/
Fiscal Revenues/ Expenditures/ Additions Available Debt Service Requirements
Year Other Additions  Other Deductions for Debt Service Principal interest Total Coverage
1989 270,353 $ 244188 $ 26,165 $ 19,667 11,470 91,137 0.84
1990 304,535 262,707 41,828 20,358 12,078 32,436 1.29
1991 313,066 253,813 59,253 20,031 22,233 42,264 1.40
1992 336,807 272,979 63,828 20,160 26,176 46,336 1.38
1993 413,427 345,794 67,633 19,323 27,646 46,869 1.44
1994 361,832 295,495 66,337 21,600 27,224 48,824 1.36
1895 362,303 291,301 71,002 21,495 29,232 50,727 1.40
1996 457,926 383,897 74,029 25,059 28,754 53,813 1.38
1997 787,489 685,854 101,635 28,161 32,229 60,390 1.68
1998 833,590 720,247 113,343 32,520 39,139 71,659 1.58

* Chicago State, Eastern, Northeastern, Western, lllinois State, Northern, Southern lllinois, and the University of lllinois.

The above amounts do not include student tuition and fees which are generally available, if necessary, to cover bond debt

service requirements. The tuition and fees amounts, if included, would significantly increase debt service coverage.
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State of Illinois
Population by Age Group

ILLINOIS
1980 Percent 1990 Percent
Under 5 years 842,324 74 % 848,141 7.4 %
5-19 years 2,836,273 24.8 2,451,088 21.5
20 - 44 years 4,221,949 37.0 4,553,416 39.8
45 - 64 years 2,264,972 19.8 2,141,412 18.7
65 years and over 1,261,911 11.0 1,436,545 12.6
Total 11,427,429 100.0 % 11,430,602 100.0 %
UNITED STATES
1980 Percent 1990 Percent
Under 5 years 16,298,350 7.2 % 18,354,443 7.4 %
5-19 years 56,117,954 24.8 56,976,857 229
20 - 44 years 84,112,743 371 95,765,733 385
45 - 64 years 44,518,372 19.6 46,371,009 18.6
65 years and over 25,498,386 11.3 31,241,831 12.6
Total 226,545,805 100.0 % 248,709,873 100.0 %
Sources: Iiinois Bureau of the Budget, Current Population Reports:

Local Popuiation Estimates, Series P-26, August, 1987.

Hinois Bureau of the Budget, Current Population Reports:
Population Estimates and Projections, Series P-25, July, 1988.

IMinois Bureau of the Budget, Data From 1990 Census,
Summary Tape File 1, July, 1991.

State of Illinois

Total Personal Income
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

Per Capita Personal

Income

Amount Percent United
Year (millions) Change lllinois States
1989 $ 214,841 6.73 % $ 18,862 $ 17,728
1990 227,480 5.88 19,937 18,741
1991 238,635 4.86 20,868 19,568
1992 249,348 4,53 21,649 20,152
1993 263,419 5.64 22,707 20,985
1994 274,623 4.25 23,522 21,712
1995 291,660 6.20 24,849 22,733
1996 306,140 4.96 25,956 23,687
1997 323,729 5.75 27,330 24,866
1998 340,324 513 28,609 25,935

Source: Survey of Current Business,
U.S. Department of Commerce
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State of Illinois

Employment/Unemployed

For the Last Ten Fiacal Years

Unemployment
Total Rate
Year Employment Unemployed (Percent)

1989 5551272 366,641 6.2
1990 5,604,308 363,019 6.1
1991 5531098 390,504 6.6
1992 5500050 476,793 8.0
1993 5540375 440,613 7.4
1994* 5597790 397,880 6.6
1995* 5709305 315,202 5.2
1996* 5761819 322,292 53
1997* 5810505 302,012 49
1998* 5874335 281,216 46

* Due to changes in the employment survey, the results of
the employment survey beginning in 1994 and after are
not comparabile to earlier reports.

Source: U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau
of Labor Statistics Employment

and Earnings.
State of Illinois
Employment by Industry
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years (Expressed in Thousands)
1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998
Mining 21 20 19 18 17 16 14 13 12 12
Construction 209 218 213 200 197 206 214 220 229 239
Manufacturing 981 988 965 921 928 944 958 965 970 979
Transportation and
Public Utilities 302 307 307 302 307 314 321 328 336 340
Wholesale and Retail
Trade 1,271 1,263 1,259 1,240 1,238 1,262 1,301 1,308 1,316 1,333
Finance, Insurance
and Real Estate 370 375 380 376 381 390 385 385 392 405
Services 1,269 1,326 1,357 1,385 1,437 1,487 1,547 1,612 1,664 1,713
Government 743 755 770 773 775 777 795 803 808 806
Total 5,166 5,252 5,270 5215 5,280 5,385 5,635 5,635 5,727 5,827

Source: U.S. Department of Labor.

269



State of Illinois

Contracts for Future Construction
And Residential Building Activity

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

Contracts For Residential Building
Future Activity

Construction Valuation

Year  (millions) Permits  (millions)

1989 $ 10,700 47,440 $ 3,982

1990 11,800 41,070 3,696
1991 8,923 32,367 3,008
1992 10,026 37,358 3,682
1993 10,851 40,381 3,882
1984 11,041 47,168 4,891
1995 11,182 48,506 4,918
1996 11,556 48,304 4,915
1997 11,666 49,248 5,128
1998 11,850 45,576 5,398

Sources: Dodge Division, McGraw Hill
Information System Co.

U.S. Department of Commerce,
Housing Units Authorized by
Building Permits.
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State of Illinois

Sales of All Retail Stores
Annual
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years (Expressed in Milllons)

Percent of Change

United
Year llinois* lllinois*  States
1989 § 80,967 4.4 6.6
1990 86,235 6.5 6.0
1991 90,390 4.8 2.3
1992 91,792 1.6 2.3
1993 93,777 2.2 6.0
1994 97,313 3.8 7.3
1995 101,481 4.3 6.7
1996 107,867 6.2 49
1997 110,779 2.7 4.2
1998 116,793 54 4.8

The U.S. Department of Commerce has dis-
continued their monthly state retail sales series.
Fiscal years 1996, 1997 and 1998 were estimated
by the Department of Commerce & Community
Aftairs based on sales tax collections from the
llinois Department of Revenue.

Source: Nlinois Department of Commerce
& Community Affairs



State of Illinois

Cash Receipts from

Farm Marketings
For the Last Ten Calendar Years (Expressed in Millions)

Livestock Grops
Other Total Total
Livestock Livestock Livestock
Dairy and and Other Total and

Year Cattle Hogs Products Products Products Com Soybeans Wheat Crops Crops Crops
1988 $ 812 $ 1,024 § 338 $ 70 % 2244 $ 1,795 § 1,982 213 % 227 § 4,217 6,461
1989 791 984 365 108 2,248 1,992 1,820 372 274 4,458 6,706
1990 802 1,206 357 112 2,477 2,768 2,059 259 375 5,461 7,938
1991 740 1,172 339 a3 2,344 2,681 1,958 125 401 5,165 7,509
1992 708 1,037 332 89 2,166 2,493 2,104 178 495 5,270 7,436
1993 704 1,112 318 100 2,234 2,893 2,378 170 475 5,916 8,150
1994 671 943 335 101 2,050 2,849 2,385 180 482 5,896 7,946
1995 622 899 303 101 1,925 3,410 2,448 251 470 6,579 8,504
1996 550 1,055 345 113 2,063 3,274 2,534 170 475 6,453 8,516
1997 513 1,011 3n 102 1,937 3,624 3,107 214 494 7,339 9,276

1998 *

* Information unavailable

Source: Agricultural Outlook, U.S. Department of Agriculture
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State of Illinois

Largest Manufacturers
(Ranked by Number of Employees)

Number of
Number of Hlinois
Company Employees Installations
Caterpillar, Inc. 20,960 10
Abbott Laboratories 12,700 3
Motorola, Inc. 8,425 11
Ford Motor Company 5,088 2
Qlin Corporation 4,450 3
Mitsubishi Motor Mfg., Inc. 4,200 1
Chrysler Corporation 3,750 1
Kraft USA 3,380 5
Donnelley & Sons Co. 3,325 4
3 Com Corp 3,300 2
Maytag 3,286 2
Honeywell Inc. 3,200 2
John Deere 3,140 4
World Color Press 3,040 4
Granite City Steel 3,000 1
Sundstrand Aerospace 2,800 1
ADM Co. 2,710 8
Northrop Grumman Corp. 2,600 1
General Electric 2,575 5
General Motors 2,500 1
Baxter Healthcare Corp. 2,500 1
Ingersoll 2,485 3
Nabisco Inc. 2,400 1
Zenith Electronics Corp. 2,400 2
Bridgestone/Firestone 2,155 2

Source: llinois’ Manufacturer’s Directory,
1998 (latest statistics available).

State of Illinois

Bituminous Coal Production
Annual
For the Last Ten Calendar Years (Expressed in Thousands of Tons)

Percent
Total
Year Surface Underground Total of U.S.
1989 19,603 40,528 60,131 6.2 %
1990 18,646 43,011 61,657 6.0
1991 15,903 44,132 60,035 6.1
1992 12,848 47,484 60,332 6.2
1993 7.937 34,207 42,144 4.5
1994 9,246 44,781 54,027 5.3
1995 6,878 42,659 49,537 4.0
1996 7,600 39,700 47,300 4.5
1997 6,300 35,000 41,300 3.8
1998 a 2,400 17,300 19,700 3.6

a - through June
Source: Nlinois Department of Natural Resources.

Printed by Authority
by the State of lilinois
12/98 - 525 Job No. 32670
Cost Per Copy $15.59

272



SERVICE EFFORTS AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS (SEA)

Following are service efforts and accomplishments
(SEA) reports on individual agency programs and
activities. These reports are organized and color-coded
by GAAP expenditure function. which include the fol-
lowing:

B Health and Social Services - expenditures to pro-
mote the physical and mental well-being of all citizens
and social and rehabilitative services to assist disabled
or underprivileged individuals to become self-support-
ing;

B Educarion - expenditures for the elementary, sec-

ondary, and post-secondary education provided to all
children and available to all adults of the State:

B General Government - expenditures associated
with the administration of State functions not classified
elsewhere:

B Transportation - expenditures for programs to
develop, construct, and maintain the State’s network of
highways. waterways, airways, and mass transporta-
tion facilities;

B social ‘ance - income assistance expenditures
to those individuals unable to meet their basic mainte-
nance needs due to unemployment, underemployment
or inability to work;

ERTAY

B Public Protection and Justice - expenditures for
the State’s effort to safeguard citizens, including regu-
lation of industry, licensing of professions, law
enforcement protection. and the judicial and penal sys-
tems: and

B Natural Resources and Recreation - expenditures
to improve the quality of the environment and to devel-
op land within the State to be used as recreational
areas.

SEA-1

Each expenditure function includes reports for one or
more specific agencies within that function. The
agency reports include a brief narrative followed by
one or more data pages. The narrative may describe
and comment on the agency's performance, its perfor-
mance indicators and data. or both.

Most of the data presented was prepared and submitted
by the agencies themselves, The Office of the
Comptroller consulted with agencies. as necessary, to
clarify and refine the information or data submitted. In
a limited number of instances. identifiable external
sources such as federal reports, various state reports,
audit reports, or other published material were used as
sources for data or information.

It should be noted that none of the source measurement
data has been subject to audit processes. It is the inten-
tion of the Office of the Comptroller that none of the
SEA information presented falls within the scope of
the audit opinion applicable to the traditional financial
presentations contained in this CAFR.
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HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES: DEPARTMENT ON AGING

Mission and Organization

Two-thirds of the Department on Aging’s (DoA) total
budget is the Community Care Program (CCP). This
program was established in 1979 to provide in-home
and community-based care to at-risk seniors. CCP
includes case management services. homemaker ser-
vices, adult day care. senior companion services. and
numerous demonstration projects that attempt to main-
tain the independence of the older adult. The home-
maker services program provides laundry, meal prepa-
ration, cleaning, and other services to seniors in their
own homes. The adult day care arranges for meals and
activities outside of the home. Case coordination units
provide seniors with complete case management and
education for seniors and their families on the various
options open to them.

One important element of case coordination is its role
in Choices for Care in Illinois, a statewide, universal
pre-admission screening program. Choices for Care is
designed to help older citizens make informed choices
about their need for care before entering a nursing
home. State law now requires that screenings occur
before anyone is admitted to a nursing home in Illinois.
The Department of Human Services screens those who
are aged 18-60 and those who are developmentally dis-
abled, while the DoA is responsible for those aged 60
or older.

Discussion of Indicators

Before fiscal year 1997, the DoA screened only those
persons who were Medicaid-eligible. With the imple-
mentation of Choices for Care in Illinois. the number
of screenings conducted by the Department more than
tripled, growing to 62,747 in fiscal year 1997 from
around 14,500 in fiscal year 1996. In fiscal year 1998,
the screenings conducted totaled 69,746, which is the
sum of face-to-face, non-face-to-face. and number of
clients deflected into interim CCP services.

The DoA's case coordination activities include a
screening program that is administered through con-
tracts with a network of 44 ‘case coordination’ service
providers throughout [llinois. The assessments result
in a DON (Determination of Need) score for each indi-
vidual based on a variety of factors. A minimum of 29
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points is required to indicate a need for admission to a
nursing home, while the average score for DoA’s case-
load was about 47. If the screening process reveals
that the senior is not eligible. the case manager informs
individuals and their families of subsidized and pri-
vate-pay community care options that are available in
lieu of nursing home services.

A person who is Medicaid-eligible and chooses com-
munity care options over admission to a nursing home
is counted as a ‘deflection.” The cost of the alternative
care that they receive is then compared to the average
costs of a Medicaid-funded long-term care facility.

The Choices for Care in Illinois screening program has
been a cost-effective approach to identifying care
choices that preserve independence without compro-
mising care delivery. The SEA report reveals the total
monthly and yearly savings of the program to federal,
state, and individual parties of $1.6 million and $18.8
million, respectively. A recent Auditor General's
review of the program estimated the state cost-savings
to be around $2.8 million in fiscal year 1997, when
compared with Medicaid long-term care.

There are. however, issues that need to be kept in mind
when reviewing this program. As the DoA has noted
in its own analysis of Choices for Care in [llinois, the
availability of community-based care would influence
the number of deflections. For example, someone who
qualified for admission to a long-term care facility may
have been willing to accept alternative care, but was
unable to because of specific gaps in home and com-
munity-based services.

Service efforts and accomplishments reporting is more
than just a bureaucratic or academic exercise. Society
is struggling with how it will provide for an aging pop-
ulation or manage the costs of long-term care. The
DoA and the Community Care Program are working to
address these and related questions. SEA reporting
should help both the Department and its managers gen-
erate the necessary information to indicate how well
their efforts are providing some of the answers.



Community Care Program Screenings by Agency

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year FY 1997 t?
1997 1998 1998 Ading S
Actual Target Actual % )
(Dollars in Millions) §
Inputs
CCP budget g
appropriations $ 131.4 § 146.5 $ 143.7 o~
Total units expended (CCP) 15,066,720.7 16,721,880.2 16,410,723.4 [
Percent of CCP budget -~
Homemaker service 82.09 % 8235 % 82,35 %
Adult day care 6.71 % 6.49 % 6.49 % OHS (DMHDD) DHS (DORS) :b.
Case coordination units 11.20 % 11.16 % 11.16 % a9, 16%
Outputs ~
CCP average monthly Q‘q
cascload 32,906 35,000 34,784 CCP Budget
Clients served 394,869 420,000 417,418 FY 1998 Actual
Percent of clients on Homamakear
medicaid 31.2 % 33.0 % 33.0 % service
Units of service 83%
Homemaker service 12,598,821.2 13,982,888.8 13,800,683.4 ;
Adult day care 1,927,827.0 2,139,509.1 2,034,040.0
Case coordination units 540,072.5 599,402.3 576,000.0
Qutcomes
Percent of CCP screens
Face-to-face 96.14 % 97.00 % 97.52 %
Non-face-to-face 3.86 % 3.00 % 2.48 %
Number of clients deflected GCase Adult day care
into interim CCP services 4,792 6,612 6,612 coordination b
Deflections into CCP 741 788 783 units
Efficiency/ 1%
Cost Effectiveness
Individuals in CCP vs. Units of Service Provided (Measured in Hours)
nursing home FY 1998 Actual
Monthly savings § 14 % 1.5 5 1.6 Homamaker
Yearly savings $ 166 3 176§ 18.8 sarvice
Explanatory Information

1. The following represent key demographics and statistics for the service area for each of the
years involved:
1DoA total budget  § 195,464,100 § 221,406,600 § 215,030,600
60+ population in Illinois 1,921,125 1,918,297 1,918,297
Average DON score 47.26 47.27 47.27
DON stands for Determination of Need. The minimum number necessary to indicate a need for
admission to a nursing home is 29. 110 represents the highest amount of need. The Average

DON score represents the average scored for the CCP caseload. Case Adult day cara
2. Total Units Expended (CCP) and Units of Service are both measures of hours of service. coordination 129%
3. Number of clients deflected into interim CCP services reflects cases where the client faces units
immediate placement in a nursing home, so to prevent this they are provided with temporary 4%

CCP services while their case is being reviewed.
4. The Monthly and Yearly Savings is for federal, state, and individual party. This figure is
calculated by subtracting the cost of deflections into CCP from the estimated costs in Medicaid

Federal, State, and Individual Party Savings for
Individuals in CCP vs. Nursing Home

nursing homes. The CCP average monthly cost of care was $323.71 in FY 97 and $344.27 in (Millions of Dollars)
FY 98. Average monthly cost of a medicaid nursing home was $2,190 for FY 97 and $2,349 1.800 19,000
for FY 98. 1.550 18.500
1500 18.000
C - 17,500
E s - 17.000 g
. 16.500 *
1.350 16.000
1.300 15,6500
1.250 15.000
EY FY FY
1997 1908 1998
Actual Target Actual

I Monthly savings —+—Yearly savings
SEA-4



HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES:

CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

Mission and Organization

Established in 1964, the Department of Children and
Family Services (DCFS) became the first cabinet-level
state agency in the country expressly dedicated to serv-
ing children and families. With more than 4.200
employees, the Department is comprised of several
divisions charged with protecting and promoting the
welfare of children; providing services to children and
their families to maintain family structure and prevent
unnecessary separation of children from their families:
providing adequate substitute care of children when
removal from the home is necessary; and placing chil-
dren in suitable permanent homes when restoration to
the biological family is not possible or appropriate.

Most of the time, services provided to children and
their families result from calls to the statewide Child
Abuse and Neglect Hotline. When a hotline call is
received. a determination is made as to whether the
report warrants further investigation. If this is the case.
the result is a family report that is followed up by a
Child Protection Investigator (about 19 percent of hot
line calls result in a family report). In approximately
30 percent of these cases, the investigator finds credi-
ble evidence that there was abuse or neglect (indicated
report).

If the child is not in immediate danger and a determi-
nation is made that it is in the best interest of the child
to remain in the home, the Department begins efforts to
stabilize and preserve the family. Children at immedi-
ate risk are removed from the home and placed in sub-
stitute care (e.g.. a foster or relative home). The courts,
DCFS, and outside experts then make an assessment
and formulate a plan for a permanent solution such as
reunification with the family. adoption, or private
guardianship.

Discussion of Indicators

Over the last ten fiscal years spending by the
Department from appropriated funds rocketed from
$339 million to $1.3 billion, an increase of 284 percent
or nearly four times faster than overall state spending.
DCFS spending from the General Revenue Fund (the
State’s main operating fund) jumped 235 percent com-
pared to statewide growth of 65 percent. Most of this
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growth in spending occurred following the B. H.
Consent Decree in December 1991. That Decree
called for a dramatic re-engineering of the
Department’s activities and placed DCFS squarely in
the public spotlight. The resulting exposure helped
heighten public awareness of child abuse and neglect.

The increase in public awareness is clearly evident in
the growth of hotline calls and the disposition of those
calls over the last ten years. Between 1989 and the
peak in 1995, hotline calls. family reports and indicat-
ed reports increased dramatically before falling over
the last three years.

However. the considerable decline in these indicators
since 1995 does not necessarily say anything about the
Department’s ability to protect children. but may well
be indirect evidence that Department and societal pre-
vention efforts are having the desired effect. Further
evidence that prevention efforts may be having a posi-
tive effect can be found in the fact that DCFS fell short
of its forecasts for fiscal year 1998. In this specific
case, receiving fewer hotline calls and investigating
fewer cases of abuse and neglect than originally
expected is a positive sign.

DCEFS collects numerous other measures of protective
service outputs and outcomes, some of which have
been included for reference. Many of these indicators
have also been moving in the right direction for sever-
al years.

If DCFS has to get involved in the life of a family, the
Department’s preference is to keep the children in the
home whenever possible and to serve the family intact.
When the decision is made to serve a family intact,
there is an expectation that the Department’s services
will allow that family to remain together while provid-
ing a safe environment for children, DCFS collects
and tabulates a number of outcome measures that pro-
vide a context for its Family Maintenance activities.
Examples of these measures are presented on the data
page and indicate a growing success rate over the last
several years.

When children are removed from the home, they are
placed in the substitute care system. Here the
Department has two objectives: to place children in as
homelike an environment as possible, and to achieve



permanency as quickly as possible. The preferred
form of permanency is reunification with the family.

Substitute care includes foster care. residential place-
ment in an institution or group home, and independent
living, Itis not intended as a permanent living arrange-
ment, but as a means of protecting and nurturing the
child while a permanent living arrangement is being
pursued. Over the last ten fiscal years, the substitute
care caseloads have followed much the same pattern as
protective service caseloads — rising 109 percent
between 1991 and 1995, with slower growth in 1996
and 1997 before falling in 1998. The largest compo-
nent of substitute care is relative care, which is over 50
percent of the total, This component accounted for the
majority of the total growth over the period. jumping
161 percent,

Through various legislative initiatives, improved com-
puter systems, better training for DCFS and private
agency child protection workers, and changes in its
own policies and procedures, the Department has
sought to stem the growth in the number of children
entering the substitute care system while providing
adequate protection for the victims of child abuse and
neglect. The results of those efforts are evident in the
numbers, particularly for residential placements — the
most costly form of substitute care. Departmental
reforms that improved the targeting of those services
have resulted in a considerable drop in residential
placements and the dollar savings noted in the table.

Another major objective of the Department is to mini-
mize the amount of time children spend in substitute
care. To this end. considerable effort is put into devel-
oping permanent living arrangements, including reuni-
fication with the child’s family. adoption. and assump-
tion of guardianship by a relative or foster parent.

Legislative changes, increased efforts on the part of
DCFS and community groups. and changes in DCFS
policies and procedures have led to a dramatic increase
in the number of adoptions since 1993. After showing
little change over the previous several years, the num-
ber of new finalized adoptions jumped from just under
1.000 in 1993 to 4.293 in fiscal year 1998. This explo-
sive growth is reflected in the increase in total subsi-
dized adoptions to 15,696 at the end of fiscal year
1998.
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In some cases, particularly those involving relatives,
guardianship is preferred to adoption. However, while
nearly all adopted children qualify for some kind of
state assistance, until very recently. state assistance
ended when a relative care giver or foster parent
assumed guardianship. In 1997, a new dimension was
added to the guardianship option. At that time. Illinois
and a handful of other states began a demonstration
project with the Federal government whereby the
states were granted waivers allowing them to offer sub-
sidized guardianship to eligible families. Subsidized
guardianship is expected to help relieve the financial
strain and encourage the movement of more children to
a permanent living arrangement. Evidence of this
potential can be found in the establishment of 1,445
subsidized guardianships by the end of fiscal year
1998, the first full year of the program.

DCFS is a prime example of information overload.
The agency collects data on many more output and out-
come indicators than were included in this report. The
challenge lies in deciding which measures present the
most complete and accurate picture.

In terms of cost-effectiveness measures, the
Department provided several good examples showing
cost savings from its activities. While this is valuable
information. more is needed to describe inputs and effi-
ciencies.

Input measures might include the number of employ-
ees in each of the four major functional areas as well as
information about employees in ancillary functions.
Since DCFS has privatized major portions of its activ-
ities, information on outside agency workers might
also be helpful.

Efficiency measures might include a more detailed
description of the cost per type of case. The availabil-
ity of more input information would make possible the
calculation of additional efficiency measures.
Including more measures would likely require more
explanatory notes, but would also add to the complete-
ness of the report.
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1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 .’%
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year 3
(Dollars in Millions)

Inputs (General Revenue Fund and DCFS Children Services Fund only) §
Budget expenditures N/A N/A NA § 91,249 3 93.693 o
Average # of investigators N/A N/A N/A 541 524 a

Outputs @5
Hotline calls 369,309 377,467 352,629 355,579 339,649
Family reports resulting D

from hotline calls 75,525 77,084 70,740 68,121 65,870 E

Number of CA/N reports N/A 139,720 125,220 119,442 113,951 e

Number of substantiated a‘
CA/N reports N/A 53,270 44,536 41,954 36,793 g

Outcomes
Indicated reports 27,025 28,719 24,609 23,243 20,784 g
% of hotline calls resulting X

in a family report 205 % 204 % 20.1 % 19.2 % 19.4 %

% of family reports indicated 358 % 373 % 348 % 341 % 31.6 % ;?

% of CA/N Investigations 5
initiated within 24 hours 97.6 % 98.7 % 995 % 99.2 % 99.1 % P

% of CA/N investigations ‘
completed within 60 days 824 % 87.9 % 95.5 % 95.1 % 92.2 %

% of investigations completed %
not overdue 86.2 % 92.6 % 98.8 % 98.1 % 96.2 %

% of child victims with no g‘
new indicated CA/N %)
report in 6 months 865 % 86.1 % 386 % 893 % 89.0 % a

Efficiencys/

Cost Effectiveness
Investigations per worker

per month N/A N/A N/A 10.4 10.4

Explanatory Informaiion

1. Hotline calls are calls to the Statewide Child Abuse and Neglect Hotline.

2. Family reports equal individual cases that a hotline worker determines merit investigation by a child protection investigator.
3. Indicated reports are those investigations where a child protection investigator determines abuse or neglect did take place.
4. CA/N: Child abuse and neglect.

Statewide Child Abuse and Neglect

Hotline Calls

400,000

350,000 Family Reports and Indicated Reports
300,000

260,000 80,000

200,000 70,000/

150,000 60,000

50,0001

100,000

50,000 40,000

30,000

188

fge2 =
19483 1004

1990 4991

Fiscal Year
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1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 %
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Y
(Dollars in Millions) §
Inputs (General Revenue Fund and DCFS Children Services Fund only)
Budget expenditures N/A N/A N/A 8 69.970 $ 72.968 g
outputs o~
Intact families served o
(Total unduplicated annual) N/A N/A N/A 21,456 17,980 kh
Intact family caseload a
(End of year) N/A 14,565 13,782 12,350 9,746 =
Intact family cases opened —_—
over 12 months N/A N/A N/A N/A 2,377 5‘
Outcomes §
Intact family cases closed N/A N/A N/A 15,105 14,597
Families with no paid services §
for at least 12 months N/A N/A N/A 957 619 W
% of intact family cases
closed at least 6 months 89.6 89.4 91.2 92.1 N/A® g’
% of family cases opened S
intact remaining intact at o
least 6 months 90.1 92.1 94.1 94.7 N/A® Q:?
% of family cases opened
as intact families 71.8 77.3 85.9 85.8 79.1 f.e
Efficiency/ E
Cost Effectiveness None reported &
Explanatory Information o
Intact family cases are those where abuse or neglect has been indicated, but the children remain in the home. @

Services are provided to help maintain the family and prevent further occurrences of abuse or neglect.
* This data will not be available until at least 6 months after the close of fiscal year 1998 (January 1999).

Statewide vs. DCFS Expenditures
Percent Change FY1989-FY1998

3
25
2
1.5
1
DCFS Analysis of Expenditures
05 (Dollars in Millions)
0
Appropriated 1440
(-]
General Funds Funds 1,200
WDCFS M Statewide 1,000
800
500 {*

400 | 4
200 |

ek Total Appropriated Funds

223
[+
(=]
-
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1997 1998 1998
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year -~
Actual Target Actual 3]
(Dollars in Millions) §
Inputs (General Revenue Fund and DCFS Children Services Fund only) *
Budget appropriations/expenditures 996.299 1,020.203 § 982.745 =
Outputs b 5
Children with "return home" goal 13,957 n/a 12,256 QO
Substitute Care
Children in regular foster care 11,491 11,382 11,288 L
Children in specialized foster care 7,357 6,750 6,790 -
Children n relative care 27,629 25,472 24,088 &
Toial Foster Care 46,477 43,604 42,166 a.
Children in residential placements 3,258 2,840 2,901 o
Children in independent living 981 1,115 1,029 :3
Total Substitute Care 4,239 3,955 3,930
Outcomes §
Children reunified 5,002 5,377 4,551 a.
Residential out-of-state population 325 150 189
Child cases closed 9318 10,850 11,606 b
Children moved from residential to less Q
intensive settings 2,564 2,300 2,186 3
Effictency/ ~.
Cost Effectiveness
Est. reduction in spending due to movement of D}
children to less intensive settings (A) $ 124.862 114919 § 109.223 )
Annualized savings from reunification of 3
families (B) 44,466 49,235 $ 41.672
Explanatory Information %
(A) Savings assumes differences between average daily rate of $203.99 for Residential Care and $67.10. @

30,000

25,000

20,000

15,000

10,000

5,000

for Specialized Foster Care in FY1998. $202.60 and $60.18 respectively for FY1997.
(BY Savings assume average monthly cost of care of $740.81 for FY1997 and $763.05 for FY1998.

Lihlk

1989

1990

SUBSTITUTE CARE:
Foster Care Caseload

Specialized, Regular and Relative Care

1991 1992

O Specializad

1993 1994
Fiscal Year

@ Regular

@ Relativa

1995 1996 1997 1998
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Adoption and Guardianship

1997 1998 1998
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Actual Target Actual

(Dollars in Millions except Efficlency/Cost Effectiveness)
Inputs (General Revenue Fund and DCFS Children Services Fund only)

Budget appropriations/expenditures § 70.753 § 91.355 $ 89.770
outputs
Children freed for adoption 1,862 N/A 3,333
Qutcomes
Children newly adopted 2,229 3,700 4,293
Children new guardianships 186 600 1,301
Total children in subsidized adoptions
(End of year) 11,377 14,597 15,696
Total children in subsidized guardianships
(End of year) 186 787 1,445
Efficiency/
Cost Effectiveness

Estimated savings from movement of children from substitute
care to adoption or subsidized guardianship:
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Administrative service fees” $ 4,392 $ 4,524
Children newly adopted (1) $ 9,789,768 % 16,738,800 § 19,421,532
Children new guardianships (2) $ 816,912 & 2,714,400 § 5,885,724
Total children in subsidized adoptions $ 49,967,784 % 66,036,828 § 71,008,704 )
(End of year) (3) 2
Total children in subsidized guardianships ~ $ 816,912 § 3,560,388 § 6,537,180 a‘-
(End of year) (4) O
Explanatory Information @
A child must be freed for adoption before a court can transfer parental rights and
responsibilities to the adoptive family. Children moved to guardianship may be freed for
adoption, but thar is not legally required.
* Monthly savings in administrative service fees is $366.00 in FY1997 and $377.00 in FY1998.
(1) & (2) are one-year savings from that fiscal year's new adoptions and guardianships.
(3) & (4) are annual savings [rom all subsidized adoptions & guardianships. Subsidized Adoptions
(End of Year)
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EDUCATION: ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION

Mission and Organization

In Illinois. the State Board of Education is charged
with setting the guidelines for achieving academic suc-
cess in public elementary and secondary classrooms.
Numerous factors play a role in the ultimate goal of
enabling children to achieve their fullest potential
within the public education setting in Illinois. A
review of many of these factors, be they inputs such as
monetary and human resources, outputs such as
dropout and attendance rates or outcomes such as test
scores, may provide insight into the successes and fail-
ures of the public education delivery system.

Discussion of Indicators

The supply of basic resources (inputs) infused into the
delivery system for public education include funding,
student enrollment. school districts and the number of
schools within districts. and human resources such as
administrators and teachers.

Certainly the most basic of resources is funding which
totaled $14.319 billion from all sources for the school
year 1997-98, an increase of $3.903 billion or 37.5 per-
cent over school year 1992-93. On average school
funding has increased by $781 million or 7.5 percent
over each of the last five fiscal years.

This level of funding supports an education system
inhabited by 1.951,998 students in the 1997-98 school
year. an increase of 116,258 or 6.3 percent since the
1992-93 school year. Guidance for the nearly two mil-
lion public school students in Illinois is provided by
7.339 administrators and 116.574 teachers throughout
the 898 school districts with 3,864 schools.

Examples of outputs of the elementary and secondary
education system include dropout rates, student atten-
dance rates, number and rate of chronic truancy. and
graduation rates. The graduation rate of 81.8 percent
and the attendance rate of 93.9 percent for school year
1997-98 are at the highest levels over the last six
school vears. The dropout rate of 6.2 percent is at its
lowest level over the same period. As far as truancy,
the number of chronic truants is at its highest level over
the six-year period; however, the rate of chronic truan-
cy has remained fairly steady as student enrollment has
increased.
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Despite the substantial amount of resources dedicated
to public education. few indicators as to the impact
(outcome) of this investment exist. Obviously, the
most important outcome indicators are the academic
and social achievement levels of students - how well
has the educational system prepared students and how
competitive are there achievement levels with other
states and nations. One example of an outcome is
IGAP (Illinois Goals Assessment Program) test scores.
IGAP data reveals that student performance in math
appears to be progressing: however, reading scores
have not fared as well. For all grade levels tested.
reading scores have remained relatively steady or
declined since 1991 while math scores have increased
significantly.

For the 1998-99 school year, student assessment will
be conducted using the [llinois Standards Achievement
Test (ISAT). Test results for high school students will
become part of a student’s permanent record, while
elementary students’ test results will become part of
their temporary record. One of the drawbacks of IGAP
testing is the possibility that students did not take the
testing seriously since there were no consequences for
poor performance. By placing test results on a stu-
dent’s record, the hope is that more students will take
the test seriously, thus giving educators a better picture
of student performance. One consequence of a change
in testing (from IGAP to ISAT) is that trend or year-to-
year comparisons will be unavailable, at least for the
immediate future.

No efficiency measures for elementary and secondary
education were reported. For a major function of gov-
ernment such as educating the children of our state, a
look at the efficiency or cost effectiveness of the sys-
tem could provide valuable insight into why scholastic
achievement is lagging in certain areas such as reading.
Beyond this specific example, however, the question of
the relationship between resources provided and edu-
cational performance remains one of the most intense-
ly debated and still unresolved issues in the area of
education policy.



Elementary and Secondary Education Ny
T~
School Year %‘
1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 o
(Dollars in Billions) :-‘.::1_
Inputs i~
Educarion revenues Q
State % 3.475 $ 3.612 $ 3.793 $ 3.995 5 4.307 $ 4.849
Local 3 6.078 g 6,453 $ 6.841 $ 7.340 $ 7.701 5 8.052 a
Federal $ 0.863 & 0901 § 1080 8 1123 § 1153 & 1.418 ~
Total 5 10.416 $ 10.966 % 11.714 3 12.458 3 13,161 3 14.319 m‘
Public school ta
enrollment 1,835,740 1,854,222 1,880,376 1,906,599 1,931,871 1,951,998 s%
Public school Qo
administrators 6,854 6,777 6,924 7,089 7,210 7,339 ::
Public school teachers 106,970 106,461 108,557 111,279 113,965 116,574 S
Number of public =N
schools 3.875 3,874 3,825 3,821 3,836 3,864 q
Number of public
school districts 929 922 913 905 903 898 g!‘
Queputs =
Dropout rate 6.2 % 7.0 % 6.8 % 6.5 % 6.4 % 6.2 % L
Attendance rate 93.4 % 93.2 % 93.4 % 93.5 % 93.8 % 939 % £
Chronic truancy rate 2.2 % 24 % 24 % 23 % 23 % 23 % e
Number of chronic g
truants 38,599 42,314 43,6606 42,974 42,546 43,167
Graduation rate 814 % 78.0 % 80.7 % 80.5 % 81.6 % 81.8 %
Quicomes See below
Efficiency/
Cost Effectiveness  None reported
State Mean |GAP Scores for Third Grade State Mean IGAP Scores for Eighth Grade
280 = — % 300
280 250
270 200
gemﬂﬂﬁ,f §1m
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——Roading —8—Malh ===Resdng =8—Man
State Mean IGAP Scores for Sixth Grade State Mean IGAP Scores for Tenth Grade
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EDUCATION: HIGHER EDUCATION

Mission and Organization

[llinois" higher education system consists of 18]
degree-granting institutions, of which 12 are public
universities, 49 are community colleges, 100 are pri-
vate. non-profit universities and colleges. and 20 are
proprietary schools. In addition to degree and certifi-
cate programs. these institutions deliver programs of
developmental and remedial instruction. continuing
education, personal enrichment, technical or vocation-
al training, and a variety of other services.

In a functional area like higher education, there is a
major issue in state-level service efforts and accom-
plishments (SEA) reporting which requires much more
consideration, debate, and experimentation. The issue
is whether state-level SEA reporting should focus on
the aggregate data of the state’s educational system,
individual institutions, or the state's governing body
(the Board of Higher Education).

It can be argued that aggregate data on the educational
system taken as a whole tend to mask significant dif-
ferences at individual institutions. Therefore. as part of
this year’s experimentation, this report includes both
aggregate higher education data and data from one
individual institution, Southern I[llinois University
(SIU). Along with SIU, six other higher education
institutions, the Board of Higher Education, and two
ancillary groups reported their SEA data to the
Comptroller this year. Examples of inputs, outputs,
outcomes, and efficiencies varied widely among par-
ticipating institutions. The SEA report submitted by
SIU was the most thought-provoking and complete
report submitted this year. It will be used not only as
an example or illustration this year, but also as a possi-
ble model or guideline for higher education institutions
in future years. This report has been reproduced and
included exactly as submitted by SIU.

Discussion of Indicators

The most basic input measured into the aggregate
higher education system is state funding. General
Funds appropriations of $2.071 billion in fiscal year
1998 is $427 million or 26.0 percent higher than fiscal
year 1994 appropriations of $1.644 billion. One out-
come of higher education in Illinois is students
enrolled. During fiscal year 1998, total enrollment of
728,805 students was 11,380 or 1.5 percent below fis-
cal year 1994. Since 1994, enrollments have declined

at [linois’ universities (down 2.6 percent) and commu- gEa-13

nity colleges (down 2.9 percent) while enrollments at
private institutions increased by 2.3 percent.

An example of an outcome of higher education is the
number of degrees and certificates earned. In fiscal
year 1997, 123,406 degrees and certificates were grant-
ed. One measure of an educational system’s efficiency
is its cost per credit hour (cost per unit of output). As
the accompanying table indicates, Illinois" higher edu-
cation system tracks these costs at four different levels.
The “Lower Division’ represents freshmen and sopho-
mores while the *Upper Division® represents juniors
and seniors. The ‘Graduate I' level represents those
with a bachelor’s degree working on a master’s degree,
while ‘Graduate II' are those with a master’s degree
and working on a higher degree. In every instance.
unit costs increased from both 1995 to 1996 and from
1996 to 1997.

Accompanying SEA reports from the SIU campuses of
Carbondale and Edwardsville serve as prime examples
of measuring service efforts and accomplishments.
The reports include the goals, priorities, and accom-
plishments of the respective campuses. Expenditure
data are broken down by function (i.e.. instruction,
research, etc.). source of funding, and includes staff
years dedicated to the specific function. Additionally,
enrollment and degrees conferred are broken out by
concentration of study (i.e. agriculture, business, etc.)
and level of study (i.e., undergraduate, graduate, or
professional).

It is through this type of reporting that the reader can
gain an understanding of the mission of the institution.
resource allocation, and its effectiveness at achieving
stated goals. For example. the reader can see that more
than half ($99.7 million out of $197.7 million) of the
total expenditures at SIU-Carbondale are for instruc-
tion and over one-third (174,735 out of 514,424) of
credit hours taught are for liberal arts study. On the
same note, it can be determined that 72 percent of 1996
graduates at SIU-Edwardsville are employed full-time
and 7 percent are not employed but seeking employ-
ment. Also, of those same graduates, 58 percent are
employed in [llinois and 36 percent are employed in
Missouri, while 23 percent of the group is continuing
their education on at least a part-time basis.
Comparable, detailed data such as this can provide a
basis for more sophisticated analyses within individual
institutions, as well as meaningful comparisons
between institutions in the higher education system.
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1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 &g‘
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year N
(Dollars in Millions) ™
Inputs h]
General funds N
appropriations 1,643.8 1,747.1 1.840.6 1,953.1 2,071.1 ﬁ
Instructional spending N
at public universities 816.1 876.2 928.1 965.7 N/R Q.
S
Outputs N
Fall enrollments
Public universities 197,377 194,489 192,532 192,319 192,022
Community colleges 354,717 346,979 337,716 340,151 344,556
Private institutions 188,091 189,059 191,327 192,345 192,227
Total enrollment 740,185 730,527 721,575 724,815 728,805
Outcomes
Number of degrees
and certificates
conferred
Associate 27,015 27,484 27,006 26,455 N/R
Certificates 13,115 13,148 12,391 12,004 N/R
Baccalaureate 52,391 52,213 52,076 52,360 N/R
Master's degrees 23,999 23,731 25,342 25,519 N/R
First professional 4,314 4,360 4,576 4,404 N/R
Doctorates 2,571 2,835 2,556 2,664 N/R
Total 123,405 123,771 123,947 123,406 N/R
Efficiency/
Cost Effectiveness
Instructional costs per
credit hour
Lower divsion N/R $134.38 $140.24 $148.45 N/R
Upper division N/R $201.75 $213.09 $221.36 N/R
Graduate | N/R $360.04 $372.83 $383.09 N/R
Graduate 11 N/R $515.70 $546.32 $576.49 N/R

Ten Year Change in Higher Education State Tax Appropriations
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER
Service Efforts and Accomplishments (SEA)
Year Ending June 30, 1998
Agency: Southern lllinois University Major Function: Higher Education
Funds: GR/Income Fund/Non-Appropriated Sub-Function/Program: Southern Illinois University Carbondale

IH

Input Indicators: *

Focus Statement:
Southern Illinois University Carbondale offers a full range of baccalaureate programs, is committed to graduate education
through the doctoral degree, and gives high priority to research. It receives substantial federal support for research and
development and annually awards a significant number of doctoral degrees balanced among selected liberal arts and sciences
disciplines and professional programs. In addition to pursuing statewide goals and priorities, Southern Illinois University
Carbondale:

. strives to develop the professional, social, and leadership skills expected of college students and to improve student retention
and achievement.

3
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. supports the economic, social, and cultural development of southern Illinois through appropriate undergraduate, graduate, and
professional education and research.

. develops partnerships with communities, businesses, and other colleges and universities, and develops utilization of
telecommunications technologies.

. cultivates and sustains a commitment in research and instruction to problems and policy issues related ro the region and the state's
natural resources and environment,

. strives (o meet the health care needs of central and southern [llingis through appropriate health-related programs, services, and
public health policy: and

cultivates and sustains diversity through a commitment to multiculturalism, including international programming,

FY 1998 Expenditures®:
Functions GR/ IF Expenditures<1> GR/ IF Staff Years<2> All Funds Expenditures All Funds Siaff Years

Instruction $99,707,540 2,040.30 108,467,890 2,152.45
Organized Research 12,680,200 250.17 35,793,410 637.51
Public Service 9,442,620 172.56 26,474,310 459.26
Academic Support 20,518,340 398.71 48,992,460 1,039.06
Student Services 7,120,790 164,97 38,270,170 349.26
Institutional Support 22,204,490 451.16 25,449,150 493.73
0&M of Physical Plant 26,048,520 383.08 44,663,640 559.19
Independ. Operations 18,865,100 389.55
Total Expenditures $197,722,500 3,860.95 $346,976,130 6,080.01
Unexpended/Lapsed
Income Funds: $1,663,152
Total Appropriations $199,385,652
GR Appropriation $140,071,900
Income Fund $59.313.752
Total Appropriation &
Income Fund $109,385,652

<1> GR = General Revenue and Educarienal Assistance funds apprepriated by the IL General Assembly with gubernaterial approval. | F = Income Funds which are
generated from tuition revenue, LAC Fees, and Off Campus Degree Programs (Cost Recovery) program delivery and tuition overhead.

<2» A Staff Year is a measure of staff effort over a twelve-month period.
* Source: FY 2000 RAMP

Output Indicators:
Undergraduate Graduate Professional

FY 1998 Unduplicated Headcount Enrollment: 17,481 4,971 648

FY 1998 Credit Hours Taught: 514,424 70,375 27,618
Agriculture 17,661 2,238 4
Applied Sciences and Arts 78,439 230 0
Business 34,077 4,873 93
Education 85,501 29,379 24
Engineering 28,118 2.822 0
Graduate 0 29 0
Law 62 27 74
Liberal Arts 174,735 18,970 10,926
Mass Communication and Media Arts 20,172 2,136 57
Medicine 3471 1,985 16,431
Science 70,423 7,615 9
University General 1,765 71 0
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Output Indicators (continued)

Services Provided, Work Produced:
Southern Mllinois University Carbondale is the largest campus of SIU, offering more than 100 degree programs to a student population that

totals about 22,000. SIUC provides for the betterment of the lives of our students, of society, of the environment, and of the citizens of the
state, especially those in the 22 counties that constitute southern [llinois, SIUC is the region's largest employer, and with the exception of
the University of lllinois, SIUC receives more money for research and service than any other public university in the state. SIUC
accommodates statewide goals and priorities established by the [BHE by focusing its efforts on the points listed in its Focus Statement
(See Input Indicators).

Major Goals and Accomplishments:
Enhance Technology Infrastructure: more residence halls connected to be able to access the Internet.

Distance Learning Support: by extending the campus fiber optic network, library resources are more readily available to the distance learning
program and the regional-consortia institutions via the distance learning television network; multimedia support.

Center for Advanced Friction Studies: [unding was used to match the support received from the National Science Foundation and from
the State of Illinois to fund a cooperative research center, the purposes of which are to focus on topics in engineering and science and
to address technology development relevant to the economic development of the State.

Coal Research Center: funding for coal research had been ongoing for a number of years. However, during FY 98 effort was
expended to prepare grant applications to the State of 1llinois. These efforts resulted in grants being funded for FY99 by DCCA,

Student Recruitment and Retention: increased support was given for recruitment activities and to assist students having academic
problems in selected courses in the University Core Curriculum and in selected requested courses.

The Public Policy Center was launched and a number of national and international symposia have been delivered.

Plans have been submitted for approval to enhance Mass Communication and Media Arts internship programs in Hollywood and Chicago
which acquaint students with various dimensions of the entertainment industry; for a Center for Excellence for Soybean Research,
Teaching and Outreach; for a new doctoral program in Environmental Resources and Policy; for an Aquaculture Research and
Demonstration Center; and for additional staff for the Center for Rural Health and Social Service Development.

Outcome Indicators:
FY 1998 Graduates Undergraduate Graduate Professional
Agriculture 257 38
Applied Sciences and Arts 393 A.A. and 820 B.S.
Business 392 102
Education 1,283 361
Engineering 416 48
Law 112
Liberal Arts 875 225
Mass Communication and Media Arts 222 31
Medicine 3 65
Science 237 18
Total 4,895 826 177
Fall 1991 Full-Time New Freshmen Six Years Later
Graduated 36.91%
Still Pursuing Degree at SIUC 4.71%
Transferred to Another Public [llinois Institution 35.78%
Not Enrolled in an [llinois Public Institution 22.60%
FY 98 External FY 98 New External
Expenditures: $48,905,250 Funds: $45,341,813.00
[nstruction 8,760,350 Training 6,656,638
Research 23,113,210 Research 22,843,966
Public Service 17,031,690 Other 15,841,209
Efficlency/Cost Effectiveness Indicators:
FY 98 Student to Faculty Ratio 18:1

For FY 98, SIUC internally reallocated $2,065,500 for the PQP initiative. Since the inception of PQP, SIUC has internally reallocated
nearly $30 million and has abolished 16 associate in applied science, 14 baccalaureate, 17 master's, 6 doctoral, and three specialist
degrees, one minor, 15 specializations, and 23 concentrations,

Explanatory Information:

The format and information included represent the efforts of the short-time the institution has had available to put together what was determined

to be the core requirements of the regulation (99-002). Between the time of submission and the time of the meeting with Office of the Comptroller
personnel, SIUC will have developed a more complete format to be shared for possible inclusion in the final guidelines and regulations.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS
OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER
Service Efforts and Accomplishments (SEA)

!H

Year Ending June 30, 1998 %
w
Agency: Southern llinois University Major Function: Higher Education g{
Fund(s): General Revenue and Income Funds Sub-Function/Program: Southern Illinois University Edwardsville =
Input Indicators * (Resources Applied) g
FY98 Total Appropriation and Income Fund ($1,000's) $79,541.6 :t
FY98 Expenditures ($1,000's) and Staff Years Expenditures Staff Years™ Q
[nstruction $39.,890.2 775.8 i
Organized Research $907.3 21.0
Public Service $4.088.1 85.4
Academic Support $9,332.0 196.0
Student Services $3,028.2 73.9
Institutional Support $10,049.3 195.4
O&M of Physical Plant $11,713.8 159.2
Unexpended/Lapsed Funds $532.7

* Source: RAMP
** One person working full-time for one year equals 1,00 staff years. (Student workers are included.)

Output Indicators (Services Provided, Work Produced)

Southern Illinois University Edwardsville serves traditional college-aged undergraduate students, with many commuting from the surrounding

area as well as older, part-time, and minority students. The campus offers a balance of instruction, research, and public service programs

consonant with its role as the only public university in southwestern Illinois. Southern Illinois University Edwardsville also administers the

School of Dental Medicine at Alton and operates a center in East St. Louis. In addition to pursuing statewide goals and priorities, Southern

Winois University Edwardsville:

+ Offers undergraduate programs and masters programs encompassing instruction in education, social services, business, engineering, and the
health professions in order to improve the quality of life, economy, health care, and environment in the greater St. Louis metropolitan area;

Undergraduare Graduate Dental Medicine

FY98 Students Served (Unduplicated Headcount) 10,455 3,775 211
Credit Hours Taught During FY98

Education 33,080 15,390

Nursing 7,819 1,396

Dentistry NA

Engineering 11,759 2,111

Business 31,839 6,610

Arts and Sciences 143411 10,213

*

emphasizes graduate-level programs that prerc practitioners and professionals in those fields that are particularly relevant to addressing
the social, economic, and health-care needs of the regions;

3

focuses off-campus programs in southwestern Illinois, except in fields such as nursing in which the University is distinctly positioned to offer
off-campus completion programs for the entire southern Illinois area; and

« addresses the need for dentists in the central and southern regions of the state through its School of Dental Medicine,

Outcome Indicators (Results Achieved)

FY98 Graduates: Undergraduate Graduate Dental Medicine
Education 373 291
Nurses 151 48
Dentists 56
Engineers 122 44
Business 246 116
Arts and Sciences 548 150
1996 Graduates One-Year After Graduating:
Employed Full-Time 72%
Employed Part-Time 17%
Not Emploved, But Seeking Employment 7%
Not Employed and Not Seeking Employment 4%
Employed in Illinois 58%
Employed in Missouri 36%
Employed Outside Illinois and Missouri 7%
Continuing Education Since Degree (Full or Part Time) 23%
Outcome Indicators (continued)
Very Well Ade%uately Inadequately
Felt Bachelor's Degree Prepared Them for Job 27% 59% 14%
Felt Bachelor's Degree Prepared Them for 36% 56% 8%

Additional Education
SEA-17



Fall 1991 Full-Time New Freshmen Six Years Later: m
Graduates 32% =
Still Pursuing Degree at SIUE 8% a.q-
Transferred to Another lllinois Public [nstitution  35% -
Not Enrolled at an [llinois Public Institution 25% N
Over the past decade two-thirds to three-fourths of new freshmen have returned during the second year. ;
Established Nurse Practitioner Program (MS) and Master of Social Work Program to meet regional needs. g‘
Accredited Programs:  Business, Accountancy, Education, Nursing, Nurse Anesthesia, Engineering, Dental Medicine, Public Q
Administration, Social Work, Music, Chemistry, Art Therapy (accrediting agencies do not exist for most =
programs in the arts and sciences) g‘.
FY98 External Funding: ($1,000's) =
Instruction $1,570.9
Research $1,375.6
Public Service $13,292.0
Efficiency/Cost Effectiveness Indicators (Cost per unit of output of outcome)
Student Faculty Ratio, Fall 1997 14.88 FTE Students per 1.00 FTE Faculty
Undergraduate Graduate
FY98 Direct Instruction Cost Per Credit Hour $58.86 $122.80
FY98 Total Instructional Costs Per Credit Hour $178.74 $§325.57
(Total Costs less O&M Physical Plant)
FY97 Total Instruct’l Costs Per Credit Hour Compared to State Average 106% 98%

Expanded Inter and Intra-campus Collaborative Opportunities
Expanded Public and Private Partnerships
Explanatory Information (clarification of specific performance indicators)

Although most SIUE graduates complete their baccalaureate degrees in four, five, or six years, over 15 percent of SIUE graduates originally
matriculated ten or more years earlier. Part time students may persist for years to complete their degrees.
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT: OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER

Mission and Organization

The Comptroller is the chief fiscal control officer for
[llinois™ $38.1 billion budget. The Comptroller
processes vouchers and other payment and receipt doc-
uments, maintains the State’s financial accounts, issues
state warrants (checks), and provides financial infor-
mation to the public. Additional Comptroller’s respon-
sibilities include auditing cemetery and burial trust
fund monies and serving as the repository for local
government financial reports.

Fiscal year 1998 was the first year in operation of the
Statewide Accounting Management System (SAMS).
replacing the CUSAS system. which had served the
Comptroller’s Office since July 1. 1974. Designed to
make the State's central accounting system year 2000
compliant, the new accounting system established a
platform for electronic commerce to reduce paper pay-
ments and an Internet-based electronic information
warehouse to provide universal access to state fiscal
information.

Discussion of Indicators

To a large extent, the Comptroller’s Office is a produc-
tion operation. Vouchers and contracts submitted by
state agencies are converted by the Comptroller’s
Office into warrants (checks) for payment to vendors
and state employees. While ordinary expenditures (o
operate the office have grown modestly over the past
ten years, increased automation has allowed services to
be provided with a reduced employment level. During
the ten fiscal years between 1989 and 1998,
Comptroller’s Office ordinary expenditures increased
24.3 percent from $18.9 million to $23.5 million.
Meanwhile, end of fiscal year Comptroller's Office
employment has declined from 400 as of June 30, 1994
to 315 as of June 30, 1998.

The new SAMS system has given the Comptroller’s
Office the opportunity to expand efforts to automate
Comptroller’s operations. During fiscal year 1998,
almost one-quarter of state payments used electronic
payment mechanisms, up from 19 percent in fiscal year
1997. Most electronic payments were in payroll relat-
ed areas including 75 percent of contractual payroll, 61
percent of employee payroll, and 72 percent of retire-
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ment benefits. However, through pilot programs, elec-
tronic payment techniques are beginning to make
inroads into other types of payments accounting for 3
percent of public aid, 3 percent of tax refunds. and 1
percent of commercial voucher payments in fiscal year
1998.

The Comptroller’s participation in the electronic bene-
fits initiative for public assistance clients has reaped
benefits to the office with a substantial reduction in
warrants written. The Illinois Link program has
reduced the number of assistance payments from 4.6
million in fiscal year 1997 to 1.6 million in fiscal year
1998, accounting for the 2.5 million decline in total
payments by the Comptroller’s Office between fiscal
years 1997 and 1998. Effective in November 1997, the
Ilinois Link became the statewide distribution system
for cash and food stamp benefits. Instead of receiving
a monthly check. income assistance clients now use
their Link card to access benefits credited to their
account.

Under SAMS, great advances have been made in elim-
inating paper when agencies submit payment informa-
tion to the Comptroller’s Office. Starting in fiscal year
1998, 57 agencies began the paperless submission of
vouchers on tape. As of the end of the fiscal year, 58
percent of voucher transactions were paperless. This
allowed a reduction in the number of voucher docu-
ments that required manual processing and reduced the
cost of such processing by $66 thousand.

Agencies musl submit contract information to the
Comptroller’s Office in order to guarantee sufficient
appropriations are obligated to meet the terms of the
contract. The Comptroller’s Office implemented on-
line entry of contract obligations in November of 1997.
By the end of the fiscal year. twelve agencies account-
ing for 74 percent of contract obligation transactions
were on-line.

As the repository of state financial information, the
Comptroller’s Office receives numerous information
inquiries. In fiscal year 1998. the Records Center
received requests for over 92 thousand items such as
copies of documents or issue dates and status of war-
rants from state agencies, law enforcement agencies,
auditing firms, and state vendors as well as the general
public. The Expenditure Analysis and Review Section



(EARS) processed almost 17 thousand requests. These
were largely for employment verification. but also
included special information requests from the media
and other state agencies.

Fiscal year 1998 saw a new source of Comptroller’s
information with the opening of the Information
Warehouse, which provides access to SAMS informa-
tion. During the year, 16 state agencies and 37 exter-
nal users, as well as numerous Comptroller’s employ-
ees. had direct access to financial information in the
Warehouse through the state’s internal computer net-
work. Additionally, hundreds of users each day from
the general public use the Internet to access informa-
tion in the Warehouse through the Comptroller's
linc.net web site.

Unpaid debts to the state, such as delinquent taxes,
increase the tax burden on the remaining honest citi-
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zens. The involuntary withholding section helps to
collect outstanding state debts by intercepting vendor
payments. seizing income tax refunds, and garnishing
state employee wages. Collections were $9.4 million
in fiscal year 1998,

A little known Comptroller’s responsibility is regulat-
ing trust funds (currently totaling more than $675 mil-
lion) held by funeral homes and cemeteries for pre-
need and eternal care programs. This involved the
issuance of 140 licenses and audit of 839 trust funds
during fiscal year 1998,

Mlinois has more units of local government than any
other state. The task of gathering standardized finan-
cial information on these units of local government is
assigned to the Local Government Division within the
Comptroller's Office. In fiscal year 1998, there were
7,255 units of local government that were required to
report to this unit.



Office of the Comptroller

1997 1998
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
(Dollars in Millions)
Inputs
Ordinary expenditures 3 223 % 23.5
Filled positions 313 315
Outputs

Vouchers and warrants:

State payments: 16,564,603 14,042,540
Payroll related 5,148,705 5025474
Nonpayroll related 11,415,958 9,017,066

Agencies submitting
vouchers in a
paperless environment 0 57

Agencies submitting
contracts and
obligations on-line 0 12

Public inquiries:

Records center
items requested 118,297 92,417

EARS
request responses 11,942 16,755

Information warehouse
Users linked 0 125
Personnel trained 0 198

Other functions:

Involuntary withholding
# ol intercepted payments 89,974 81,481

Cemetary care and burial trusts
Licenses issued 34 140
Audits completed 839 839

Qutcomes

Vouchers and warrants:

Y% Paperless payments: 19.0 % 24.1 %
Payroll related 58.9 % 63.9 %
Nonpayroll related 1.0 % 1.8 %

% of paperless voucher
submissions as of 6/30 0 % 58 %

% of obligations
associated with
on-line agencies 0% 74 %

Other functions:

Involuntary withholding
$'s intercepted 5 8477 % 9.424

Efficiency/
Cost Effectiveness

Not reported Not reported
Explanatory Information

1. Ordinary expenditures are Comptroller's Office spending for oper-
ations excluding state officers salaries and other special payments.

2. Payroll related payments include contractual and regular employee
payroll and retirement, while nonpayroll related includes public aid,
tax refund, and commercial payments.

SEA-21

25

500

400

300

200

100

4,500,000
4,000,000
3,500,000
3,000,000
2,500,000
2,000,000
1,500,000
1,000,000
500,000
R |

Contractual

State Comptroller Operations Spending

(Millions of Dollars)

1992 (oommmmmm—

Fiscal Year

Office of the Comptroller
Filled Positions

!
|

oW
1994

June 30,

State Payments
Fiscal Year 1998

-

150

N
=
>
o
S
S
p !
i
3

Payroll

Employee =

Payroll
Public Aid
Retirement
State Tax

Commercial

W Papar Warrants OPaperlass Paymants




GENERAL GOVERNMENT: DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

Mission and Organization

The Department of Revenue's (DOR) primary function
is to collect taxes for the state and units of local gov-
ernment. In fiscal year 1998. the Department collected
$21.5 billion in tax revenues. The Department also has
several ancillary functions. including: administering
the tax relief and pharmaceutical assistance programs
for the elderly and persons with disabilities: oversight
of the property tax assessment system and equalization
of the level of property tax assessments among [llinois
counties; and regulation of riverboat casinos.

Discussion of Indicators

The more efficiently the Department can collect taxes.
the greater the portion of tax monies that will be avail-
able to fund State programs. Efficiency can be mea-
sured by the cost to the Department of collecting each
$1.000 in tax revenues. In fiscal year 1998, it cost
$6.52 1o collect each $1.000 in taxes. Collection costs
have declined significantly. For example, in fiscal year
1989 the collection cost was $9.29 per $1.000 in tax
collections.

Increased efficiency has been reflected in expanded
automation and reduced employment levels.
Departmental employment has declined from 3.309 in
fiscal year 1986 to 2,874 in fiscal year 1991 and 2,439
in fiscal year 1998.

One example of how the Department has been taking
advantage of new opportunities in automation (o
improve customer service and reduce processing is the
program allowing Illinois 1040 filers to file electroni-
cally or by telephone. The number of alternative filers
has increased from 121,000 in fiscal year 1994 to
615.000 in fiscal year 1998.

Another area where automation has improved
Department operations is in the time required to
deposit tax revenues. More expeditious deposit of rev-
enues makes tax payments available for investment
and spending on a more timely basis. The average
number of days to deposit tax revenue has declined
from 3.060 in fiscal year 1993 to 1.955 in fiscal year
1998. Electronic payment has played a key role in
speeding up the deposit schedule as the value of elec-
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tronic funds transfers has soared from $200 million in
fiscal year 1993 to $7.3 billion in fiscal year 1998.

[linois has a ‘voluntary® tax system, and most taxpay-
ers comply willingly with the tax code. However,
some taxpayers fail to abide by the tax laws. This is
unfair to honest taxpayers and threatens the integrity of
the voluntary tax system. The role of the Department’s
enforcement activities is to address the delinquent tax
issue. In fiscal year 1998, the delinquent tax program
had a staff of 322 and direct operating expenses of
$16.8 million. The overall value of delinquent tax debt
collected has more than doubled during the 1990s -
from $147.9 million in fiscal year 1991 to $360.1 mil-
lion in fiscal year 1998.

The Department tracks several measures of its perfor-
mance in the collection of delinquent taxes. In fiscal
year 1998, $21.45 was collected in delinquent taxes for
each direct dollar of collection costs. This was up from
$17.63 per each dollar of collection costs in fiscal year
1997. Another indicator is collections per person in the
delinquent tax program. In fiscal year 1998 collections
averaged $1.1 million for each collections staff mem-
ber. This was up from $878.300 in fiscal year 1997.

The Department’s experience in collecting delinquent
taxes is proving of use in dealing with the non-payment
of child support problem. Since fiscal year 1996, the
Department of Public Aid has been authorized to certi-
fy child support arrearages to the DOR, which may uti-
lize delinquent tax collection methods to collect these
arrearages. In fiscal year 1998, DOR spending of
$576.000 for delinquent child support yielded collec-
tions of $12.2 million or $1.1 million per delinquent
child support collection staff and $21.17 in collections
for each dollar of direct program costs.



Tax Administration Operations

1997 1998 Target 1998 Actual
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year S
(Dollars in Millions, except Efficiency/Cost Effectiveness)

Inputs §
Budget appropriations  $ 1373 § 141.6 § 141.7 o
Operating expenses $ 1364 % 141.6 % 140.5 -
Personnel (including b

temporary help) 2,616 2,586 2,561 @h
Outputs
Tax collections 3 20,1808 § 20,9740 8§ 21,5420 N
Electronic funds g
transfer deposits 5 68000 § 7,2000 § 7,300.0 o

IL 1040 returns filed -
via alternative =~
methods (electronic o
and phone) 568,911 None Reported 615,077

Outcomes

Customer satisfaction:
% of practioners
indicating services
improved from
prior year 46 % None Reported 49 %

Efficiencys

Cost Effectiveness
Cost to collect $1,000

in taxes 3 6.76 5 6.75 3 6.52
Days to deposit tax
revenue 1.963 1.945 1.955
Explanatory Information

Appropriations and operating expenses consist of agency operations expenditures
excluding child support collection program and State Gaming Board expenditures, as
well as fund transfers that are counted as operations spending.

Cost to Collect $1,000 in Taxes IL 1040's Filed Via Alternative Methods,
Electronic and Phone
(Thousands)

(Dollars)

700
600
500
400 [
300 |
200
A - 5 o= 100
8 92 84 96 97 98T  98A 0

Fiscal Year (T = target, A = actual)

Fiscal Year

Days to Deposit Tax Revenue Electronic Funds Transfer Deposits

(Billions of Dollars)
F

O = Wk M @~ D

93 94 95 96 97 98T 98A
Fiscal Year (T =target, A = actual) Fiscal Year (T = target, A = actual)
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Delinquent Tax and Delinquent Child Support Collections

1997 1998 Target 1998 Actual ,g
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
(Dollars in Millions, except Efficlency/Cost Effectiveness)
Inputs
Delinquent tax collections: o
Budget appropriations  $ 6.1 8 169 § 16.8 .
Direct operating e
expense $ 6.1 § 169 § 16.8 %
Number of personnel 323 327 322 x
I hild techion;
Budget appropriation 3§ 0.561 $ 0.559 § 0.559 %
Program costs K 0535 8§ 0589 3§ 0.576 o
Number of personnel 11 11 11 =~
Outputs =
Tax cases resolved o
through hearings
and appeals 4,954 None Reporied 4,316
Outcomes
Delinquent tax
collections 3 2837 § 292.0 3§ 360.1
Delinquent child
support collections ~ $ 105 § 120 § 12.2
Efficiency/
Cost Effectiveness
Collections per person  § 878300 3 893,000 § 1,117,500
Collections per direct
dollar of cost $ 17.63 3 1725 % 21.45
Collections per person  § 958,200 $ 1,000900 $ 1,106,300
Collections per direct Collection of Delinquent Child Support
dollar of cost $ 19.63 § 2036 B 21.17 (Millions of Dollars)
Explanatory Information
1. Delinquent tax collections includes the direct cost of the Department's delinquent collections Led
bureau from the Department's operations appropriation and costs associated with fees TR S aeTss Rt <
retained from delinquent taxes collected by outside collection agencies that collect on 104
behalf of the Department. sl
2. Delinquent child support collections program costs include the direct cost of the = T
Department's child support program section, paid from the Child Support Enforcement & ;
Trust Fund appropriation, and one employee from the section paid from the General 41
Revenue Fund appropriation who is not included in the budgeted appropriation. 3
0 - G L
96 97 98T 98A
Fiscal Year (T = target, A = actual)
Cases Resolved Through Hearings and Appeals Collection of Delinquent Tax Debt
(Millions of Dollars)
6,000 400

300
4,000

200

2,000 100 |

91 92 95 96 97 9BT 98BA

Fiscal Year (T = target, A = actual)

Fiscal Year
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TRANSPORTATION: DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Mission and Organization

The Department of Transportation accounted for
almost all of the approximately $2.6 billion spent for
transportation-related purposes. with over 80 percent
of this spending related to the highway program. With
a 138,000-mile network of state and local roads,
including approximately 25,000 bridges. Illinois has
one of the largest transportation systems in the nation.
The Department is responsible for 17,000 miles of
roads. including 2.050 miles of interstate roads and
over 8,000 bridges. Since the [980s, the goals of the
Department and the highway program have included
limiting the system backlog of needed repairs to 2.400
miles and 850 bridges.

Discussion of Indicators

All the indicators provided focus on the condition of
the highway system and the factors affecting the goal
of limiting the backlog of needed repairs. A major
challenge confronting the Department is evident from
the input indicators that present motor fuel tax revenue
and expenditures in current and constant dollars. The
motor fuel tax is an excise or flat tax, currently at 19.3
cents per gallon, and revenues can only grow with an
increase in consumption. While motor fuel tax rev-
enues have grown in real terms over the past five years,
in constant dollars revenues in fiscal year 1998 are only
$3 million higher than fiscal year 1994. This means
that when a major revenue source fails to keep pace
with inflation, the purchasing power for the
Department and local governments may decline.
Expenditures in constant dollars are an indicator that
attempts to reveal this decline in purchasing power.

The other indicators examine factors that have an
impact on the pavement condition and affect the goal.
The fact that the backlog of roads and bridges in need
of repair has exceeded the goals of the program does
not shed any light on the severity of the condition of
the roads and bridges. Data on the pavement condition
offer more insight to the overall condition of the high-
way system. It should be noted that the decline in total
miles is due to a change in jurisdiction. Local govern-
ments want jurisdiction over some roads, but only after
the state has improved the condition. Therefore. part
of the decrease in total and excellent-rated roads is due
to this change in jurisdiction. The additional data on
the age of the highways and the number of vehicle
miles traveled help to demonstrate the seriousness of

the challenges confronting the Department. With more
vehicles on the roads and fewer new roads being built.
congestion on the highways will increase. The older
the roads. the more likely that refurbishing will be
required in the future instead of just repairs.

The purpose of service efforts and accomplishments
reporting is to help taxpayers and decision-makers bet-
ter understand their government, the use and benefits
of the resources they provide. and the choices that con-
front them. Because of the importance of the highway
system to every citizen and the very real cost of deci-
sions to invest or not invest in that system, the
Department could serve itself and the citizenry well if
it provided more complete information on current
efforts and accomplishments. Indicators should
include more than just the number of miles and bridges
that were repaired or the level of the backlog. For
example. the number of miles of new roads should be
included to support the indicator that 98 percent of the
program is for maintenance. Including data on con-
gestion or the number of miles refurbished may pro-
vide more insight on the problems facing the
Department. Other output indicators would provide
useful information such as the number of highway con-
struction projects contracted and completed, the
amount of land purchased for projects, the number of
bridge inspections done. and a breakdown of the types
of work on the roads. An indicator reflecting a percent
of the highway system rated acceptable based on state
or federal guidelines would be informative and could
be reasonably understandable. Measures of quality
could be included such as the percentage of completed
jobs failing to meet quality assurance specifications or
ratings from citizen surveys.

While the indicators provided suggest a deterioration
in the highway system and the challenges confronting
the Department in maintaining the roads. information
on how efficiently the Department is providing ser-
vices is not included. While minimizing the backlog
may be the Department’s main accomplishment, assur-
ing taxpayers that they are getting the most for their tax
dollar is equally important. Additional data such as the
cost to repair each lane-mile of road. how this has
changed over the years, and how this compares with
changes in resources available would complete the pic-
ture. Such data would also aid understanding of the
overall condition of the highway system and the chal-
lenges faced by the Department in its efforts to
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Highway Program

>
1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 %
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year N
(Dollars in Millions) ~
Inputs g
Motor fuel taxes (current dollars) )
Net revenue distributed $ 1,060  §$ 1,089 § 1,146 % 1,173 % 1,178 Ei
Distributed to IDOT Funds & 629 § 646  § 683 $ 697 $ 703 o
Distributed to local gov's  $ 430 8 43 463§ 476§ ars
Motor fuel taxes (constant dollars) :3
Net revenue distributed $ 1,033 § 1,032 §% 1,057 & 1,051 % 1,036 J
Distributed to IDOT Funds ~ $ 613§ 612§ 630 $ 625 § 618 §
Distributed to local govt's  § 419 3 420 % 427 § 427 § 418 A
Expenditures current dollars 904 § 996 $ 700 $ 1,000 § 740 ~
Expenditures constant dollars 878 % 922 § 648 % 901 $ 649 E
Outputs "a*
Miles improved 902 1,329 690 1,304 701 S
Bridges improved 203 219 141 318 315 Q
outcomes =
Miles backlog 1,969 Not Available 2,223 2,800 2,600
Bridges backlog 948 Not Available 945 1,000 930
Percent of program dedicated
to system maintenance 93 % Not Available 95 % 96 % 98 %
Efficiency/
Cost liﬁ%cdveness None Reported
Explanatory Information

The rate of accomplishments was lower in FY 1998 due to the delay by the U.S. Congress in passing the federal reauthorization
of the highway assistance program. Totals do not include bridges improved through the Township Bridge assistance program.
Constant dollars used 1993 as the base year.

Age of lllinois Interstate System in 1998 Vehicle Miles of Travel in lllinois
(Year Built)

Greater than 20
years
B83.7%

Millions of Miles

20 years or less
18.3%

Age of lllinois Non-Interstate System in 1998
(Year Built) Calendar Year 1997

Greater than 20
years

92.8% Pavement Condition Mileage

Year Poor Fair Good  Excellent Total

1994 1,741 5,331 4,482 5,099 16,653
1995 1,719 5,402 4,353 5,102 16,576
1996 1,832 5,594 4,403 4,061 16,550
1997 1,590 5,441 4,486 4,992 16,509
1998 1,634 5,476 4,591 4,774 16,475

20 years of less
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The establishment of the Department of Human
Services in July 1997 resulted in a streamlining of the
Department of Public Aid to focus on Medicaid admin-
istration and child support enforcement. The Child
Support Enforcement (CSE) division serves all welfare
clients and any other Illinois citizens requesting assis-
tance. helping single parents secure legally mandated
child support awards. The division locates non-custo-
dial parents, establishes paternity, obtains child support
orders, and collects support due under those orders.
These activities suggest some of the basic indicators of
the division's performance. Because of federal report-
ing requirements and standards. the Child Support
Enforcement program offers one of the most complete
and comprehensive examples of SEA reporting, as well
as the possibility of year-to-year and state-to-state
comparisons.
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The source of all data in this report, as was the case in
last year’s report, is Child Support Enforcement, 2 1st
Annual Report to Congress, published by the U. S.
Department of Health and Human Services. It should
additionally be noted that data from the federal report
is for the federal fiscal year (FFY) ending September
30. 1996. The Department of Public Aid has more
recent data, which would provide a more timely review
of current departmental performance. If. however,
comparisons with other states and the nation is impor-
tant or desirable — one purpose of lllinois’ SEA exper-
iment — then the federal report for FFY 1996 is the lat-
est national data available.

The Child Support Enforcement program offers an
almost unlimited number of potential indicators and
measures for consideration. The challenge is selecting
the most important, and these are included in the data
table. The outputs indicate how many paternities were
established. support orders were secured. and absent
parents were located. Outcomes summarize the results
expected from the program: how much child support
was collected and distributed to AFDC and non-AFDC
clients: how many families were removed from AFDC
rolls as a result of child support received: and how
much the AFDC program saved as a result of child sup-
port collections. The data table also includes informa-
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tion on how much the Department collects for every
administrative dollar it spends. as well as the average
amount collected per individual staff,

Because the U. S. Department of Health and Human
Services publishes ‘box scores’ annually for each state
and the nation. it must be assumed that the federal gov-
ernment considers these among the most important
indicators of performance. Accordingly, this report
includes the box scores for Illinois, the six states of
federal Region V. and the nation as a whole.

Generally speaking, [llinois was extremely competi-
tive in FFY 96. It significantly outperformed both the
region and the nation in child support collections dis-
tributed to users of the program’s services. In Illinois
total collections distributed increased by 13.9 percent
over fiscal 1995, compared with 7.2 percent and 11.0
percent for the region and the nation respectively. This
performance bested the region and the nation in both
the AFDC and non-AFDC subgroups as well.
Paternities established increased by 19.1 percent. more
than twice both the region and the nation. And while
absent parents located increased by 5.7 percent in
[llinois. this was less than half the increase for the
region and the nation. Illinois’ collections per dollar of
administrative expenditure (an increase of 8.2 percent)
compared favorably with the nation (up 9.5 percent)
and significantly exceeded the region’s performance
(an increase of only 0.8 percent). The only negative
indicator in Illinois was support orders established.
down 10.3 percent, compared with a regional decrease
of 5.6 percent and a national increase of 2.9 percent.

[llinois seems to lag in overall productivity. however.
Its average collections per worker has lagged every
state in the region, as well as the national average. for
both fiscal 95 and 96. The variances are significant. In
fiscal 96 Illinois’ collections in the best case were a
third less (34.4 percent) than the national average and
almost two-thirds less (61.2 percent) than the State of
Michigan at the other extreme. At the same time,
Illinois is reasonably comparable with the region and
the nation on other measures of productivity. The State
ranks second in caseload per worker, third in paterni-
ties established per worker, and ties for fifth in support
orders established per worker. These data may say
more about how the overall collection process itself is
structured and organized compared with those in other
states.



Child Support Enforcement

1992 1995 1994 1995 1996
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
(Dollars in Millions, except W?dmgm:‘mr @%{:ﬁ vVeness)
Inputs
Total administrative
expenditures 5 63.1 $ 77.8 § 87.9 5 98.6 5 103.8
Staff employed (FTE) 1,211 1,345 1,362 1,620 1,608
Average total caseload N/A N/A N/A 721,151 730,397
Outputs
Paternities established 18,900 19,017 24,433 22,236 26,483
Support orders estab. N/A N/A N/A 25,428 22,797
Absent parents located N/A N/A N/A 52,002 54,965
Outcomes
Total collections
distributed § 183.3 3 183.9 5] 202.2 $ 219.3 $ 249.8
AFDC/FC 5 58.8 5 55.7 $ 61.1 $ 65.1 % 724
Non-AFDC $ 124.5 H 128.1 § 141.1 § 154.2 k] 177.4
Families removed
from AFDC 629 98 0 1 256
Total program savings 5 16.3 L 35.2 5 41.4 5 483 E] 46.8
Efficiencys
Cost Effectiveness
Collections per dollar of
admin. expenditures N/A N/A N/A 5 2.23 5 241
AFDC/FC N/A N/A N/A $ 0.66 5 0.70
Non-AFDC N/A N/A N/A L] 1.56 5 1.71
Collections per FTE N/A N/A N/A $ 135,395 5 155,369
Explanatory Information

. Information for all years is the federal fiscal year ending September 30.
. All data was last updated July 31, 1998,

1

2

3. FTE is full-time equivalent staff employed as of September 30,

4. AFDC is Aid to Families with Dependent Children/FC is Foster Care; numbers in this table continue to show the AFDC
breakdown, since welfare reform had not been implemented at the time information was reported,

5. Total savings is the difference between reimbursements to AFDC from child support collections and the net amount

of administrative expenditures cligible for federal funding.

Child Support Enforcement
FY 1996 BOX SCORES
(% Change from FY 1995
Tnois E@En Yoo

Total expenditures 53% 64% 1.4 %
Full-time equivalent staff -0.7% 36% -13%
Average caseload

Total 1.3 % -1.0% 0.8 %

AFDC/AFDC arrears -1.5%  -47% 39%

Non-AFDC 59 % 48 % 6.4%
Paternities established 19.1 % 9.5 % 8.9 %
Support orders established 103% -5.6% 29%
Absent parents locared 57% 134% 168%
Collections distributed

Total 13.9% 72% 11.0%

AFDC/FC 11.2% -07% 6.2%

Non-AFDC 15.0% 9.1 % 12.6 %
Collections/Dollar expenditure

Total 8.2 % 0.8 % 9.5 %

AFDC/FC 5.6% -6.6% 4.7 %

Non-AFDC 9.2 % 2.6 % 11.1 %

Region V includes the states of [llinois, Indiana, Michigan,

Minnesota, Ohio, and Wisconsin.
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PUBLIC PROTECTION AND JUSTICE: THE ILLINOIS COURTS

Mission and Organization

The Illinois Courts are judicial agencies and thus the
only part of the Public Protection and Justice function
not a part of the executive branch of state government.
In fiscal year 1998. the Illinois Courts received about
$229 million in appropriations after transfers. The
Illinois Courts are composed of the Supreme,
Appellate, and Circuit courts. as well as Mandatory
Arbitration.

The Supreme Court of Illinois, in addition to being the
state’s highest court, is responsible for the state’s uni-
fied trial court. one Appellate court with five districts,
and several supporting units. General administrative
and supervisory authority over the court system is vest-
ed in the Supreme Court.

Financing of the State Circuit court system is a shared
responsibility of the State and counties. State govern-
ment pays the salaries and benefits of Circuit courts
judges, court reporters, and a small number of other
personnel.  Counties provide office and courtroom
space. maintenance. support staft to assist the Circuit
court judges, and other services.

The Supreme Court of Illinois and the Illinois General
Assembly  created court-annexed  Mandatory
Arbitration to reduce the backlog of civil cases. It pro-
vides litigants with a system in which their complaints
can be more quickly resolved by an impartial fact find-
er.

Discussion of Indicators

The Circuit, Appellate, and Supreme Court all track
and report similar indicators. The output indicator is
‘cases filed,” which is the number of cases filed in one
calendar year. The outcome indicator is ‘cases dis-
posed,’ which is the number of cases dealt with in the
year. ‘Cases disposed’ can. in some instances. be high-
er than ‘cases filed,” due to residual cases from the pre-
vious year that are disposed of during the current year.
As aresult, ‘cases filed’ and ‘cases disposed’ can not be
compared within one year.

Mandatory Arbitration reports the output of ‘cases on
calendar’ and ‘prehearing dispositions,” which are the
number of cases never coming to trial because the case
was dropped or settled. The outcome measures include
‘cases heard.” which is the number of cases that actual-
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ly went through the mandatory arbitration process.
‘Cases pending’ indicates how many cases on the cal-
endar were neither heard nor dropped, but remain to be
dealt with during the next year. In FY 1997, both pre-
hearing dispositions and cases heard just happened to
equal the same number, but since they measure differ-
ent results, that would not usually be the case.

Mandatory Arbitration’s indicators clearly demonstrate
what became of the cases on the docket for the year.
They indicate both the workload and accomplishments
of one year, thus providing comparability. The other
courts’ data does not provide this type of comparabili-
ty between output and outcome indicators. It is impos-
sible to know from their data how many cases. filed
this year, were disposed of during this same year.
Following the example of the Mandatory Arbitration
report and capturing comparable data would provide a
more accurate picture of what is accomplished in any
given year.

All of the courts reported some sort of efficiency or
cost effectiveness indicators. One indicator reported
by all, except Mandatory Arbitration, was ‘cases per
Judicial officer.” This is the number of cases filed
divided by the number of judges. The other efficiency
indicator, ‘cost per case,” was universal in the courts’
SEA reports. This was calculated by dividing the bud-
get appropriation by the cases filed (or in the case of
Mandatory Arbitration by the cases on calendar). As
might be expected, Mandatory Arbitration, which deals
with many simple, small cases has a significantly lower
cost per case than the Appellate and Supreme Courts
that deal with fewer but more complex cases. The cost
per case is lowest in the Circuit Courts because of their
high volume of cases, but also because this cost is fig-
ured using only the State’s budget appropriations, and
does not include the significant contribution at the
local level.

However, even beyond the Circuit Court, the indicator
‘cost per case’ does not reflect the true cost, because
the output and outcome statistics are prepared on a cal-
endar year basis, while the input indicators are based
on the fiscal year. Therefore, once again, the informa-
tion provided is not comparable. In order to provide
more accurate and consistent data, the courts could col-
lect and organize data on a quarterly basis, which
would enable them to aggregate the data as needed.



Circuit, Appellate, and Supreme Courts

Circuit Courts Appellate Courts Supreme Court §
FY 1997 FY 1998 FY 1997 FY 1998 FY 1997 FY 1998 ~—
-
Inputs =
Budget appropriations =C§
(in millions) $ 126.1 $ 131.1 $ 22.1 $ 22.8 $ 7.5 $ 7.9 —~.
Cost of equipment used §$ 47,117 $ 43,376 $ 7,434,720 $ 7739825 $ 6237965 § 6,575,242 @
Number of personnel )
Judges 845 866 53 52 7 7 g
Support staff 702 685 291 289 120 119 <
Outputs @
Cases filed 4,390,047 4,328,169 8,982 9,307 3,677 3,591
Outcomes
Cases disposed 4,117,153 3,983,546 9,397 9,578 3,451 3,557
Efficiency/
Cost Effectiveness
Cost per case $ 29 $ 30 $ 2,461 $ 2,450 $ 2,046 $ 2,208
Cases per judicial
officer 5,195 4,998 169 179 525 513
Explanatory Information

Output and outcome statistics are prepared on the calendar year. Input indicators are based on the fiscal year.

Mandatory Arbitration

Fiscal Year
1997
Inputs
Budget appropriations
(millions) $ 5.0
Cost of equipment used 4,444
Outputs
Cases on calendar 35,307
Prehearing dispositions 15,433
Percent disposed prior
to hearing 43.7
Outcomes
Cases heard 15,433
Percent of cases heard 43.7
Cases pending 4,441
Efficiency/
Cost Effectiveness
Cost per case $ 141
Explanatory Information

Current Fiscal Year output, outcome and

efficiency indicators are not yet available.

By statute the report to the General
Assembly is due annually on or before

January 31.

Mandatory Arbitration Cases
Fiscal Year 1997

Casas pending
13%

Prahaaring
dispositions
43%

Cases heard
44%

Cost per Case
Fiscal Year 1997

2,000 |
1,500 |

1,000

500 |

Mandatory
Arbitration

Circuit ——
Courts lé?:urts Supreme
SEA-30 Court



PUBLIC PROTECTION AND JUSTICE:

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

Mission and Organization

The Department of Corrections (DOC) incarcerates all
inmates and juveniles sentenced to it by local courts.
The Department’s mission 1s to protect the public from
criminal offenders through a system of incarceration
and supervision which securely segregates offenders
from society. Corrections must also assure offenders
of their constitutional rights and maintains programs to
enhance the success of the offender’s reentry into soci-
ety.

Description of Indicators

The indicator ‘staff per 100 inmates’ is a more useful
measure than simply a flat staff number because it indi-
cates the workload of the staff. Such a measure would
also be more useful for comparison with other states
and correctional systems.

DOC provides many population measures. Included as
output measures here, they do give an indication of the
workload the Department faces. but a case could be
made that they are actually input measures. The out-
come indicators include information on boot camps
and inmates who took and passed the GED exam.
Once again there is some question about how these
indicators might be classified.

SEA measurements and reporting should help govern-
ment agencies to think more clearly about their busi-
ness — their specific products or services. what they
are trying to accomplish and their results. [s the popu-
lation. of a correctional institution merely a reflection
of the workload it faces? Or is it more the ‘raw mate-
rial” that must in some way be successfully managed?
Are the numbers of inmates who take the GED test
simply a measure of the number of tests that must be
proctored? Or is it the number of inmates who have
achieved a certain level of educational achievement
during their incarceration? Performance measures not
only illustrate the success of a department at accom-
plishing its goals, but also are often a silent testimony
to what the department sees as its goals and function.

Beyond the measures already mentioned., DOC also
reported on the annual per capita cost for its different
institutions. The juvenile institution cost per inmate
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decreased from fiscal year 1996 to fiscal year 1997 as
the result of an 11.5 percent population increase during
that period. The cosl increased during fiscal year 1998
as the result of a much smaller population increase, as
well as additional costs incurred with the opening of
the Illinois Youth Center at Murphysboro. Also, the
annual per capita costs were higher for minimum secu-
rity as opposed to medium security institutions the lat-
ter tend to have fewer inmates and more programs,

Fiscal year 1998 information for any of the GED or
boot camp measures was not available in time for pub-
lication. Otherwise. DOC’s report seems to provide
performance measures that illustrate its basic function.

Service efforts and accomplishments reporting seeks to
inform taxpayers about how tax dollars are spent and
the benefits derived from that spending. The DOC
spends over $1 billion a year. It may be sufficient to
know only that the Department effectively and effi-
ciently houses those individuals who pose a threat to
society. Given the complexity and implications of the
crime problem, however, the Department might con-
sider additional indicators that would provide a more
complete picture of its service to society. The State of
Florida is a case in point. Examples of measures used
in Florida Corrections include: rate of escapes from
the secure perimeter per 1,000 inmates. rate of attacks
on inmates per 1,000 inmates. rate of attacks on staff
per 1,000 inmates, percent of inmate random drug tests
that are negative, percent of inmates available for work
who are not assigned, and rate of major disciplinary
reports per 1,000 inmates. The inmate population as a
percent of capacity or the recidivism rate would also be
useful and informative indicators. This is not to sug-
gest that these should be the Department’s perfor-
mance indicators, but only to provide examples of SEA
measures being used by others in a similar function.



=
1996 1997 1998 N
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year ‘g
Inputs a
Budget appropriations
(millions) $ 839.0 B 915.8 3 1,029.2 3
Staff per 100 inmares 31.4 31.1 304 g
Outputs Lo
Total adult population 38,373 40,425 42,140 Q
Juvenile facility \
population 1,903 2,121 2,154 q
Mandatory supervised =
release population 30,136 30,106 30,610 q
Juvenile field services o
population 1,114 1,158 1.490 S
Inmates on electronic Q
detention 858 822 743 =
Community correctional -
center population 1,237 1,291 1,393 @
Boot camp participants 2,152 2,291 N/A
Number of inmates GED
tested 2,871 2,962 N/A
Qutcomes
Boot camp graduates 1,593 1,646 N/A
Percent graduating from
boot camp 74 % 72 % N/A
Number of inmates who
passed GED 2,344 2,296 N/A
Percent passage rate
on GED 82 % 78 % N/A
Efficiency/ Annual Per Capita Cost
Cost Effectiveness ‘ : {Dokare)
Annual per capita cost :
at adult maximum N/A $ 22,692 $ 25,009
security institutions FY 1998
Annual per capita cost
at adult medium N/A 5 14,305 $ 14,196
security institutions
Annual per capita cost FY 1997
at adult minimum N/IA  § 17993 § 17,688
security institutions
Annual per capita cost
at all adult institutions $ 16,710 $ 17,271 4§ 17,483 EY 1996
Annual per capita cost )
at all juvenile $ 30,445 $ 29,432 5 32,237 -l > ”
institutions . 10,000 20,000 30,000 40,000
Explanatory Information WJuvenile institutions @ Adult institutions

1. Mandatory supervised release population is the formal name for inmates out on parole.
2. Juvenile field services population is the name for juvenile parole,

3. Inmates on electronic detention is separate from either of these parole numbers.

4, Community correctional center population is the number of adults out on work release.

Annual Per Capita Cost
(Dollars)

30,000
25,000
20,000 Adult maximum security
15,000 v Institutions
Adult medium security

10,000 Inatitutions

5,000

Adult minimum security

institutions

FY 1897

FY 1998
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PUBLIC PROTECTION AND JUSTICE: PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Mission and Organization

The Department of Professional Regulation issues
more than 160 types of licenses in over 45 profession-
al and occupational categories. It aims (o maintain
standards of competence for license holders and pro-
tect the public through disciplinary actions.

The Department has two operating divisions with spe-
cific duties and responsibilities. The Licensing and
Testing Division is the application-processing division.
The process of becoming licensed is designed to
ensure that all professionals meet at least the minimum
requirements for licensure set forth by law. The second
division is the Division of Statewide Enforcement,
which includes investigation and prosecution subfunc-
tions. The Investigation Unit compiles the facts of any
alleged violations under the Department’s jurisdiction
and the Prosecution unit seeks to prove the validity of
the complaint.

Discussion of Indicators

The Department provided cost figures as a basic input
indicator. As noted in each table's explanatory infor-
mation, cost figures include all the direct costs for the
division. however some of the indirect and overhead
costs were not included.

Professionals seeking to work in Illinois must first
properly complete an application for licensure. Even
though the applications differ depending upon profes-
sion, the Department has aggregated some information
on all application processing. However, it would be
useful to have other information. For instance, it might
be useful to know how many people took examinations
in their professional field and how many passed.

The Enforcement division of the Department includes
both the investigation and prosecution units. The
investigator is responsible for determining, out of the
complaints received, if there has been a violation of a
licensing law or the department rules and regulations.
The investigator may determine the facts indicate a
criminal activity, resulting in a referral to a county
state’s attorney or the Illinois Attorney General.
However, if the case is an administrative violation
rather than criminal, it is referred to an internal prose-
cuting attorney. The ‘cases referred to prosecution’
indicator seems to measure only the cases referred to
the Department’s Prosecution unit. No indicator is pre-
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sented on how many complaints were forwarded out-
side the Department for criminal prosecution.

The staff attorneys then decide if there is enough evi-
dence to file formal charges. On the Enforcement
report the number of ‘cases referred to prosecution’s
staff” and the outcome indicator ‘cases accepted by
prosecution’ happens to be the same. This would not
necessarily be the case if the prosecution staff decided
there was not enough information to prosecute. If the
staff decides to prosecute. the Department and the
licensee may enter into a negotiated agreement. In
other instances a formal disciplinary hearing is neces-
sary. However. no information is provided on how
many cases were dealt with in these ways.

While the Department’s report includes data on some
of its basic activities, it also raises the possibility of
and suggests other performance indicators. For exam-
ple. information on fees and fines might be informative
— how much the Department collects and to what
extent it covers the Department’s costs. Likewise, the
number of cases resulting in fines or other disciplinary
action from the total complaints received or investigat-
ed would provide a more complete picture. Quality
indicators might include the average time to resolve
complaints or the percentage of cases resolved within
a given period of time. These are just a couple of
examples of possible additional indicators, some of
which are currently being used by the State of Texas to
measure regulation of professions. The lack of more
complete information may be due, in part, to a recent
change in the Department’s computer system.

Nevertheless, this agency illustrates one of the more
challenging issues in service efforts and accomplish-
ments reporting — how to measure the benefits of reg-
ulatory functions. Business regulation is intended to
protect the public, but it is extremely difficult, if not
impossible, to determine the extent to which the public
is not harmed by inept professionals. At best, the
Department may have to rely on various *proxy’ mea-
sures to gauge its effectiveness and impact (e.g., long-
term changes or reductions in the number of com-
plaints by profession. the extent of voluntary compli-
ance with professional standards, trends in liability
costs resulting from legal actions, etc.). The aim
would be to demonstrate that the benefits to society and
the economy outweigh the costs of regulation. These
questions will require much more thinking and devel-
opment in the evolution of SEA reporting.



Licensing and Testing Division

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year »&5
1997 1998 1998 1
Actual Target Actual §
Inputs
Cost of new applications %
processing (millions) $ 279 % 286 0§ 2.66 =
Average number of
personnel (FTE's) 45.0 44.0 40.5 Q,‘
Outputs 3
Applications received 52,853 55,000 59,035 @h
Outcomes o
Applications reviewed 52,853 55,000 59,035 7
Applications approved 27,356 Not Available 37,446 ﬁ_
Percent of licenses oS
approved 51.8 % 63.4 % g
Efficiency/ ~
Cost Effectiveness =
Cost per application N
reviewed $ 5285 $ 5209 & 45.02 (g
Cost per application —
approved $ 102.13 Not Available  $ 70.97 =
Applications approved %L
per FTE 608 Not Available 925 =
Explanatory Information

FTE stands for full-time equivalent, therefore two part time workers would count as one FTE.
All costs reflect only those for the licensing and testing division and exclude cash or receipts
processing costs, other data processing costs and any relevant board or committee costs.

Cost per Application Results of Applications Reviewed
(Dollars) FY 1998

Applications
denied

37%
120
100
80|
80 | :
i ]\ Cost per application
A oved
i Ll e Applications
20 i - approvad
P Cost per application Results of Applications Reviewed 63%
0 reviewad FY 1997
FY 1997
FY 1998
Applications
denied

48%

Applications
approved
52%
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Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
1997 1998 1998
Actual Target Actual

Inputs

Cost of investigations

(millions) $ 6.11  § 651 § 6.25
Number of investigators

and investigative

supervisors authorized 78 78 78
Cost of prosecution

staff (millions) 3 157 % .70 % 1.79
Number of staff

assigned/authorized 25 26 26

Outputs
Complaints received 10,848 10,000 9,058
Cases referred (o
prosecurions staff 2,382 2,500 2,825

Outcomes
Cases accepted by
prosecutions 2,382 2,500 2,825

Efficiency/
Cost Effectiveness
Average number of
complaints handled
per investigator 139 128 116
Cost per complaints
handled $ 503 % 651  § 690
Cost per case referred
to prosecution 3 2,565 % 2396 % 2,211
Cost per case of
prosecution $ 659  § 678  $ 633
Explanatory Information
1. Number of investigators authorized includes unit supervisors and coordinators, but excludes
clerical support and professional boxing and wrestling personnel. Cost of investigations
includes only staff dedicated to investigations activity.
2. Costs exclude any relevant board and committee costs, and costs of hearing officers and
related hearing costs such as court reporting.

Total Complaint Cases

FY 1998

FY 1997

0 2.000 4,000 6,000 8,000 10,000 12,000

M Casas Not Referrad to Prosecutions [OCases Referrad to Prosecutions
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PuBLIC PROTECTION AND JUSTICE:

DEPARTMENT OF STATE POLICE

Mission and Organization

The Illinois State Police (ISP) was established in 1922
and has grown and expanded since. In fiscal year 1998
it received about $286 million in appropriations, after
transfers, mostly from the General Revenue Fund
($184 million) and the Road Fund ($52 million).

The Illinois State Police is a Code Department in the
executive branch of government. with four divisions.
The Forensic Services Division provides an array of
advanced technical crime scene services. including
analysis of fingerprints, spent cartridges, hair, fiber,
and DNA. The Division of Administration has many
functions including the Law Enforcement Agencies
Data System (LEADS), regulation of firearm sales. and
the Illinois State Police Academy. The Internal
Investigation Division investigates allegations of mis-
conduct by ISP officers, as well as executive depart-
ments, agencies, commissions. and boards. Finally. the
Division of Operations’ main function is highway safe-
ty and criminal investigation.

Discussion of Indicators

All of the State Police divisions reported the same
input indicators: budget appropriations and number of
personnel. The output and outcome indicators varied
by division.

The Forensic Division's output indicators include
‘DNA cases received’ and ‘DNA cases worked' as well
as firearm cases received and worked. In some cases,
the number of cases worked is greater than the number
of cases received. which is possible because there can
be residual cases from previous years. It would be
helpful to know how many cases received in a year
were worked that year as well as the total number of
cases, however. that information was not available.

Among the Forensic Division's outcome measures
were ‘DNA hits,” “AFIS hits,” and ‘Drugfire hits.’
AFIS is the Automatic Fingerprint Identification
System. and ‘Drugfire’ is a computerized firearms
identification system developed by the FBL. In all
three cases. ‘hits” indicates that the computer was able
to make a match. Information is not available on the
attempts not resulting in hits and, therefore, what per-
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cent of all cases result in a hit. While the numbers may
look small, much of this data processing technology is
rather new, and as more cases are worked, more elec-
tronic data will be available for future matches.

Another Forensic Division outcome measure is the ISP
User Satisfaction survey conducted among users of
forensic services. Although surveys take extra effort to
coordinate, they supply important information about
how well a service is being provided. In this case. the
police had a strong 97.1 percent of users satisfied with
their performance.

A part of the Division of Administration is the Law
Enforcement Agencies Data System (LEADS), a net-
work linking State, county and local police and allow-
ing them to share a variety of information. Two indi-
cators are ‘LEADS Inquiries’ and ‘LEADS Hits," indi-
cating the number of matches between an inquiry and
a criminal record. In fiscal year 1997 there was about
one hit out of every 35 inquiries and about one hit in
every 29 inquiries in fiscal year 1998. About three per-
cent of the inquiries each year resulted in hits.

The Division of Administration also administers the
Firearm Transfer Inquiry Program. a dial-up instant
check of a buyer at the moment of firearm purchase.
This check system informs a gun dealer whether the
customer has a criminal or mental record and whether
the gun can be sold. In fiscal year 1997 about one out
of every 82 gun buyers was denied because of a crim-
inal or mental record, while in fiscal year 1998 about
one in every 98 buyers was denied. In other words,
about one percent of buyers is denied. The Division
also processes Firecarm Owners Identification (FOID)
applications; however, it could only provide an esti-
mate of FOID denials instead of an exact number.

The Division of Internal Investigation conducts back-
ground investigations of all gubernatorial appoint-
ments and new state employees. Additionally. the
Division examines every ISP officer’s decision o use
his or her weapon. This is one example of the ‘inter-
nal cases opened,” which are the investigations con-
ducted on the State Police themselves. In contrast,
‘external cases opened’ is the investigation of any area
of State government apart from the State Police.
‘Cases referred back to originating agency’ means that
the State Police’s investigation found nothing illegal.



In that case, it is up to the originating agency to decide
what, if any, action might be appropriate.

The arrests resulting from investigations can be com-
pared to the net investigations (the external cases not
referred back plus the internal cases). In fiscal 1997
6.5 percent of the net investigations resulted in an
arrest, compared to 4.1 percent in fiscal year 1998.
Other outcome indicators are several percentages (o
show how time was used on various tasks. While these
are interesting measures. they are examples of mea-
sures requiring much more precision if they are to be
really useful and informative. perhaps primarily for
internal management purposes.

One of the challenges facing many public agencies
when presenting their accomplishments is that the best
indicators of success are often unmeasurable. For
example. it would be helpful to know how many
motorists did not speed because of the presence and
efforts of the police. or beyond that. how many acci-
dents were avoided because some motorists were
deterred from speeding. Questions like these cannot be
answered because there is no way (o measure events
that did not occur. In these instances agencies rely on
proxy measures, which are the next best measure avail-
able to reflect their performance. Examples of proxy
measures in the Division of Operations are the number
of alcohol-related crashes. fatal crashes and fatalities
which did occur.

Cause-and-effect relationships present yet another
challenge in assessing service efforts and accomplish-
ments. While police efforts and presence definitely
affect the number of crashes, so do external factors
such as weather and road conditions. Determining
how much changes in measures such as fatal accidents
are affected by increased ISP efforts versus external
factors is difficult. Likewise, the state of the economy
influences crime, which many believe tends to be
lower when the economy is strong. These are exam-
ples of explanatory information which might routinely
be provided to shed additional light on reported per-
formance information.

The State Police’s four divisions have many varied
output and outcome indicators: however, there are no
measures of efficiency or cost-effectiveness because
the ISP does not presently allocate appropriations or
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expenditures by activity. This will require a re-design
or re-structuring of the financial accounting systems. a
challenge not unique to the State Police. But if costs
cannot be allocated at this level. it will be impossible
in the future to determine the real cost of specific state
government services and activities.



Forensic Services

1997 1998 E
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Change 'g
(Dollars in Millions)

Inputs §
Budget appropriations  $ 459 % 46.5 L % S
Number of personnel 464 472 2 % -~

Outputs o
DNA cases received 2,249 2,634 17 % Q
DNA cases worked 2,452 4,809 9% % Forensic Hita kh
Firearm cases received 6,936 7.453 7 % FY- 1998 CI]
Firearm cases worked 5771 7,116 23 O  AFIShis &s'
Crime scene cases 3,700 3,335 (10) % 1k o~
Fingerprints received N

and processed 619,564 611,675 (1) % hu

Outcomes &
Percent of cases b

processed in 21 Q

days or less 66.4 % 7.1 %
ISP satisfaction survey:

percent very satisfied —— Druglire hits
or satisfied Not Available 97.1 % DNA hils 20%
DNA hits 8 24 200 % 4%
AFIS hits 351 460 31 %
Drugfire hits 66 122 85 %
Efficiency/
Cost Effectiveness Not Reported
Explanatory Information

AFIS stands for Automatic Fingerprint Identification System, and Drugfire identifies the gun
used in a crime from the shell casing.

Administration

1997 1998
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Change
(Dollars in Millions)
Inputs
Budget appropriations  $ 33.2 $ 34.4 4 %
Number of personnel 565 765 35 %
o ;mr:_ S DNA, Firearm, and Crime Scene Cases
uipu FY 1998
Local officers trained
in-service 1,460 1,180 (19) % F"?‘”‘;"l:a:“
New local officers trained 158 185 17 % gy
FOID applications
processed 221,289 200,232 (10Y %
LEADS messages (millions) 382.5 389.8 2 %
LEADS records entered 3,449,909 2,785,773 (19) %
LEADS inquiries 140,741,694 126,133,959 (10) %
FTIP inquiries 174,546 168,908 (3) %
Qutcomes
FOID cards turnaround 3 days 3 days Crima scana
FOID denials or BHA oases cases
revocations (est.) 10,000 12,000 20 % recelved i
FTIP denials 2,125 1,723 (19) % 20%
LEADS hits 3,992,266 4,317,626 8 %
Efficiency/
Cost Effectiveness Not Reported
Explanatory Information

FOID is the Fircarm Owners Identification. FTIP is the Firearm Transfer Inquiry Program,
and LEADS is the Law Enforcement Agencies Data Systems.
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Total Known Sex Offenders

1997 1998 Py Sax offenders
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Change rogisterad .
(Dollars in Millions) " )
Inputs §
Budget appropriations 8§ 92.3 5 100.7 9 % ®
Number of personnel 2,096 1,825 (13) % ~
Outputs b
Cases opened 8,733 7,799 (11} % Q
Motorist assists 135,032 133.611 (1) % kh
1lI vehicle code citations 363,218 394,827 9 % Sex:oNaridars ok 7]
Criminal arrests 25,200 25,582 1 % registerad a“
Helicopter missions flown 949 533 (44) % 5%
Sex offenders registered 8,144 10,476 29 % %
Quicomes Total Known Sex Offenders “ﬂ
Cases cleared by arrest 164 % 15.8 % FY 1998 o
Alcohol related crashes 477 442 (7) % Sexoffandars  aewd
Fatal crashes 1,302 1,200 (7) % rag;sat:rad (‘ta
Fatalities 1,447 1,347 (7) % S
Sex offenders not
registered 11,671 3,371 (T1) %
Efficiencys
Cost chveness Not Reported
Explanatory Information

Helicopter [lew only 5 months in FY98 vs. 12 months in FY97.

Sex offendars not

registered
24%
1997 1998
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Change
(Dollars in Millions)
Inputs
Budget appropriations % 1.8 & 2.0 12 %
Number of personnel 63 63 0 %
Outputs
Background investigations Total Cases
completed 2,127 1,651 (22) %
External cases opened 221 354 60 %
Cases referred back to
originating agency 182 146 (20) %
Internal cases opened 362 384 6 %
Training programs
delivered to external
agencies | 4 300 %
Quicomes
Arrests resulting from
investigations 26 24 (8) %
Percentage of manhours 1% BN 20 4 g 80e 700 el
related to casework Not Available 25 % o
Perceumgc of field work O External cases referiad back to originating agency
I s W Extarnal cases not refarmad back
(hrs) to report writing 29-30 % 25-34 % W inisitialcasen Shaned
Percentage of time
dedicated 1o field work 30 % 34 %
Effictencys
Cost wécﬁveness Not Reported
Explanatory Information

Internal cases opened refers to investigations into the Illinois State Police. External cases opened
refers to investigations into any other state agency or department aside from the state police.
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PUBLIC PROTECTION AND JUSTICE: LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION

Mission and Organization

The Liquor Control Commission’s (ILCC) mission is
to enforce the provisions of the Liquor Control Act. It
regulates businesses that manufacture. distribute and
sell alcoholic beverages. It also issues licenses,
inspects liquor establishments, hears appeals from
local liquor commission decisions, reviews citations
and evaluates license revocations. The Commission
assists State, county and local governments and agen-
cies in interpreting the law and educates liquor
licensees and officials.

Beyond what might be assumed from the name of the
Commission, the ILCC is also the State’s lead agency
for tobacco issues. Currently the commission is
involved in a campaign titled ‘Kids Can’t Buy ‘Em
Here,” which works with local areas and retailers to
reduce youth access to tobacco products.

Description of Indicators

The ILCC has three divisions: Licensing. Compliance
Case Adjudication, and Inspection. Though admitted-
ly a small agency, it represents one of the more thor-
ough presentations of service efforts and accomplish-
ments received by the Comptroller’s Office. First,
[LCC presents targets for nearly every one of its indi-
cators, while some SEA reports provided targets for
only their budget and personnel numbers. Established
targets help the audience of these reports evaluate the
work accomplished by the agency’s own standards.
The audience might ultimately disagree with the target,
but it at least provides a starting point for someone not
familiar with the program.

Beyond providing targets, this report also provides all
the necessary information for comprehensive SEA
reporting: inputs, outputs. outcomes, and
efficiency/cost-effectiveness indicators. However.
more than simply providing just any information for
these measures, the ILCC provides information that
can be compared and analyzed.

The Compliance Case Adjudication’s output and out-
come measures provide an example of complete indi-
cators. The first output indicator is ‘administrative
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review cases (ARP),” which is the automated comput-
er system that processes minor violations. If someone
charged with a violation wishes to challenge it. she
would then have a predisciplinary conference hearing.
If satisfied after the predisciplinary conference hearing,
she could end the process there, or she could go on to
a full citation case if not satisfied. More serious viola-
tions go straight to a citation case. which can be
appealed. ‘Revenue citations’ are somewhat different
from the outputs listed above in that it is a citation
strictly for the charge of sales tax delinquency. The
final output measure, ‘cases that generated revenues,’
correlate with the outcome measures indicating the
fines and penalties for each type of case. These indi-
cators track all the steps of the Compliance Case
Adjudication process.

There are other examples of complete information in
the ILCC’s report. For instance, many SEA reports
simply report the number of personnel, however, that
does not really say much about the amount of time or
hours worked. In comparison. the ILCC reports ‘per-
sonnel assigned’ in halves and even quarters of people.
This indicates the full time equivalent, accounting for
staff working only part-time in a particular activity.
The input indicators also include ‘staff days worked as
percent of maximum,” which is a measure indicating
the amount of sick days or other days off taken by the
staff. These measures provide a much better idea of
not only how many people were working, but also how
much time they spent working.

Overall, probably the best example of complete and
comparable information occurs in the ILCC’s efficien-
cy and cost-effectiveness indicators. All of the divi-
sions cite how much it costs to perform their service,
the amount of revenue generated, and the net revenue
for that service.

Again, while there are any number of other possible
indicators, ILCC’s report is one of the best examples of
reasonably complete, comprehensive, and comparable
SEA reporting.



1997 1998 1998
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Actual Target Actual
Inputs
Budget $ 239,754 $ 250,000 3 236,546
Personnel assigned 6.5 6.5 6.25
Staff work days 1,506 1,600 1,467
Staff days worked as a
percent of maximum 89 % 94 % 90 %
Outputs
Licenses issued 25,071 26,000 26,402
Mail control entries 24,000 30,000 30,889
Rejected applications 4,158 3,500 3,409
Duplicate licenses issued 339 400 575
Certificate tracking log
entries 28,000 33,000 35,000
License revenues
collected (millions) § 4.237 % 4300 % 4.177
Outcomes
Licenses Issued per staff
member per annum 3,857 4,000 4,224
License application turn
around time (in hours) 48 36 36
Efficiencys
Cost Effectiveness
Cost to issue a single
license $ 956 % 9.62 % 8.96
Revenue collected per
license (average) 3 16898 § 16538 % 158.18
Net revenue per license  $ 159.42 § 155.76 $ 149.21
Explanarory Information

1. The maximum staff days in FY97: 1,696; in FY98: 1,631

2. There are 26 categories of liquor licenses which range in cost from $25.00 to $3,600. There
are a number of steps which may be required to issue a license: a) mail control log; b) application
review; ¢) possible rejection; d) issue license: and e) enter certificate number in tracking log.

3. One person is administrative, but issues a small portion of the liquor licenses annually. All
revenues from liquor licenses are deposited into the Dram Shop Fund.

4. Mail control entries is not a measure of the total license applications mailed, but instead a measure
of the total mail received. A single mail control entry could involve multiple applications.

5. Certificate tracking log entries is larger for both fiscal years than the "licenses issued" because
there can be paper Jams or misprints in the system.

6. Duplicate licenses are issued when the original was lost, stolen, or destroyed.

Net Revenue

(In Dollars)
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Compliance Case Adjudication

1997 1998 1998
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year =
Actual Target Actual Q
Inputs S\
Budget $ 381,538 $ 405,000 3 380,983 S
Personnel assigned 6.25 6,50 6.50 =
Staff days worked 1,464 1,550 1,472 §'
Staff days worked as ~—
percent of maximum 94 96 @
Outputs )
Administrative review 3
cases (ARP) 7,377 7,000 7,197 3
Predisciplinary conference E.
hearings 147 250 293 (7
Citation cases 281 500 541 a‘
Appeals 46 48 37 =t
Revenue citations 999 1,000 1,141
Total cases 8,850 9,209
Cases which generated
revenue 6,042 5,365
Outcomes
Fines/penalties
administrative review  §$ 690,033 % 700,000 % 628416
cases
Fines/penalties-citations §$ 46,967 % 75,000 $ 87,117
Delinguent sales taxes
recovered $ 1927473  $ 2,000,000 $ 2,059,330
Total revenue generated $ 2,664,473 $ 2,774,863
Suspensions 1 2
Revocations 44 84
Warnings or dismissals 1,593 2,495
Efficiency/
Cost Effectiveness
Cost to process & adjudicate
compliance case $ 4311 $ 4200 % 41.37
Revenues generated
per case $ 301.07  $ 30000 % 301.32
Net revenues generated
per case $ 257.96 $ 25800 3 259,95
Explanatory Information

The Administrative Review Processing System is an automated computer system that processes
minor administrative violations of the Liquor Control Act much like traffic tickets. All parties waive
the right to a formal hearing, Citation cases are more serious and may involve violations of the act
that impact the public safety of Illinois citizens. All citations come before the commissioners at a
formal hearing. All revenues derived from ARP cases and citations are deposited into the General

Revenue Fund.

Fines/Penalties
Fiscal Year 1998

Delinguent sales
taxes recoverad
T4%

Finas/panalties

administrative

Fines/penalties- review cases
citations 23%
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1997 1998 1998
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Actual Target Actual
Inputs
Budget $ 1,474,523 3 1,500,000 $ 1,535,707
Personnel assigned
Administrative 5 5 5
Field agents 21 24 21
Annual agent mileage 358,855 370,000 371,446
Outputs
Retail inspections 19,908 26,920 18,421
Distributor inspections 376 410 320
Special event
inspections 343 890 354
Complaint inspections 576 600 569
Follow-up inspections 655 680 680
Total inspections 21,858 29,500 20,344
Outcomes
Violations issued 15,532 16,100 13,839
Revenues generated
from violations $ 737000 § 775,000 § 715,533
Efficiency/
Cost Effectiveness
Average inspections per
day/per inspector 4.0 4.9 e
Violations per 1,000
inspections 710.6 725.0 680.2
Cost per inspection 5 67.46 $ 75.49
Revenue generated per
inspection 3 33.72 $ 35.17
Net revenue per
inspection 3 (33.74) $ (40.32)
Explanatory Information

Hiring lags led to less than projected field agents in FY98 (3). Commission purchased laptop
computers and automated Inspection process in early to mid-1998 and this caused slow down
due to learning curve, etc. FY99 inspections will rise again to meet or surpass estimates, All
fine revenues are deposited into the General Revenue Fund and there is no incentive for our

agents to produce target

fine revenues.

Total Inspections
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NATURAL RESOURCES AND RECREATION: EPA

Mission and Organization

The Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA)
was created as part of the Environmental Protection
Act of 1970. Its stated mission is to safeguard envi-
ronmental quality, consistent with the social and eco-
nomic needs of the State. so as to protect health, wel-
fare, property and the quality of life. In fiscal year
1998 the General Assembly appropriated $780.7 mil-
lion to fund the work of the agency. which includes
administering State and federal programs to protect
and improve air, water and land resources and comply
with environmental laws. The agency consists of three
major bureaus (Air, Water and Land) and administra-
tive offices ranging from legal counsel and public
information to chemical safety and laboratories. The
[EPA employs approximately 1,300 people, including
engineers. biologists, attorneys and other professionals
with the skills necessary to carry out the many and var-
ied functions of the agency.

Activities of the agency include: issuing permits:
inspecting facilities: monitoring the environment; pro-
viding technical and financial assistance to local gov-
ernments: assisting industry and businesses in compli-
ance and prevention efforts: identifying and initiating
enforcement actions against polluters: regulating pol-
lution control facilities and waste disposal sites: train-
ing operators of wastewater treatment plants: and test-
ing the quality of water processing procedures. In
addition, the agency provides educational program-
ming in an effort to encourage prevention, reduction
and recycling.

An interesting aspect of the [EPA’s operation is the
recent adoption of a performance measurement hierar-
chy. developed in cooperation with the U.S. EPA and
others, to track progress in achieving environmental
goals and objectives. The hierarchy, the National
Environmental Performance Partnership System
(NEPPS). places the most desired environmental
objective at the top, followed by program objectives
and outcomes, with outputs and activities at the bot-
tom. The focus has shifted from merely tracking activ-
ities and counting outputs to examining and measuring
progress made in meeting the larger environmental
goals.
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The IEPA and environmental commissioners from 50
other states and territories comprise the Environmental
Council of States (ECOS), a non-profit, non-partisan
association of state and territorial environmental com-
missioners. Member states of ECOS and the U. S. EPA
have agreed to utilize the NEPPS performance mea-
sures, adapted by states as necessary to accommodate
unique conditions and needs.

The U.S. EPA is using these ‘core performance mea-
sures’ as part of its compliance with the federal
Government Performance Results Act (GPRA),
GPRA requires all federal agencies to prepare and
maintain a five-year strategic plan: develop an annual
performance plan for implementing the strategic plan;
and identify and collect data on performance indicators
that substantiate progress in goal achievement. If suc-
cessful, performance reporting would be vertically
integrated and coordinated from the federal level down
through the regional and state levels.

Discussion of Indicators

Some data used in this report was extracted from the
IEPA’s annual report:  Annual Environmental
Conditions Report-1997. This report contains the most
recent data available which, for some programs, is
1996 data. The report was formatted in accordance
with the NEPPS hierarchy of performance measures.
What follows are highlights of the outcome indicators
and cost-efficiency measures included in the report that
demonstrate how the agency is tracking its progress in
meeting the objectives specified.

The goal for the Water Pollution Control division is,
simply stated, clean water, safe drinking water and safe
groundwater resources for Illinois citizens. In fiscal
year 1998 the division reported receiving $507.3 mil-
lion in appropriations, up $24.5 million from the pre-
vious fiscal year, and employing an authorized head-
count of 363 individuals. Output indicators included
the number of permits issued, facilities inspected and
loans issued. as illustrated in the data table. A key indi-
cator of the quality of a waterway is the ability to sus-
tain aquatic life. One of the NEPPS environmental
objectives for water programs is to have 80 percent of
the nation’s surface waters restored or protected so that
they support healthy aquatic communities. This is the



definition of the classification ‘Good,” the best rating of
three used to rate Illinois waterways (the others being
‘Fair,” and ‘Poor’). The corresponding IEPA environ-
mental objective for Illinois” waterways is to increase
to 59 percent the number of waterways rated ‘Good’ by
the year 2000.

The top environmental objective of the Air Pollution
Control program is, again simply put, clean air. In fis-
cal year 1998, the division received slightly less than
$99 million and employed an authorized headcount of
399 employees. Output indicators include permits
issued, facilities inspected. and vehicle emission tests
performed. Determining whether the desired outcome
of cleaner air is being met requires monitoring air qual-
ity around the state, using the nationally recognized
Pollutant Standards Index (PSI). The PSI identifies
five ratings for air quality from the best (‘Good’) to the
worst (‘Hazardous’). One of the NEPPS environmen-
tal air quality goal states: “Every American city and
community will be free of air pollutants at levels that
cause significant risk of cancer or respiratory and other
health problems.” Corresponding goals of the IEPA
are to maintain 95 percent ‘Good’ or ‘Moderate’ air
quality conditions in the two ozone nonattainment
areas (Chicago and Metro-East/St. Louis) and to main-
tain 98 percent *Good’ or ‘Moderate’ air quality condi-
tions in the areas of the state outside the nonattainment
areas.

Ozone is the only pollutant that exceeds federal stan-
dards in areas of [llinois (the nonattainment areas) and
reducing ozone is one of the division’s program objec-
tives. Ozone is created on hot summer days when
volatile organic material (VOM) emissions react
chemically with nitrogen oxides (NOx). An effective
way of reducing ozone is to reduce seasonal VOM
emissions in nonattainment areas and NOx emissions
throughout the region. A program goal of the division
is to reduce seasonal VOM in the Chicago nonattain-
ment area by at least 217 tons per day by 1999. The
chart illustrates progress toward this goal in the
Chicago area. where VOM emissions have decreased
31 percent from 175,633 tons in 1992 to 121.817 tons
in 1996,

The major environmental goals of the Land Pollution
Control division are safe waste management and
reduced or controlled risks to human health and the
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environment from contaminated sites. The division
received $157.1 million in appropriations and
employed an authorized headcount of 418 people.
Output indicators include permits issued for hazardous
and nonhazardous facilities, facilities inspected, and
cleanup projects undertaken and completed. both
Federal Superfund and State. A NEPPS objective
under the goal of safe waste management is the
cleanup of sites that pose a risk to human health and
the environment. A corresponding State objective is to
increase on an average annual basis the land acreage
where health risks are reduced or controlled. Leaking
Underground Storage Tank (LUST) sites are among
the areas that pose a health threat. The [EPA report
indicated that 366 acres of LUST sites were improved
in 1997 at a per-site cost of $51,990 in 1997, down 59
percent from the per-site cost of $126.830 in 1990.
During that same time period, 1,711 non-LUST-conta-
minated sites were also improved. The report further
indicates that the total acres where health risk was
reduced or controlled in 1997 increased 168 percent
over acreage reported for 1996, Over 60 percent of the
increase is due to completion of cleanups at three large
voluntary cleanup sites.

As [EPA continues to monitor progress toward reach-
ing the federal and State environmental goals, there
will be less emphasis on tracking activities and more
emphasis on improved environmental quality.
Decision-makers and taxpayers want to know how
much it costs to preserve and protect the environment
and to clean up areas that pose health risks. The switch
in emphasis will provide a better indication of real
environmental improvements that are achieved as a
result of the agency’s work and will be of greater value
to policymakers.



Water Pollution Control

ey

1997 1998 1998 =~
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year E_
Target Actual "Q"!
Inputs ~
Budget appropriations (millions) ~ $ 4828 § 5073 % 507.3 3
Authorized headcount 348 363 363 o
Outputs E,.
Permits issued 9,165 9,400 13,984 * :;
Facilities inspected 1,622 1,600 1,815 ~—~
Financial assistance I-U
Wastewater loans issued 34 25 27 a
Drinking water loans issued N/A 20 5 -~
Qutcomes %
Percentage of waterways in 3
“Good" Condition** (see graph) N/A N/A N/A Q‘
Efficiency/ -~
Cost Effectiveness o
None reported er
)
Explanatory Information =
*Includes re-issuance of stormwater permits on a five-year cycle. Q

“*Data for 1997 and 1998 not available as of this date.

Air Pollution Contro

1997 1998 1998
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Target Actual
Inputs
Budgel appropriations (millions) 3 1023 & 990 § 99.0
Authorized headcount 399 399 399
OQutputs
Permits issued:
State 2,296 1.400 2,063
Federal 333 400 398
Facilities inspected 1,392 2,453 1,300
Vehicle emission tests
performed (thousands) 1,905 1,752 1,752
Outcomes
Reduction of VOM emissions” N/A N/A N/A
(see graph)
Efficiency/
Cost Effectiveness
None reported
Explanatory Information
*Data for 1997 and 1998 not available as of this date. Seasonal VOM Emissions in Nonattainment Areas
17!,633 173,574
180,000
Percent of lllinois Waterways in Good Condition 160,000
140,000
120,000
" =
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=
1997 1998 1998 g
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year ~
Target Actual "Q'*
Inputs =
Budget appropriations (millions)  § 174.2  § 1571 § 157.1 s
Authorized headcount 442 418 418 o
Qutputs .
Permits issued: g
Hazardous facilities 270 255 363 a‘
Nonhazardous facilities 470 500 466
Facilities inspected 6,269 5,800 5,870 E
Cleanup programs: oS
Federal Superfund cleanup by 3
projects (state-lead) 0 3 0 :%
Leaking Underground :I.
Storage Tanks (LUST) cleanups =
initiated 1,050 1,250 1,626 =
Outcomes hﬁ-
State cleanup
projects completed 7 12 5 c{%
LUST cleanups completed 944 1,000 945 -~
Efficiency/ \
Cost Effectiveness Q
Average cleanup cost per LUST 5 51,900 N/A N/A
site* (see graph)
Explanatory Information

“Data for 1998 not available as of this dare
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140

120

100
80
60

40

Dollars in Thousands

20

Acres Remediated
With Reduced or Controlled Health Risk

2,500

2,000

1,500 |

1,000

500

O Other Acres WLUST Acres

SEA-47



NATURAL RESOURCES AND RECREATION: HISTORIC PRESERVATION

Mission and Organization

The Illinois Historic Preservation Agency (IHPA) was
created in 1985 by combining the Historical Library —
which was established in 1889 — with Historic Sites
and Preservation divisions. The latter two divisions
were a part of the Department of Conservation, which
is now a part of the Department of Natural Resources.
The agency collects and publishes information relating
to the history of the state and works to protect and
interpret Illinois history and historic resources. Among
the responsibilities of the I[HPA is the preservation of
important historic sites through the Federal Historic
Preservation Program and the Economic Recovery Tax
Act, which includes activities for the identification,
evaluation and protection of historic and pre-historic
sites. The agency administers 57 state-owned memori-
als and sites that are visited by almost three million
people annually. It also administers the Illinois State
Historical Library, a research facility that contains
thousands of books, newspapers, films, maps. pho-
tographs and manuscripts, and the largest collection of
information on Abraham Lincoln in the country. The
[HPA is comprised of five major organizational divi-
sions, including: educational services, preservation
services, public affairs, historic sites and the historical
library. In fiscal year 1998, it received $16.9 million in
appropriations and employed an authorized headcount
of 223 to carry out its mission.

Discussion of Indicators

The THPA's Publications Program used $355.296 in
appropriated funds in fiscal year 1998 to produce five
titles and 17 issues or publications. Although the pro-
gram received less money in fiscal year 1998, sub-
scribers increased by 36.6 percent from 66,075 to
90,275. With less appropriations and more sub-
scribers, the cost per subscription fell by 27.5 percent
from $5.42 to $3.93. With $6.8 million in appropria-
tions and an authorized headcount of 126 employees,
the Historic Sites Program hosted 2.8 million visitors
at the state’s various historic sites. This was an
increase over fiscal year 1997 for both appropriations
and visitors of 11.5 percent and 12.7 percent, respec-
tively. The average cost to the state per visitor fell
from $2.43 in fiscal year 1997 to $2.40 in fiscal year
1998.

The Historical Library received $1.1 million in appro-
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priations, a 7.2 percent increase from the previous year.
to acquire, maintain and preserve documents and other
items of historic significance to the state. The Library
Acquisitions program acquired a total of 16.466 items
(see table), down 44.0 percent from the previous year.
Patron services at the library remained fairly constant,
increasing less than |1 percent from 20,604 served to
20,766. Services for all but the “on site” category
increased while on-site assistance decreased by 4.6
percent.

The [HPA is the agency responsible for reviewing
applications for entry into the National Register of
Historic Places. Entries may be one building or an
entire district. The [HPA receives about $600,000
annually from the National Park Service to assist in
carrying out mandated responsibilities, The federal
grant covers less than half of the cost of services.

The THPA is a good example of government services
on which it is difficult to put a value. What is the value
of lost historic resources? Most citizens would proba-
bly agree that preserving Illinois’ historic sites and
resources for future generations is a worthwhile func-
tion of state government, and most governments pro-
vide such services. An agency like IHPA can work to
assure citizens that its services are delivered as effi-
ciently and effectively as possible — that taxpayers are
getting good value for the money they do spend. The
agency can use SEA indicators and data for these pur-
poses to inform both internal management and taxpay-
ers.

Better cost and financial information would be a good
start, For example. the agency generates additional
resources through volunteer services. donations of
funds and collections, etc. — services for which the
taxpayer might otherwise pay. These activities reduce
the cost of the services provided or add value to the
taxpayer resources the agency receives. Though not
included in this report, the agency has indicated it will
be examining such possible indicators in the future.
Spending per capita for historic preservation might be
useful for comparative purposes. Likewise. an agency
that serves the public so directly might want to track
and report the quality of its services as perceived by its
various users. SEA reporting for a function like his-
toric preservation poses additional challenges, but
these are examples of measures that might be of inter-
est to the general public and useful for internal man-
agement purposes.



.
1997 1998 a-
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year a,
Inputs _ Historical Library Acquisitions >
Total Apprppriat]ans (millions) $ 15.7 3 169 Fiscal Year 1998 o
GRF (millions) $ 11.8 $ 13.7
Historic Sites (millions)  § 29 % 23 AV materials 3
Capital Development Board § 800,000 3 800,000 il by
Build llinois $ 150,000 3 96,428 %
Authorized headcount 220 223 -~
Ouiputs g
Historical Library 5
Acquisitions 29,422 16,466 Q'
Materials preservation 5,002 6,568 -~
Patrons served 20,604 20,766 o
Publications U’q
Titles produced 6 6 )
Issues produced 16 17 Lincaln materials ; 3
Historic site visitors (millions) 2.5 2.8 e M“"ii‘f"m“ M':m'm Q
Educational services * Published matarials
Participating schools 530 537 6%
Participating students 4,200 4,250
Publications mailed 34,000 31,200
Outcomes
National Registry entries
added 34 35 Historical Library Patrons Served
National Registry properties Fiscal Year 1998
added 1,043 1,098 -
Efficiencys it
cost Effectiveness On site
National Registry cost per 40%
entry 2,118 5 2,476
National Registry hours per
entry 85 104
Cost per subscription $ 5.42 3 3.93
Cost per site visitor $ 243 8§ 2.40
Fxplanatory Information
Telaphona & mail
35%
Attendees at lllinois Historic Sites
700,000

600,000

500,000

400,000

Attendees

300,000 -

200,000

100,000

Fiscal Year
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@ Old State Capital
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@Black Hawk

A Lincoln Log Cabin

O Dana-Thomas House

1 @Lincoln-Herndon Law Office |
‘ W Old Market Housa

@ Remaining 18 sites





